s.73

From: =18 banana.qld.gov.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 6 May 2014 5:00 PM

To: Fluoride

Subject: RE: Definition of Column 3 of Form 4D Water Fluoridation Recording Requirement

Good afternoon Sir,
Thanks a lot.

Then the column 4 named as chemical purity% might cause some missing understanding,/as the form note b shows
that column 4= %fluoride ion content in the fluoridation chemical multiplied by the purity.

If I did not read the note b for column 4, | would use 97% purity as shown ori the chenical certificate only or like
you, use 45.3 only.

Is it possible to use a new name of column 4 such as ‘Actual fluoride centent’ — thé calculation equation remains
unchanged?

Best regards,

s.73

Co-ordinator Treatment Systems
07 4992 9500 | enquiries@banana.qgld.gov.au-| wiww.banzna.qld.gov.au

Biloela Office Taroom Office Moura Office Postal
o . . . PO Box 412
62 Valentine 18 Yaldwyn 34 Gillespie Biloela QLD
’ ""___""'\S- HIRE Piains Road Street Street
Lo

4715

Please consider the environment before printing

From: Fluoride [mailto:Fluoride@health.qgid.gov.au]

Se 2014 4:21 PM

Tos 73

Subject: FW: Definition-of Column 2 of Form 4D Water Fluoridation Recording Requirement

DearS.73

For a saturator system;, using NaF, the solution strength is 4g/100mL. In other words, you should record ‘4’ in
Column 3. For Column 4, yod should record the fluoride ion content of NaF, as a percentage (i.e. 45.3).

| trust this addresses your enquiry. Please feel free to contact me should you wish to discuss further.
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Regards,

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer
Water Team

Health Protection Unit

Chief Health Officer Branch

Health Service and Clinical Innovation | Department of Health
Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street, Herston, Brisbane, 4006 | PO Box 2368, Fortitude Valiey, 4006

t. 07 3328 9348

f. 07 3328 9354

es.73 health.gld.gov.au

Out of hours number for Environmental Health: 1800 128 962

Visit us on the web at: www.health.qld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.asp

-
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From:s.73 mailtos.73 anana.gld.gov.au ]

Sent: Monday, 5 May 2014 12:23 PM

To: Fluoride

Subject: Definition of Column 3 of Form 4D Water Fiuoridation Recording Requirement

Good afternoon Sir,

The Banana Shire Council will implement Fluoridation in water supply system soon, who consequently should submit the
Form4D(saturated feed using Sodium Fluoride) Daiiy Record sheet as requested.

I am just look through the form #@nd get familiar with what kind of information is required. However, some further explanation
of ‘Column 3 Solution fluoride/strength(g/100mL) would be highly appreciated.

Solubility of NaF at room ternperature is.approximately 4 g/100mL.

1. Use this 4,g/100mlin the celumn 3 or
2. Use the 4 g/100-nL x 45.3%(F ion content in NaF at 100% purity) =1.81g/100mL in this column?

Best regards,

s.73

DOH-DL 1.4/15-00%:socsmen



s.73

Co-ordinator Treatment Systems

07 4992 9500 | enquiries @banana.qld.gov.au | www.banana.qld.gov.au
Biloela Office: 62 Valentine Plains Road | Taroom Office: 18 Yaldwyn Street
Moura Office: 34 Gillespie Street | Postal: PO Box 412 Biloela QLD 4715

Please consider the environment before printing

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it
and you are not the intended recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited. The information contained in this email, including any attachment sent
with it, may be subject to a statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to health service matters.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in error, you are asked to imrnediateiy notify the sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 1800
198 175 or by return email. You should also delete this email, and any copies, from your computer system networl and desiroy any hard copies produced.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it; any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or
publication of this email is also prohibited.

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain malicious software; Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the
consequences if any person's computer inadvertently suffers any disruption to services, loss ef infermations hdrm or is infected with a virus, other malicious computer
programme or code that may occur as a consequence of receiving this email.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not tiie views of the Queensland Government.
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s.73

From: Fluoride

Sent: Monday, 12 May 2014 10:27 AM

To: s.73

Subject: FW: Enquiry for the procedure of implementing fluoridation at Biloela and Moura

towns Banana Shire Council

FYI

s.73

mental Health Scientist — Water Program
Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Branch | Health Service and Clinical Irincvation
Department of Health | Queensland Government
PO Box 2368
Fortitude Valley BC QLD 4006
1. 7
e.s73 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

From: Fluoride

Sent: Monday, 12 May 2014 10:27 AM

To:s.73

Cc: s.73

Subject: RE: Enquiry for the procedure of implementing fluoridation at Bilogia and Moura towns Banana Shire
Council

His-73

Thank you for letting us know. I've made a note in our recordsto/document the date of commencement. If you
have any other questions you can contact us or$43 t the Central Queensland Public Health Un it.

Good luck.

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Scientist — Water RProgram

Health Protection Unit | Chief Health-Officer Branch | Health Service and Clinical Innovation
Department of Health | Queerisiand Government

PO Box 2368

Fortitude Valley BC QLD 4008

t. 07 3328 9707

e.s.73 @health.gid.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au

From:s.73 mailto:$73 anana.gld.gov.au ]

Sent: Monday, 12 May2014 10:04 AM

To: Fluoride

Cc:s.73

Subject: RE: Enquiry for the procedure of implementing fluoridation at Biloela and Moura towns Banana Shire
Council

Good morning Sir,

Fluoridation in Moura water supply commenced on Thursday, 08/05/2014.
Fluoridation in Biloela water supply commenced on Friday, 09/05/2014.

DOH-DL 1.4/1.5-00%:socsmen



Currently, the Fluoridation System is monitored by on-line analyser(auto) and bench-scale analyser(manual) to see if
the dosing is accurate and consistent.

Best regards,

s.73

Co-ordinator Treatment Systems
07 4992 9500 | enquiries@banana.qgld.gov.au | www.banana.gld.gov.au

BO n G n G Biloela Office Taroom Office Moura Office Posta!
. ) . FO Box 412
62 Valentine 18 Yaldwyn 34 Gillespie Biloela QLD
’ . —SHIRE Plains Road Street Street B
A

4715
Please consider the environment before printing

From: Fluoride [mailto:Fluoride@health.qgld.gov.au]

Sent: Friday, 2 May 2014 12:40 PM

To:s.73

Cc:

Subject: RE: Enquiry for the procedure of implementing fluoridation’ at Biloela and Moura towns Banana Shire
Council

His.73

Yes, we have received the notice. There is no need to submitangther notice — we understand things don’t always
work as planned. Please just send an email with/an update wher you have commenced dosing and I'll make a note.

Thanks for keeping us informed.

Cheers,
s.73

mental Health Scientist — Water Program
Health Protection Unit | Chief Fealih Cfficer Branch | Health Service and Clinical Innovation
Department of Health | Queensland Government
PO Box 2368
Fortitude Valley BC QLD/4006
t. 07 3328 9707

e.s.73 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

From:s.73 rnajltg: si’3 anana.gld.gov.au ]

Sent: Thursday, 1 May 2014 4:49 PM

To:

CC:S.73

Subject: RE: Enquiry for the procedure of implementing fluoridation at Biloela and Moura towns Banana Shire
Council

Good afternoon Sir,

Your explanation is highly appreciated.

DOH-DL 14/15-00%: socsmen



As requested, the council has submitted Form Fluoridation Notice to the QLD Health, in which the Fluoridation date
is indicated as on 01/05/2014 — please confirm that QLD health has received it.

However, the contractor who design and construct the Fluoridation at Moura and Biloela could not accomplish the
successful commissioning by Today. They will come back to the site next week and perform the final fine-tuning
testing and demonstrate the successful commissioning to the council.

it would be expected that the Fluoride will be continually dosed in to water supply system from Mid May 2014.

Please feel free to contact us if further info required.

Best regards,

s.73

Co-ordinator Treatment Systems
07 4992 9500 | enquiries@banana.gld.gov.au | www.banana.gld.gov.au

Biloela Office Taroom Office Mouia Office Postal
i - PO Box 412
62 Valentine 18 Yaldwyn/ 34 Giilespie Biloela QLD
@4 ——SHIRE  PuinsRosd St Streot
A

4715

Please consider the environment before printing

From: Fluoride [mailto:Fluoride@health.gld.gov.au]

Sent: Tuesday, 11 March 2014 3:58 PM

To:s.73

Subject: RE: Enquiry for the procedure of implementirig flucridation at Biloela and Moura towns Banana Shire
Council

Hi Huabing,

Thank you for your question — it’s a good guestion. For the purposes of notifying the public you only need to tell
them from the date where the contractor hands the treatment plant over to you. In other words, this is the date
where you would expect regular-dosing of fluoride into the water to be on-going. You may want to note that we
don’t expect the date to be 100% accurate when you tell the public, we expect that not everything may go to
plan. However, if the actual date does change we’d like you to tell us.

Hope that helps.

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Scientist — Water Program

Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Branch | Health Service and Clinical Innovation
Department of Health | Queensland Government

PO Box 2368

Fortitude Valley BC QLD 4006

1. 7

e.s73 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au
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Great state. Great oppartunity.

From:s’3 mailto:$73 anana.gld.gov.au ]

Sent: Tuesday, 11 March 2014 3:50 PM

To:

Cc:S.73

Subject: RE: Enquiry for the procedure of implementing fluoridation at Biloela and Moura towns Banana Shire
Council

Good afternoon Sir,
If you do not mind it, may | know what is your definition of fluoridation datz thatshouid be used for public notice?
1. Isit the date that fluoride first time added into water during commissioning-pefriod? Please note that
fluoridation plant can be shut down during this period...
2. Oritis the date that the commissioning is successful, and then'the fivoride is constantly added into water.

Your comments are highly appreciated.

Best regards,

s.73

Co-ordinator Treatment Systems
07 4992 9500 | enquiries@banana.qgld gov.au | www/.banana.gld.gov.au

Biloela Office Taroom Office Moura Office Postal
‘ : . PO Box 412
62 Valentine 18 Yaldwyn 34 Gillespie Biloela QLD
’m - '\S HIRE Plains Road Street Street ocla
-.\-.L\'\_""'ﬁ- '

4715

Please consider the environment/befare printing

From: Fluoride [mailte:Fluoride@healtn.gld.gov.au]

Se March 2014 4:56 PM

To:s-73

Cc:

Subject: RE: Enquiry foi-the procedure of implementing fluoridation at Biloela and Moura towns Banana Shire
Council

Hi s.73

We are happy to hear that you are ready to begin dosing. You do not need a QH representative there for the
commissioning. However, if you would like to invite one, please contacts7z3 he Rockhampt on Public
Health Unit. | have copied him into this email, and he can be reached ats.73 health.gld.gov.au

Please feel free to contact us if you have any other questions.

DOH-DL 1.4/15-00%: soeume



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

t. 7

e.s’3 @health.qld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au
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From:s.73 mailto:si73 anana.gld.gov.au ]

Sent: rch 2014 4:44 PM

To: Fluoride

Ccis.73 ; fluoride@dsdip.gld.gov.aus-73

Subject: RE: Enquiry for the procedure of implementing fluoridation at Bilosla and Moura towns Banana Shire
Council

Good afternoon Sir,

Thanks a lot for your reply.

The Fluoridation dosing unit will be commissioried on site from the 25-3-14 to 28-3-14. The following implement
procedure will be expected that is commissioning,- public ndtice advertisement, fluoridation notice submission, and
dosing fluoridate into the water supply.

Just wondering if the commissioning must be done at the presence of representative from Q health?

Best regards,

s.73

——4

Co-ordinator Treatment Systems
07 4992 9500 | enquiries@banana.qgld.gov.au | www.banana.gld.gov.au

BG n 0 ri G Biloela Office Taroom Office Moura Office POP];)(S);a:HZ
62 Valentine 18 Yaldwyn 34 Gillespie Biloela QLD
’,ﬁ — "\S HIRE Plains Road Street Street

AR \_-""‘:. 4715
Please consider the environment before printing

From: Fluoride [mailto:Fluoride@health.qgld.gov.au]
Sent: Monday, 24 February 2014 4:43 PM

To:s.73

Cc: fluoride@dsdip.qgld.gov.au; S-73

DOH-DL 14/15-00%00csmens




Subject: RE: Enquiry for the procedure of implementing fluoridation at Biloela and Moura towns Banana Shire
Council

Hello 13
Thank you for your questions.

1. There is no standard template for advising the public, you are free to use your own. The key points that you
do need to include in the notice are that a decision has been made to add fluoride to the water, and you
must specify the day from which fluoride will be added. Note that some other providers have only told the
public the month and year, but the Water Fluoridation Act 2008 (section 13) requires the day as well.

2. Our Department does not verify or certify the construction of fluoridation eguipment. This should be done
by the contractor prior to handover to you You may wish to speak with the’'Dept @f/State Development,
Infrastructure and Planning (http://wwwdsdip.gld.gov.au/infrastructure-deiivery/queensiand-fluoridation-
capital-assistance-program.htmil) as they require that fluoridation equipmentis verified or certified before
money is reimbursed to your local government. They may have advice-about thispreocess. | have included
them in this email to you.

However, if you would like external advice about the installation you may contact your local public health
unit, who would be the same people that would audit the facility-afterthe installation of the equipment.
They may be willing to have a look at the installation and let you'know if there are any potential issues. Your
local public health unit is the Central Queensland Unit, (07) 49206989, and you would need to contacts.73

s.73 health.gld.gov.au ) to make arrangements for a visit. I've also included him on this
email

3. There is no need to notify the Water Supply Regulator about fivoridation, unless there is a need to change
your drinking water quality management plari. You only need to notify us, Queensland Health, by submitting
Form 1 that is included in the Water Fluoridation-Code ofPi‘actice. You can send that notice to this email
address, or you can send it to the address listed.on the bottom of the form.

| hope this answers your questions. Please feel-free’to contact us again if you have further questions.

s.73

Sr. Environmental Health Scientist (Water)

Environmental Health Regulatioiand Standards

Health Protection Unit

Queensland Department of/Health

PO Box 2368

Fortitude Valley BC 4006

P: (07) 3328 9707

Find us on the web/at: http://www.health.qld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.asp

From:s73 mailtoS73 anana.gld.gov.au ]

Sent: Monday, 24 February 2014 11:34 AM

To: Fluoride

Subject: Enquiry for the procedure of implementing fluoridation at Biloela and Moura towns Banana Shire Council

Good morning Sir,

Banana Shire Council intends to implement fluoridation at Biloela and Moura town water supply. In Water Fluoridation Code of
Practice, QLD 2013, there is a From - Fluoridation Notice that must be submitted at least 30 days prior to the stated
commencement date. At the ‘attachments section’ of the form, it is written that ‘A copy of the public notice advising consumers
of the intention to fluoridate must be attached’.

DOH-DL 1.4/15-00%: socumens



The council would like to get some advices from your department as follows:

1. Isthere a standard template for public notice advising fluoridation? Or the Council can use their own.

2. With respect to the Fluoridation unit design/construction/ tests, is it to be verified or certified by your department?

3. Regarding to implementing fluoridation, will your department notify it of the Water Supply Regulator, DEWS QLD or
the council needs contact them directly?

Your comments are highly appreciated.

Best regards,

s.73

Co-ordinator Treatment Systems

07 4992 9500 | enquiries @banana.gld.gov.au | www.banana.qld.gov.au
Biloela Office: 62 Valentine Plains Road | Taroom Office: 18 Yaldwyn Street
Moura Office: 34 Gillespie Street | Postal: PO Box 412 Biloela QLD 4715

Please consider the environment before printing
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This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confideritiai and for the sole.use’of the intended recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it
and you are not the intended recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or ieview of this email is strictly prohibited. The information contained in this email, including any attachment sent
with it, may be subject to a statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to health service matters.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you-have received this email in error, you are asked to immediately notify the sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 1800
198 175 or by return email. You should alsodelete this email, and any copies, from your computer system network and destroy any hard copies produced.

If not an intended recipient of this emaii, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it; any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or
publication of this email is also prohibited.

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain malicious software, Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the
consequences if any person's orputer inadvertently suffers any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is infected with a virus, other malicious computer
programme or code that may occur as i consequence of receiving this email.

Unless stated otherwise, this emaii répresents only the views of the sender and not the views of the Queensland Government.
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Queensland
Government

Department of
State Development,
Our ref: OUT14/2371 Infrastructure and Planning

9 APR 201

s.73

Chief Executive Officer
Hinchinbrook Shire Council
PO Box 366

INGHAM QLD 4850

s.73
Dear

Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance Program

Thank you for submitting Hinchinbrook Shire Council’s Project Close Out reports and final
expenditure reimbursement claims for the fluoridation projects identified at the water
treatment plants (WTPs) in the table below.

These projects were funded under the Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance Program
(QFCAP). The final project cost and eligible QFCAP payment for each project is recorded

below as:
Fluoridation Project’ Final Project Cost QFCAP Payments
N Excluding GST Excluding GST
Forest Beach WTP < $514 602.00 $514 602.00
Halifax WTP $559 016.00 $559 016.00
Ingham Depot WIP .~ $742 320.00 $742 320.00
Ingham Pumping Station WTP $712 618.00 $712 618.00
Macknade WTP/ "~ $575 524.00 $575 524.00

With the completion of expenditure reimbursements, I confirm the Department of State
Development, Infrastructure and Planning has finalised funding for these projects.

Should the Couricil have any questions regarding water fluoridation legislation, please
contact the Departinent of Health, Water Quality Unit on 3328 9310.

63 George Street

PO Box 15009

City East Queensland 4002
Telephone + 61 7 3452 7761
Facsimile + 61 7 3898 0486
Website: www.dsdip.gld.gov.au

D@ H=D ":. 14/15=©@SLI Document 11



If you have any questions regarding the QFCAP funding, please contact >3

Senior Project Officer, Major Projects Office, Department of State Development,
Infrastructure and Planning on 3452 7761, who will be pleased to assist.

Yours sincerely

s.73

Deputy Director-General
Major Projects Office

cc S 73 Director, Water Quality Unit
Environmental Health Branch, Department of Health

DOH-DL 14/15-00k socuren -



Ref No: OUT14/2980

22 APR 20%

s.73

Chief Executive Officer
Maranoa Regional Council
PO Box 42

MITCHELL QLD 4465

Dear s.73

Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance Program

Queensland
Government

Department of
State Development,
Infrastructure and Planning

Thank you for the Maranoa Regional Council/(the’council} Project Close Out Report and
final expenditure reimbursement claim for the Fluoridation of the Roma Bores project
which was funded under the Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance Program
(QFCAP). Total QFCAP funding paid o council for this project is $45,425.00.

With the completion of eligible expenditure reimbursements, I confirm the Department
of State Development, Infrastrugture arid Plarming (DSDIP) has finalised funding for this

project.

Should the council have any questions regarding water fluoridation legislation, please
contact the Department of Health, Water Quality Unit on 3328 9310.

If you have any questions regarding the QFCAP funding, please contactS73
Program Manager,"Major Projects Office, DSDIP on 3452 7876, who will be pleased to

assist.

Yours sincerely
s.73

Deputy Directet-General
Major Projects Office

cc- . Director, Water Quality Unit
Environmental Health Branch, Queensland Health

DOH-DL 14/15-00k socuren 1

63 George Street

PO Box 15009

City East Queensland 4002
Telephone + 61 7 3404 3196

Website: www.dsdip.gov.au



Queensland
Government

Department of
State Development,
14 APR 201 Infrastructure and Planning

Ref No: OUT14/2522

s.73

Chief Executive Officer
Mount Isa Water Board
PO Box 1712

MOUNT ISA QLD 4825

s.73
Dear

Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance Program

Thank you for the Mount Isa Water Board (the board) Prcject Close Out Report and final
expenditure reimbursement claim for the Fludridation of the Mount Isa Water Treatment
Plant project which was funded under the/ Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance
Program (QFCAP). Total QFCAP funding paid to'the board for this project is $790,752.00.

With the completion of eligible experiditure reimbursements, I confirm the Department
of State Development, Infrastructuré and Plannirig (DSDIP) has finalised funding for this
project.

Should the council have any questions regarding water fluoridation legislation, please
contact the Department of Health, Water Quality Unit on 3328 9310.

If you have any questions regarding tie QFCAP funding, please contact s.73
Program Manager, Major Projects Office, DSDIP on 3452 7876, who will be pleased to
assist.

Yours sincerely

s.73

Deputy Directgr-General
Major Projects Office

73 A . ;
cc-’ - Director, Water Quality Unit

Environmental Health Branch, Queensland Health

63 George Street

PO Box 15009

City East Queensland 4002
Telephone + 61 7 3404 3196

Website: www.dsdip.gov.au

D@ H=D ":. 14/15=©@SLI Document 14



Our ref: OUT13/2759

2.3 SEP 2013

s.73

Chief Executive Officer

Tablelands Regional Council
PO Box 573
ATHERTON QLD 4883

D63573

Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance Program

Queensland
Government
Department of

State Development,
Infrastructure and Planning

Thank you for Tablelands Regional Council’s (council) Project Close/Out Report received
on 26 August 2013 and final expenditure reimbursement claim for the “Fluoridation of the

Ravenshoe Water Treatment Plant” project which was fanded

under the Queensland

Fluoridation Capital Assistance Program (QFCAP). The final project cost and eligible

QFCAP payments for this project are recorded/below:

Fluoridation Project “]¥inal Project Cost | QFCAP Payments
‘ Exclusive of GST Exclusive of GST
Fluoridation of the Ravenshoe Water $31991.64 $31 991.64
Treatment Plant

With the completion of expenditure réimbursements, I confirm the Department of State
Development, Infrastructure and Planning (DSDIP) has finalised funding for this project.

Should the council have arny questions-regarding water fluoridation legislation, please
contact the Department of Health, Water Quality Unit on telephone 3328 9310.

If you have any questions regarding the QFCAP funding, please contact

s.73

will be pleased t0assist you.

Yours sincerely
s.73

Deputy Director-General
Major Projects’ Office

s.73

cc Director, Water Quality Unit

Environmental Health Branch, Department of Health

D@ H=D ":. 14/15“@@3L| Document 15

Program Manager, Major Projects Office, DSDIP on 3898 0450, who

63 George Street

PO Box 15009

City East Queensland 4002
Telephone + 61 7 3247 3055
Facsimile + 61 7 3898 0486
Website: www.dsdip.gld.gov.au




Queensland
Government

Department of
State Development,

O f: OUT14/3818 5
HELE / Infrastructure and Planning

16 MAY 201k

s.73

Chief Executive Officer
Tablelands Regional Council
PO Box 573

ATHERTON QLD 4883

s.73
Dear

Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance Program

Thank you for submitting Tableland Regional Council’s Project Close Out report and final
expenditure reimbursement claim for the Fluoridation of the Atherton Water Treatment
Plant project which was funded under the Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance
Program (QFCAP). Total QFCAP funding paid to the council for this project was
$36 794.45.

With the eligible expenditure reimbursement comipleted, I confirm the Department of
State Development, Infrastructure/and Planning (DSDIP) has finalised funding for this
project.

If you have any questions regarding the QFCAP funding, please contact
s.73 Senior Project Qificer, Major Projects Office, DSDIP on 3452 7761, who
will be pleased to assist.

Yours sincerely

s.73

Deputy Director-General
Major Projects Office

cc-S73 \, Director, Water Quality Unit
Environmental Health Branch, Department of Health

63 George Street

PO Box 15009

City East Queensland 4002
Telephone + 61 7 3452 7761
Facsimile + 61 7 3898 0486
Website:
www.dsdip.gld.gov.au
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Ref No: OUT14/2982

22 APR 70%

s.73

Interim Chief Executive Officer
Weipa Town Authority

PO Box 420

WEIPA QLD 4874

Dears.73

Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance Program

Queensland
Government

Department of
State Development,
Infrastructure and Planning

Thank you for the Weipa Town Authority (the/authority) Project Close Out Report and
final expenditure reimbursement claim for the /Fluofidation of the Weipa Water
Treatment Plant project which was funded undes the/Queensland Fluoridation Capital
Assistance Program (QFCAP). Total QFCAP funding paid to the authority for this project

is $29,711.00.

With the completion of eligible expenditure reimbursements, I confirm the Department
of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning (DSDIP) has finalised funding for this

project.

Should the authority have/any questions regarding water fluoridation legislation, please
contact the Department of Health, Water Quality Unit on 3328 9310.

If you have any questions regarding the QFCAP funding, please contact s
Program Manager, Major Projects Office, DSDIP on 3452 7876, who will be pleased to

assist.

Yours sincerely
s.73

Deputy Directer-General
Major Projects Office

cc 57 Director, Water Quality Unit

Environmental Health Branch, Queensland Health

D@ H=D ":. 14/15=©@SLI Document 17
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Qur ref: OUT14/3205

19 JUN 208

s.73

Chief Executive Officer
Whitsunday Regional Council
PO Box 104

PROSERPINE QLD 4800

Dear S-73

Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance Program

[ _ALBAT
Queensland
Government

Department of
State Development,
Infrastructure and Planning

Thank you for submitting Whitsunday Regional’ Council’s Project Close Out report and
final expenditure reimbursement claim for the'water fluoridation projects identified at the
water treatment plants in Table 1 below. The projects were funded under the Queensland

Fluoridation Capital Assistance Program (QFCAP).

Project QFCAP Final
Project Cost
and Payments
. A (excluding GST)
Fluoridation of the Airlie/Cannonvale Beaches Water Treatment $19 166.66
Plant
Fluoridation of the Bowen Bores $19 166.67
Fluoridation of the Collinsville Water Treatment Plant $19 166.67

Table 1

With the completion-of expenditure reimbursements, I confirm the Department of State
Development, infrastructure and Planning has finalised funding for these projects.

Should the Council have any questions regarding water fluoridation legislation, please

contact the Department of Health, Water Quality Unit on 3328 9310.

DOH-DL 14/15-00k socuren 12

63 George Street

PO Box 15009

City East Queensland 4002
Telephone + 61 7 3452 7761
Facsimile + 61 7 3898 0486
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www.dsdip.qld.gov.au




If you have any questions regarding the QFCAP funding, please contact =7
Project Manager, Major Projects Office, Department of State Development, Infrastructure
and Planning on 3452 7876, who will be pleased to assist.

Yours sincerely

s.73

Deputy Director-General
Major Projects Office

73 ; : :
cc-° Director, Water Quality Unit

Environmental Health Branch, Department of Health

DOH-DL 14/15-00k socuren 1



DAX AT FIDET1S ]
Queensland
Government

Department of
State Development,

l .
Ref No: OUT14,/4781 nfrastructure and Planning

19 JUN 200

s.73

Chief Executive Officer
Whitsunday Regional Council
PO Box 104

PROSERPINE QLD 4800

Dear3.73

Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance Prograin

Thank you for submitting Whitsunday Regional Council’s Project Close Out report and
final expenditure reimbursement/claim/for the water fluoridation projects identified in
the table below.

These projects were funded under the/Queensland Fluoridation Capital Assistance
Program (QFCAP). The final project cust and eligible QFCAP payment for each project
is recorded below as:

Project QFCAP Final Project Cost and
Payments (excluding GST)
Fluoridation/of -the Proserpine River to Bowen | $655 800.00

Water Treatment Plant
Fluoridation of the Proserpine Water $655 800.00
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
contact the Department of Health, Regional Public Health Office in Mackay on 4911 0400.

63 George Street

PO Box 15009

City East Queensland 4002
Telephone + 61 7 3452 7781
Website: www.dsdip.qgld.gov.au

DOH-DL 14/15-00k socuren 2



If you have any questions regarding the QFCAP funding, please contact s13
Program Manager, Major Projects Office, DSDIP on 3452 7876, who will be pleased to

assist.

Yours sincerely

s.73

Deputy Director-General
Major Projects Office

cc -7 Director, Water Quality Unit
Environmental Health Branch, Queensland Health

Page 2 of 2
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73
° - RE: FORM 2 - Seqwater Kilcoy WTP (7 April to 5 May 2014)
From: 73 @seqwater.com.au>

To: s.73

Date: 6/2/2014 10:37 AM
Subject: RE: FORM 2 - Seqwater Kilcoy WTP (7 April to 5 May 2014)

Hij s-73

New Kilcoy WTP has fluoride operational for ‘manned’ hours which is the bulk of production — targeting 0.8mg/L.
There’s still a few niggling issues being sorted out with the contractors.

Regards,
s.73

From:s.73
e May 2014 3:37 PM

ToS73

Subject: RE: FORM 2 - Seqgwater Kilcoy WTP (7 April to 5 May 2014)

His.73
We were close! At least another week away due to faulty F analysers.
Do you require any more info? The other WTP at Kilcoy (Wade St) is still functioning with fluoride.

Regards,
s.73

From:S73 [mailtoS-"3

Sen ay 2014 2:30 PM
To:s.73 Fluoride; s-47(3)(f)
Cc:s.73

Sub ay 2014)

@health.gld.gov.auj

In relation to your enquiry, we don’t feel there is a need - in this instance - to resubmit your original Form 2. However,
we do ask that you inform us of any further delays to the resumption of fluoride dosing at Kilcoy, as soon as you
become aware of them.

Please feel free to give me‘acall should you wish to discuss.

Thanks,

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer
Water Team

Health Protection Unit

Chief Health Officer Branch

Health Service and Clinical Innovation | Department of Health
Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street, Herston, Brisbane, 4006 | PO Box 2368, Fortitude Valley, 4006

t. 07 3328 9348

f.07 3328 9354

e.s.73 @health.qld.gov.au

Out of hours number for Environmental Health: 1800 128 962

Visit us on the web at: wwwhealth.gld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.asp
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From: s.73 [mailto:s.73 @seqwater.com.au]

Sent: Friday, 2 May 2014 2

Tos.73 Fluoride

Cc:s.73

Sub 2014)
His.73

The Project Manager, Miles, has indicated that fluoride dosing at Kilcoy is likely to be afflonger than the 5 May which
was indicated in our Form 2, with commissioning work expected to be completed later next/week.

Normally Form 2’s sent after the 2-week period of no fluoride dosing has lapsed; but in this instarice, we submitted
the form in advance because its knowingly off-line due to commissioning worK at our-new WTP. What would you like
us to do in this instance? Do we have to resubmit the Form 2?

| am away on leave next week, so if you need further information then,/piease contact S/8 on tels-73
s.73

Regards,s-73

s.73
Coordinator - DWQ Continuous Improvement

@scavater OBO

117 Brisbane Street, Ipswich, QLD, 4305 | PO Box 16146, City East, QLD 4002

p (07) 5656 3324 | ms.73 | f (07) 3229 7926
\ A .‘
‘. [V

es.73 @seqwater.com.au “ wwwsegwater.com.au

Please consider the environment before pririting this email. It can take up to 13 litres of water to make one sheet of A4 paper.

From: s.73

Sent: T ay 2014 2:46 PM

To:s.73

Cc:

Subject: RE: FORM 2 - Seqgwater Kilcoy WTP (7 April to 5 May 2014)

s.73

| have just spoken to s.73 who advises that the fluoride might not be commissioned until early next week.

DOH-DL. 14/15-00 .
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Can you confirm whether we would need to issue another notification if this were to be the case? Could we issue the
notification on Monday or do we need to prepare something today or tomorrow?

S.73  —can you please coordinate with Superintendent and WTA to confirm the actual current timeframe?

s.73

Senior Project Manager
p 30355686 | m S.73 | f (07) 3229 7926 El

@scawater OB

From:

Sent: 9 April 2014 1:32 PM
To: fluoride@health.gld.gov.au

Cc:s.73

Su oy WTP (7 April to 5 May 2014)

Hi,

Please find attached a completed FORM 2 for Kilcoy WTP which is expected .tc have its fluoridation system offline
between 7 April and 5 May whilst final commissioning works are compieted for'this new WTP Accordingly, the period
of non-operation is expected to exceed the 14 days upon which a FCRM 2 notice is required, by (approximately) an
additional two weeks.

Regards,S /3

s.73 A/Principal Drinking Water Quality

@ seqwater QOB E

117 Brisbane Street, Ipswich, QLD, 4305 | PO Box 16146/ City East, QLD 4002
p (07) 5656 3324 | ms.73 | f (07) 3229 7926
es.73 @seqwater.com.au | w www.seqwater com.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email. It can take up to 13 litres of water to make one sheet of A4 paper.

Our head office ha d to Ipswich,

Please update your recordsAo reflect w office address:

117 Brishane Street, ueensland 4305
PO-Box 16146, City East, Quee 4002

Please-emailre rf- :"NI @seqwater.com.au for any enquiries.

This email, including any attachivients, may contain confidential or legally privileged information for the sole use of the intended recipient. Any review,
use, distribution, or disclosure by others is strictly prohibited. Receipt of this email by anyone other than the intended recipient is not intended to, and
does not, waive legal privilege or confidentiality. This email and any attachments are also subject to copyright. No part of them is to be reproduced,
adapted or transmitted without the written permission of Queensland Bulk Water Supply Authority (trading as Segwater). If you are not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and delete all copies of this message from your system.

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it and
you are not the intended recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited. The information contained in this email, including any attachment sent
with it, may be subject to a statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to health service matters.

DOH-DL 14/15-00% .
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If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in error, you are asked to immediately notify the sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 1800
198 175 or by return email. You should also delete this email, and any copies, from your computer system network and destroy any hard copies produced.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it; any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or
publication of this email is also prohibited.

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain malicious software, Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the
consequences if any person's computer inadvertently suffers any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is infected with a virus, other malicious computer
programme or code that may occur as a consequence of receiving this email.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the Queensland Government.

Safe Stamp
Your Anti-virus Service scanned this email. It is safe from known viruses.
For more information regarding this service, please contact your service provider,

DOH-DL 14/15-00% ..
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From: s.73

To:
Subject: FW: Media - Allora
Date: Wednesday, 2 July 2014 3:59:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png
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
e.s.73

Out of hours number for Environmental Health: 1800 128 962

Visit us on the web at: www.health.qgld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.asp

@ ) @
Customers first Ideas inta action Unlzash patential Becourageous \/% Empowearpeopla
I i oot —

Zovermnment

From:s.73

Sent: 014 3:41 PM
To:s.73

Cc:

Su RE: Media - Allora

G'day S-73

Hope you are having a great Wednesday.

| contacted s.73 (Warwick Watér Treatment Piant Operator) this morning to discussed the Allora
situation. S-73 stated that a pipeline/is currently beirig built between Warwick and Allora, so that Allora will be
supplied with water from the Warwick Tieatment Plant. Hence, this water supply will be fluoridated. s.73 did
not know the exact dates for the project; but stated that he believes that it is approximately 2 months off
completion.

Section 13 requirements’'were outlined to him . An email outlining these requirements has also been sent to him,
including where Forin.1 can be located.

I had a look at the original SDRC Form 1, submitted in March 2011 and area/communities outlined were
Warwick City’and Yarnigan Township. After our discussion yesterday and reading this Form 1,our view is section

13 requirements wiil heed-to be complied with.

s.73 was able to_pravide any updates/information on the current Council fluoridation debate, but did state that
was pro-fluoridation.

Hope that this information is helpful. Let me know if you need any more information.

Thanks,
s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer | Darling Downs Public Health Unit
Darling Downs Hospital and Health Services

DOH-DL 14/15-00k socuren 2
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Browne House Baillie Henderson Hospital
Cnr. Tor and Hogg Street (PO Box 405)
Toowoomba QLD 4350

P: 07 4699 8477

M:s.73

E: @health.gld.gov.au
W Id.gov. rlingdown

From: s.73

Sent: Tuesday, 1 July 2014 9:31 AM
To:s.73

Sub

Mornings.73

Hope you're well.

Can | give you a call soon with regards to the attached?

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer
Water Team

Health Protection Unit

Chief Health Officer Branch

Health Service and Clinical Innovation | Department of Health
Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street, Herston, Brisbane, 4006 |.PO Bex 2268, Fortitude Valley, 4006

t. 07 3328 9348

f. 07 3328 9354

e.s.73 health.qld.gov

Out of hours number for Environmental Health: 100 128 962

Visit us on the web at: www.health.gld.gov.au/pih/c¢hu/eh-science-regulation.asp
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From:s.73

Sent: ly 2014 9:22 AM
To:s.73

Su

A couple of articles irom yesterday.
s.73

Senior Environmeritai Health Officer
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

es.73 @health.qld.gov.au

Out of hours number for Environmental Health: 1800 128 962

Visit us on the web at: www.health.gld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.asp

DOH-DL 14/15-00k socuren
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Daily News, Warwick QLD
01 Jul 2014

ISENTIA

INFLUENCE - INFORM - INSIGHT

General News, page 8 - 326.00 cm?
Regional - circulation 2,795 (MTWTFS-)

Queensland
Government
Copyright Agency licensed copy
(www.copyright.com.au) 1D 278602225 PAGE 1o0of2

A
back

Tenants miss
say on fluoride

IT IS great news that Southern President, Queenslanders For s.73
Downs Council is going to survey
Warwick, Stanthorpe, Yangan
and also Allora residents on
whether they want water
fluoridation continued or ended.

However, it is unfair that
tenants who in live on properties
with fluoridated water probably
won't get a say as it is unlikely
that absentee landlords will pass
on the fluoridation survey form
to the tenants.

Perhaps tenants could show
their rental agreement to council
and then be given a survey form
too?

We hope council will consider
this idea or find a way that
tenants can also be included in
the survey so that it is more
equitable.

With Allora soon to be
connected to the Warwick water
supply, council could find itself
in a tricky situation with the
Water Fluoridation Act.

Effectively council will be
fluoridating Allora butwill never
have made a decision-to
fluoridate Allora,

To stay this gide of the law
council might have to vote to
fluoridate Allora, publish its
fluoridation decision then wait
the reouisite 30 days before
connecting Allora to the
flugridated Warwick supply.

One simpleg suiution would be
not te.connect Allora until after
the survey is-done and decisions
made, or if Allora's connection is
imminent, to simply refrain from
adding sodium fluoride to
Warwick's water supply for a few
months until after the survey is
done and decisions made.

Regardless, we feel that
council really needs to seek
urgent legal advice before
making Allora's reticulated water
a fluoridated water supply
Merilyn Haines

s.73
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From: S.73
Sent: Friday, 6 June 2014 10:49 AM

To:
o s.73

Subjec

Hi .73

1’ve talked to S.73 from Metro South (573 is currently is on
leave) and they’ve all indicated that they’re happy to both engage on thi participate in a
workshop or similar. However, 1°d suggest that any workshop be held no sooner than mid-July given

some of the relevant staff will be on leave before then.

For your convenience, an up-to-date contact list for the Public Health Units can be found at:
http://www.health.qld.gov.au/cho/default.asp

1 should also mention t h Public Health Unit now provides public health services to the
township of Kilcoy, sog 73 should be your point of contact for Kilcoy.

Feel free to give me a call if you’d like to discuss further.

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

f. 4

e.s.73 d@health.qld.gov.au

Out of hours number for Environmental Health: 1800 128 962

Visit us on the web at: www.health.gld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.asp

From: g 73 [mailto:S.73 @seqwater.com.au]
Sent

To: 5.73

Cc:

Subject: RE: Update on Audit Actions and Query on the Code
Hi S.73

As discussed, here is a list of sites for which we would like to have-a Kook at/ initiadly in terms of the
requirement for daily site attendance (as per the Guidance notes for MS §.2:1):

Dunwich, Amity Point, Point Lookout, Beaudesert, Kooralbyn WTPs (Metro South PHU -/S/73
Canungra WTP (Gold Coast PHU — )

Lowood, Esk and Kilcoy WTPs (West Moreton PHU — s.73

(%2

Dayboro (Metro North — g 73 )

Its still early stages and we are yet to discuss this/fully inceinally;. 1f you have any initial guidance from
your technical forum with the PHUs on Thursday, please let me know and’ I'will discuss this with our
Operations Coordinators and relevant specialists at a meeuirig /expected to be held next week. We can

then look at an appropriate workshop(s) or other forums, *o progress this one further with those

stakeholders who need to attend.

Thanks, g 73

s.73 Coordinator - DWQ Continuous lmnprovement

117 Brisbane Street, 4305 | PO Bax 16146, City East, QLD 4002
p (07) 5656 3324 | mg 73 | £ (07) 3229 7926

€573 @seqwat www . seqwater .com-au

Please consider the environment before-printing this email. It can take up to 13 litres of water to make one sheet of A4 paper.

From: S.73

Sent

To: g.73

Cc:

Subject: Update on Audit Actions and Query. on the Code

HI 5,73

s.73 indicated thet you were interested in when we would submit our first 2-monthly

progress with' the PHU Tiuoridation audit findings. We are currently working towards
having a report ©o ycu by /mid-June, a couple of weeks earlier than the end-of-month deadline.

1 also have a questiorifor.you relating to the last bullet point in the guidance notes for MS 5.2.1 in the
Code of Practice (attached). Were are currently reviewing operator attendance at our WTPs in remote

areas, which are typically sodrum fluoride saturator plants, and are interested in engaging the relevant
PHUs with respect to this paragraph.

If you a free to call back, I’m at my desk today or can be reached on my mobile tomorrow afternoon.

Thanks,s. 73
s.73 Coordinator - DWQ Continuous Improvement
117 Brisbane Street, , 4305 | PO Box 16146, City East, QLD 4002
p (07) 5656 3324 | m S.73 | £ (07) 3229 7926
€g573 @seqwater.com.au | w www.seqwater.com.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email. It can take up to 13 litres of water to make one sheet of A4 paper.

D@H 4 @@&I Document 3
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WATER FLUORIDATION ACT 2008
SECTION 13(3)
Form 1
FLUORIDATION NOTICE Queensland
Government
1. Water Supplier Details
Name
f . 6ANA+"‘& ; ;i:[ ]{3& ( Pt LN | &F (3 J
(éjB__l)ACN Service Provider ID N
RS QL4 1ib A4S l Ye |
Principal contact
Family Name lGiven Namels Position
- -
s 2

0

Street address

l_é_:) yﬁ ENTIE z: AirS g" aD) jl_C}ég... & gglmcwe (1" rig

Postal address (if different to above)
INp3 Bit_GC A G lPostwde 7S |
Phone Fax Mobile
| 6992 9500 | #9950 34932 s |
Email N\
. , el PRl : i il
2. Fluoridation Decision See R @ Danana. 18 qatfel
Date of fluoridation decision by local government Nature of fluoridation decision

I ’;)‘ !!b;ﬁ QQ i —II:qL.QA../ ‘ & "*'
Qp Eldonda Dop. ( -Q>“mu-.

3. Water Supply Details )g:_, lJ p
Proposed commencement or cessation date for Ff Cvioss G"ﬂ"
i 2 - ¢ WPM L.x-. ic!a (Y

¥ N

Name and location of water treatiment plant or bore Local Government Area

M&@,M%MMM&S&MGL

Details of fluoridation process (type of chemics, dry or selution feed, prescribed fluoride concentration) or the decommissioning process
for the fluonde dosmgfarlllty

7 Y .
fh 4" Aalicn.  SyEbaa. . Coas s ) O,__\ia Yul-Te ] AV ol | o
- =" , ] .
: A;.‘:-.ﬂl‘m Hm - «ps,
~ohine Ll v ilasne f~ \hd.
2l : gcga,_lp fana Ap'Se WA ANC 0 - ‘.2 fvry 1.‘ M CAL i B
e .
Area or communities that wilfreceive) cess? receiving fluoridated water
LA;'? Pk v\
(GO,

Attachments ~ Please tick the box if you have attached the following

1. A copy of the public notice advising consumers of the intention to flucridate, or cease fluoridating, must be attached IZ/
2. Has additional information been attached? YES DNumber of additional pages attached

3l/é3/20ili-

epartment of Health, C\- Director, Water Program, Environmental Health Regulation and
2_ tandards, PO Box 2368, Fortitude Valley BC, 4006

Date

Version 1.2 September 2013
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BANANA SHIRE COUNCIL

" S PUBLIC NOTICE
ananag

:-j;“:—“\SH[RE

INTENTION TO COMMENCE
FLUORIDATION OF TOWN WATER
SUPPLIES BILOELA, THANGOOL,

MOURA, BANANA

The Banana Shire Council will commence
the addition of fluoride to Town Water
Supplies at Biloela, Thangool, Moura &nd
Banana in the near future in accordance
with the Queensland Water Fluoridation
Code of Practice.

Water treated at Biloela is supplied /io
Thangool, and water treated at Moura is
supplied to Banana. Water supplied to
Callide Dam residents from the Biloela
Water Treatment Plant will mot be
fluoridated due to the location of dosing
facilities.

Construction of fluoride dosing facilities
at Biloela and Moura’ are nearing
completion with the cormmissioning phase
scheduled to conimence during the week
commencing Monday 24th March 2014,
Fluoride wil/ be added to the above town
water supplies intermittently during the
commissioning phase.

The current schedule is for Fluoride to be
continuously added to the above Town
Water Supplies from 1st May 2014.

For further enquiries contact Council's
Water Services Section on 4992 9500.

Ray Geraghty

Chief Executive Officer
PO Box 412

BILOELA QLD 4715

NB :CORRECTION - DATE IN PUBLIC NOTICE
REGARDING FLUORIDATION PUBLISHED IN
CENTRAL TELEGRAPH ON 24/03/2014 -
31ST MARCH 2014 SHOULD HAVE BEEN
NOTED AS 1ST MAY 2014. APOLOGIES FOR
ANY INCONVENIENCE CAUSED BY THIS

m5=@@§h Document 32
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———— — SHIRE 0

MK:EHO

18 March 2014

HEALTH Prldicu i

P i P.07 4741 2900 F. 07 4741 1741

: s PO Box 274 Hughenden Q 4821

Water Quality Unit ‘ * 34 Gray St, Hughenden Q 4821
PO Box 2368 ../ flinders@flinders.qgld.gov.au
FORTITUDE VALLEY BC QLD 4006 . viww.flinders.qld.gov.au

NOTIFICATION OF INTENTION TO FLUORIDATE PUBLIC POTABLE WATER SUPPLY

| wish to inform you that continuous fluoridation of the Hughenden water supply will occur on
the 10" April 2014. Notice has been given to the puiblic in'the form of the Council notices that
are mailed to each resident on a weekly basis (Flinders‘does riot currently have a local
Newspaper or Newsletter circulating in the area).

Should you require further information or assistance in this matter, please contact the
undersigned at Flinders Shire Council on {07) 4741.12900.

Yours faithfully

&

Environmental Health Cfficer

DOH-DL 14/15-00% . . ##




WATER FLUORIDATION ACT 2008
SECTION 13(3)
Form 1
FLUORIDATION NOTICE Queensland
Government
1. Water Suppilier Details
Name _
I Barana Siae  Cacnicic )
(ABNIACN Service Provider ID

RS Qi h 116 60-4 l 504 l

Principal contact
Family Name Given Name/s Positicn

Lo 2 __ faracer b
("'_;2 | Post Code q'-/irls ’

7]
Street address

Postal address (if different to above)

l ? 8] Ba' e ‘\J:l?._ Bic.oeerr G | postooe 4=T71 S '

Phone Fax Mobile
[ 4992 7500 [ 4-992 3443 ]
Email
I X CL_Q AL O . J
2. Fiuoridation Decision SJee X - & t‘ ar\ar@.-f? 'd 30 2L
Date of fluoridation decision by local governmeﬁt I\'ature of fluoridation decision

L 1S Moy 20312 I. ce, m_gn@cjl
3. Water Supply Details QO(J(J' JC%U?}'(_IMl Qéi m‘;}:}abwim

Proposed commencement or cessation date ‘l’
- ) \MP(L,,VL,./J' Lloes Aaticn

3 Y .

Name and location of watet, treaiment plant or bore Local Government Area

Movaa WTP (ofF ] \M_HL%_M_L&ML&_M

Details of flucridation process (type of chemical, dry or solution feed, prescribed fluoride concentration) or the decommissioning process
_for the fluoride dosing facility.

Area or communitias that will receive / cease receiving fluotidated water

g

RaranA

Attachments — Please tick the box if you have attached the following

1. A copy of the public notice advising consumers of the intention to flucridate, or cease fluoridating, must be attached IZ/
Hhom mddteeal tafo e atine bn e ~nshed? YES [ [Number of additional pages attached

Sig Date g

E 3i /03/ f-

artment of Health, C\- Director, Water Program Environmental Heaith Regulation and
idards, PO Box 2368, Fortitude Valley BC, 4008

™
™~
%)

Version 1.2 September 2013
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g BANANA SHIRE COUNCIL
e PUBLIC NOTICE

Banana

;{'_‘j’“'"\f)i'_i_lRE

INTENTION TO COMMENCE
FLUORIDATION OF TOWN WATER
SUPPLIES BILOELA, THANGOOL,

MOURA, BANANA

The Banana Shire Council will commence
the addition of fluoride to Town Water
Supplies at Biloela, Thangool, Moura and
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
Callide Dam residents {rom the Biloela
Water Treatment Plant will not be
fluoridated due to the location of dosing
facilities.

Construction of fluoride dosing facilities
at Biloela ard /Moura’ are nearing
completion with the cormissioning phase
scheduled to commence during the week
commencing Monday 24th March 2014,
Fluorice/ will be_added 1o the above town
water supplies intermittently during the
commissioning phase.

The current schedule is for Fluoride to be
continuocusly added to the above Town
Water Supplies from 1st May 2014.

For further enquiries contact Council’s
Water Services Section on 4992 9500.

Ray Geraghty

Chief Executive Officer
PO Box 412

BILOELA QLD 4715

NB :CORRECTION - DATE iN PUBLIC NOTICE
REGARDING FLUORIDATION PUBLISHED I[N
CENTRAL TELEGRAPH ON 24/03/2014 -
31ST MARCH 2014 SHOULD HAVE BEEN
NOTED AS 1ST MAY 2014. APOLOGIES FOR
ANY [NCONVENIENCE CAUSED BY THIS

m5=@@% Document 35
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s.73

From: s.73

Sent: Wednesday, 21 May 2014 11:23 AM

Subject: RE: Aurukun water treatment plant and fluoride dosing unit

Hellos73

It is actually the Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning that will assist with the ongoing
fluoridation cost to indigenous communities for two or three years. ¥% m DSDIP is sorting out a

contract for this. It is hard to say if indigenous communities will find it hard to maintain fluoridation beyond this
timeframe as none have really been implementing it any ongoing manner and none are y2t/to make any claims
against the available money.

Kind regards
s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer — Water Program

Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Branch | Health Services and Clinical Inngvation Division
Department of Health | Queensland Government

Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street | Herston

PO Box 2368 | Fortitude Valley BC | QLD 4006

t.

es-’3 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health.qgld.gov.au

D @
SO
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From: s.73

Sen May 2014 11:18 AM

To:s.73

Subject: RE: Aurukun water treatment plant and, fluoride dosing unit

Thankss-73 My understanding is that QH will support ongoing fluoridation costs to indigenous communities for two
or three years. Is that correct? Is it alsc fair to say that without ongoing support for maintenance, chemical and
staffing cost, indigenous communities may find it difficult to maintain water fluoridation after this support ceases?

s.73

From:s:73

Sent: Wednesday, 21 May 2014 10:48 AM

To:s.73

Cc:

Subject: Aurukun water treatment plant and fluoride dosing unit
Importance: High

Good Morning All

This morning | have been speaking with ¥%3e from DSDIP who advises that works on Aurukun’s water
treatment plant are once again progressing and, all being well, they will be ready to receive the fluoride dosing unit

DOH-DL 14/15-00% socumen =



onsite in July. Contact has been made with Council who have confirmed their intent to implement fluoridation and
training is being arranged for relevant staff. Please see the email trail below which provides an update as to progress
on the water treatment plant and details of the relevant contacts from Aecom and Orica for your records.

Once we have more details regarding commissioning we will let you know.

Kind regards

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer — Water Program

Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Branch | Health Services and Clinical Innovation Division
Department of Health | Queensland Government

Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street | Herston

PO Box 2368 | Fortitude Valley BC | QLD 4006

t. 07 332 89351

e.s.73 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

£ Bin]

Eustumerg first Ideas into action @ Unleash potential '“:'&J Be courageous \h) Empower people
Great state. Great oppartunity. \__ "~ l

T Government

From:s '3 [mailto:s'73 @coordinatorgeneral.gld.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 21 May 2014 10:38 AM
To:s.73

Cc:
Subject: FW: DIP 0870b-09 Fluoride Implementation in Indigenous Cormmunities [Ref. 60103434.0:1SJY18EP]
Importance: High

Hello s:73

As discussed, attached is the latest update frorn Terience Jepperson, the new AECOM project manager for fluoride
implementation at Aurukun. It is looking like-Aurukun will'e dosing fluoride before Christmas, all being well.

| will be communicating with TAFE Queensland to iet them know fluoride training for Aurukun water treatment plant
operators will be needed soon.

Regards,
s.73

Project Manager

Project Delivery

Major Projects Office

Department of State Develepment, Infrastructure and Planning
Queensland Governmerit

tel +61 7 3452 7876

mobiles73

post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4002
visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbane
s.73 dsdip.qld.gov.au

www.dsdip.gld.gov.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email
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Great state. Great opportunity.

From:s’3 [mailto:S-73 @aecom.com]
Sen 20 May 2014 9:16 AM

Subject: DIP 0870b-09 Fluoride Implementation in Indigenous Communities [Ref. 60103434.0:1SJY18EP]
Importance: High

s.73

Please proceed on the basis that the site would be available to receive the fluoridation unit on Tuesday 15-Jul-2014 —
we will continue to monitor the progress of the works being undertaken by Aurukun Shire Council on a
weekly/fortnightly basis and notify accordingly of any changes — can you please provide a construction program in
accordance with Clause 33.2 of AS2124 by COB Tuesday 27-May-2014 that identifies tasks leadirig up to the site
being available to receive the fluoridation unit through to the end of the defects liahility period.

Further to our discussions last week:

e The Principal (i.e. Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning - DSDIP) have been
notified that the works are likely to proceed in the next couple of months arid a-contract extension will be
forthcoming shortly;

e We have requested the latest set of drawings of the works being undertaken by Aurukun Shire Council to
assess service conflicts associated with the fluoridation building project — these should be available shortly.

Also, we need to finalise costs, including storage fees up to miid-July’2014, due to the postponement of the Contract —
please provide an estimate and relevant supporting documentatiori by COB/Tuesday 27-May-2014. It may be
worthwhile to arrange an inspection in about 1 months’ time to confirm'that the site conditions have not changed
significantly since Orica tendered on the works a couple of years ago.

Should you require any additional information please do not-hesitate/to contact me.

Cheers Terrence

s.73
Environmental Enginee
Ms.73
s.73 @aecom.com

AECOM

Level 3, 120 Bunda Street, Cairns, QLD 4870
PO Box 5971 Cairns QLD 4870

T +61 7 4222 6000 F +61 7 4222 6201
www.aecom.com

Please consider the environment efore printing this email.

From:s:73 @grica.com [maiitos.73 @orica.com]
Sen May 2014 11:03 AM

To: s.73

Cc:s.73 @orica.com;s-73

Subject: Fw: AUS10-21: Aurukun
Importance: High

Hi s.73

We need written confirmation from Aecom before we can commence with progressing with the remainder of the
Aurukun portion of the contract. Can you please advise if we should proceed on the basis | have laid out in the email
below (or as you recommend) so we can get things moving from our end.

We will otherwise have to proceed with removing the unit from storage and having it sent to Cairns or another location
nominated by DSDIP. Sorry to be so insistent, but our site are insisting that we remove the unit from the current
location. If we can let them know that it will be leaving in the next couple of months they may agree to keep it there a
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bit longer.

Kind regards

.73 | Project Manager - Watercare | Orica Limited |3 www.orica.com

1 Nicholson Street, East Melbourne, VIC 3002, Australia

+61396657704 | & F: +61 396657247 | D s.73 @orica.com

----- Forwarded byS-73 AU/CHE/ORICA on 19/05/2014 10:57 AM -----

From: s.73 AU/CHE/ORICA

To: s.73 - >

Cc: S.73 @aecom.com>,S-73 /AU s.73 AY/CHE/ORICA@ORICA,
Watercare Projects/AU/CHE/ORICA@ORICA s.73 n/AU/CHE/ORICA@ORICAS.73 /AU/CHE/ORICA@ORICA

Date: 14/05/2014 05:41 PM
Subject: AUS10-21: Aurukun

Hi s.73

| managed to get in contact with 73 from Aurukun council.

He wasn't able to give an exact date of when the site would ©e ready to receive the building, but gave the following
information:

1. A piping contractor is engaged to complete the pipirg portion of the plant upgrade from next Tuesday 20/05/2014.
2. He will be there for about 12 weeks (i.e. approx until 12/08/2014)

3. The unit would be ready to be installed in about’2’'months-intc-nis work because the space would be available and
the upgrade works in that vicinity would be compiete.

4. Therefore the potential date the site would be available to feceive the unit is 15/07/2014.

5. An electrician will be performing the electrical upgrade about 1 month after the plumber starts (i.e approx.
17/05/2014)

We need to:

1. Determine the layout of the plant and pipes (service water to the plant, fluoride dosing line and termination point in
to the main, electrical tie in. waste tank location-and piping, trench routes etc.)

2. Let the electrical contract

3. Let the civil / mechanical contract

4. Mobilise the unit to the site/for installation.

5. Commission the unit and/train the operator/s

An IFC drawing or similar ' would help-us to determine our layouts and material quantities however this is not available.
| don't think he really has something to give us and they will just be updating drawings along the way. Hence a site
visit might be required to determine where the plant is going and to scope out the rest of the installation.

Prior to us resuming.with/the Aurukun portion of the contract, | really need you to confirm in writing that we should
proceed on the above basis.

Kind regards

s.73 | Project Manager - Watercare | Orica Limited |“® www.orica.com
eet, East Melbourne, VIC 3002, Austr
+61396657704 | & F:+613 9665 7247 | < S-73 @orica.com

z ORICA
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Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

This message is intended solely for the individual(s) and entity(s)
addressed. It is confidential and may contain legally privileged
information. The use, copying or distribution of this

message or any information it contains, by anyone other than the
addressee, is prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please notify postmaster@orica.com. The mailbox address

from which this message has been sent is for business mail only. Mail
sent to it may be subject to security scanning and delivery on non-
business messages sent to this address may not occur.

Thank you.

R R b b b 4 b b A b b b b g b b b b A b b A b b b b A b b b b A b b i b A b b A b b b b d b b i 25 a b b I S b S b i b b b b d b b db b g b b i 4

R R b b b I b b A b b b b g b b b b A b b A b A b b A b b b b A b b i b d b b b b b b i b S I b g b R e S b i i b b b b A b b b b b b i 4

KA A A AR AR A A A A A A A A A AR A A AR A A A A A A AR A AR A A A AR A AKX X * xS

This electronic communication, which includes any files or attachiments thereto, contains proprietary or
confidential information and may be privileged and otherwise protected under copyright or other applicable
intellectual property laws. All information contained in this electronic communication is solely for the use
of the individual(s) or entity to which it was addressed. If you are not the intended recipient(s), you are
hereby notified that distributing, copying, or in any way disclosing any-of the information in this e-mail is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error; please notify the sender immediately, and
destroy the communication and any files or attachments in their entirety, whether in electronic or hard copy
format. Since data stored on electronic media can deteriorate, be translated or modified, AECOM, its
subsidiaries, and/or affiliates will not be liable for the completeness, correctness or readability of the
electronic data. The electronic data should be verified against the hard copy.
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s.73

From: s.73

Sent: Monday, 16 June 2014 4:47 PM

To: s.73

Cc:

Subject: Findings from Cherbourg Decommission Fluoride Audit
Attachments: P1000548.JPG; P1000545.JPG; P1000551.JPG; P1000573.JPG
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

HiS.73

Hope you had a great weekend. As requested, here are some findings from miy-audit at Cherbourg Fluoridation Plant.
On 27" May, | conducted a decommission fluoride audit at Cherbourg Plant and-a numbar of issues were observed.

It appears that Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council (CASC) has never submitted Form 3- Fluoridated Water Quarterly
Report. At the time of the inspection, | reviewed the ‘Daily Log Sheets’, which were found within the plant. It appears
that training was conducted for two days — 28/03/2012 & 29/03/2013 and entries were placed in the log book. The
staffs were unable to confirm if fluoride was connected to town water supply during these days. According to the daily
log sheet the plant commenced operation on 30/03/2012 through/to 09/04/2012 (no records for 1/04/12), on the
17/04/2012 and between 05/09/2012 — 07/09/2012.There are/no records after'this date. From 09/04/2012 to
07/06/2012 (except for 17/04/2012), daily log sheets have been.completed but recorded with ‘N/A’ or ‘No service
water’ or 'No reading/not running’. Therefore, it is difficult to ascertein how/long the fluoridation plant was operating
and if the records are correct.

| have requested the Council minutes which outline the CASC decision to cease fluoridation. At this stage, | have not
received this document. No Form 1 has been received from CASC/advising that council will not longer fluoridate.

At the time of the inspection, it appeared the orce flucridation ceased, the plant was shut, staff walked out and
nothing been touched since then (the lights and air conditioner were still operating). Findings from the inspection
included:
e No bags of fluoride chemical weie‘on gite. There’'was a suggestion that the remaining fluoride chemical was
tipped into the saturator tank.
e The saturator tank was filled (approx. 450 Litres) and the bag loader was still connected. (Refer to photos)
e Empty fluoride chemical bags had been disposed of in the yellow ‘clean up kit’ wheelie bin. (Refer to photo)
e Surfaces and equipment.in the fluoride-dosing facility have not been cleaned. White fluoride dust was
observed around the storage pallet area. The ‘vent water trap’ had not been emptied or cleaned.
e The fluoride injection’point and sample point are still connected. (Refer to photo)
e Power was still connacted. A revisit of the site was connected on 3" June 2014; the main switch has been
turned off but had not been tagged.
e Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council ‘Drinking Water Quality Management Plan’ still refers to fluoridation.

| meet with CEO Wairen Collins on 2™ June 2014 and advised him of the findings from the inspection. A letter will be
sent to the council’eutlining e non-compliances in the near future.

Please let me know if you-require any more information or more detail.

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

P: 07 4699 8244 | F: 07 4699 8477
M:s.73

E: @health.qgld.gov.au
Website: www.health.qgld.gov.au/darlingdowns
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s.73

From: s.73

Sent: Wednesday, 18 June 2014 11:17 AM

To: s.73

Subject: RE: Doomadgee

ThanksS-73 you happen to find out if Doomad  gee have managed to get rid of their fluoride?
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

es.73 @health.qgld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

fI Min
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/A, SN

From:s’3

Sent: Wednesday, 18 June 2014 10:10 AM
To:s.73

Subject: Doomadgee

s.73

We have confirmed that Doomadgee do not inferid oiv-luoridating so could benefit from having the plant
appropriately decommissioned.

Still chasing Palm Island.

s.73
Manager Environmental Heaith
Townsville Public Health"Unit
Townsville Hospital and-Health Service | Queensland Government
242 Walker Street Townsville Qld 4810
t. 07 47539020
e.s.73 @heaith.qld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au

fRJin]

Great state. Great oppartunity.
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s.73

From: s:13 p.gld.gov.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 22 April 2014 3:56 PM

To: s.73

Cc Fluoride;s.73

Subject: RE: Fluoridation - Indigenous Councils

Hellos:73

Thank you for the update. | spoke to $&e COM project director/manager far/the indigenous fluoridation

rollout, as far as he is aware the Aurukun WTP is still unfinished, he understood that Councii made a decision last
year to proceed with fluoridation once the WTP was completed. | have yet to find the-Council minutes to confirm
this, minutes of February 2013 indicate they were going to conduct a community survey regarding fluoridation
targeted at ongoing costs to Council. James is going to follow up with the Council regarding the status of the WTP
construction and confirmation about Council wishing to proceed with fluoridatioi.

s.73 indicated that Doomadgee had never dosed except for that undertaken during commissioning.

We will likely send out letters to those Councils that have indicated to QH that they will not be dosing (Cherbourg
and Doomadgee) to finalise the Water Fluoridation Operation and Maintenance Costs. Is it possible for you to send a
copy of the official notification those Councils provided to QH'that they would cease dosing?

| will let you know the update froms43 Aurukun and any-atkier communications we have with Palm Island,
Torres Shire and Yarrabah.

On another issue, | have noticed that the MOU betiveen TAFE, DSDIP and QH has a completion date of 30 June 2014
so we may need to vary this again, will let you know.

5.47(3)(b)

Regards,
s.73

Project Manager

Project Delivery

Major Projects Office

Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning
Queensland Governmerit

tel +61 7 3452 7876

mobiles-73

post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4002

visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbane
s.73 @dsdip.qgld.gov.au

www.dsdip.gld.gov.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email
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Great state. Great opportunity.

From:s.73 ailto:H273 alth.qld.g  ov.au]
Sent: Tuesday, 22 April 2014 3:22 PM
To:s.73

Cc: Fluoride
Subject: RE: Fluoridation - Indigenous Councils

Hellos.73

Sorry for the delay — I've been in a meeting. Cherbourg advised our local public health unit that they decided to
cease dosing on 23/05/13, Doomadgee made a decision to cease on 04/02/13 and all we know of Yarrabah is that
they decided not to order any more fluoride once their first batch ran out.

QH wrote to all local governments, including the Indigenous Councils in December 2012 feilowing the change in the
legislation advising they were now able to decide if fluoridation was in the best interested of theii communities. QH
offered to visit any Council wanting a briefing or with questions. Other than Northern.Peninsdla Area Council none
of the Indigenous Council that were previously required to implement fluoridation took QH up on the offer. We
have not written to any Council asking if they have a made a fluoridation decision:

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer — Water Program

Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Branch | Health Services and Cliriical-Innovation Division
Department of Health | Queensland Government

Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street | Herston

PO Box 2368 | Fortitude Valley BC | QLD 4006

t. 07 332 89351

e.s.73 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

I'[I‘l ¥
J
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[l et B NS/

Govemnment

From:s73 mailto:%"3 " dsdipgld.gov.au ]
Sent: Tuesday, 22 April 2014 12:08 PM
To:s.73

Cc: Fluoride; €373
Subject: RE: Fluoridation - indigenous-Councils

Hellos.73

Thanks for getting back tojme so quickly!

Do you know how leng/Cherbourg, Doomadgee and Yarrabah were dosing before they turned the plants off? Has QH
sent letters to Aurukun, Torres and Yarrabah when the Water Fluoridation Act was amended asking if they would

continue or cease dosing, or correspondence since then?

Thanks

s.73

Project Manager
Project Delivery
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Major Projects Office
Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning
Queensland Government

tel +61 7 3452 7876

mobiles’3

post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4002

visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbane
s.73 @dsdip.qld.govau

www.dsdip.qgld.gov.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email

Great state. Great opportunity.

From:S '3 mailto:$73 health.gld.gov.au ]
Sent: Tuesday, 22 April 2014 11:51 AM
To:s.73

Cc: Fluoride
Subject: RE: Fluoridation - Indigenous Councils

Hello s-73

Welcome back!
We had to do a brief update on this just the other week so as far‘as we Know the information below is correct.

Aurukun — dosing unit has not been installed — not cuirently fluoridating

Cherbourg — dosing has ceased — formal Council decision-nct to continue

Doomadgee — dosing has ceased — formal Council decision net to/continue

Kowanyama — elevated naturally occurring flueride — fivoride dosing not required

Palm Island — not currently dosing due to technical.problenis~ wish to recommence upon resolution of problems —
(unsure of the nature of the problems)

Torres — dosing unit installed but has not’'been switched-on by Council

Yarrabah - dosing has ceased — no formal fluofide dosing decision made by Council

If you require anything further just let me know:

s.73

Senior Environmental Heaith Officer — Water Program

Health Protection Unit | Chief Healith Officer Branch | Health Services and Clinical Innovation Division
Department of Health | Queensland-Government

Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street | Herston

PO Box 2368 | Fortitude Valley BC | QLD 4006

1.

e.s73 @healih/gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

@ 3) @
Customers first el |deas into action Unlzash potential Be courageous Empower people

Great state. Great oppartunity.

- Government
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From:S-73 mailto:%"3 dsdipqld.gov.au ]
Sent: Tuesday, 22 April 2014 11:06 AM

To:S.73

Cc: Fluoride;s-73

Subject: Fluoridation - Indigenous Councils

Hello s-73

One of my first tasks after returning is to investigate the status of the Water Fluoridation Operation and
Maintenance Costs Support Program.

Could you please let me know if any of six indigenous Councils that have either a fully commissioned fluoridation
plant (Cherbourg, Doomadgee, Palm Island, Torres Shire and Yarrabah) or awaiting installation of the fluoridation
plant (Aurukun) have informed Queensland Health that the Council has made the décision'not to fluoridate or
adversely have informed QH that they intend to continue dosing?

We have executed funding agreements for Doomadgee (18/4/13), Palm Island(11/3/13) and'Yarrabah (12/8/13),
date executed by DSDIP shown within the brackets. The agreement start date forall-is 1 July 2012, in line with when
the facility was fully commissioned and handed over to Council.

To date only Palm Island has submitted invoices to DSDIP for reimbursement, hewever the invoices all appear to be
related to operation of the water treatment plant, mainly purchase of liquid'chlorine, so I’'m not sure if their
fluoridation plant is actually in operation?

Any information on the above would be appreciated.

Regards,
s.73

Project Manager

Project Delivery

Major Projects Office

Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning
Queensland Government

tel +61 7 3452 7876

mobile s.73

post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4002
visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbahe
s.73 @dsdip.gldzovau

www.dsdip.qld.gov.su

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

From: s.73 dinatorgeneral.qld .gov.au>

Sent: Wednesday, 4 June 2014 2:21 PM

To: s.73

Cc oride; G2

Subject: Fluoride Implementation in Indigenous Communities

Attachments: AUS10-21-PCD-13006 Indigenous Councils Fluoridation 12 Month Visit Report (Rev
0).pdf; AUS10-21 Indigenous Councils Fluoridation - Project Update WB 18/03/2013

Hello 53

See below update on Fluoride Implementation in Indigenous Communities. Orica’s’12morith visitreport of the
commissioned plants is attached.

Aurukun
A site visit to Aurukun is being tentatively scheduled for week beginning Monday 9-Jun-2014 and at this stage S-/3
s.73  (AECOM) ands-73 (Orica) will be attending the site visit. They want-tg'confirm that everything will be

ready for the package plant to be delivered in the next couple of montas. See below email and attachments.

| have been in contact with a number of the indigenous councils te confirm whiether they will be submitting claims for
reimbursement of eligible costs for operation and maintenance of their water fluoridation plant under the Water
Fluoridation Operation and Maintenance Costs Support Program to ascertain brogram resource requirements.

s.73 is the new Director of Engineering, formerly at Tableiands Regional Council. He indicated that they

aren’t operating the fluoridation plant, but will investigate whether Council made a formal decision not to add fluoride
to their water supplies or they may be waiting to underiake-a commuriity survey before they make a decision.
However his thoughts were that they don’t have a large encugh rates base to pay the ongoing costs of operating the
water fluoridation plant once the 3 year support pregram-ends.-He will hopefully get back to me next week as he is
currently out of office until next week. Torres Shiré has riot signed a funding agreement for the support program.

Yarrabah

They have an executed funding agreemerit with DSDIP-but have not yet to da any claims for
reimbursement of operational and maintenance costs. They have a new CEOs-73 | have spoken tos.73

.73 , Executive Manager Corporate Seivices aiid have subsequently sent both her and the CEO information on
the Yarrabah water fluorid ject including Water Fluoridation Operation and Maintenance Costs Support
Program. When | spoke tos-73 a few weeks ago, she was under the impression that the Council has not been
operating the water fluoridation plant. | have tried'to speak to either one of them today and have left a message, will
try again tomorrow.

Palm Island

| have been in touch with/thiem-a couple of times in the last month, but have not been able to get confirmation whether
the water fluoridation plant is actua!ly @perational and likelihood of receiving eligible reimbursement claims in the near
future. Palm Island have a signed funding agreement for the support program.

Cherbourg and Docmadgée

| am in the process of seriding out letters asking for reimbursement claims before | finalise the paperwork for the
Water Fluoridation Operation and Maintenance Costs Support Program for the Cherbourg and Doomadgee water
fluoridation plants as both Councils have indicated to QH that they have made the decision not to fluoridate.

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

From: s:73 ailto: & ecom .com]
Sent: Thursday, 22 May 2014 10:27 AM

To:s.73

Cc:

Subject: RE: DIP 0870b-09 Fluoride Implementation in Indigenous Comimunities-[Ref. 60103434.0:15128688]

s.73

As discussed, an extension of the completion date for Contract No: DIP-0870-09't0 31-Dec-2015 is acceptable.
Also further to our discussion:

e Please find attached the payment certificate and-nayment summary from Progress Claim 10, which indicates that
outstanding amount for Orica is in the order of $250k-(note: this excludes the variation that we are expecting from
Orica next week).

e It appears that the technical issues at Palmn/island have been resolved — refer to the attached report and
confirmation email (3™ and 4™ attachmerits respéctively); and

e  AECOM will be raising an invoice before the-end of thie/financial year for costs incurred since 25-Oct-2013 (i.e.
Progress Claim 26) — | will follow this up nextweek,

Should you require any additional informatich please do not hesitate to contact me.

Cheers Terrence

s.73
Environmental Engineer
M s.73
s.73 @aecom.com
AECOM

Level 3, 120 Bunda Stieet, Cairns, Qi-D 4870
PO Box 5971 Cairns QLD 4370

T +617 4222 6000/ F +61 74222 6001
WWw.aecom.com

Please consider the environmeni beiare printing this email.

From:s-73 [mailto:s-73 @coordinatorgeneral.qgld.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 21 May 2014 12:13 PM

To:s.73

Cc: 573 Fluoride

Subject: RE: DIP 0870b-09 Fluoride Implementation in Indigenous Communities [Ref. 60103434.0:1SJY18EP]

Hello 73
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| have updated QH on the status of the Aurukun fluoride implementation project, they will be providing your contact
details to the QH Environmental Health Officer that covers Aurukun. | have left a message for our contact at
Queensland TAFE regarding Aurukun fluoride operator training.

| await information from you regarding potential variations for Orica, from your below email to Orica | hope to
receive information on variations next week. Will you be submitting an Orica invoice for payment in the coming
weeks?

In the interim | am in the process of extending DIP-0870-09 contract between DSDIP and AECOM. | am proposing to
extend the current contract completion date from 30/06/2014 to 31/12/2015 to allow completion of the 1 year post
construction support period for Aurukun allowed in the existing contract. Can you please confirm that you are in
agreement with the proposed time extension? Other than a time extension the terms of the agreement will remain
unchanged. Will AECOM be submitting an invoice for payment in the coming weeks?

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
s.73 sdip.gld.gov.au

www.dsdip.qgld.gov.au

Please consider the environment befere‘printing this-e€mail

Great state. Great opportunity.

From:s’3 mailtoS 73 aecom.com ]
Sent: Tuesday, 20 May 20149:16 AM

To:s.73 @orica.com

Cc:s.73

Subject: DIP 0870b-09 Fiuoride Impiementation in Indigenous Communities [Ref. 60103434.0:1SJY18EP]
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
accordance with Clause 33.2 of AS2124 by COB Tuesday 27-May-2014 that identifies tasks leading up to the site
being available to receive the fluoridation unit through to the end of the defects liability period.

Further to our discussions last week:
e The Principal (i.e. Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning - DSDIP) have been

notified that the works are likely to proceed in the next couple of months and a contract extension will be
forthcoming shortly;
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e We have requested the latest set of drawings of the works being undertaken by Aurukun Shire Council to
assess service conflicts associated with the fluoridation building project — these should be available shortly.

Also, we need to finalise costs, including storage fees up to mid-July 2014, due to the postponement of the Contract —
please provide an estimate and relevant supporting documentation by COB Tuesday 27-May-2014. It may be
worthwhile to arrange an inspection in about 1 months’ time to confirm that the site conditions have not changed
significantly since Orica tendered on the works a couple of years ago.

Should you require any additional information please do not hesitate to contact me.

Cheers S8

s.73

e
D +61 7 42226018 MS'3
s.73 @aecom.com

AECOM

Level 3, 120 Bunda Street, Cairns, QLD 4870
PO Box 5971 Cairns QLD 4870

T +61 7 4222 6000 F +61 7 4222 6001
WWw.aecom.com

Please consider the environment before printing this email.

From: s:73 @orica.com [mailto:s-73 @orica.com]
Sen May 2014 11:03 AM
Cc:s.73 @orica.com; s-73

Subject: Fw: AUS10-21: Aurukun
Importance: High

Hi s.73

We need written confirmation from Aecom before’'we can.commerice with progressing with the remainder of the
Aurukun portion of the contract. Can you please Advise if we should proceed on the basis | have laid out in the email
below (or as you recommend) so we can get things moving fram our end.

We will otherwise have to proceed with removing the unit from storage and having it sent to Cairns or another location
nominated by DSDIP. Sorry to be so ingisient, but our site are insisting that we remove the unit from the current
location. If we can let them know that it will be’leaving in the next couple of months they may agree to keep it there a
bit longer.

Kind regards

s Project Manager - Watercare | Orica Limited |¥5 www.orica.com
1 Nicholson Street, East Melbourne, VIC-3002, Australia

+61 3 9665 7704 | F +61 .3 9665 7247/ D<) s.73 @orica.com
a

Q) orica
----- Forwarded by S+73 AU/CHE/ORICA on 19/05/2014 10:57 AM -----
From: S:73 AU/CHE/ORICA
To: s.73 >,
Cc:  s.73 om>,s.73 AU/CHE/ORICA@ORICA, 5.73 AU/CHE/ORICA@ORICA,
Watercare Projects/AU/CHE/ORICA@ORICA,S.73 /AU/CHE/ORICA@ORICA, s.73 /AU/CHE/ORICA@ORICA

Date: 14/05/2014 05:41 PM
Subject: AUS10-21: Aurukun

DOH-DL 14/15-00% ocumenss



Hi s.73

| managed to get in contact with®’3  from Aurukun council.

He wasn't able to give an exact date of when the site would be ready to receive the building, but gave the following
information:

1. A piping contractor is engaged to complete the piping portion of the plant upgrade from next Tuesday 20/05/2014.
2. He will be there for about 12 weeks (i.e. approx until 12/08/2014)

3. The unit would be ready to be installed in about 2 months into his work because the space would be available and
the upgrade works in that vicinity would be complete.

4. Therefore the potential date the site would be available to receive the unit is 15/07/2014.

5. An electrician will be performing the electrical upgrade about 1 month after the plumber starts (i.e approx.
17/05/2014)

We need to:

1. Determine the layout of the plant and pipes (service water to the plant, fluoride dosing line and/termination point in
to the main, electrical tie in. waste tank location and piping, trench routes etc.)

2. Let the electrical contract

3. Let the civil / mechanical contract

4. Mobilise the unit to the site for installation.

5. Commission the unit and train the operator/s

An IFC drawing or similar would help us to determine our layouts and materiai quantities however this is not available.
| don't think he really has something to give us and they will just be updating drawings along the way. Hence a site
visit might be required to determine where the plant is going and 10 scope out the rest of the installation.

Prior to us resuming with the Aurukun portion of the contract, I'teally need you to confirm in writing that we should
proceed on the above basis.

Kind regards

s.73 | Project Manager - Watercare | Orica Limited'|0) www.orica.com
1 Nicholson Street, East Melbourne, VIC 3002, Australia
+61396657704 | & F:+613 96657247 | < s.73° "~ /([@orica.coi
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Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

This message is ‘intended solely for the individual(s) and entity(s)
addressed. It is confidential and may contain legally privileged
information, /The use, copying or distribution of this

message or ‘any Anformation it contains, by anyone other than the
addressee, is-prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please notify postmaster@orica.com. The mailbox address

from which this message has been sent is for business mail only. Mail
sent to it may be subject to security scanning and delivery on non-—
business messages sent to this address may not occur.

Thank vyou.
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This electronic communication, which includes any files or attachments thereto, contains proprietary or
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confidential information and may be privileged and otherwise protected under copyright or other applicable
intellectual property laws. All information contained in this electronic communication is solely for the use
of the individual(s) or entity to which it was addressed. If you are not the intended recipient(s), you are
hereby notified that distributing, copying, or in any way disclosing any of the information in this e-mail is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately, and
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
intellectual property laws. All information contained in this electronic communicaticn is solely for the use
of the individual(s) or entity to which it was addressed. If you are not the intended recipient(s), you are
hereby notified that distributing, copying, or in any way disclosing any of the information in this e-mail is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender itznmediately, and
destroy the communication and any files or attachments in their entirety, whether in electronic or hard copy
format. Since data stored on electronic media can deteriorate, be translaicd or modified, AECOM, its
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
Sent: Thursday, 5 June 2014 4:19 PM

To: s.73

Cc: s.73

Subject: Fluoride in Indigenous Councils

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Hello s-73

My director has advised that he is happy for the letter regarding de-commissioning water fluoridation plants in
Indigenous Councils come from Greg and be addressed to him, contact detaiis:

s.73

Director Major Projects

Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning
Queensland Go

tel 3452 7766 |S-73

fax 3235 4563

post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4022

visit Level 8 | 63 George Street | Brisbane Qld 4000

emails 73 @dsdip.gld.gov.au

Have a great long weekend.

Regards,
S.73

Project Manager

Project Delivery

Major Projects Office

Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning
Queensland Government

tel +61 7 3452 7876

mobiles-73

post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 40082
visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbane
s.73 dsdip.gid.gcviau

www.dsdip.gld.gov.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email

Great state. Great opportunity.
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From: s.73

Sent: Tuesday, 1 July 2014 1:02 PM

To: fluoride@dsdip.gld.gov.au

Subject: Indigenous Decommissioning

Attachments: Indigenous Decommissioning Letter FINAL.pdf

Good Afternoon Kas3

Please see attached a letter from %73 ga rding safe decommissioning of Indigenous fluoridation
infrastructure. Please could you forward tosi#@a The original is in the mail.

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

Do @
< e )
Eust-:-mersﬁrs-t Ideasint-:-a-:ti-:-n OUnl.eashpete-ntia! 'LE’)Bernurageous Empower people ! ’ Queensland

Government
J o oy )/
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Queensland
Government

s.73

Director —~ Water Program
Health Protection Unit
Telephona: {07} 332 89345
Facsimile: (07) 332 89354
File Ref: NiA

Enquiries to:

s.73

Director — Major Projects

Department of State Development, infrastructure and Planning
PO Box 15009

CITY EAST QLD 4022

Dear "

[ write with reference to the Queensland Water Fluoridation Program and the installation of fluoride
dosing infrastructure in indigenous communities in Queensland.

As you may be aware, some Indigenous communities have ceased fluoridating following the
Queensland Government's December 2012 decision to remove mandatory fluoridation of water
supplies serving more than 1,000 people. Glueensiand Health inspection of fluoride dosing
infrastructure in such circumstances has indicated the existence of a number of decommissioning

issues.

To address these issues it is reqliested that you give consideration to the revision of the existing
Department of State Developmenit, Infrastructure and Planning contract for the provision of
fluoride dosing infrastructure t6 [ndigerious communities to include provision of safe
decommissioning where Indigenotis Councils are known to have ceased flueridation.

Should you wish to discuss this proposal further or review evidence of decommissioning issues
identified by Queensland Health please do not hesitate to contact me via telephone (07) 332

89345 or emails73 @health.qld.gov.au.
Yours sincerelv
s.73
Director — Water Program
V177 200y
Office Postal Phone Fax
Queensland Health PO Box 2368 (07) 332 89310 {07) 332 89354
15 Butterfleld Street FORTITUDE VALLEY BC
HERSTON QLD 4006 QLD 4006
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s.73

From: s.73

Sent: Thursday, 19 June 2014 11:52 AM
To: s.73

Subject: RE: Palm Island Fluoride
Hellos-73

Thanks for the update — | will speak to DSDIP as see if there is any help they can provide — do you know if it funding
to get it working again they want or on-going operational funding or both?

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer — Water Program

Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Branch | Health Services and Clinical linngvation Division
Department of Health | Queensland Government

Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street | Herston

PO Box 2368 | Fortitude Valley BC | QLD 4006

1.

e.s73 i@health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

) @
R
Eust-:-mers- first Ideas into action O Unleash potential EU Becourageous Empower people 1 v I‘._}ueerlsland

sovernment
Great state. Great oppertunity. ‘

From:s-/3

Sent: Thursday, 19 June 2014 11:43 AM
To:s.73

Subject: Palm Island Fluroide

s.73

Palm’s plant isn’t working but they would be happy to make it work — if someone was going to pay for it. Without
funding they don’t intend on getting it operational.

s.73

Manager Environmeritai-Health

Townsville Public Health Unit

Townsville Hospital‘and Health-Service | Queensland Government
242 Walker Street Townsville Qld 4810

t. 07 47539020

e.s.73 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au

l'ﬂ': % Ey k "ﬂ""-'
Eustumers first Ideas into action Q Unleash potential '31) Be courageous Q Empower people 0y ?Queensland

Wl Government

Great state. Great oppartunity.
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s.73

From: s.73 p.gld.gov.au>

Sent: Thursday, 12 June 2014 1:15 PM

To: S.73

Cc:

Subject: FW: Torres Shire Council Water Fluoridation Plant & Operation and Maintenance
Support Program

Attachments: Council Minute 12 10 27.pdf

Hello s-73

See below email and attachment from Torres Shire. Do we interpret the minutes being that Couricil have made the
decision not to fluoride?

Regards,
s.73

Project Manager

Project Delivery

Major Projects Office

Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Plannirg Quieénsland Government

tel +61
mobile
post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4002

visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbanes-73 / dsdip.gld.gov.au

873

www.dsdip.qgld.gov.au

Please consider the environment before printirig this email

Great state. Great opportunity.

From:S’3 mazilto:deis@torres.qld.gov.au]

Sent: Thursday, 12 June 2014/9:55 AM
To:s-73
Subject: RE: Torres Shire Council Water Fluoridation Plant & Operation and Maintenance Support Program

s.73

Please find the Ccuncil minute reject the offer from government.
Regards

s.73

Director Engineering & Infrastructure Services Torres Shire Council PO Box 171 Thursday Island Qld 4875 Email

s.73 orres.gld.gov.au
Direct Telephone 0740831239
Mobiles.73

http://www.torres.qld.gov.au/
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From:s:73 [ mailto %" coordinatorgeneral.gld.gov.au ]

Sen 10:20 AM

TO,S.73

Cc: Fluoride

Subject: Torres Shire Council Water Fluoridation Plant & Operation and Maintenance Support Program

HelloS-"3

As discussed, attached is background information on the Torres Shire water fluoridation plant and Water
Fluoridation Operation and Maintenance Support Program.

To date the Department of State Development Infrastructure and Planning

(DSDIP) has not received a signed funding agreement from Torres Shire enabling participation in the Water
Fluoridation Operation and Maintenance Support Program (see attachments). This’agreement enables the Council
to be reimbursed for costs directly applicable to the operation and maintenance of the Tarres Shire water
fluoridation plant.

If Torres Shire has decided not to operate the fluoride dosing unit, as per amandrnents tc the Water Fluoridation Act
in 2012, repealing the mandatory requirement for water suppliers servicing greater than' 1000 residents to be
fluoridated, DSDIP will finalise Council's Water Fluoridation Operation-and Maintenance Support Program. In order
to do this, could you please formalise Council's decision not to fluoridateiin-the form of an email or a copy of Council
minutes where this decision was made.

If Council has any costs directly applicable to the operation and’'maintenance of the Torres Shire water fluoridation
plant, before it was turned off, Torres Shire would need to sigh and i'eturri the funding agreement to DSDIP before
they could submit invoices to DSDIP for reimbursement.

| would appreciate if you could get back to me on the‘abave next week if possible.
Please give me a call if you have any questions or would-like te discuss the above.

Regards,
s.73

Project Manager

Project Delivery

Major Projects Office

Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning Queensland Government

tel +61 7 3452 7876
mobile §73
post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4002

visit Level 8, 63 George 5Street, BrisbaneS "3

dsdip.qgld.gov.au

www.dsdip.qgld.gov.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email

Great state. Great opportunity.

This email and any attachments is intended only for the addressee and may be confidential and privileged. None of
its contents may be disclosed to, or relied upon by, any other party without our written consent. If you are not the
addressee, you must not copy or use this message for any purpose, nor disclose its contents to anyone. Please
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delete it and notify Torres Shire Council immediately by telephoning (07) 40691336 or emailing the sender. As this
email has been created in good faith using the information available to Torres Shire Council at the time of writing
the Council is therefore not responsible for the improper use of, or misinterpretation of the information in this
email. Nor is it liable for any unforeseen omissions of current information or any changes to information made after
the communication of this email. Torres Shire Council does not guarantee this email or any attachments to this
email is free from viruses or other corruption, and recommends that precautions such as virus protection and
scanning of attachments be considered by the receiver. Torres Shire Council is not liable for any loss caused if this
message contains a virus or is otherwise corrupted.
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s.73

From: Fluoride <fluoride@dsdip.gld.gov.au>

Sent: Thursday, 12 June 2014 1:27 PM

To: s.73

Subject: FW: Torres Shire Council Water Fluoridation Plant and Operation and Maintenance
Support Program

Attachments: Email_Fluoridation Project - Handover of the Fluoride Dosing Unit.html; Torres

Council Operation of FDU 20120511.pdf; Handover of the Fluoride Dosing Unit - to
Torres Shire Council - from AECOM.tr5; Torres Shire Funding Agreement and
Attached Letters.pdf; Torres Shire Follow Up letter for funding agreement for water
fluoridation.pdf

Hello S:73

Attached is background information | provided to £7° from Torres Shire including handover documentation to the
Council from AECOM.

Regards,
s.73

Project Manager

Project Delivery

Major Projects Office

Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning Queensland Government

tel +61 7 3452 7876

mobil s-73

post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4002

visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbane>’3 @dsdip.ald.gov.au

www.dsdip.qgld.gov.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email

Great state. Great opportunity,

————— Original Message-----

FromS73

Sent: Wednesday, 4 June 2014 10:15 AM

To: deis@torres.gld.gov.au

Cc: Fluoride

Subject: Torres Shire Councii Water Fluoridation Plant and Operation and Maintenance Support Program

Hello S73

As discussed, attached is background information on the Torres Shire water fluoridation plant and Water
Fluoridation Operation and Maintenance Support Program.

To date the Department of State Development Infrastructure and Planning (DSDIP) has not received a signed
funding agreement from Torres Shire enabling participation in the Water Fluoridation Operation and Maintenance

DOH-DL 14/15-00% ocumenss



Support Program (see attachments). This agreement enables the Council to be reimbursed for costs directly
applicable to the operation and maintenance of the Torres Shire water fluoridation plant.

If Torres Shire has decided not to operate the fluoride dosing unit, as per amendments to the Water Fluoridation Act
in 2012, repealing the mandatory requirement for water suppliers servicing greater than 1000 residents to be
fluoridated, DSDIP will finalise Council's Water Fluoridation Operation and Maintenance Support Program. In order
to do this, could you please formalise Council's decision not to fluoridate in the form of an email or a copy of Council
minutes where this decision was made.

If Council has any costs directly applicable to the operation and maintenance of the Torres Shire water fluoridation
plant, before it was turned off, Torres Shire would need to sign and return the funding agreement to DSDIP before
they could submit invoices to DSDIP for reimbursement.

| would appreciate if you could get back to me on the above next week if possible.
Please give me a call if you have any questions or would like to discuss the above:

Regards,
s.73

Project Manager

Project Delivery

Major Projects Office

Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning Queensiand Government

tel +61 7 3452 7876

mobiles-73

post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4002

visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbanes.73 //  /@dsdip.qgld.gov.au

www.dsdip.qgld.gov.au

Please consider the environment befere printing this email

Great state. Great opportunity.
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s.73

From: s.73

Sent: Thursday, 19 June 2014 8:14 AM

To: s.73

Cc:

Subject: Yarrabah

Hello 573

.73 has had a chat tos-73 ESO at Yarrabah. He’s advised her that Yarrabah Council does not
want to proceed with fluoridation, although this has not been done officially at a counci!’ meeting.

s.73 is awa gh that the plant has not been properly decommissioned, although they do not have any fluoride
stock on site. S:73  is keen to pursue any funding or expertise that may be availabie'to assist in decommissioning the
plant ASAP. number is 40560770.

Give me ors'73 a call if you need any further info.
Thanks
s.73

Team Leader

Environmental Health | Tropical Public Health Services Cairns | Division'1 Family Health and Wellbeing
Cairns and Hinterland Hospital and Health Service | Queensland’ Governmeit

Level 7, 5b Sheridan Street Cairns QLD 4870

t.

es’3 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au

DOH-DL 14/15-00% ocumen s



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

89345 or emais 73 @heatth.gld.gov.au.

Yours sincerelv
s.73

Director — Water Program

V177 20ty
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

Sent: Thursday, 1 May 2014 2:27 PM
To: s.73

Subject: RE: F

Thanks® "3 Do you know if the blending was originally done specifically to meet their fluoridation requirements
under the previous fluoridation legislation? Now that they’ve in effect stopped fluoridating, do they have an obligation
to let the Department of Health or someone else know?

Froms.73

Sent: Thursday, 1 May 2014 1:48 PM
To:s.73

Subject: RE: F

| am not 100% sure but they used to rely wholly on river water, then when they needed to implement fluoridation
they decided to blend it with a bore that was high in naturally occurring flusride however | think it was also high in
other things — maybe salts — we need to investigate — and it was’doing damage to people’s air conditioning
systems. The Council decision to stop blending does not even’mention fluoride (see page 8
of http://www.longreach.qld.gov.au/documents/40185809/40262663/2014-01-
16%200rdinary%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf)

s.73 at a conference today and was speaking to their engineer which is how we have heard.

s.73
Senior Environmental Health Officer — Water Program
Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Brarich | Health Services and Clinical Innovation Division
Department of Health | Queensland Government
Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street | Herston
PO Box 2368 | Fortitude Valley BC | QLD 4006
t. 07 332 89351
e.s.73 @health.gld.gov.au | www:heazlth.gld.gov.au

Q@ ) @
Custamers first Iers into action <& Unleash potential '31) Be courageous Empower people

Great state. Great oppertunity. </ \

Government

From:s-’3

Sent: Thursday, 1 May 2014 1:43 PM
To:s.73

Subject: RE: F

Yes, tomorrow is fine. What was the situation with Longreach? Was the fluoridated bore water too concentrated, so
they diluted it with the river water?

Regards,
s.73
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From:s.73

Sent: Thursday, 1 May 2014 1:26 PM
To:s.73

Subject: RE: F

s.73
Hello

Is tomorrow ok?

Also FYl we have found out (in the last hour) that Longreach turned off in January — they were blending fluoridated
bore water with river water but the bore water was damaging people’s air conditioners apparently so they decided
to cease blending.

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer — Water Program

Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Branch | Health Services and Clinical Innovatior Division
Department of Health | Queensland Government

Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street | Herston

PO Box 2368 | Fortitude Valley BC | QLD 4006

1.

e.s73 @health.qgld.gov.au | www.health.qgld.gov.au

7) ()
Eustumersﬁrst Ideasintnactlnn QUI‘ILEEEhthEI‘Itii| el de courageous Empower people

il vty S i

From: 5470

Se ay 2014 12:42 PM
TO:S'73
Subject: F

His-73  can you please send me the curreni iist of which councils are fluoridating and which are not? I've been
asked to write an article on the current situation for the ADAQ newsletter. Are we still at around 79% of the state with
access to fluoridated water? In practice, not ail of inose will be actually drinking fluoridated water, but it’s still pretty
good.

s.73, Sch.
3(10)(5)(b)
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Carpentaria Shire Council

Normanton

Public potable water supplier Fluoridated supplies Comment
Aurukun Shire Council Aurukun Under construction
Balonne Shire Council No
" " Biloela Commenced w/c 05/05/2014
B Sl @] Moura Commenced w/c 05/05/2014
Barcaldine Regional Council No
Barcoo Shire Council No
Blackall-Tambo Regional Council No
Boulia Shire Council No
Brisbane City Council SEQ Water Grid Commenced 2008/2009
Bulloo Shire Council No
Bundaberg Regional Council No
Burdekin Shire Council No
Burke Shire Council No

Cassowary Coast Regional Council

No

Innisfail - not commissioned - stranded asset

Central Highlands Regional Council

Blackwater

Commenced 14/11/2011

Opal St

Commenced 14/11/2011

Gympie Regional Council

Rubyvale - Sapphire Commenced 7/12/2011
Tieri Commenced 8/12/2011
Charters Towers Regional Council No
Cloncurry Shire Council No
Cook Shire Council Annan River Commenced 29/06/2010
Croydon Shire Council No
Diamantina Shire Council No
Douglas Shire Council No )
Etheridge Shire Council No
Flinders Shire Council Hughenden Commenced 18/03/2014
. " Gladstone Commenced 1/11/200°
Gladstone Regional Council
Yarwun Commenced 5/11/2009
Gold Coast City Council SEQ Water Grid Commenced 2008/20.9
Goondiwindi Regional Council Goondiwindi Commenced 21/12/2011
Gympie Commenced 25/01/2011

Tin Can Bay/Cooloola

Commenced 26/01/2011

Hinchinbrook Shire Council

Forrest Beach

Commenced 24/07/2013

Halifax

Comm-enced 27/07/2013

Ingham Depot

Commencad 14,/10/2013

Ingham Pumping Station

Com.nenced 25/07,2013

Macknade

_|Ccmmenced 09/08/2015
- UV

Hope Vale Aboriginal Shire Council No
Ipswich City Council SEQ Water Grid Commeaced 2008/2009
Isaac Regional Council Moranbah Comraerced 1971
Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Kowanyama n naturally occurring fluoride
Livingstone Shire Council No N/
Lockhart River Aboriginal Shire No
Lockyer Valley Regional Council SEQ Water Grid Commenced 2008/2009
Logan City Council SEQ Water Grid ’ Commenced 2008/2009
Nebo Road N\ Commenced 17/12/2009
. " Mt Blarney Commenced 24/02/2011
Rlactovjiteicpalcotc) Northern Beaches Commenced 24/02/2011
Marian Under construction
Mapoon Aboriginal Shire Council No
Maranoa Regional Council No N\
Mareeba Shire Council No
Julia Creek N\
" . " Kyuna " . .
McKinlay Shire Council - _ High naturally occurring fluoride
McYinlay
ARSEn
Moreton Bay Regional Council SEQ Water Crid Commenced 2008/2009
Mornington Shire Council No
Mount Isa City Council No NV Mt Isa - not commissioned - stranded asset
Murweh Shire Council No
Napranum Aboriginal Shire Councii No

Noosa Shire Council

S

Palm Island Aboriginal Shire Council

Watar Grid

I'o

Commenced 2008/2009

Plant awaiting repair

Scenic Rim Regional Council

SEQ Water Grid

Paroo Shire Council No

Pormpuraaw Aboriginal Shire Council No

Quilpie Shire Council Quilpie High naturally occurring fluoride
Redland City Council SEQ Water Grid Commenced 2008/2009
Richmond Shire Council No

Commenced 2008/2009

Somerset Regional Council

SEQ Water Grid

Commenced 2008/2009
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Kuranda - asset built never commissioned - stranded asset

Tablelands Regional Council

Malanda - asset built never commissioned - stranded asset

Weipa Town

DOH-DL 14/15-00k socuren

. . . Proserpine to Bowen WTP - asset built never commissioned - stranded asset
Whitsunday Regional Council No - . —
Proserpine - asset built never commissioned - stranded asset
Winton Shire Council No
Woorabinda Aboriginal Shire Council No /N
Woujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council




Pages 74 through 94 redacted for the following reasons:

Nonpublication under s.78(b), copyright applies
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s.73

From: 13

Sent: Monday, 16 June 2014 2:21 PM
To: s.73

Subject: RE: ADAQ paper
Attachments: ADAQ F.docx

His-73 article attached.

Have you seen the Tony Robinson Walking Through History programs on SBS? Wondgerful shows where Tony walks
for a few days in different parts of the UK and talks about the history of the area. So far we’ve seen walks through the
Lake District, the Scottish border area and Lindisfarne, Salisbury, The Wigan Pier to Liverpecol Caiial, and on the
weekend we saw him walking through north Norfolk http://www.channel4.com/programivies/walkirig-through-
history/articles/all/north-norfolk They’re wonderful programs!

Regards,
Michael

From: s-/3

Sent: Monday, 16 June 2014 1:49 PM
To:s.73

Subject: ADAQ paper

HelloS-"3

| hope you are well. We were just wondering if you were able to forward a copy of the recent fluoridation status
paper you did for ADAQ?

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer — Water Program

Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Branch | Health Services and Clinical Innovation Division
Department of Health | Queensland Goverriment

Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street | Herston

PO Box 2368 | Fortitude Valley BC | QLD 4006

t.

es’3 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health:gld.gov.au

@@ ... A
w4 X i
Customers first =il [deasinto action Unleash potential ';L‘JI Be courageous “'-*“{ Empower people Queensland

Government
J s e opprmy” N

~,
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In early 2008, the Bligh government lifted Queensland from the dental dark ages by
mandating fluoridation in towns and cities with populations over 1,000. Few
exemptions were allowed. Opposition Liberal and National Party MPs supported the
legislation, and a massive statewide water fluoridation program was gradually
implemented. By 2012, almost 90% of Queenslanders had access to fluoridated drinking
water.

The Newman Government’s surprise amendments to the legislation in November 2012
removed the mandatory element of the Bligh legislation, and once agzin placed decision
making on fluoridation back in the hands of local councils. Councils are now required to
make a decision “in the best interests of the community”, although “best interests” is
not defined.

Eighteen councils voted against water fluoridation, and different reaseins were given. In
a small number of towns, fluoridation was difficult to impiement hecause of multiple
water sources. A few towns have no water treatment plant, ard reiy on untreated bore
water. Despite the proven cost-benefits of fluoridation, some councils baulked at the
expense, as under both the Bligh and Newman governments’ lzgislation, councils pay
ongoing chemical, maintenance and staffing costs. Other councils based their rejection
of water fluoridation on perfunctory internet searches, ili-informed views of individual
councillors, and intense lobbying from anti-fluoridation fringe groups. Most saw no
need to obtain expert opinions from the Australian Dental Association, Australian
Medical Association or Queensland Health, despite’being urged to do so by
Queensland’s Chief Health Officer.

So, what is the current state of play in Queensland regarding fluoridation? Around 79%
of Queenslanders still have zccess to fluoridated water, including all of southeast
Queensland - Gympie and the Sanshine Coast, Brisbane, the Gold Coast, Scenic Rim,
Toowoomba, the Southern Downs and Western Downs. Other fluoridated towns and
cities include Gladstone, Biloela, the Central Highlands, Mackay, Townsville, Ingham,
Normanton, Hughenden, Cooktown, Goondiwindi and Moranbah. A few remote towns,
including Julia Creek, Quilpie; and Kowanyama are naturally fluoridated.

The remainder of Queensland, including the major population centres of Cairns and the
Atherton Tablelands, Mount Isa, Rockhampton, Bundaberg, Maryborough and Hervey
Bay, is not fluoiridated. Other than Kowanyama, no indigenous communities have
fluoridated water supplies, although a fluoridation plant at Aurukun is being
constructed, and the plant on Palm Island is being repaired.

While 79% of the state being fluoridated is still a vast improvement on the less than 5%
in 2007, it is far from ideal, and well below the percentages in other states. Around half
a million Queenslanders are still denied the proven benefits of water fluoridation.
Councils that have rejected fluoridation since the November 2012 legislative
amendments are unlikely to recommence fluoridation in the near future, since the State
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Government’s commitment to fund the capital costs for fluoridation plants expires at
the end of June 2014. On the other hand, many councils that voted to retain
fluoridation could very easily reverse those decisions. For example, the Toowoomba
Regional Council only narrowly voted 6-5 to retain fluoridation, and Gladstone Regional
Council 4-3. Dentists and other health professionals cannot afford to be complacent.

Under the new legislation, councils’ rights to cease fluoridation must be acknowledged,
but it is difficult to imagine how the “best interests” of the people of Cairns,
Rockhampton, Bundaberg, Maryborough, Hervey Bay and other couricils which have
rejected water fluoridation can be any different to the best interests of the great
majority of Queenslanders who still enjoy the benefits of water fiucridation.

A major 2012 review of fluoridation studies from 1990-2010 found 59 studies from
around the world, including 13 from Australia. All 59 studies found significant
reductions in childhood caries experience. Most fluoriaatien studies are conducted on
children, but a large 2013 study based on Australia’s National'Sarvey of Adult Oral
Health 2004-06 also confirmed significant reductions in caries experience for adults
drinking fluoridated water. Water fluoridation wiil therefore benefit all people in the
community, not just children.

Most importantly, all federal, state and territory Health Departments have endorsed the
safety of community water fluoridation. Leading Australian health and scientific
authorities have repeatedly rejected the ignorant’scaremongering and misinformation
from anti-fluoridation fringe groups. The US-based Centers for Disease Control rightly
describes water fluoridation as one of'the ten great public health achievements of the
20" century.

Within the near future, pubhlic health experts expect to see strong evidence that water
fluoridation has already started to reduce caries levels in Queensland. Congratulations
to the many ADAQ rmembers who have already lobbied in their own areas. All local,
state and federal politicians, journalists and key local opinion leaders have dentists. |
urge all ADAQ rnembers tc promote the significant health, financial and social benefits
of water flugridation, insist that as many Queenslanders as possible have the
opportunity to drink flueridated water, and thank local leaders who have supported
water fluoridation in their communities.

D@ H C’D L 14/155(@@ ij Document 97



s.73

From: WaterQuality

Sent: Tuesday, 4 March 2014 4:06 PM

To: HProtSD_dchocorro

Subject: FW: DUE TODAY: NHMRC Agenda Papers

Attachments: 0_199_agenda_final.pdf; 15_att_a_-_fluoride_-_nhmrc_webpage.pdf; 15

_fluoride_agenda_paper.pdf; 24_att_b_-_older_than_5_years_of _age_.pdf; 24
_standing_report_status_of_guidelines_cp_and_ph_-.pdf

Importance: High

Good Afternoon "3

Response from Water (with additional paper added)

Agenda Paper 15 - Fluoride
e QLD has no issues

s.73

s.73

Senior Environmental Health' Cfficer
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

Phone: 07 3328 9351

Fax: 07 3328 9354

Out of hours number for Environmental Health: 1800 128 962

Email:s.73 health.qld.gov.au

Visit us on the web at: www.health.gld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.asp
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From: HProtSD_dchocorro

Sent: Tuesday, 4 30 PM

To: WaterQuality; 5" MRQ
Subject: DUE TODAY: NHMRC Agenda Papers
Importance: High

Good Afternoon
Your urgent assistance please:

For Agenda Item 15 — see attached documents on fluoride.

s.73

See instructions fromS "2 below.

Please consider and provide responses (as per highlight) to the following NHMRC items:

s.73

Please provide comment, including any issues for Queensland, when the Agenida ltem is requesting for Member (573
s.73 Advice under the Proposed Resolution section (on the last page of each item) eg. “We recommend the
Member advises she is happy to progress with public consultation”.

NB: Agenda Items requesting for the Member to NOTE the item-urider the’'Proposed Resolution section (on last page
of each ltem) only require comment if Queensland does not agree with the position otherwise a “QLD has no issues”
response is perfect.

S.73

Response by email is fine. | will provide a running sheet to and will format it here.

Please immediately let me know if any of these items ‘do not'belong to you.

Please call me if you have any questions in relaticn ta this request which is due for response to the CHO CHO email
account by 3 March 2014.

Regards

s.73

r
Office of the Chief Health Officer

Health Service & Clinical Inricvation Division
Department of Health

Phone
Email:s:73 @hnealthi.cld.gov.au
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UNCLASSIFIED: For-Official-Use-Only

*  Australian Government
“  National Health and Medical Research Council

AGENDA ITEM 15

COUNCIL
199" Session
6 March 2014

Fluoridation of Drinking Water Update
For Noting

Background:

In 2007 NHMRC released a Public StatemenTbaEfficacy and Sarety of Fluoridation (the
Public Statement)In this statement, NHMRC recommends that the fildetion of drinking
water remains the most effective and socially ediiét means of achieving community-wide
exposure to the caries prevention effects of fil@rit is' recommended that water be
fluoridated in the target range of 0.6 to 1.1 maiépending on climate, to balance reduction
of dental caries and occurrence of dental fluordsis

This statement is underpinned by Bystemaiic Review of the Efficacy and Safety of
Fluoridation (NHMRC, 2007) which piovides a detailed analysithe scientific literature
from 1996 to December 2006. The review considdnedcevidence relating to the efficacy
and safety of fluoride interventions; with emphagen those able to be delivered as a
widespread public health initiative such as: thditaah of fluoride to water, milk and salt;
and the use of topical fluoride agents (icothpagtk,varnish and mouth rinse). The review
also examined the additional sources-cf fluoridthaenvironment which occur naturally or
as a result of industrial processes. Whilst envirental exposure is a relevant inadvertent
source of fluoride, the extent ¢f exposure to tithvidual in Australia is trivial relative to the
extent of exposure from intentionai supplementation

Discussion:

Community cencern

There is ongoing community concern and media attemegarding the fluoridation of
drinking water as a ptiblic health initiative to ued dental caries. Concern is focused on the
possible neurctoxic effects of fluoride, where thisrdebate on the level of exposure at
which effectsin children are seen.

Jurisdictional changes

The use of fluoride in water is controlled by statel territory legislation and regulations,

and local regulationsWhile Queensland had previously mandated the fliadion of water
supplies across the state, legislative change@?i012 allowed local governments to decide
whether to fluoridate water supplies. A numbeloghl councils in Queensland have since

UNCLASSIFIED: For-Official-Use-Only
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AGENDA ITEM 15

ceased fluoridation activities in their areBecently, two NSW shire councils have also
considered reversing fluoridation of their wateplies.

Expert meeting

On 20 June 2013, the Office of NHMRC (ONHMRC) hdséa expert meeting involving
jurisdictional representatives and key expertssouss the need to update the evidence on
the harms and benefits of fluoridation to ensuseAhstralian community is receiving the
best available advice from NHMRC.

At this meeting it was agreed that NHMRC'’s 2007ie@\s still supported by the body of
evidence but an update was recommended to ensuesncy as wel! as consider the
increasing consumption of non-fluoridated hydratietmical and/or sacial equity issues,
cost/benefit analyses and relevance to the Auatraiontext.

Advice from the Council of NHMRC

At its meeting on the 21 June 2013, Council Membea$firmed ithe recommendation in the
2007 statement and agreed to release a paragrapk BHMRC website that reaffirmed
Council’s support of the 2007 Public Statement. We&site has been updated
(Attachment A).

Council also recommended that ONHMRC update the lobevidence to include more
recent studies and assess their relevance in tsaan context, subject to the identification
of funding.

On 21 November 2013, Council noted advice fromGE® that funding is not available

from the MREA, and from the Commonwealtih Departnadriiealth, that in the current

fiscal environment it would be prudent for NHMRCdeek another source of funding. It was
recommended that ONHMRC write to State and Terri@hnief Health Officers seeking
funding for further work on fluoridatiori.

Current Status:

ONHMRC has recently written tc tire jurisdiction&ldith departments seeking funding to
undertake this project. At the time of writing, ONIRC has received favourable feedback
from the health departments of NSW, ACT, Northeenrifory, Tasmania and Victoria. The
Queensland Department of Health has declined & afiy funds, and ONHMRC awaits
feedback from South Australian and Western Austrafiealth departments.

ONHMRC aiso awaits advice from the Commonwealth @spent of Health regarding the
potential to work i partnership with NHMRC to upeléhe public statement through the
National Oral Health Promotion Plan. These discussions have been delayed due to the

change of Gevernment.

Pending funding, ONHMRC will consider establisha§luoride Reference Group and
subsequent update of the 2007 literature reviewpaitic statement to inform the Australian
Community on the harms and/or benefits of fluoimat This work would fall under section
7 (1) (a) of the NHMRC Act 1992, to inquire into tieas relating to the improvement of
health and the prevention of disease.

UNCLASSIFIED: For-Official-Use-Only
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Impacts on Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Health:

The expert meeting included representatives witfeggnce in Indigenous health and the
fluoridation of water supplies in remote Indigen@esnmunities. Such expertise will be
further sought in the establishment of a FluoriggelRence Group and considered in any
potential update.

Consumer Engagement:

As with other population wide public health intemtiens and the ethical concerns associated
with these, it is important to take into accounthbthe strength of ihe evidence for the
initiative and public understanding. As such, astoner representative from the Consumers
Health Forum of Australia participated in the expeeeting and consumer representatives
will be sought in the establishment of a FluoridefdRence Group: This will include those
opposed to fluoridation, to enable representatiaall wiews.

Proposed Resolution:

That CouncilNOTE the update provided on NHMRC'’s advice on the fldation of
drinking water.

Attachments:

A. NHMRC'’s current webpage on fluoridation

Executive Dire .73

Contact offices: 73

Phone: 02 6217

Date cleared: 3 February 2014

Consultations: Council of NHMRC, Prevention and @aumity Health Committee, Commonwealth
Department of Health, State and-tertitory juristians, key experts

Identify any known disclosed interests: Nil

UNCLASSIFIED: For-Official-Use-Only
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NHMRC Public Statement: Efficacy and Safety of Fluoridation | National Health and Me... Page 1 of 1

Australian Government N I I N\ R C
National Health and Medical Research Council

NHMRC Public Statement: Efficacy and Safety of Fluoridation

Summary information

Publishing date: 2007

Status: Current

Reference number: EH41

Available in print: Yes

Order this publication: health@nationalmailing.com.au

Further information: nhmrc.publications@nhmrc.gov.au

Synopsis

The aim of a 2007 NHMRC systematic review of fluoride and health was to synthesise high’level evidence in relation to the efficacy
and safety of different forms of fluoridation, with emphasis on those able to be delivered as a widespread public health initiative.
Methods of fluoride delivery reviewed were water, milk, salt and topical agents such as toothpaste and gels, though the evidence for

water fluoridation is the most extensive.

NHMRC Public Statement:The Efficacy and Safety of Fluoridation. 2007

2013 Council consideration regarding the status of the Pablic Statement

NHMRC Council considered the NHMRC Public Statement on Thie £fiicacy and Safety of Fluoridation at its meeting on 21 June
2013. Council reaffirmed its position that “Fluoridation of drinking water remains the most effective and socially equitable means of
achieving community-wide exposure to the caries prevention effects of fluoride. It is recommended that water be fluoridated in the
target range of 0.6 to 1.1 mg/L, depending on ciimate, to balance reduction of dental caries and occurrence of dental fluorosis”.

Council recommended that the Office of the NHMRC update the body of evidence to include more recent studies and assess their

relevance in the Australian context

This follows advice received froin an Expert Meeting held on 20 June 2013 on water fluoridation, which included jurisdictional

representatives and a range of technical experts.

Additional resources

A Systematic Review of the Ffficacy and Safety of Fluoridation Part A (PDF, 1.66MB)
A Systematic Review of the Efficacy and Safety of Fluoridation Part B (PDF, 1.43MB)
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From: s.73 @nhmrc.gov.au>

To: s.73 @health.qld.gov.au" <.73 @hea
CC: "cho_cho@health.qgld.gov.au" <cho_cho@health.qld.gov.au>, S:73
Date: 18/09/2013 10:54 pm

Subject: Fluoridation: NHMRC Official Statement [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

SEC=UNCLASSIFIED
Dear Colleagues

Thank you for considering the statement proposed by the Council of NHMRC and indi¢ating your satisfaction with
this. As a result of considering comments received, the official statement below now ¢xcludes any refeéience to
funding and/or resource identification.

Statement by the Council of NHMRC (as endorsed by the Jurisdictions)

NHMRC Council considered the NHMRC Public Statement on The Efficacy and Sarety of Fluoridation at its
meeting on 21 June 2013. Council reaffirmed its position that "Fluoridation o¢f drinking water remains the most
effective and socially equitable means of achieving community-wide exposure to the caries prevention effects of
fluoride. It is recommended that water be fluoridated in the target range of 0.6 to 1.1 mg/L, depending on climate,
to balance reduction of dental caries and occurrence of dental fluorosis”.

Council recommended that the Office of the NHMR( update the body of evidence to include more recent studies
and assess their relevance in the Australian context.

This follows advice received from an Expert Meeting held 0n 20 June 2013 on water fluoridation, which included
jurisdictional representatives and a range of technical-experts.

At this stage, NHMRC is not planning on releasing a media statement and will need to discuss such a release with
the Commonwealth Department of Health and Ageing (DoHA).

The recommendation from Council, whilst reaffirming the 2007 advice, was to undertake an update subject to the
identification of funding. As discussed in-confidence at the Expert Meeting on 20 June 2013, there may be potential
for DoHA and WNHMRC to work in partnership on this update (co-funding and co-branding) through the National
Oral Health Promotion Piai (NOHPP). Although allocated funding under the 2012-13 Federal Budget, the NOHPP
has yet to be-approved by the new Minister for Health. Given this, the Expert Meeting outcomes are being retained
for office use only at this time and NHMRC is waiting for further advice on the NOHPP before it makes any
statement about its fluoridation work.

In addition to the statement by the Council of NHMRC, if you require wording in the meantime which can be used
in the public space to support water fluoridation, the Office of NHMRC recommends the following:

DOH-DL 14/15-00k socument 1



NHMRC reviewed the quality available evidence in 2007 and subsequently recommends a target fluoride
concentration between 0.6 and 1.1 mg/L in Australian water supplies, depending on climate, to reduce dental caries.
On 21 June 2013, the Council of NHMRC reaffirmed the 2007 Public Statement on fluoridation of drinking water.

The 2007 Public Statement found that water fluoridation is safe. The only potential harm agsociated with water
fluoridation is dental fluorosis, and this can be minimised by the careful regulation of the conceniration of fluoride
in fluoridated water within the above target range. NHMRC's review found no other evidence of harm to human
health.

In the event of a future media release or progression of any possible review, NHMRC weould certainly consult with
all jurisdictions on this.

Kind regards,

s.73

Executive Director
Research Translation - Portfolio 1
National Health & Medical Research Council

p:026217 9286 | m: S-73 [f:0262179175
€ .73 @nhmrc.gov.au<mailio :73 @nhmrc.gov.au> | w :
www.nhmre.gov.au<http://www.nhmrc.gev.au/

SEC=UNCLASSIFIED
SEC=UNCLASSIFIED

This message and its attichments may contain legally privileged and/or confidential information. If you are not the
intended recipient, you must not disclose or use the information contained in it. If you have received this e-mail in
error, please notify the senderimmediately by return e-mail and delete the e-mail. Any content of this message and
its attachments which does notrelate to the official business of National Health and Medical Research Council must
be taken not to have been sent or endorsed by National Health and Medical Research Council. No warranty is made
that the e-mail or attachment(s) are free from computer virus or other defect.

DOH-DL 14/15-00k socument 1o



e OFQ 35

ODG DATE RECEIVED =2 JAN 2011

Previous/related

...............................................

INVITATION

DG delegated to

.............................................

Comments

.................................................
...............................................................

................................................................

N <. 7

ACTION OFFICER...... )[(\_)C ........ ol

COPY PROVIDED TO tevivurerreseeseesmneerererasiioesssvinis

REPLY FOR DG’S / \//
SIGNATURE REQUIRED

................................

due (to DG Corro) <) { u / &QO, Lﬁ—

briefing note alsorequired

ACTION DIRECT*

direct actien required by ........ fla........ S

DG Coarro fo be advised of completion
of action -

Copy of response (letter or email) required

NRR — (No response required -
for information only)

COMMENTS

.................................................
....................................................................

....................................................................

*Nomination of an item as ‘action direct’ requires the actioning
area to determine whether a response is required. The
actioning area is also responsible for determining who the
appropriate signatory of the response should be.

DOH-DL 14/15-004 socumen: oc




20 ‘-5: Australian Government
5% National Health and Medical Research Council N ‘ H ’ M ‘ R ’ C

GPOBox 1421 | Canberra ACT 2601
16 Marcus Clarke Street, Canberra City ACT 2600

T. 13 000 NHMRC (13 000 64672) or +61 2 6217 9000
F. +6126217 9100
E. nhmrc@nhmre.gov.au

ABN 88601 010 284
www.nhmre.gov.au

™
~

Director-General
Queensland Health
GPO Box 48
BRISBANE QLD 4011

DearR
(2]

In 2007, after undertaking a systematic review of the literature/on the health effects of
fluoridation, the National Health and Medical Reseai’ch Council (NHMRC) published the
NHMRC Public Statement on The Efficacy and Safety of Fluoridation. As with many Public
Statements and Guidelines, NHMRC periodically reviews the content to ensure that the
information is based on current evidence.

As you may be aware, we have consulted with Council’and relevant experts to review the
validity of the 2007 Public Statement arid have reaffirmed our position that “Fluoridation of
drinking water remains the most effective and socially equitable means of achieving community
wide exposure to the caries prevention efiects of fluoride. It is recommended that water be
fluoridated in the target range of G.6-t0 1. 1maq/l,/depending on the climate, to balance reduction
of dental caries and occurrence of dental fluorosis”,

However as the evidence that underpins this publication was reviewed in 2007, Council
recommended updating the body of evidence via a systematic review to include more recent
studies and assess their relevance to the Australian context.

The Council of NHMRC discussed this at the November 2013 meeting, where the
Commonwealth Chief Medical Officer encouraged jurisdictions to consider contributing funds. |
am strongly supportive of undertaking this work, if funds can be found. Unfortunately, the
NHMRC Medicai Research Endowment Account, which represents the annual Budget
appropriation to NHMRC by the Australian Government, can only be used to fund research
activity and cannotbe used to fund the work needed here. The State and Territory Chief Health
Officers — Members of NHMRC Council, stated they would discuss this with their departments,
given the significance of this issue for the jurisdictions in their role in ensuring quality drinking
water.

As such | seek your support for this new review. In order to undertake this project, NHMRC

would be seeking to obtain funding from jurisdictions to an amount approximating $200,000
and | invite you to consider a financial contribution to the expected project costs. One method

WORKING TO BUILD A HEALTHY AUSTRALIA 1
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of estimating any contribution is to use the AHMAC cost-sharing formula, which for your
State/Territory would be approximately $40,000.

| look forward to your consideration in by Friday 24 January 2014 to allow my office to start
planning this project.

Yours gincerely

s.73

Chief Executive Officer
NHMRC

[d December 2013

cei Chief Health Officer QLD

l WORKING TO BUILD A HEALTHY AUSTRALIA
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WATER FLUORIDATION REGULATICH 2608
SECTION T{31)

Forim 2

NOTICE OF PERIOD OF NON-OFERATION

Queensland
Govermnment

1. Water Supplier Detgils

Marme
Oueensland Bulk Water Subplv Authoritv T/A Seawater

AEMNIAGH Service Provider 1D
75450239876 SP507

Brinaipal comtast
Family Hame: Given Mamals Fraion
S.73 A/Principal Drinking Water Quality

Street sddress
117 Brisbane Street Inswich PastGmiz 4305

Posial address iif differsnt o shovel
PO BOX 16146 Citv East Posteone 4002
Fhone Fax 73 Bdirshile
07 5656 3324 07 5656 3322
Emiail
Daniel.Healy@seqwater.com.au

2. Details of period of non-operation
Period of non-operation
7 April 2014 to 5 May 2014

Mame =nd loeation of reatment plamt
Kilcoy WTP, Seib Street, Kilcoy

Rez=ons far ron-cperation
The new Kilcoy WTP has commenced operations and the existing treatment plants at Kilcoy have been
taken offline. The fluoridation system at the new WTP is still undergoing commissioning and electrical

work. The period of nori-pperation is expected to exceed the 14 days upon which this notice is required
by an additional two waeeks.
Acticn tzken to remedy msior

The contractor arid Seqwater’'s Process Improvement Specialists are committed to completing the

proposed work rio laterthan 5 May by when the fluoridation system is expected to be fully operational.

Aftach sddittons| informaicr if necessany

_Signabure of Prneipal Contack Dats
s.73 8 April 2014

Bubimit Bis nofice to Chief Executive Officer, Grreensiand Healih, PO Box 2388, Fortiede Walay BE, 4006

Werswn 1.1
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s.73

From: s.73

Sent: Thursday, 17 April 2014 3:38 PM
To: fluoride@dsdip.gld.gov.au
Subject: QFCAP commencement date
Hello 57

Just a quick query, please could you advise when QFCAP first became available. If you haven’t got the date to hand
could you let me know Tuesday? Month/Year is fine.

Hope you both have a relaxing Easter break.

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
e.s’3 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

D @
L 5 )
Eust-:-mers- first Ideas into action O Unleash petential 'LE’) B& rourageous Empower people e g“!!ﬂﬁlﬂﬂd

sovernment
Y /AN
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s.73

From: 873 chp.qld.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 22 May 2014 4:43 PM

To: S.73

Subject: RE: Fluoride

Thanks s.73

Excellent, as usual
If its OK with you we’ll copy your advice verbatim with the lead in to say that ‘Advice fram the Department of Health
is that .....”

Regards
s.73

s.73

From:s '3 :Janet. Id.gov .au]

Sent: Thursday, 22 May 2014 4:11 PM
To:s.73
Subject: RE: Fluoride

Hi s.73

This is our standard response on the “toxic metals in fluoride from Chiina”:

Fluoridation chemicals used in Queensland are sourced fram manufacturers who supply them for the
purpose of water fluoridation. Although water suppliers may purchase their fluoridation chemicals from
where they choose, the fluoridation chemicals used must comply with the requirement in the

Water Fluoridation Regulation 2008 (the Regulation) to not'contain any impurities at levels that are likely to
adversely affect public health. Furthermore, water suppliers who fluoridate are required, under the
Regulation, to verify the level of impuritiés of fluoridation chemicals by obtaining a batch analysis certificate
for each batch of fluoridation chemicaiabtairned. If such a certificate cannot be obtained from the
manufacturer, importer or supplier, the water supplier must have the fluoridation chemical analysed for
impurities by an appropriately accredited laboratory prior to adding any to the drinking water

supply. Guidelines specify that, like other water treatment chemicals, the addition of fluoride contribute no
more than 10% of guideline value set for each impurity in the Australian Drinking Water Guidelines.

*It's actually significantly less than-10% because the calculations assume a F concentration of 1mg/L, whereas the
highest prescribed concentration in- QLD is 0.8.

And a response on the envifonmental aspects, prepared by Michael Foley (Director, Brisbane Dental Hospital)

Environmental impact oi water fluoridation

The World Health Organization in 2002 investigated the environmental aspects of fluoride and identified the
main sources of fluoride pollution as being industry and mining; they did not consider water fluoridation to
be a potential scurce-of fluoride pollution. A 2005 letter from the World Health Organization to John Irving
in NSW stated that “water fluoridation at recommended low concentrations is safe for the environment and
is safe for human health as well”. A 2004 article “Water Fluoridation and the Environment: Current
Perspective in the United States” concluded that “Scientific evidence supports the fluoridation of public
water supplies as safe for the environment and beneficial to people. Reports at the local, national and
international levels have continued to support this most important public health measure. There appears to
be no concern about the environmental aspects of water fluoridation among those experts who have
investigated the matter. Furthermore, since the chemicals used for water fluoridation are co-products of
the manufacture of phosphate fertilizers, and the raw material used is a natural resource (rocks excavated
for their mineral content), water fluoridation could accurately be described as environmentally friendly, as it
maximizes the use made of these resources, and reduces waste”. A 2002 independent investigation in
Washington state (USA) concluded, “fluoridation of the public drinking water will not negatively impact the

1
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environment”. The water supplies of every other Australian capital cities (and Townsville) have been
fluoridated for around 40 years, with no adverse environmental effects being reported during that time.

Our team members who prepare most of our responses to fluoride think your draft is pretty good. They suggest you
might also want to try

Victorian Department of Health’s FAQ document. Page 25 of the document speaks to the impact of water
fluoridation on the environment:
http://docs.health.vic.gov.au/docs/doc/1985092C7386F622CA257AA90004CEEQ/SFILE/HS986 fluor Q&A WEB.pdf

Alternatively, you may wish to the EU’s Scientific Committee on Health and Environmental Risks (SCHER) report on
fluoridation as it discusses the impact on the environment. The relevant section can be found here:
http://ec.europa.eu/health/scientific_committees/opinions layman/fluoridation/en/I-2/7.htm#0

Hope this information is helpful.

Regards,

S.73

Advanced Env Health Scientist (Water)
Water Quality Team, Health Protection Unit
Chief Health Officer Branch

Department of Health

15 Butterfield Street, Herston QIld 4006

PO Box 2368

Fortitude Valley BC 4006

Phone: 07 3328 9346

Fax: 07 3328 9354

Out of hours number for Environmental Health: 1800 128 962

From:s.73 hp.qgid.gov.au ]
Se May 2014 4:54 PM
Tos 73

Subject: Fluoride

Hi s.73
This was the incoming:

1. In 1997 the Brisbane City/Council conducted a Taskforce investigation on fluoridating Brisbane's drinking water,
and obviously flucridation was rejected at the time.

2. Part of the resulting repart deals with the Environmental Impact Of Fluoride, Chapter 8 copy attached.

3. The Taskforce accepted Dr Miller’s recommendation that further studies would be required. Page 67.

“The review recommended that experimental studies and other biological assessments should be conducted on
sensitive plant and animal species that reflect the region’s biodiversity, prior to any decision for the release of long-

term additional fluoride into Brisbane’s environment.”

4. Seqwater has advised that over 362 Tonnes of fluoride chemicals (being toxic waste products containing toxic
heavy metals from China ) was used in south east Queensland last financial year FY 12/13.

2
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5. Humans ingest less than 1% of treated water and retain approx 50% in healthy adults and about 80% in healthy
small children. People with kidney problems retain more over their lifetimes. See NHMRC website.

6. Therefore at least 99% of fluoride chemicals returns to the environment. A large percentage would find its way
into Moreton Bay Marine Park.

7. Urban Utilities has advised that the fluoride concentrations of water exiting Sewage Treatment Plants are about
the same as the fluoride concentrations of water entering the Plants.

Can the Qld State Government acknowledge all of the above facts 1 to 7, and answer the following questions A. B. C.
A. Has an Environmental Impact Study been carried out as advised?
B. If not, why not?

C. If not, will a Environmental Impact Study be carried out and when?

EEE SN EE N EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEENANEE P EEEN N EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEN]

A possible answer is:

Fluoride is a natural element averaging 600 parts per million (ppm) by weight in rocks and soils of the Earth’s crust.
Accordingly, plant and animal life is naturally exposed to a level of fluoride in the environment. Natural seawater
contains 1.3ppm fluoride, natural freshwaters typically contair’in the range ¢.01 to 0.3ppm and groundwaters can
contain up to 35ppm Fluoride additions to drinking watei @im tc achieve at most about 1ppm fluoride. This
is slightly less than what is typical for seawater, but more than what may’be present in some natural freshwaters.

Many of our larger cities’ sewage systems in Queensland are located near the coast and release treated sewage in to
marine environments (e.g. estuaries or bays). In these cases, the’above information suggests that the discharge of
fluoride from sewage treatment plants at about/thie sarne levei as the fluoride dosages in water supplies would not
increase fluoride levels to above what already/exists., Therefore, environmental problems are unlikely.

Look forward to your advice

s.73

3330 6057
P.S. Hello to s.73

The information in this email together with any attachments is intended only for the person or entity to which it
is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged material. There is no waiver of any
confidentiality/privilege by your inadvertent receipt of this material.

Any form of review,“disclosure, modification, distribution and/or publication of this email message is prohibited,
unless as a necessary part of Departmental business.

If you have received this message in error, you are asked to inform the sender as quickly as possible and delete
this message and any copies of this message from your computer and/or your computer system network.

st s s s she sk sk st e st sfe sk sfe she sk sk sk ste st s s she sk sk skt sie st sfe sk sfe sk sk sk st sie st sfe sk sfe sk sk sk st sie st sfe sk s sk sk sk st sk st sfe s s sk sk sk st sie st s sk sl sk sk skt sk sk sk skoskok

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it and you are not the intended
recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

3
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Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited. The
information contained in this email, including any attachment sent with it, may be subject to a statutory duty
of confidentiality if it relates to health service matters.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in error, you are asked to
immediately notify the sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 1800 198 175 or by return email. You
should also delete this email, and any copies, from your computer system network and destroy any hard
copies produced.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it;
any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or publication of this email is also prohibited.

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not.contain malicious
software, Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the consequences if any person's computer
inadvertently suffers any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is-infécted ‘with a virus, other
malicious computer programme or code that may occur as a consequence of receiving this email.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender 2nd not the views of the
Queensland Government.

>k st sk ke sk sk sk sk sk sk s sk sk skt skt sk sk sk skt skt s sk sk skoske skt s skeosk sk skt sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ek sk sk skt sk sk skt skoskoskoskok skokoskokok
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s.73

s.73

From: |dwater.com.au>

Sent: 4 1:43 PM

TO: s.73

Subject: RE: Councillors hand fluoride decision to residents | Warwick Daily News

OK

I'll try to encourage them when we are there soon but as you know we tend to be talking to the converted.

From: s.73 ailto:Grs-73 alth.qgld.gov. au]
Sent: Friday, 2 May 2014 1:41 PM
To:s.73

Subject: RE: Councillors hand fluoride decision to residents | Warwick Daily iNews

s.73
Our media people are hopefully sorting out that Warwick Daily news issue. A little'while back we offered (again) to
go out to Warwick to brief Council on the benefits of fluoridated waterbut-havenot had a response.

s.73

S.73

Director

Water Team

Health Protection Unit
Chief Health Officer Branch

Health Service and Clinical Innovation | Department of Heaith
Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street, Herston, Brisbane, 4006 | PO Box/2368, Fortitude Valley, 4006

Phone: 07 3328 9345

Mobiles.73

Fax: 07 3328 9354

Out of hours number for Environmental Health: 1200-128 962
Email:s.73 health.qld.gcv.au

Visit u www.hea!th.gid.gg.au[ph[ehu[eh-science-reguIation.asp

From:S '3 mailto: 3 Idwater.com.au]
Sent: Friday, 2 May 2014 1:38 PM
To:s.73

Subject: RE: Councillors hand fluoride decision to residents | Warwick Daily News

873

Righto, I'll wait to here. | just got version, had meetings in George St.

From: s.73 mailto:s.73 health.gld.gov.au ]
Sent: F 2014 1:24 PM
To:s.73

Subject: RE: Councillors hand fluoride decision to residents | Warwick Daily News

s.73
1
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Sure. | saws-73  today at a flood workshop organised by WaterRA, but had to leave early. | also missed the talk at
Ozwater, so it would be good to catch up.

sS.73

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

Out of Environmental Health: 1800 128 962
Email 73 health.qgld.gov.au

Visit us on the web at: wwwhealth.gld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.asp

From:s.73 mailto:s-73 @gldwater.com.au /]
Sent: Friday, 2 May 2014 1:03 PM

To:s.73

Cc:

Subject: RE: Councillors hand fluoride decision to residents | Warwick Daily News
Righto

I’'ve had suggestion through,acouple of people that s.73 is going to approach us to come and talk to one of
our reference groups aboutthe health based targets. Are you interested in being involved?

s.73
From:s73 mailte>"3 ealth.gld.gov.au ]
Sent: 2014 1:00 PM
Tos-73

Subject: RE: Councillors hand fluoride decision to residents | Warwick Daily News

s.73

2
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Yes, we
noted that.
| guess It IS
Just a
poorly
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formatted
web page.
We will
looK |

s.73

N

NN

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

4
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Email: s.73 @health.qld.gov.au
Visit us on the web at: www.health.qldgov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.as

'l]' \ h s
J e
Eust-:-rrlers- first ldeas into action O Unlzash potential 'H’) Be courageous "‘“—‘d Empower peopla ’:m%fib Queensland

' Govemment

G real state. Great oppartunity.

From:s.73 mailto:s-73 gldwater.com.au ]
Sent: Friday, 2 May 2014 12:39 PM
To: s.73

Subject: FW: Councillors hand fluoride decision to residents | Warwick Daily News

s.73

You may already be aware of this. | don’t know if you want to take any steps to coriect the “myth” but it might be a
problem for you.

http://www.warwickdailynews.com.au/news/survey-to-decide-fluoride-debate/2245081/

s.73

st s s s she sk sk st e st sfe s sfe she sk sk sk e st s s s she sk sk sk sie st sfe sk sfe sk sk skt sie st sfe sk sl sk sk sk sk sk e sl sk s sk sk s sk s sk s sk sk sk skt st st s sk sl sk sk skt st sk ks skoskok

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidertial and for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it and you are not the intended
recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in errot.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited. The
information contained in this email, including any attachinent sent with it, may be subject to a statutory duty
of confidentiality if it relates to health service miatters,

If you are not the intended recipient(s); or if you have received this email in error, you are asked to
immediately notify the sender by telephone coiiect on Australia +61 1800 198 175 or by return email. You
should also delete this email, and any cepies, from your computer system network and destroy any hard
copies produced.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it;
any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or publication of this email is also prohibited.

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain malicious
software, Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the consequences if any person's computer
inadvertently suffers any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is infected with a virus, other
malicious computer programme or code that may occur as a consequence of receiving this email.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the
Queensland Government.

st s s s sfe sk sk st st st sfe s sfe she sk sk st sie st sfe s s sk sk sk st sie st sfe s s sk sk sk sk sk ste st s sk sk sk sk skt ste st s sk sk sk sk skt sk st s sk she sk sk skt sie st sfe sk sl sk sk skt st st sk sk soskoskoskokok
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From: s.73

To:

Cc:
Subject:
Date: Friday, 27 June 2014 8:57:00 AM
Attachments: imaae007.png

His.73

Thank-you for providing this progress report on the actions arising from the last round of fluoridation audits
undertaken by Queensland Health. We are pleased to note the progress made to date and look forward to the

next progress report. As discussed, we ask that this next report be submitted by COB Friday 29t of August 2014.

Also, please note that, in due course, Public Health Unit staff will likely wish to undertake follow-up audits of the
fluoride dosing facilities in question to verify progress and compliance.

Feel free to give me a call should you wish to discuss any of the above.

Regards,
s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer
Water Team

Health Protection Unit

Chief Health Officer Branch

Health Service and Clinical Innovation | Department of Health
Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street, Herston, Brisbane, 4006 | PO.Box 2368, Fortitudae Valley, 4006

t. 07 3328 9348

f. 54

eS-73 health.gld.gov.au

Out of hours number for Environmental Health: 18006-12% 962

Visit us on the web at: www.health.gld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.asp

s \
() D @)
Customers first ldeas into action Unieasirpatential Be courageous Empower peopls

A NN/

) Queensland
" Government

From:s.73 [mailto$:73 @seqwater.com.au]
Sent: ne 2014

To:s.73
Cc:
Su

HisS- 73

Please find/attached our progress report for the Fluoridation systems audit actions. Can you please distribute this
to the relevant staff in the Department of Health.

If you need anythirng further, | can be reached on the details below.
Thanks,s.73

s.73
Coordinator - DWQ Continuous Improvement

@ scawater COBO

117 Brisbane Street, | 305 | PO Box 16146, City East, QLD 4002
p 24| ms.73 | f (07) 3229 7926
€s.73 @seqw www.seqwater.com.au
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Please consider the environment before printing this email. It can take up to 13 litres of water to make one sheet of A4 paper.

Our head office has moved to Ipswich.

Please update your records to reflect our new office address:
117 Brishane Street, Ipswich Queensland 4305
PO-Box 16146, City East, Queensland 4002

Please-email reception@seqwater.com.au for any enguiries. ﬂ [
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s.73

From: Fluoride

Sent: Monday, 14 April 2014 9:22 AM

To: s.73 health.gld.gov.au)

Subject: FW: Seqwater - Response to the PHU fluoridation system audit recommendations
Attachments: 20140411 - Seqwater - Letter - Response to QH Fluoridation Audits.pdf; 20140318

Fluoridation Audit Actions - Register.pdf

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

€.s.73 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au
From:s '3 [ mailto:s-73 seqwater.com.au ]
Sent: Friday, 11 April 2014 1:45 PM

To: s.73

Cc:s’3

Subject: Seqwater - Response to the PHU fluoridation systemi-audit recommendations

s.73

Please find attached our response to the recommendations froim the Public Health Units’ recent fluoridation system
audits.

If you need anything further, | can be reached on the contact details below.

Regards,

s.13 Coordinator - DWQ Continuous Improvement

@ scawater HOHE

117 Brisbane Street, Ipswich, QLD, 4305 | PO Box 16146, City East, QLD 4002
p (07) 5656 3324 | ms.73 | f (07) 3229 7926
es.73 @segwater.com.au | w www.segwater.com.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email. It can take up to 13 litres of water to make one sheet of A4 paper.

Our head uflic moved to Ipswich.

Please update your records to reflect our new office address:

117 Brishane Street, Ipswich Queensland 4305
PO Box 16146, City East, Queensland 4002

Please email reception@seqwater.com.au for any enquiries.
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ABN 75 450 239 876

@ Seqwater PO Box 16146 | City East Qld 4002
p +617 30355500 | f +61 7 3229 7926
WATER FOR LIFE e communications@seqwater.com.au
w www.seqwater.com.au

Our Ref: D14/45916

11 April 2014

sS.73

Health Protection Unit
PO Box 2368
Fortitude Valley BC 4006

s.73
Dear

Re:  Queensland Health Audits of Seqwater’s Flucridation Systems

Seqwater participated in Queensland Health’s Public Health Unit audits of its fluoridation
systems during October — November 2013. Thank you far your.report following these audits,
which Seqwater received on 5 March 2014.

The audit report has been reviewed internally with relevant staff to develop actions which
respond to the audit recommendations. Where further investigation is required, and as
outlined in our action plan, Seqwater will canduct a corribination of workshops and task
relevant disciplines to review and respoend to the issues raised.

In accordance with the requirements of the report; please find enclosed our response to the
audit findings.

If any further information is required; | can be’contacted on telephone 07 5656 3324.
Yours sincerely

s.73

ter Quality

SOURCE SUPPLY
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Queensland Health Fluoride Audit 2014

Recommendations

Recommendation No 1 specific to Mt Crosby WTPs

(m-

Finalise and implement the recommendations from the design review of Mt Crosby fluoride dosing system-to erihance control over the fluoridation
process and ensure the dosing system is fully compliant with the requirements of the regulation arid the code. When complete, deliver appropriate
training and other resources as required informing all operations and maintenance staff of thanges to the dosing system. Amend all documentation
related to the O&M of the fluoride dosing system in accordance with the changes made to the dosing systen:

b) Give consideration to more frequent refresher training to O&M staff focussing on the opeiation of the automatic fluoride dosing system and relevant
emergency response plans.

Recommendation 1 - Actions

The Mt Crosby incident investigation report-covers these three.issues. A detailed review of the Mt Crosby incident will be carried out and facilitated by an
external resource. Details on the scope-ofwark to be undertaken by this review include:

Action Description . \ D Action status
)\

1. Incident Alert to be'raised — investigation-to be carried out with the nominated Team
a. s73 Complete
nominated as Incident Team.
b. Phone hook-up tooutline Issue and Scope
c. Suggest the engagement of independent HAZOP facilitator — allow key personnel nominated to have
their business risk hats on. Report to include ‘current state’ and ‘improvement plan’

SOURCE SUPPLY

D@H%L Mﬁ:@@@l RT1 Document 127



§9 seqwater

WATER FOR LIFE

Action Description Action status

2. Collation of all data relevant to Fluoride system on site — Stage 1 and Current State. Underway/Partially completed
a. Plans, Procedures, P&ID, PLC Code, etc.
b. Maintenance Plans & recent history of on-site maintenance actions.
c. Site familiarisation.

3. Engagement of Facilitator Complete
a. Brief required including scope of workshop
b. Funding (to be provided by AC&S)
c¢. Panel Engagement for Facilitator

4. HAZOP Workshop Scheduled for 16 April 2014
a. Estimated full day workshop — engagement of nominated list above (-73 to'determine his participation
along withs.73
b. Location — Mt Crosby/Margaret St/Icon — if the team require-an understanding of the system, perhaps
this would be part of the prep works
c. Report on Workshop by Facilitator outlining current state with recommeidations for improvement —
action plan including timelines & responsibilities.

d. Business Case for Implementing recommendatiors To be determined

SOURCE SUPPLY
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Recommendation No 2 specific to Esk, Lowood, Kalbar & Mt Crosby WTPs

Issue Description A
a) Harmonise critical limits detailed or set in SCADA, SOPs, & Emergency response. Once complete, communicate this infeimation to relevant O&M and
systems staff.

¢) Ensure the procedure for taking external quality control samples at all sites complies with the requirements of the regulation.

Recommendation 2 - Actions

Actlon Description << 2 \\" Action status

The critical limit values in SCADA, SOPs including linkage tc.emergericy response for Esk Lowood Kalbar | Review has commenced due to be
& Mt Crosby is underway. This issue will be managed & documented via cur internal Issue Management | complete 30 June 2014
System Q Pulse Issue No 3263.

b) Aninternal review of adherence to the recording requir:r;\enis in underway. Q Pulse issue No 9 May Review has commenced due to be
2014 complete 9 May 2014

¢) Aninternal audit will be under taken reinforcing the method outlined in LAB-00181 this will be followed | Audit completed. Refresher training

up with bi monthly review by our labcoratory services team to ensure method is being followed. completed.
Operators are now carrying out sampling
in accordance with the Regulation S13(3).

SOURCE SUPPLY
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Recommendation No 3 applicable to ALL fluoride dosing facilities operated by Seqwater.

Issue Description

§9 seqwater

WATER FOR LIFE

a) Investigate avenues for resolving difficulties with problematic online analyser probes whenever they occur.

b) Develop a central, on site repository for records relating to work undertaken by third parties or maintenance staff. Ensure records created by
maintenance crews and third parties are sufficiently comprehensive such that operations staff are fully aware of work undeitaken on the dosing

systems and the results of any checks undertaken.

¢) Identify and remedy administrative and organisational obstacles to implementing recommended carrective actions in a timely manner.

d) Share audit findings and the recommendations detailed above with staff resporssible for the operation of the fluoride dosing facilities across

Seqwaters operations.

Recommendation 3 - Actions

| Action Description .~ )] N\~~~ _ __________ __ Actionstatus_______ |

a) A detailed investigation into the reliability of the Fiucride Prokes is'under way, this includes a trial of
alternative analysers running in parallel for comparative purposes to determine reliability of alternate
probes.

Investigation underway. Trial of alternate
analyser is underway at North Pine.

b) A review of the records located-in our asset warks module of CIS is being carried out to ensure third
party records are appropriate especiaily in relation to any works carried out on the Fluoride dosing
equipment.

Due to be completed 30 June 2014. Q
Pulse Issue No 3263.

¢) Review and report antthe close out process for issue raised in our issue management system Q Pulse

A mechanism to ensure this occurs is in
place provided corrective action are
recorded in Q-Pulse (Issue No 3263).

SOURCE SUPPLY
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Action Description Action status
d) Develop a toolbox talk outlining any changes or improvements that have been made to the operation of | Consolidation of the outcomes outlined
the Fluoride dosing equipment in relation to these audit findings. in response to these recommendations

will be incorporated into a Tool box talk
and distributed across operational
teams: Expected date June 2014.

Requlatory Compliance matters

The following actions have been developed in relation to the compliance maters raised in the \audit findings:

V N
Issue Description Action Requirete Action status

a) Although the mixer in the mixing tank was not operational in Review interlocks in April 2014 Confirmed interlocks are in
the immediate lead up to the incident, the fluoride dosing place 2nd challenge place for the motor.
system continued to dose. test records ’ A review of a way to

interlock the paddle on the
mixing shaft is being
considered in the HAZOP
scheduled for 16 April 2014.

b) Operators at the Esk, Lowood, Kalbar and Mount Crosby Review application of | April 2014 Audit completed. Refresher
water treatment plants took quality contrcl samples in quick LAB-00181 at these training completed.
succession rather than taking one saniple and splitting as per sites. Operators are now carrying
the requirements of S13(3) of the'Regulation. Conduct refresher out sampling in accordance

P training. with the regulation.
SOURCE SUPPLY
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From: s.73

To:

Cc:

Subject: FW: Fluoride audit action progress report

Date: Friday, 20 June 2014 11:48:00 AM

Attachments: Letter - Department of Health - Fluoridation System Audit Actions - Proaress (sianed AC).pdf

20140617 Fluoridation Audit Actions - Reaister_Final.pdf
Appendix 1 Comparison of Fluroidation Limits in SOPs and SCADA Final.pdf
imaae007.pna

Hi everyone,

Please see attached for a progress report from Seqwater regarding the status of the actions arising from the last
round of fluoridation audits. For your reference, the audit actions register is categorised into four sections:

- Recommendations and actions specific to the Mt Crosby WTPs

- Recommendations and actions specific to the Esk, Lowood, Kalbar & Mt Cresby WTPs

- Recommendations and actions applicable to ALL fluoride dosing facilities operated fy Seqwater
- Regulatory compliance matters

The Water Team is happy to continue coordinating communications between tive PHUs and Seqwater on this
particular matter, so don’t hesitate to contact me should you have any questions or comments about the report
that you would like conveyed to Seqwater.

Regards,
s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer
Water Team

Health Protection Unit

Chief Health Officer Branch

Health Service and Clinical Innovation | Department of Health
Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street, Herston, Brisbane, 4C06 | PO Box 2368, Fortitude Valley, 4006

t. 07 3328 9348

f. 07 3328 9354

e.S.73 d@health.qld.gov.au

Ou number for Environmental Health: 2300 128 962

Visit us on the web at: www.health.gld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.asp

) ) Q
Customers first ldegs.inta-action Unlzash potential === Be CoOUrageous Empower people
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Queensland
Government

Froms.73 {mailto:s.73 @seqwater.com.au]
Sen
To:s.73

Cc:
Subject: Fiuoride audit-acticn progress report

His.73

Please find attached our progress report for the Fluoridation systems audit actions. Can you please distribute this
to the relevant staff in the Department of Health.

If you need anything further, | can be reached on the details below.
Thanks,S-73

s.73
Coordinator - DWQ Continuous Improvement
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ABN 75 450 239 876

@ Seqwater PO Box 16146 | City East QId 4002
p +617 30355500 | f+61 7 3229 7926
WATER FOR LIFE e communications@seqwater.com.au
W Www.seqwater.com.au

Our Ref: DWQ:20140619
19 June 2014

Ms Dorothy Vicenzino
Executive Director
Health Protection Unit
PO Box 2368

Fortitude Valley BC 4006

Dear Dorothy
Re: Department of Health Fluoridation Systems Audits — Progress Report

Seqwater participated in Queensland Health’s Public Health Unit audits of its fluoridation
systems during October — November 2013 and received the report on the audit findings on 5
March 2014.

Seqgwater has made significant progress on completing the actions which address the
findings in the audit report. In accordance with a request from the Public Health Units
concerned, please find enclosed a progress report which provides detail on the status of
these actions.

If you would like to meet to discuss our progress in response to these findings please advise,
and we will arrange a meeting at your earliest convenience.

If any further information is required, please contact Daniel Healy, Coordinator — Drinking
Water Quality Continuous Improvement, telephone 07 5656 3324.

Yours sincerely

Arran Canning
Manager Water Quality & Environment

SOURCE SUPPLY
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Queensland Health Fluoride Audit 2014 - Progress Report No. 1

Recommendations

Recommendation No 1 specific to Mt Crosby WTPs

Issue Description

a) Finalise and implement the recommendations from the design review of Mt Crosby fluoride dosing system to enhance control over the fluoridation
process and ensure the dosing system is fully compliant with the requirements of the regulation and the code. When complete, deliver appropriate
training and other resources as required informing all operations and maintenance staff of changes to the dosing system. Amend all documentation
related to the O&M of the fluoride dosing system in accordance with the changes made to the dosing system.

b) Give consideration to more frequent refresher training to O&M staff focussing on the operation of the automatic fluoride dosing system and relevant
emergency response plans.

c) Report on the longer term efficacy of works undertaken to rectify faults with the dust management system at Mt Crosby.

Recommendation 1 - Actions

The Mt Crosby incident investigation report covers these three issues. A detailed review of the Mt Crosby incident will be carried out and facilitated by an

external resource. Details on the scope of work to be undertaken by this review include:

Action outlined below is in response to Issues (a) & (c) above Action status
1. Incident Alert to be raised — investigation to be carried out with the nominated Team
a. Ewan McPherson, Dapo Kufeji, Kevin Crandon, John Fishburn, Rob Townsley, Yang Zang, Graham | Complete — A teleconference was held
Norman, Brian Hester & Shaun Corrie nominated as Incident Team. involving a multi-discipline incident
b. Phone hook-up to outline Issue and Scope team. Included:
c. Suggest the engagement of independent HAZOP facilitator — allow key personnel nominated to ® An outline of the issue and scope of
have their business risk hats on. Report to include ‘current state’ and ‘improvement plan’ the detailed review of the Mt
SOURCE SUPPLY
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Action outlined below is in response to Issues (a) & (c) above

§9 seqwater

WATER FOR LIFE

Action status

Crosby incident

® Engagement of an independent
HAZOP facilitator

® Report to include ‘current state’
and ‘improvement plan’

2. Collation of all data relevant to Fluoride system on site — Stage 1 and Current State.
a. Plans, Procedures, P&ID, PLC Code, etc.
b. Maintenance Plans & recent history of on-site maintenance actions.
c. Site familiarisation.

3. Engagement of Facilitator
a. Brief required including scope of workshop
b. Funding (to be provided by AC&S)
c. Panel Engagement for Facilitator

4. HAZOP Workshop
a. Estimated full day workshop — engagement of nominated list above (Rob to determine his
participation along with Yang)
b. Location — Mt Crosby/Margaret St/Icon — if the team require an understanding of the system,
perhaps this would be part of the prep works
c. Report on Workshop by Facilitator outlining current state with recommendations for
improvement — action plan including timelines & responsibilities.

Complete — A workshop was held on 16
April 2014, facilitated by AECOM. The
workshop report identified and
prioritised improvements to the Mt
Crosby system including:

* Improvements to the batching and
service water system including
operation, and interlocks

e O&M Manual and SOP revisions

e QOperator/Maintenance staff
training

® Dust monitoring and extraction
system improvements

d. Business Case for Implementing recommendations

Complete — A business case has been
prepared based on the
recommendations of the HAZOP
workshop and Mt Crosby ICAM
investigation report. The business case
was approved in May and the project is
now in the procurement/design phase.

SUPPLY
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Action outlined below is in response to Issues (a) & (c) above

§9 seqwater

WATER FOR LIFE
Action status

Implementation and commissioning is
due to be completed by 31 December
2014.

The project upgrades the batching and
service water system including
operation and interlocks, and provides
site-specific training.

Action below is in response to issue (b) above

Action status

a) Review current level of refresher training being delivered across Seqwater

In Progress — the development of a
revised refresher training package is
underway, the delivery of this revised
package will be carried out by September
2014 and will be included as a 2 year
refresher in affected O&M employees
TNAs.

SOURCE
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Recommendation No 2 specific to Esk, Lowood, Kalbar & Mt Crosby WTPs

§9 seqwater
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Issue Description

a) Harmonise critical limits detailed or set in SCADA, SOPs, & Emergency response. Once complete, communicate this information to relevant 0O&M and

systems staff.

b) Undertake a review to identify compliance with existing SOPs, particularly with respect to recording requirements.

c) Ensure the procedure for taking external quality control samples at all sites complies with the requirements of the regulation.

Recommendation 2 - Actions

Action status

Action Description
b) Harmonise critical limit values in SCADA, SOPs including linkage to emergency response for Esk, Lowood
Kalbar & Mt Crosby. This issue will be managed & documented via our internal Issue Management
System Q Pulse Issue No 3263.

Complete — A review involving multi-
disciplined team is complete. The
findings of this review are in Appendix 1.

c) Aninternal review of adherence to the recording requirements in underway. Q Pulse issue No 9 May
2014

Complete — A review by the Business
Systems & Support team was completed
on 9 May 2014. Generally, reporting was
found to be performed well.

However a potential gap was identified
with regards to ease of access to
hardness records for those sites where
water softening is required.

SOURCE SUPPLY
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Therefore it was determined that
laboratory data for hardness would be
reported to Operations staff by
exception reporting via the LIMs
database, e.g. a email will be sent when
an exceedance occurs.

Additionally, both laboratory results &
maintenance records will be available to
Operations staff within 48 hours by
request through Scientific Services and
Data Systems (SS&DS) & the CIS
Maintenance management teams.

d) Aninternal audit will be undertaken reinforcing the method outlined in LAB-00181 this will be followed | Complete — An audit and refresher

up with bi monthly review by our laboratory services team to ensure method is being followed. training has been completed by the
SS&DS team. The procedure LAB-00181
complies with the sampling requirements
in the Fluoride Code of Practice.
Operators at Mt Crosby, Lowood, Esk,
and Kalbar are now carrying out sampling
in accordance with the Regulation $13(3)
and LAB-00181.
The ‘Refresher’ training package for the
Operator Laboratory Techniques has
been updated to include sampling
method and the determination of
fluoride by ISE.

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
maintenance crews and third parties are sufficiently comprehensive such that operations staff are fully aware of work undertaken on the dosing

systems and the results of any checks undertaken.

c) Identify and remedy administrative and organisational obstacles to implementing recommended corrective actions in a timely manner.

d) Share audit findings and the recommendations detailed above with staff responsible for the operation of the fluoride dosing facilities across

Seqwaters operations.

Recommendation 3 - Actions

Action Description

Action status

a) A detailed investigation into the reliability of the Fluoride Probes is underway, this includes a trial of
alternative analysers running in parallel for comparative purposes to determine reliability of alternate
probes.

Complete — Asset Maintenance have
found that a recent change of supplier
for the probes has improved level of
service now with local technical support
available.

Ongoing — The Trial of alternate analyser
along side the current analyser is
underway at North Pine and will
continue for an additional 12 months.
This will include a detailed assessment of
reliability and maintenance
requirements. The results will inform the
asset renewals process.

SOURCE SUPPLY
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Action Description Action status
b) A review of the records located in our asset works module of CIS is being carried out to ensure third Complete — Confirmed that all history
party records are available especially in relation to any works carried out on the Fluoride dosing and remarks are entered into CIS where
equipment. they are attached to the work order

along with any reports on the work
completed. Information can be provided
from CIS on request.

c) Review and report on the close out process for issues raised in our issue management system Q Pulse Complete — Confirmed that all issues
correctly raised on the Q Pulse system
are reviewed and closed out once all the
actions are completed. Notifications are
generated for over due issues and their
corrective actions.

d) Develop a toolbox talk outlining any changes or improvements that have been made to the operation of | Complete — A Tool box talk which

the Fluoride dosing equipment in relation to these audit findings. includes feedback on the audit findings
has been prepared and distributed across
operational teams.
A second toolbox will be held once the
improvements identified in this report
have been completed

SOURCE SUPPLY
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Regulatory Compliance matters

The following actions have been developed in relation to the compliance maters raised in the audit findings:

Issue Description Action Required Target Date Action status

a) Although the mixer in the mixing tank was not operational in Review interlocks in April 2014 Complete - A way to interlock a mixing
the immediate lead up to the incident, the fluoride dosing place and challenge failure has been identified. The pump
system continued to dose. test records motor will be interlocked to fluoridation

plant operation; individual (electrical)
current monitoring of each mixer will allow
the plant to fault and shutdown if either of
the two mixers fault.

The Mt Crosby Tank Mixer interlock is
complete and is currently configured so
that a “Tank Mixer Fault” is triggered in 3
seconds if tank mixer is being told to run by
the PLC and the current draw is zero.

b) Operators at the Esk, Lowood, Kalbar and Mount Crosby Review application of | April 2014 Complete — Refer to the Recommendation
water treatment plants took quality control samples in quick LAB-00181 at these No. 2 (c) above.
succession rather than taking one sample and splitting as per sites. Conduct Operators are now carrying out sampling in
the requirements of S13(3) of the Regulation. refresher training. accordance with the regulation and the

internal procedure, LAB-00181.
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Comparison of Action & Critical Limits provided by SOPs, SCADA and Emergency Plans

Inconsistencies are highlighted in yellow

WTP Measure SOP (Fluoride CCP Procedure) SCADA
Mt Crosby (EB/WB) Critical Limit
High/high 1.20mg/L 1.20mg/L — 6 minutes
Inlet — 6 minutes
Action Limit
High 0.90mg/L — 60 minutes 0.90mg/L — 60 minutes
Low 0.70mg/L — 60 minutes 0.70mg/L — 60 minutes
Kalbar WTP Critical Limit
High/high 1.20mg/L 1.20mg/L -
Inlet — 15 minutes _
Outlet — 2 minutes Outlet - 2 minutes
Action Limit
High 0.90mg/L — 60 minutes 0.90mg/L —
Low 0.70mg/L — 60 minutes Inlet - 0.10mg/L - 30 minutes
Outlet 0.6mg/L — 30Minutes
Lowood Critical Limit
High/high 1.20mg/L 1.20mg/L
Inlet — 15 minutes
Outlet — 2 minutes Outlet — 2 minutes
Action Limit
High 0.90mg/L — 60 minutes 0.90mg/L —
Low 0.70mg/L — 60 minutes 0.70mg/L—
Esk Critical Limit
High/high 1.20mg/L 1.20mg/L -2'minutes
Inlet — 6 minutes
Action Limit
High 0.90mg/L — 60 minutes 0.90mg/L — 6Olminutes
Low 0.70mg/L — 60 minutes 0.70mg/L — BO'minutes

The SCADA set points for target, action and critical limits are consistent or exceed “for even tighter control”
_ of the requirements of the Fluoridation CCP Procedure with the exception of the Low

Action Limits at Kalbar WTP (highlighted in yellow). The reasons for the misalignment between SOP Action Limits

and SCADA settings is that some fluoride analysers have been problematic at low levels and to avoid the






persistence of these alarms they have been set well below the prescribed minimum limit which varied at each
site. No critical limits are prescribed in the Emergency Response Plan.

The CCP lower Action limits are to be reviewed by each WTP HACCP team at the next CCP Limits Review meeting
but will remain in the SCADA with the lower limit TBD based on individual plant sensitivities; these spurious

alarms have not provided a material control of the risk of under dosing as this is picked up via other routine
checks.

Screen shots of the SCADA set points

aLeDABEH

D | n e e e ka2 | o K| 5 s | 55 G| et

awn EN Ders Twds Bwots Yew Lol Adon Cofous teb

| AL am D DE @D W[ 8w e oo | a2 5 sy |29 Q| o |
EB  Fluoridation East EB  Fluoridation West
Flow Cereroliars Flow Controfiers
Status. Swtus
Trena on_ - _ Tena |
‘Plant/ Adtion | GCP [DOSING SYSTEM STATUS | Rumning | _Prant/ Action ICCP |
Pumps Flow Dasing Pumps Flow
2 Post Anahysers
Vs i Fhaande
Waste Storage
Tark
ECZETS o
324738 30 |WE Risng Main Flusidated Totsl 1132450 ML
773 ot ; Post Resenvoir
ok | 57 mgL ©HI [_oremoL
Rt 0 TRk Mok C PN i REE S B @ Ml RN 8 v WE Rising Main Flow Primary 1074 TLs () Maim Flow > 5% cH2
EB Rising Msin Flow Secondsry 36993 Us (@ Flow Swilch W Rising Main Flow Secandary  W756Ls @ Flaw Switch
[ == {Ee— [AetBow). S—
E
- . =
— Plant, Action & CGP Alarms - East Bank Fluoride — Plant, Action & CGP Alarms - Fiuoride
Parameter Type  value Desiredlmit  Actwallimit  TimeOelay  Staws  Alamm inhibi Type  vaue Desireauma  ActuaiLima Tene Delay  Staws &l innibit
Fiuoride Fcion 0760l Fgn 030 molL Bms O ‘o] Fuoide Ao 075mgl  High 080 ol 60 mins w) (o}
Low 070 mgl ®ms O o ow 70 moL 50 mins - o
cee oTamgL __ rgh 120 mat. Smins. a O ccp 07SmaL__High 1.20 mglL S mins O O
Honeyweil G [ o0 e L —— 3 g Honeywell [ Gieetd | 0e472s NN Seeno | [ me [ swz [ g






T TR

o
LT SE T e T T L Yl s | CEr DRI LY ]

[ o] Booriah Kalbar WP Fluoride

o o

|t ] @ | sme | s | | oo | o | comtin| o | | T |
0= T i T [ Spauntin ot
IIF

o~ 3 &







OIE O TR © F N O N—

et st restoporuny.

) Queensland

vernment





@ seawater CIOG

117 Brisbane Street, | 305 | PO Box 16146, City East, QLD 4002
p 24|ms.73 | f (07) 3229 7926
es.73 seqw www.seqwater.com.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email. It can take up to 13 litres of water to make one sheet of A4 paper.

Our head office has moved to Ipswich. N .

Please update your records to reflect our new office address: i ‘ & a'l
117 Brishane Street, Ipswich Queensland 4305 " N
PO Box 16146, City East, Queensland 4002 e =8

Please-email reception@seqwater.com.au for any enquiries. “ =
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ABN 75450 239 876

«’ Seqwater PO Box 16146 | City East QId 4002
p +617 3035 5500 | f+61 7 3229 7926
WATER FOR LIFE e communications@seqwater.com.au
W Www.seqwater.com.au

Our Ref: DWQ:20140619

19 June 2014

s.73

Executive Director
Health Protection Unit
PO Box 2368

Fortitude Valley BC 4006

Dears 3
Re: Department of Health Fluoridation Systems Audits — Progress Report

Seqwater participated in Queensland Health's Publiz Health Unit audits of its fluoridation
systems during October — November 2013 and received the report on the audit findings on 5
March 2014.

Seqgwater has made significant progress on completing ti¢ actions which address the
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

If any further information is required, please contact "2 ~ Coordinator — Drinking
Water Quality Continuous Iniprovernent, ielephone 07 5656 3324.

Yours sincerely
sS.73

Manager Water Quality & Environment

SOURCE ' SUPPLY
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Queensland Health Fluoride Audit 2014 - Progress Report No. 1

Recommendations

Recommendation No 1 specific to Mt Crosby WTPs

Issue Description ‘A‘/_

Finalise and implement the recommendations from the design review of Mt Crosby fluoride dosing system to eiithance coritrol over the fluoridation
process and ensure the dosing system is fully compliant with the requirements of the regulation and the code. When complete, deliver appropriate
training and other resources as required informing all operations and maintenance staff of changes'to the dosiing system. Amend all documentation
related to the O&M of the fluoride dosing system in accordance with the changes made to the dosing system:-

b) Give consideration to more frequent refresher training to O&M staff focussing on the opeiation of thie automatic fluoride dosing system and relevant
emergency response plans.

Recommendation 1 - Actions

The Mt Crosby incident investigation report-covers these three issues. A detailed review of the Mt Crosby incident will be carried out and facilitated by an
external resource. Details on the scope ofwark to be undertaken by this review include:
Action outlined below is in respor : ) Action status

o\

1. Incident Alert to be raised — investigation-to be carried out with the nominated Team
a. Complete — A teleconference was held
edasin cident Team. involving a multi-discipline incident
b. Phone hook-up tooutline Issue and Scope team. Included:
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
HAZCP facilitator

e CReport toinclude ‘current state’
and”’improvement plan’

2. Collation of all data relevant to Fluoride system on site — Stage 1 and Current State. Complete — A workshop was held on 16
a. Plans, Procedures, P&ID, PLC Code, etc. April 2014, facilitated by AECOM. The
b. Maintenance Plans & recent history of on-site maintenance actions. workshop report identified and
c. Site familiarisation. [ prioritised improvements to the Mt
| Crosby system including:
3. Engagement of Facilitator <’ ® |mprovements to the batching and
a. Brief required including scope of workshop service water system including
b. Funding (to be provided by AC&S) operation, and interlocks
c. Panel Engagement for Facilitator ® O&M Manual and SOP revisions
e QOperator/Maintenance staff
4. HAZOP Workshop training
a. Estimated full day workshop — engagement of iiominated list above (R determine his ® Dust monitoring and extraction
participation along with Ya system improvements

b. Location — Mt Crosby/Margaret St/Icon — if the team-reguire an understanding of the system,
perhaps this would be part of the prep works

c. Report on Workshop by Facilitator outlining current state with recommendations for
improvement — action-plan.including timelines & responsibilities.

d. Business Case for Implementing recommendations Complete — A business case has been
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
operation and.interlocks, and provides
site-specific tiaining.

Action below is in response to issue (b) above V ‘ Action status
A D

a) Review current level of refresher training being delivered across Segwater In Progress — the development of a
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

Issue Description N

a) Harmonise critical limits detailed or set in SCADA, SOPs, & Emergency response. Once complete, communicate this infermation to relevant O&M and
systems staff.

Recommendation 2 - Actions

Action Description << 2 \\" Action status

b) Harmonise critical limit values in SCADA, SOPs includingiinkage to emergency response for Esk, Lowood | Complete — A review involving multi-
Kalbar & Mt Crosby. This issue will be managed & documented via our.-internal Issue Management disciplined team is complete. The

System Q Pulse Issue No 3263. findings of this review are in Appendix 1.

c) Aninternal review of adherence to thie'recording requirements in underway. Q Pulse issue No 9 May Complete — A review by the Business

2014 Systems & Support team was completed
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
exceptionreporting via the LIMs
database, e.g.-a email will be sent when
an exceedarnce occurs.

Adgditionally, both laboratory results &
maintanance records will be available to
" Operations staff within 48 hours by
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

up with bi monthly review by our laboratory services team ta einsure method'is heing followed. training has been completed by the
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

b) Develop a central, on site repository for records relating to work undertaken by third parties or maintenance statf. Ensure records created by
maintenance crews and third parties are sufficiently comprehensive such that operations staff are fully aware of werk urdeitaken on the dosing

systems and the results of any checks undertaken.

c) Identify and remedy administrative and organisational obstacles to implementing recommended cerrective actions in a timely manner.

d) Share audit findings and the recommendations detailed above with staff resporsible for the operation of the fluoride dosing facilities across

Seqwaters operations.

Recommendation 3 - Actions

| Action Description .~ )) \\~~ _ _________ ___ Actionstatus _____________|

a) A detailed investigation into the reliability of the Fiucride Prokes isunderway, this includes a trial of
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
from CISorirequest.
c) Review and report on the close out process for issues raised in our issue management system Q Pulse Complete - Confirmed that all issues
correctly raised on the Q Pulse system
are reviewed and closed out once all the
actions are completed. Notifications are
generated for over due issues and their
_ corrective actions.
d) Develop a toolbox talk outlining any changes or improvements that have been made-tcthe operation of | Complete — A Tool box talk which

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

..

Issue Description Action Required Target Date

a) Although the mixer in the mixing tank was not operational in Review interlocks in April 2014 Complete - A way to interlock a mixing
the immediate lead up to the incident, the fluoride dosing place and challenge | failure has been identified. The pump
system continued to dose. test records motor will be interlocked to fluoridation

piant operation; individual (electrical)
current rnonitoring of each mixer will allow
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
o N the PLC and the current draw is zero.

b) Operators at the Esk, Lowood, Kalbar and Mount Crosby Review application of | April 2014 Complete — Refer to the Recommendation
water treatment plants took quality control samples in quick LAB-00181 at these No. 2 (c) above.
succession rather than taking one sample and-splitting as per sites. Conduct Operators are now carrying out sampling in
the requirements of S13(3) of the Regulaticn. refresher training. accordance with the regulation and the

_ internal procedure, LAB-00181.

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
High 0.90mg/L — 60 minutes | 0.90mg/L — 60 minutes
Low 0.70mg/L — 60 minutes 0.70rng/L — 60 minutes
Kalbar WTP Critical Limit
High/high 1.20mg/L 1.20mg/L -
Inlet — 15 minutes
Outlet — 2 minutes Qutlet - 2 minutes
Action Limit
High 0.90mg/L — 60 minutes 0.90mg/L —
Low 0.70img/L — 60 minutes Inlet - 0.10mg/L - 30 minutes
Outlet 0.6mg/L — 30Minutes
Lowood Critical Limit N\
High/high 1.20mg/L 1.20mg/L
Inlet— 1S minutes
| Outlet —Z minutes Outlet — 2 minutes
Action Limit
High 0.90mg/L — 60 minutes 0.90mg/L —
Low 0.70mg/L — 60 minutes 0.70mg/L—
Esk Critical Limit
High/high 1.20mg/L 1.20mg/L —2'minutes
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

Sch. 3(10)(1)()
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s.73

From:

To:

Subject: Response to the PHU fluoridation system audit recommendations
Date: Monday, 14 April 2014 9:34:00 AM

Attachments: image007.png

His-73

Just acknowledging receipt of the response.

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer
Water Team

Health Protection Unit

Chief Health Officer Branch

Health Service and Clinical Innovation | Department of Health
Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street, Herston, Brisbane, 4006 | PO Box 2368, Fortitude, Valley, 4006

t. 07 3328 9348

f. 4

e.S:73 ®health.qld.gov

Out of hours number for Environmental Health: 1800 128 962

Visit us on the web at: www.health.gld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulatio:n.asp

@ t) @
: Customers first Ideas into action Unlzash potential Be couragenus Empower peopla

" Government

From:s.73 [mailto:s.73 @seqwater.coni.au]

Sen
To:s.73

Cc:
Su

s.73

Please find attached our response to the-recommendations from the Public Health Units’ recent fluoridation
system audits.

If you need anything further, | can.be reached on the contact details below.

Regards,s.73

s.73 Coordinator - DWQ Continuous Improvement
seaqwaler ol f | : |

6 'L] WATER =GR LIFE HZ u N

117 Brisbane Street, | 4305 | PO Box 16146, City East, QLD 4002

p (07) 5656 3324 | ms.73 | f (07) 3229 7926

€573 @seqw w www.seqwater.com.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email. It can take up to 13 litres of water to make one sheet of A4 paper.
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Our head office has moved to Ipswich.

Please update your records to reflect our new office address:
117 Brishane Street, |pswich Queensland 4305
PO-Box 16148, City East, Queensland 4002

Please email reception@seqwater.com.au for any enguiries. “ i
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(21/07/2014)5'73 Re: Mt Crosby Water Treatment Plant (WTP) fluoride dosing incident Page 1

From: s.73
To:
Date: 8/8/2013 1:10 pm
Subject: Re: Mt Crosby Water Treatment Plant (WTP) fluoride dosing incident
s.73
Much obliged. Not really something that requires any changes in the code, but I suspect that
Seqwater may have to consider why their al d not activate when fluoridated water above their
critical limits was being produced. I'm suresR3 ill chase this up, and it is good that the fluoride

audits are coming up.

s.73

Director, Water Program

Environmental Health Regulation and Standards
Health Protection Unit

Department of Health

Ph. (07) 3328 9345

Fax (
s.73

s.73 Dhealth.gld.gov.au

http://www.health.gld.gov.au/

Level 1, Building 1

Corporate Office Facility (CHO)

15 Butterfield Street,

Herston, 4029

PO Box 2368, Fortitude Valley BC, 4006

Out of hours number for water quality issues: 1800-128 962

n 8/08/2013 at 11:59 am, in message <52038839.EEA5.0096.0@health.gld.gov.au>, s.73
s.73 wrote:
Hellos.73
We have followed up the incident/with .73 , Manager Water Quality and Environment (SEQ Water)

about the above incident.

Overall the released water to-the.community had a concentration of fluoride in the blended water (calculated) to
have peaked at approxirately 1.45mg/L. By 9.30 pm on the Friday, the concentrations of fluoride being
supplied from the reservoirs had reduced to 0.9 mg/L.

The incident was reported tc. OWSR at 7:46pm on 2/8/2013 followed up by another notification at 8:24 pm.
Queensland Urban Utilities wasalso advised on the same evening.

Not consider¢d a risk to public health nor breach of of the Fluoride Legislation as the fluoride concentration of
the water released into the distribution system was calculated to have been below 1.5mg/L.

SEQ water is continuing with it's investigation andS-73  has asked them to provide a copy of the investigation
report and we will follow up from there regarding cause and response measures.

I notice that the incident was also reported in the Qld Times yesterday. Other actions include we will follow up
with OWSR about notifying to QH.

ta

s.73
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s.73

s.73
From:
Sent: Friday, 17 January 2014 4:57 PM
To: s.73 aterQuality
Subject: Fwd: Seqwater Mt Crosby Fluoride report
Attachments: Incident Investigation Report MtCrosby EB WTP High fluoride Aug 13 FINAL.pdf
Categories: Arron
s.73

Director, Water Program
Environmental Health Regulation and Standards
Health Protection Unit
Department of Health
Ph. (07) 3328 9345
Fax (07) 3328 9354
Mob.s.73
s.73 health.gld.gov.au
http://www.health.gld.gov.au/
Level 1, Building 1
Corporate Office Facility (CHO)
15 Butterfield Street,
Herston, 4029
PO Box 2368, Fortitude Valley BC, 4006
Out of hours number for water quality issues: 1800 128 962

>>> S73 seqwater.com.ay > 17/01/2014 3:41 pm >>>
His.73

Please find attached the final fluoride report for Mt Crosby.
I'll provide a status update by mid nextweek.
Also, could you please forward onto Ramu.

Regards,
s.73

Froms.73

Se 7, 2014 02:02 PM E. Australia St andard Time
Tos73

Subject:

This email, including any attachments, may contain confidential or legally privileged information for the sole use of the intended recipient. Any
review, use, distribution, or disclosure by others is strictly prohibited. Receipt of this email by anyone other than the intended recipient is not
intended to, and does not, waive legal privilege or confidentiality. This email and any attachments are also subject to copyright. No part of them is
to be reproduced, adapted or transmitted without the written permission of Queensland Bulk Water Supply Authority (trading as Seqwater). If you
are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and delete all copies of this message from your system.

1
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Incident Investigation Report
Mt Crosby East Bank WTP High fluoride 2AUG13

OCA ID: 27401
Severity Level: Level 3
Report date: 2 September 2013

ICAM Investigation Team .73
Lead ICAM Investigator

ICAM Facilitator

Maintenance Supervisor

Principal Facilities Planning

Technical Specialist — Drinking WQ

({ /D

seqwater sy

" WATER FOR LIFE
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Distribution list

Alex Fisher General Manager Operations, Treated Water
Dan Spiller General Manager APDD
Brett Myatt Manager, Supply (Treated Water), Cenitral

Shaun Corrie

Coordinator, Water Treatment-Central

Jason Boldeman

Incident and Security Management Coordinator

This document is the property of Seqwater and its issue Is controlled.

The information contained herein may not be disclosed in whole or in part, either verbally or
in writing, without the prior consent of Seqwater.
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Incident description

Location: Mt Crosby East Bank Water Treatment Plant, 800 Mt Crosby Road, Mt
Croshby

Time: 14:40EST

Date: Friday, 2 August 2013

Description of incident:

Mt Crosby Cameron’s Hill 2 treated water main exceeded reguiaied limit of 1.5mg/L
fluoride for >2 minutes.

Investigation found that:

- afault had occurred in the fluoride dosing equiprnent at Mt Crosby Eastbank
WTP which had resulted in a large amount of solid sodium fluorosilicate building
up in the mixing tank;

- During cleanout of these solids from the tank, tihe’ dosing line (260 metres in
length) unintentionally had an amount of solid'sodium fluorosilicate introduced
into it.

- Upon restart of the dosing system, this solidg sodium fluorosilicate was essentially
gradually dosed which eventuated in a higher than usual concentration of fluoride
in the treated water downstream of the Cameron’s Hill Reservoirs.

It is important to understand the following context to the incident in order to
understand this brief descripiion of incident.

Context to incident:

Due to the limitation in-the original variable concentration control system design, it
had been normalto have periods of unstable concentration after start-up of the
fluoride dosing system and following significant decreases or increases in production.
The original vaiiable concentration arrangement was changed to a variable rate
design in Juine 2012, and'upon investigation it was found that documentation was not
updated and hence no training update. This new design had minimum and maximum
turn down limitaticns-on the dosing pumps and the design still “switched back” to a
variable concentration arrangement at the outer low or high operating range of
treatment plant fiows. It has therefore become quite a complicated dosing control
system.

Operators were aware that the change was to deliver variable speed control for
dosing pumps and a more constant concentration in the batching tank.

It was often necessary to start the fluoride dosing system in short bursts and monitor
the pre-fluoride analyser (analyser located after dosing but before reservoir)
concentration until the batch strength has adjusted to the plant flow. This often
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involved an elevated concentration (>1.2mg/L on pre-analyser) triggering an
automatic fluoride dosing shutdown.

The procedure for restoring fluoride dosing in this case was essentially the same as
the procedure for the situations experienced previously with variable concentration
dosing arrangement. Prior to this incident, this procedure has never resulted in a
situation where the post-reservoir fluoride concentration was at risk of exceeding
1.5mg/L.

During the tank cleanout, the vast majority of solids had been removedand a small
amount of the solid remaining was to be dissolved by refilling witih water and mixing.
During this activity, Operators were requested by the mainternance team to enable
the batching tank mixer remotely. Operators set the dose rate to 0.0 mg/L and
enabled the dosing system.

The investigation found that the SCADA system displays all system components as
active when they are available, irrespective of the pesition or state of some local
equipment isolation switches. That is, local isolation swiiches can disable dosing
system components but some are not indicated on the SCADA displays and may not
inhibit dosing startup by the Operator.

Investigations have found that setting the dose rate to O dces not prevent the dosing
pumps from starting up. The dosing system'was enabled for 5 minutes and even
though the dose rate was set to 0, the pumps operated which has transferred some
residual sodium fluorosilicate solids into the dosing lines.

In this instance, the investigation concluded that afier tank cleanout the batch
strength has been significantly higher than normai. The fluoride dosing system uses
a batch concentration of 0.2%. A saturated sodium fluorosilicate dosing solution is
0.8%. Un-dissolved sodium fluorosilicate solids are essentially 100% concentration
being 500 times higher than normai strengih. Therefore the presence of solids is far
more significant than saturated cr a more concentrated solution than 0.2%.

When cleanout was completed, the fluoride dosing was re-started and subsequently
the dosing control automatically shutdown fluoride dosing on the HACCP alarm set
point (pre-analyser of >1.2 mg/L for 6 minutes).

Based on previous experience with the dosing system, this was not unexpected and
as per normal practice the dosing was re-started, for a further three short dosing
periods. The Operator then discussed the situation with the Central Improvement
Specialist and Operations Coordinator. They advised to continue the process of short
8 minute dosing pericds.

Reinstatement of the fluciide dosing system that Friday afternoon coincided with
large increases in flow as the Brisbane reservoirs were filled in preparation for North
Pine WTP coming-off for an extended maintenance period.

No-one was aware at that time that solid sodium fluorosilicate was present in the
dosing lines. The Operator carried out two more restarts (after automatic shutdown)
and then several more manual short dosing periods until the post-reservoir fluoride
analyser was observed to be beginning to rise.

There was no reason for the Operator to suspect that higher concentration of fluoride
solution was being dosed in this instance compared to what had been experienced in
the past until the post-analyser (analyser located post-reservoir) concentration
started to increase. The investigation concluded that on this particular occasion the
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presence of solid sodium fluorosilicate in the dosing line resulted in an excessively
high solution concentration being dosed.
Damage to equipment: Nil impact to equipment

Water Quality impact: Cameron’s Hill 2 treated water main exceeded 1.5mg/L
fluoride for >2 minutes

Legislative impact: Exceedance of ADWG health limit of 1.5mg/L in one of the two
treated water mains.

Reputational impact: Public interested in fluoride

Actual consequence level:

Incident and Emergency Response Plan - Severity Level 3
Potential consequence level:

Incident and Emergency Response Plan - Severity LLevel 4
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§9 seq

Timeline

Date
8/07/13

Time
AM

water

WATER FOR LIFE

Timeline of Incident

Eastbank dosing system goes offline for 3 days for major dosing
pump replacement.

12/07/13

1200

Upon completion of this work, dosing syster enabled and showed
low fluoride concentration for the set point:

12/07/13

Over the next 12hrs, dose set point slowiy/increased, residual
improved but never reached the required set paint and was left as
maximum dose for the next 3 weeks.

2/08/13

0940

Maintenance Officer discovers mixer offiine and discovered a large
amount of un-dissolved sodium-fluorosilicate ir'the bottom of mixing
tank. Fluoride dosing turned off.

2/08/13

1300

Cleanout of mixing tank commenced with vacuum truck by
maintenance staff.

2/08/13

1440

During cleanout, system enabled tG-turn the stirrer in mixing tank on
for short period, dose set point 0,0 (this investigation determined that
even with dose point at 0.0, dosirig pumps started and ran for 5
minutes, pumping fluoride chemiical solids into the dosing line;
estimated ~2€kg-of solids introduced into the dosing line)

2/08/13

1600

Cleaning completed, dosing system de-isolated and available to
return to‘cperaticns.

2/08/13

1600

Shift changeover for Operators.

2/08/13

1600

Operator enabled the system, fluoride dosing commenced. Pre-
fivoride einalyser/(analyser measuring after dosing point but before
| reservoir) went off scale and after 6mins dosing was automatically
shutdown. Operator subsequently restarted the dosing system for
shorter-periods a further 3 times.

2/08/13

1600-175%

Operator discussed with Coordinator and Process Specialist who
agreed to keep running the dosing in short bursts as there was no
pravision for scouring the dosing line. The dosing system was run for
two further automatic dosing shutdowns and then several shorter runs
by Operator. The Operator suspended fluoride dosing operation as
the post fluoride analyser approached 0.9mg/L

2/08/13

Cameron’s Hill 2 outlet fluoride analyser showed increased
concentration and passed above the critical limit alarm registered
above 1.2 mg/L. It remained above 1.2 mg/L for 1:22:04.

2/08/13

Incident was reported when fluoride analyser post Cameron’s Hills 2
reservoir exceeded 1.5 mg/l for >2mins in accordance with HACCP
Plan.

2/08/13

1840

Request to Control Centre Operator to reduce flows from Cameron’s
Hill which would allow Cameron’s Hill 2 to be taken from service (and
lower fluoride concentration more rapidly). Control Centre Operator
indicated that this action would impact supply and could not be
actioned until checked with Supply System On call Officer. Operator
did commence reducing demand on Camerons Hill and subsequently
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On-call Officer discussed actions with Operator (subsequent to
contact by Operations Manager)

2/08/13

1844

Highest fluoride concentration of 1.7mg/L measured by fluoride
analyser post Cameron’s Hill Reservoir 2 (measured as 1.85mg/L by
bench analyser). Cameron’s Hill 1 Reservoir peak of 0.9 mg/L;

Based on flows, combined fluoride concentration from both reservoirs
calculated to have peaked at 1.45mg/L (not measured). Flow
weighted fluoride concentration for the two mains did not
exceedl.5mg/L at any time.

2/08/13

1920

Repeat of request to supply system operations to reduice demand.
Request was being actioned.

Possible further mitigation of taking Reservoir 2 out of service
decided not to be pursued by Operations-iManager and Process
Specialist (site Incident Management Team as fiuoride level less than
1.5mg/L and still falling.

2/08/13

2000

Concentrations of fluoride in water supplied from the combined
Cameron’s Hill Reservoirs reduces to approximately 1 mg/L by
reducing flows and blending with lower concentration water from
Reservoir 1.

3/08/13

0900

Fluoride concentrations reduced'to below 0.25mg/L (near
background)
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WATER FOR LIFE

Date Time Timeline of incident management

2/08/13 1930 Series of notifications in accordance with incident management
protocols and emergency management teleconference organised.

2/08/13 1955 Queensland Water Supply Regulator verbally notified.

2/08/13 2000 Emergency Management teleconference #1 held.

2/08/13 2024 Update provided to QWSR.

2/08/13 2100 Emergency Management teleconference #2held:

2/08/13 2130 Fluoride concentrations supplied from kot reserveirs'reduced to
0.9mg/L.

2/08/13 2320 Emergency Notification issued in OCA. /

2/08/13 2324 Email received from Ministers Office requestirig’Minister is briefed
from CEO on Monday 5 Augustand-furtherinformation.

3/08/13 1449 Written report submitted to QWSR.

3/08/13 1449 Situation Report #1 distriguted.

4/08/13 1000 Emergency Management Teleconference #3 held.

4/08/13 1500 Briefing note providedE CEO for'the purpose of briefing the Minister.

5/08/13 1012 Email advice provided to Water Treatment Managers, detailing

interim actions to e immediately implemented (as per actions sett
out in briefing to Minister)

5/08/13 1524 Situation/Report/#2 disﬁbuted.

6/08/13 0800 Courier Maii article:
http:/imww.cauriermail.com.au/news/queensland/spike-in-fluoride-
concentration-levels-prompts-temporary-shutdown-at-mt-crosby-
water-freatmeit-plant/story-fnihsrf2-1226691637065

6/08/13 1420 gtuatlon Report #3 distributed.

7/08/13 1916 Situati?n Report #4 distributed.

9/08/13 1517 N Incident de-escalated to severity level 1. Fluoride dosing back online
and stable.

12/08/13 1542 Emergency close-out report distributed.

Note: It was agreed between Seqwater, QUU and QWSR that this event did not pose any
health coricerns aid-that Queensland Health did not need to be contacted. No advice was
received from CREs indicating elevated levels of fluoride in the distribution network.

Doc no. Version date: Trim ID:

Doc owner: Doc approver: Rev no. \ Page 10 of 21

The controlled version of this document is registered. All other versions are uncontrolled.

DOH-DL 14/15-00k socumen 1s:


http://www.couriermail.com.au/news/queensland/spike-in-fluoride-concentration-levels-prompts-temporary-shutdown-at-mt-crosby-water-treatment-plant/story-fnihsrf2-1226691637065
http://www.couriermail.com.au/news/queensland/spike-in-fluoride-concentration-levels-prompts-temporary-shutdown-at-mt-crosby-water-treatment-plant/story-fnihsrf2-1226691637065
http://www.couriermail.com.au/news/queensland/spike-in-fluoride-concentration-levels-prompts-temporary-shutdown-at-mt-crosby-water-treatment-plant/story-fnihsrf2-1226691637065

@ seqwater

Key findings

The key findings outline why the incident occurred and the contributing factors deduced from
the investigation which have been categorised using the Incident Cause Analysis Method
(ICAM).

Root cause

Why did the incident occur?

Sodium fluorosilicate solids were inadvertently introduced into the dosiig line and
subsequently dosed creating a high than normal concentration-of fluoride which
subsequently elevated the fluoride concentration of water leaving Cameron’s Hill reservoirs.

Contributing causes

Interlocks
1. The interlocks preventing the system from aperating if the mixer was isolated were
not effective. (why the solids were in the mixing tanky.

Isolations
2. Isolation and de-isolation procedures used as'a part of the SAWCS did not fully detalil
the steps necessary in this situation. Existing operational dosing isolation procedures
were not utilised. Lines of responsibility ceuld have been more clearly defined for
pump replacement and tank cleancut. (Why the solids were in the dosing line).

3. Better documentation and training of ariginal dosing system and major modifications
would allow better understanding f-system operation and maintenance. (Why the
interlocks preventing the plant from operating with the mixer off failed and dose
setting of 0.0 ran the dosing pumps).

Asset delivery systems
4. Better developed siandards and business processes for delivery and commissioning
of projects'wiauld give mare robust design and testing.

Communications
5. Cleai communication protocols and/or contingency actions between treatment and
supply system operations, would allow faster response to incidents.
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@ seqater

Contributing factors

This incident has been analysed using the Incident Causation Analysis Methodology (ICAM).
Based on the evidence to hand, the Investigation Team believe the following were the main
contributing factors to the incident:

Absent or failed defences
e Awareness: There is no way to differentiate between a saturaied sciutior and
fluoride chemical solids in the dosing line. Pre-analyser response-is the same in both
cases.

o Awareness: Completeness of documentation and hence understanding around

system operation — operating dosing with set poirit 0.8-{ta activate the mixer only)
actually resulted in dosing pumps starting.

e Detection: No interlock or alarm on chemical’ mixing taink stirrer to indicate it is not
operating.

o Control and interim recovery: No secondaty indicator of mixer operation.

e Control and interim recovery: The.removal and disposal of batching tank contents
procedure was not sufficient in comparison te’'past undertakings as small quantities of
the material remained at the bottom/of tank and in the dosing line and could not be
further removed.

e Protection and containment; The fluoride dosing pump has started when the dose
rate was set to O.

e Protection and containment: The existing dosing shutdown interlock on mixer is
ineffective (does-not operate) when mixer is locally operated.

o Control and’interim recovery: There is no scour valve on the dosing lines to enable
draining ¢f the lines when necessary.

e Control and interim recovery: There is no sump in the mixing tank to allow easy

cleanout.

Individualhor.team actions
o Slip: Dosing mixer was taken offline and there was no documentation found in
relation to this action (human error type = 'slip").
e Slip: Mixer was run by enabling the dosing system and setting dose rate to O rather
than by using local manual switch (which requires leaving the batching tank area and

holding down a switch manually for the period required to operate the mixer).
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Task or environmental condition

¢ Change of routine: Many factors contributed to non-routine operations including
major pump replacement, mixer offline, West Bank offline, North Pine about to go
offline / supply restrictions, East Bank running at 350 MLD, solid build up in fluoride
dosing tank and changes to service water control.

e Poor procedures & instructions: No step by step procedure for reinoval and
disposal of fluoride chemical solids in batching tank. Fluoridation Systeri Operations
Manual was not updated following modification to variabie rate dosing and dosing
pump replacement. Manual does not cover situation encouritered and does not
document all aspects dosing operation (eg dose set point set to-0)

e Poor procedures & instructions: Control Centre Operator did not respond to initial
request to reduce flow until confirmation with-On-Call Officer. The issue had to be
escalated — lack of response plan and consideration of constraints in implementing
mitigations.

e Inadequate training/incomplete knowledge: Deficiencies in documentation ( both
original system and after modification)-.and automatic nature of dosing system leads
to inadequate training in all elernents of how’'system functions.

e Poor communications: No'documentation/record for when or why local isolator of
mixer was turned off.

¢ |Inadequate equipmerit: Batching tarik mixer could be locally isolated without
automatic interlock to-shutdown dosing activating.

e Other: High flow conditions.iri-Cameron’s Hill Reservoirs exacerbate short circuiting

(due to being unbaffled reservoirs).

Organisationaf factors

e TR (Training): Outdated or incomplete documentation following latest upgrade to
dosing system as well as gaps in documentation on original system.

e CO (Communication): There is no record of when or why the mixer was locally
isolated.

e PR (Procedures): Fluoridation System Operations Manual was not updated after
recent upgrade to system.

e PR (Procedures): Procedures for removal and disposal of batching tank contents,
and testing of the strength of the batching tank contents following a change of mixing

equipment were not developed.
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o DE (Design): The design of the Fluoride Dosing System does not allow for cleanout
of fluoride chemical solids (there is no scour on the fluoride dosing line). Design
review, HAZOP and updated manual documentation was not able to be located for
most recent upgrade.

e RI (Regulatory influence): Levels of fluoride greater than 1.5 mgiL are reportable
incidents to QWSR.

Executive Summary

The QWSR was notified on the evening of the 2" August 2013 of an event that occurred
resulting in elevated levels of fluoride being detected in the it Crosby WTP’s treated water
at 6:33 pm the same day. This naotification was made in accordarnice with Seqwater’s
Emergency Response Plan, as both online analyser and grak’samples from the outlet of
Cameron’s Hill Reservoirs No. 1 & 2 returned resuits that exceeded the ADWG health
guideline value of 1.5 mg/L for this parameter. During thie assessment of the severity of the
event, it was calculated that the combined fluoride concentration from both the Cameron’s
Hill No. 1 & 2 Reservoirs peaked at 1.45 mg/L. Immediate’corrective actions undertaken at
the time of this incident resulted in the combined fluoride concentration dropping to
approximately 1.00 mg/L by 8:00 pm due‘o-isolation ¢f the dosing system.

During the initial notifications on the 2™ August, Segwater, QUU and QWSR agreed that this
event did not pose any health concerris andthat Queensland Health did not need to be
contacted. No advice was received from’ CRE'’s indicating elevated levels of fluoride in the
distribution network as a result of-this incident. 7 his incident was de-escalated to a severity
Level 1 incident on the 9 August201.3, with the fluoride dosing being returned back online
after . Emergency close out report was distributed on the 12 August 2013.

During August and September, a formal incident investigation undertaken by a team of
internal subject experts.using the ICAM process identified that the cause was due to sodium
fluorosilicate solids being inadvertently introduced into the dosing line and subsequently
dosed, creating a higher than normal concentration of fluoride, which subsequently elevated
the fluoride concentration of the treated water leaving the Cameron’s Hill No. 1 & 2
Reservoirs.

The draft incident investigation report forward several recommended corrective actions for
consideration, as follows;
1. Infrastruciure = Evaluate and implement improvements to control and interlocks for
automatic shutdown of fluoride dosing;
2. Processes — Review work and isolation instructions for operation and maintenance
of fluoride dosing system and update as necessary;,
3. Infrastructure — Review design of fluoride dosing system and identify improvements
to be implemented,;
4. Processes — Review fluoride dosing system documentation, update as necessary
and store in common location;
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5. People — After recommended improvements are made, develop and deliver
appropriate training for operators, technical and maintenance staff to increase
understanding and awareness of core functions that make up fluoride dosing system;

6. Processes — (a) Improve business procedures / processes and clarify interactions
between APDD and OTW during the project delivery process; and (b) Standardise
change process and approvals for assets including training requirements;

7. Processes — Develop procedure / plan between Supply System and Water
Treatment teams for timely implementation of mitigation actions t0 manage water

quality issues at Mt Crosby.

8. People — Develop better understanding between maintenance, plant operations and
system operations. Alternatively develop more complete operatichal piccedures /
contingency plans between WTP and Supply System Corntrol Centre rooms (see 8

Processes below); and

9. Processes — Learning's from this investigation be comrinunicated to other Seqwater

sites.

Conclusions and observations

The investigation has raised a number of key learnings which are covered in the body of the
report. The significant learnings for Seqwater are:

Learning

1. a) Interlocks intended to disable the fli.oride
dosing if critical components are not availabkie
or isolated could be improved.

b) Selected dose rate of 0.0 stopped the
screw feeder but dosing pumps run-at mid-
speed.

Detail d explanation

Fluoride system worked while the mixer was
isolated. Dosing pumps ran while set points were
0.0 mg/L Need to confirm that pre-analyser
unavailability will shutdown the dosing system.
Consider other additional interlocks such as post
analyser high Fluoride concentration.

This is an example of the lack of detailed
understanding of system operation and gap in
commissioning

2. a) Isolation of mixer could have been
discovered much earlier.

b) Continuation of interim procedural change
of contacting process standby officer after
pre-analyser trip of dosing system should be
considered.

Improvement of operational checks before starting
or on regular basis during normal operation would
have allowed earlier detection.

Improvement of isolation/de-isolation procedures
and clearer definition of operational and
maintenance responsibilities would mitigate
consequences or have allowed earlier detection.

When the dosing system was enabled after
dosing pump replacement better investigation of
the reason for low dose response would have
allowed earlier detection.

This interim procedure has worked well but may
not be necessary once all other recommendations
are implemented.
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3. a) Tanks without sumps are difficult to clean These learnings apply to current equipment and

out. Long dosing lines are not able to be are learnings that could be applied to future
cleaned without scour points. designs as well.

b) The current design does not provide any Difference between normal solution strength
mechanism to check solution strength (only 0.2%, saturated solution ~0.8% and suspended
manual check over 24 hours or laboratory solid fluoride chemical can‘have an enormous
check) therefore it is not possible to impact on resulting fluoride’ concentration. Design

differentiate between normal strength and an | could consider mechanisms to check/calculate
elevated solution strength or solid material in | solution strength in real time:.
the dosing lines.

4. Documentation for the original fluoride dosing | Original operatiohs manuai did not include all
system and the major modification do not required information and madified manual for
adequately describe all system operations. variable rate dosing-was not available. Control

philosophy, software specification, commissioning

plan and tegart documents as well as drawings
while known'to existwere not readily available.

Consider reviewing all documentation from

North Pine dosing system was recently re- farictiona! description through software
commissioned and improvements were specification, HAZOP, CHAZOP, Commissioning,
identiﬁes a.nd implemented. These ChangeS Dra\NingS, Operations Manua' and Training

may be of benefit to other dosing systems documentation and standardise where this
(particularly Mt Crosby). documentation is stored.

5. If detailed technical understanding of how th; Very/good safety training was carried out on the
Fluoride dosing system functions was origirial system. However, there has been
improved there would be less likelikood of ireffective training for both maintenance and
incidents. technical staff in how the system is designed to

work. After the variable rate dosing modification
was carried out, there appears to have been no
training on the system changes. Standardised
changes process and frequency of refresher
training could be considered.

6. Commissioning of the original systemand Commissioning reports have not been located by
major modification appears to have not investigation team. Lack of information exists
included significant/functiona! aspects. about some details of how the system should

operate.

7. Incident respornse and notifications worked The action of reducing flow from Cameron’s Hill

well however specific responses required for | Reservoirs could have been improved by having
incident mitigation between plant operations standard mitigation (contingency measures) in
and suppiy system operations. place and trained. Common understanding of
Treatment and Supply System operational
constraints and requirement would also be

beneficial.
8. Communication across the organisation of Learnings from this report should be well
learnings from previous events could be communicated even though some of them will be
improved. unique to our only modified variable dose rate

fluoride plant at Mt. Crosby.
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Recommendations

The following recommended corrective actions are put forward for consideration. The
recommendations address the Absent or Failed Defences and Organisational Factors
identified as key findings of the investigation. Refer to corrective action plan attached to this

report.

1. Infrastructure: Evaluate and implement | Including but not limited to such-things as:
improvements to control and interlocks e Implemerit interiock for mixer operation
for automatic shutdown of fluoride dosing. (to include locai isolator) and if practical

add seconidary indicator for mixer
operation

e Implement intertock to stop dosing pumps
with 0. dose selected

¢/ Evaluate reducing shutdown
concentration and time on pre-Fluoride
analyser

e < Evaiuate reducing shutdown
concentration on post Fluoride analyser

Consider if it is possible to detect high fluoride
solution/strength and solids in dosing system.

2. Processes: Review work and isalation lncluding but not limited to such things as:
instructions for operation and  Operations checklists
maintenance of fluoride dosing system i i i
and update as necessary. e |solation and de-isolations

e Maintenance procedures.

e Review interim procedural change to start
up of dosing system after trip on high
level at pre-reservoir Fluoride analyser.

Including who and how isolations are achieved —
lines of responsibility; operational responsibility
and actions before and during maintenance, and
extent of operational checks on completion of
maintenance work as well as routine operational
checks.

3. Infrastructure: Review design of fluoride | To include such aspects as:
dosing system and identify improvements ¢ Scour on long dosing lines
to be impiemented. ,

e  Sump or other measure to allow easier
cleanout of tank.

e Continuous calculation or indication of
solution strength
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4. Processes: Review fluoride dosing Including but not limited to such things as:
system documentation, update as « Functional description

necessary and store in common location. L
e Software specification

e HAZOP

e CHAZOP

e Commissioning plan’and report
e Drawings

e Operations manual

e HACCP Documentation

e Training/pian

5. People: After recommended There is evidence efa-iack of detailed
improvements are made, develop and understanding around how'the (automatic) dosing
deliver appropriate training for operators, | system operates.
technical and maintenance staff to
increase understanding and awareness
of the core functions that make up
fluoride dosing system.

6. Processes: Process already commenced to clarify

a) Improve business procedures/ stakehalder interactions during project delivery.
processes and clarify interactions Recommendanon to improve process qnd_ _
between APDD and OTW during the |- Standardise requirement around commissioning,
project delivery process documentation and training.

b) Standardise change process and Any asset or process improvements should follow
approvals for assets including iraining/| @ Standard procedure and approval process
equirements. withclear scope including documentation and

training.

Program delivery have developed an updated
Project Management Plan which incorporates
standardised elements for engaging with
stakeholders, including project handover
(commissioning, training, documentation
requirements) and sign-off requirements. This is
currently being rolled-out across PD and it is
planned to have it fully embedded by the end of
November 2013.
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7.

a) Processes: Develop procedure/plan
between Supply System and Water
Treatment teams for timely
implementation of mitigation actions to
manage water quality issues (Mt Crosby)

b) People: Develop better understanding
between maintenance, plant operations
and system operations. Alternatively
develop more complete operational
procedures/contingency plans between
WTP and Supply System Control Centre
rooms (see 8 Processes below).

Review contingency procedures/plans and further
develop if necessary to ensure mitigation steps,
constraints and responsibilities are well
understood. Undertake training in these
procedures for both WTP and Supply System.

Improve understanding by Operators of how
Supply System is operatedand vice a versa and
appreciation by maintenzince staff of Seqwater’s
fluoride legislative requirements.

Processes: Learnings from this
investigation be communicated to other
Segwater sites.

Develop a-husiness process/procedure where
investigation findings-and relevant improvements
can be centrally accessed/communicated,
referenced and stored, so investigation learnings
generally can be transferred to other sites and
teams.

Corrective action pian

The following key actions weredentified to prevent recurrence and have been assigned as
Detailed below:

Recommendation

Recommendation

Resppnsible
Business Unit

Owner

Operations Treated Water

Manager Supply (Treated Water)

1 Central March 14
Actioned bys. 73
Operations Treated Water | Manager Supply (Treated Water)
Central
Manager Asset Maintenance
2 March 14
s.73
Asset Portfolio Manager Engineering & Technical
3 Development and Support November 13
Delivery Actioned S73
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Operations Treated Water

Manager Central

. March 14
Actioned bys.73
Operations Treated Water | Manager Central
) s73 June 14
Actioned by

Asset Portfolio
Development and

Manager Project Delivery

Actioned bys.73

November 13

Delivery
Operations Treated Water Manager Supply (Treated Water) a) December 13
Central
s.73
b) June 14
Corporate Finance Manager Process Improvement February 14

Actioned bys-73

Management review of investigation report
Management are requested to review the investigation'report/icr cormpleteness, quality of the
investigation and to endorse the recommended corrective actions.

Distribution
To maximise the potential of the investigation report, the findings and conclusions of the report should
be distributed as practicable.

Implementation of corrective actions
Corrective actions should be presented ic'the responsible line manager for implementation. An action
plan and time frame shall be agreed and endorsed by the appropriate level of management. An action
plan is attached to this report.

Implementation monitoring
The completion of corrective acticns mustbe-documented and communicated by the responsible line
manager to those relevant. Where coriective actions have not been fully implemented, ongoing

monitoring should be maintained untii-implementation is complete.
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Investigation report sign-off

The Incident Investigation Team submits this report as a true reflection of the information
gathered. To maximise the preventive potential of the investigation report, the findings,
conclusions and learnings of the report should be distributed as appropriate.

Investigation Team Leader
Name Signature Date
s.73
Accountable Line Manager
Name Signature Date
s.73
Executive General Manager
Name Signature Date
.73 AN
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HACCP / Water Quality >°9Waler

Printed on: Friday, 31 January 2014

Number Status Issue Manager Raised Date
INIR-3178 Open Rohdmann, Trevor 5/11/2013
Type Discipline Target Date
HACCP / Water Quality HACCP 30/06/2014
Raised By Person Risk Rating Raised Against (Department or ﬁ|Nature

Supplier) |
Neuendorf, Kylie Moderate Operations - Treated Water Group |Asset
Audit
Details

Mt Crosby Cameron’s Hill 2 treated water main exceeded regulated limit of 4.5mgy/L fluoridgefor >2 minutes

Origin Level

Incident Level 3’ ~Incident (Moderate)

Document Cause / Mechanism
Compliance Issue

Closed Out By Closed Out Date Location

Central WTPs\Mt Crosby Eastbank WTP

N/

Target Date Owner Closed Date Closed By

29/11/2013 s.73 |5/1 1/2013 s.73

Details :

Investigation found that:-  a fault had occuited in the fluoride’dosing equipment at Mt Crosby Eastbank WTP which had
resulted in a large amount of solid sodium/fluorosilicate building up in the mixing tank;- During cleanout of these
solids from the tank, the dosing line (260/metres iniength)-unintentionally had an amount of solid sodium fluorosilicate
introduced into it.- Upon restart of the-dosing system, this solid sodium fluorosilicate was essentially gradually dosed

which eventuated in a higher than usual concentration of fluoride in the treated water downstream of the Cameron’s Hill
Reservoirs. - See attached report

—l;\
Number Owner Target Date Completed Date

Details Response

Target Date Owner Closed Date Closed By
2/08/2013 s.73 5/11/2013 S.73
Details

Request to Control Centre Operator to reduce flows from Cameron’s Hill which would allow Cameron’s Hill 2 to be taken from
service (and lower fluoride concentration more rapidly). Control Centre Operator indicated that this action would impact supply
and could not be actioned until checked with Supply System On call Officer. Operator did commence reducing demand on
Camerons Hill and subsequently On-call Officer discussed actions with Operator (subsequent to contact by Operations
Manager)

Page 1 of 3
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Number |Owner Target Date |Completed Date
Details Response

Target Date Owner Closed Date Closed By
30/06/2014 s.73

Details

As per report and further discussions as attached

Number Owner Target Date / Cc;mpleted Date

Details Response N

1 s.73 14/03/2014

Infrastructure: Evaluate and implement improvements to 21/1 A temporary fix has been put in place. Operators

control and interlocks for automatic shutdown of fluoride have tagged the local iselator\switch for operation of the

dosing. mixer pump to be-‘on”at all times

2 s.73 14/03/2014

Review work and isolation instructions for operation and 211 o Gperaior procedures are being reviewed. WI has

maintenance of fluoride dosing system and update as been rolled out to capture the re-set of the fluoride system

necessary. aftera tank level'high alarmo Operator daily checklist has
been rolled out te cover daily plant checks

3 .73 ﬂ“ 1/2013 14/11/2013

Review design of flu d identify Drail response’complete. Refer to attachment in properties

improvements to be implemented. for design review report and related incident investigation
report

4 s.73 14/03/2014

Review fluoride dosing system documentation, update as 2%/ Currently on course
necessary and store in common location.

5 s.73 |16/06/2014

After recommended improvements are made, develop-and /| Toolbox talks will be rolled out after documentation complete
deliver appropriate training for operators; technical and
maintenance staff to increase understzanding and awareness
of the core functions that make up fluoride desing system.

6 s.73 29/11/2013

a) Improve business procedures@ocesses and |Program delivery have developed an updated Project
clarify interactions between APBD and OTW during the Management Plan which incorporates standardised
project delivery process’b) /Standardise change process elements for engaging with stakeholders, including project
and approvals for assets including training requirements. handover (commissioning, training, documentation

requirements) and sign-off requirements. This is currently
being rolled-out across PD and it is planned to have it fully
embedded by the end of November 2013.

7 $.73 4/03/2014

Develop procedure/plan/between Supply System and Water |21/1 s.73 gathering information from loss plans and
Treatment teams for timely-implementation of mitigation meeti s.73  to collate in the next 10 days
actions to manage water quality issues (Mt Crosby) with

8 .73 13/06/2014 21/01/2014

Develop better understanding between maintenance, Loss Plan for Mt Crosby completed.PLN - 00023
plant operations and system operations. Alternatively

develop more complete operational procedures/contingency

plans between WTP and Supply System Contro

rooms (see 8 Processes below). Together with s.73

Page 2 of 3
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9 s.73 28/02/2014

Learnings from this investigation be communicated to other

Seqwater sites.

10 s.73 31/01/2014 31/01/2014

Output from Action item # 3. Meet to discuss whether
HACCP Limits of 0.7-0.9mg/L for pre-reservoir can be
relaxed.

11 s.73

Output from Action item #3. Establish current compliance or
otherwise with the QLD Fluoridation Code of Practice

High level review undertaken but stakeholders all agreed
this would increase the risk and therefore item is closed and
current limits remain in place.

30/06/2014

Update 31/1/14. Preliminary findings have been developed
and are out for internal consultation.

12 s.73

Output from Action i
internally for Option 2

t of concept design

28/02/2014 31/01/2014

completed. Concept design io/feed into business case. See
item #13.

13 s.73

Output from Action it ent of an emergent
business case based on the concept design.

28/02/2014

N
update 31/1/14. concept design deveioped. BC underway.

14 s.73

Output from Action item #3. detailed design, construction,
commissioning and formal handover of a code-compliant
system

31/12/2014

initial planning unde_ery. need /business case to be
approved to progress.

Page 3 of 3
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From: s.73

To:

Subject: oshy
Date: Friday, 13 June 2014 2:31:02 PM

Thanks s.73

ta

s.73

Manager Environmental Health
West Moreton Public Health Unit
West Moreton Hospital and Health Service

T: 07 3818 4702 | M:S.73
Es 73 health.qld.gov.au

From:s.73
Sen
To: s.73

Sub roshy

Hi s.73

As discussed earlier, S:73 (Manager, Drinking Water Quality)-from Seqwater has advised that renewal
works will be undertaken on the fluoride dosing equipment used to fluoridate treated water from the West Bank
WTP, next week. Ordinarily, this would lead to a significant reduction in the concentration of fluoride in water
leaving the Camerons Hill reservoir. However, Seqwater are planning to increase production at East Bank and
reduce production at West Bank to a minimal level such that the effect on fluoride concentration is minimised.
Saying that, they’ve advised that they may still come just under the prescribed concentration, when averaged
over a quarter. | asked that if this was to occur, that they provide an explanation in their next round of
Fluoridated Water Quarterly Reports.

Feel free to give me a call should you wish to discuss. Alternatively, you can contacts.73 onS73

Regards,

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer
Water Team

Health Protection Unit

Chief Health Officer Branch

Health Service and Clinical Inncvation | Department of Health
Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street, Herstan, Brisbane, 4006 | PO Box 2368, Fortitude Valley, 4006

t. 07 3328 9348

f. 07 3328 9354

es73  @health.gld.gov.au

Out of hours number for, Environmental Health: 1800 128 962

Visit us on the web at:; www.health.gld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.as

- — s i
@ ) & -‘
Customers first ldeas into action Unlzash potential === Be courageous Empower people Queensland

Government
Great state. Grest apportunlty, )
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s.73

From: s:13 p.gld.gov.au>

Sent: PM

To: s.73

Cc:

Subject: HP TRIM Document : D14/99860 : DIP-1486-10 Draft Variation 2 to MOU between
TAFE DSDIP and QH - Indigenous Fluoride Training - 11 June 2014

Attachments: DIP-1486-10 Draft Variation 2 to MOU between TAFE DSDIP and QH - Indigenous
Fluoride Training - 11 June 2014.DOCX; CGD13 42834 Executed varied
Memorandum of Understanding between DSDIP, DOH and Sunshine Coast Institute
of TAFE(2).pdf; CGD13 4278 Signed MOU between TAFE, DIP and QH - Indigenous
fluoride operator training - 25 October 2010(2).pdif

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

HelloS "3

Attached is the proposed Variation Two (2) to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) of the 25 October 2010
and varied on the 6 September 2013. The proposed variation is for time cnly, to extend the MOU to 30 June 2015.
This will enable sufficient time for training at Aurukun to be completed. The original MOU and Variation 1 are
attached for your reference.

| would appreciate if you could review Variation 2 to the MOU document ensuring its accuracy and content.

If you could confirm as soon as possible your confirmation that the document is in order then we will distribute final
copies to you for execution, mindful that 30 June’2014 is oniy-a few weeks away.

Regards,
s.73

Project Manager

Project Delivery

Major Projects Office

Department of State Developrnant, Infrastructure and Planning Queensland Government

tel +61 7 3452 7876

mobiles.73

post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4002

visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbane S-/3 @dsdip.gld.gov.au

www.dsdip.qld.gov.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email

Great state. Great opportunity.

Record Number: D14/99860
Title DIP-1486-10 Draft Variation 2 to MOU between TAFE DSDIP
and QH - Indigenous Fluoride Training - 11 June 2014

1
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Memorandum of Understanding — Contract No. 1126000
To provide Fluoride Implementation Training to Indigenous Councils

VARIATION NUMBER TWO (2)

TO THE

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

—\ 4l
=L =1 =UURIL Document 176

Between

THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
acting through the Department of Education, Training and
Employmentthiough
SUNSHINE COAST INSTITUTE OF TAFE
ABN: 54 456 676 679

and

THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
acting through the Department of State Development,
Infrastructure and Planning
ABN: 29 230 178 530

and

THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
acting through the Department of Health
ABN: 66 329 169 412

()



Memorandum of Understanding — Contract No. 1126000
To provide Fluoride Implementation Training to Indigenous Councils

THIS SECOND VARIATION TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING made on this day of
2014
is made in reference to the

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING MADE ON THE 25™ DAY OF OCTOBER 2010 AND VARIED ON
THE 6" DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2013

BETWEEN:
THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND acting through the Department of Education and Training
through Sunshine Coast Institute of TAFE of 34 Lady Musgrave’ Drive,/Mountain Creek, QLD
(“SCIT")

AND:
THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND acting through the /Departiment of Infrastructure and
Planning of 63 George Street, Brisbane, QLD (“DIP")

AND:

THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND acting through' Bepartment of Health Queensland trading
as Queensland Health of 15 Butterfield Street, Herston, QLB-*QH")
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ORIGINAL AGREEMENT:

A. SCIT will collaborate with the Co-Provider Simmonds & Bristow Pty Ltd (ABN 33 010 252 418) to
provide training to the specifications and satisfaction of DoH in the delivery of NWP20101 Certificate
Il in water industry operations.

SCIT will create and manage the delivery of training to the Indigenous community water treatment
plant operators (at least 2 per community) in Torres Shire, Yarrabah, Aurukun, Doomadgee, Palm
Island and Cherbourg.

B. DSDIP will provide funding to SCIT for the Project, subject to the terms and conditions as set out in
the Memorandum commencing 25 October 2010.

C. The State is required to ensure the accountability of funding and accordingly, SCIT/is required to be
accountable for all funding it receives from the State pursuant to the Memorandum:

VARIATIONS:
1. TERM

The original MoU dated 25 October 2010, specified in section 5.3 that SCIT must submit a final report to
DSDIP on the due date of the Final Report, in accordance with’ and containing the information required by
the parties’ mutual agreement.

As stated in Schedule 1 Memorandum Details, the Final Repart Due Date is the date on completion of
training at all sites.

As stated in Schedule 2 Payment Schedule, the Program Completion under Contract No. 1126000 with the
Co-Provider is subject to SCIT providing DSPIP with sign-off from DoH indicating satisfactory delivery.

The completion date of the Memorandum of Understanding was amended in variation 1 (6 September 2013),
to 30 June 2014 planned to coincide with-the campletion of training for all Indigenous sites. With the delay in
the installation of the Aurukun water fiuoridation piant; the completion date is now proposed to be 30 June
2015 to coincide with the completion of training at Aurukun, the last remaining Indigenous site to be provided
training. This memorandum will expire on‘this date unless otherwise stated and agreed to by all parties in
writing.
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EXECUTED as a Memorandum

SIGNED by THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND

acting through the Department of Education,

Training and Employment (DETE) through

Sunshine Coast Institute of TAFE ABN 54 456 676 679

by ) SIgNature.....c.oo v,
)
) NAME. ..o
)
) POSItION....c.oi i
)
a duly authorised person, in the presence of: ) Date....c.covvvieeee el
(signature of witness) (date)

SIGNED by THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
acting through the Department of State Development,
Infrastructure and Planning (DSDIP) ABN 29 230 178 530

by ) SIGNALUFE ..
)
) NaME. . i
)
) POSItioN......coo i
)
a duly authorised person, in the presence of: ) D= =
(signature of witness) (date)

SIGNED by THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
acting through the Department of Health (DoH) ABN 66 329 169 412

by ) SIgNature. ..o
)
) NaMe. ...
)
) POSItION......oi i
)
a duly authorised person, in the presence of: ) D= (= S
(S|gnature of Wlt ness) ........ (date) ....................
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Memorandum of Understanding — Contract No. 1126000
To provide Fluoride Implementation Training to Indigenous Councils

VARIATION NUMBER ONE (1)

TO THE

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Between

THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
acting through the Department of Education, Training and
Employmentthrough
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

THIS VARIATION TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING made on this day of 2013
is made in reference to the
6 SEP 2013

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING MADE ON THE 25" DAY OF OCTOBER 2010

BETWEEN:
THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND acting through the Department of Education and Training
through Sunshine Coast Institute of TAFE of 34 Lady Musgrave Drive, Mountain Creek, QLD
("SCIT")

AND:
THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND acting through the Departrnent of infrastructure and
Planning of 63 George Street, Brisbane, QLD (“DIP")

AND:

THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND acting through Departreiit of Health Queensland trading
as Queensland Health of 15 Butterfield Street, Herston, QLD (“QH?)
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

G, The State is required to ensure the accountability of funding and accordingly, SCIT/is required to be
accountable for all funding it receives from the State pursuant to the Memorandun,

VARIATIONS:
1. DEPARTMENT NAMES

Following Machinery of Government and administrative changes, Department names within the Queensland
Government have now changed as below:

1.1 The former Department of Infrastructure and Planning {DIP) has been transferred to the Department of
State Development, Infrastructure and Planning (DSDIiR) ABN 29 230 178 530.

1.1.1  In the original Memorandum of Understanding dated 25, October 2010 where there is a reference to
the Department of Infrastructure and Pianning (DiR)./t/is now understood to refer to the Department
of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning {OSDIP). ,

1.2 The former Department of Education and Training (DET) has been transferred to the Department of
Education, Training and Employment (DETE).

1.2.1 In the original Memorandum of Understanding dated 25 October 2010 where there is a reference to
the Department of Education-and Training (DET), it is now understood to refer to the Department of
Education, Training and Empiaeyment (DETE).

1.3 In the original Memorandum of Understanding dated 25 October 2010 where there is reference to the
Department of Health Queensland trading as Queensland Health (QH), it is now understood to refer to
the Department of Heaith (DoH).

2. TERM

The original Mel! dated 25 October 2010, specified in section 5.3 that SCIT must submit a final report to
DSDIP on the due date of the Final Report, in accordance with and containing the information required by
the parties’ mutuai agreement,

As stated in Schedule-1 Memorandum Details, the Final Report Due Date is the date on completion of
training at all sites.

As stated in Schedule 2 Payment Schedule, the Program Completion under Contract No. 1126000 with the
Co-Provider is subject to SCIT providing DSDIP with sign off from DoH indicating satisfactory delivery.

A variation to the completion date of the Memorandum of Understanding is now proposed to be 30 June

2014 to coincide with the completion of training for all Indigenous sites. This memorandum will expire on this
date unless otherwise stated and agreed to by all parties in writing.
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3. SCHEDULES

The following variations to Schedule 1 and Schedule 2 are proposed as follows.

31
SCHEDULE 1
MEMORANDUM DETAILS
ltem No. Defined Item Details
1 SCIT's Principal Office: 34 Lady Musgrave Drive
Mountain Creek'QLD 4558
2 SCIT's Address for Service: PO Box 5252 ~
Nambour QLD 4560
3 DSDIP’'s Address for Service: PO Box 15009
City East QLD 4002
4 DoH's Address for Service: PO Box 2368
| Fortitude'Valley BS QLD 4006
5 Interim Report Due Date: Ori completion of training at each site (Torres
Stire, Yarrabah, Doomadgee, Palm Island
and Cherbourg)
6 Final Report Due Date: On completion of training at the Aurukun site.
32
SCHEDULE 2
PAYMENT SCHEDULE
Performance Indicator Amount GST Amount
. GST excluded (10%) GST Included
Execution of the original Memerandum $82,393.50 $8,239.35 $90,632.85
Interim Report for five of six sites — Torres $68,661.25 $6,866.12 $75,527.37
Shire, Yarraban,/Doomadgee, Palm Island and
Cherbourg subjectte SCIT providing DSDIP
with sign off from Doh-indicating satisfactory
delivery
Final Report due on completion of the Aurukun $13,732.25 $1,373.22 $15,105.47

site subject to SCIT providing DSDIP with sign
off from DoH indicating satisfactory delivery

|
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EXECUTED as a Memorandum

SIGNED by THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND

acting through the Department of Education,

Training and Employment (DETE) through s.73
Sunshine Coast Institute of TAFE ABN 54 456 676 679

by Signature

s.73
Name

)
)
))
) Position ovs . P ev./ /M Anpces
)
)

a duly authorised person, in the presence of:
s.73

o=l =3
(signature of witness) (date)

SIGNED by THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
acting through the Department of State Development, s.73
Infrastructure and Planning (DSDIP) ABN 29 230 178 530

Signature..
S.73
Name.

Position. DP‘;M"JOQ p/zdfgcr; .
Date/72'o/5'

by

N e e e S

a duly authorised person, in the presence of.

240N S

(dats)

s.73

s.73
SIGNED by THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
acting through the Depariment of Health (DoH) ABN 66 329 169 412
by ) Signature
)
) Name... ..
) CHIEF HEALTH OFFICER
) Position....... ... 4. .504 nrc.t
)
a duly authorised person, in the presence of: ) Dateb"q’
s.73
L b[ql3.
(signature of witness) (date)
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MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Between

THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
acting through the Department of Education and Training
through
SUNSHINE COAST INSTITUTE OF TAFE
ABN: 54 456 676 679

and
THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
acting through the Department of Infrastructure and Planning
AL'\! 25 166 523 889

and

S

THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
acting thirough Department of Health Queensland

trading as Queensland Health
ABN 66 329 169 412
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Mem’orandum of Understanding

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

- BETWEEN:

THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND acting through the Department of Education and Training
through Sunshine Coast Institute of TAFE of 34 Lady Musgrave Drive, Mouniain Creek, QLD

. (“SC'T“)
AND:
THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND acting. through the Department of Infrastructure and
Planning of 63 George Street, Brisbane, QLD (“DIP")
O AND;
THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND acting through Department of Health Queensland trading
as Queensland Health of 15 Buttetfield Sireet. Herston, QLD (“QH") .
RECITALS: '
A. SCIT will collaborate with the Co-Provider o provide training to the specifications and satisfaction of
QH in the delivery of NWP20101 Certificaie Il in water industry operations.
B. DIP wishes to provide Funding to SCIT for the Project, subject to the terms and conditions as set out
in this Memorandum. . ‘ ' :
C. The State is required to ensure the accountability of Funding and accordingly, SGIT Is required to be

accountable for all Funding it receives from the State pursuant to this Memorandum.

Page 3 of 14
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Memorandum of Understanding

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING:
1. INTERPRETATION
1.1 Definitions

In this Memorandum the following terms have the following meanings, unless the context otherwise
reguires:

“Address for Service” means the address and facsimile numbers of the Parties set out in Schedule 1,
ftems 2, 3 and 4.

“Business Day” means a weekday on which banks are open for business in Brishane.

“Commencement Date” means the date upon which this Memorandum is executed by the Parties or if the
Parties execute the Memorandum on different days, the date upon which the last Party executes the
Memorandum.

“Confidential Information” includes all trade secrets and know-how, financial /information and other
commercially valuable information of whatever description and in whatever form this information is
communicated (whether by electronic means, in an electrenic storage device, in writing or orally) and includes 'f\ )
the interpretation, analysis and application of general information in ihe public domain.

*Co-Provider” means Simmonds & Bristow Pty Ltd ABN 33'010 252 418.

“Final Report” means the report to be submitted by SCIT to ihe Stateon the date specified in Schedule 1,
item 6 each year of the Funding Period to account for expenditure of the Funds and outcomes of the
previous year pursuant to Clause 5.3 and in the format and inciuding the information as agreed between the
parties.

"Force Majeure” means any event or circumstance that.is not within the control of a Party and which could
not have been overcome, prevented or remedied by the exeicise of reasonable care on the Party’s part and
includes, but is not limited to:

(@) war, whether declared or undeclared, revoiution or act of public enemies;
(b riot or civil commotion;
strike, stoppage, ban, limitatioh/'on woik or restraint of labour;
{d) act of God;
{e) fire, explosion, flood, storm, tempest, landslide or washaway;
{f) act of restraint of any governmentai-or semi-governmental or other public or statutory authority; or :
{g) an order of any Court, ; )

" "Funding” or “Funds” means an-amount up to $164,787.00 (excluding GST), payable under clause 2 of this
Memorandum.

“Funding Period” means frem the Commencement Date until the later of completion of the Project under
Contract No. 1126000 and the date of DIF’s last Funding payment.

“Goods and Services Tax" or “GST" means an amount of GST payable under the A New Tax System
(Goods and Services Tax} Act 1999 and A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax Imposition — General)
Act 1999 or etherwise imposed by the Commonwealth Government.

"GST Amount” means the amount calculated by multiplying the GST exclusive amount of the financial
assistance as a taxable supply, payable under the terms of this Memorandum, by the rate of GST applicable
from fime to time. .
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“Intellectual Property” includes all copyright (including any future copyright), moral rights, all rights in
relation to inventions (including patent rights), plant varieties, registered and unregistered trade marks
(including service marks), registered designs, confidential information (including trade secrets and know-
how), circuit layouts and all other rights resulting from intellectual activity in the industrial, scientific, literary or
artistic fields as a result of the use of the Funds in the Project.

“Interim Report” means the report to be submitted by SCIT to the State on the date specified in Schedule 1
item 5 of each year of the Funding Period, which provides the identified information required pursuant to
Clause 5.2 and in the format and including the information as agreed by the parties.

“Party” means a party to this Memorandum.

" “Performance [ndicator” means the indicators, designed to measure the progress of the PrOject by SCIT,
as set out in Schedule 2 of this Memorandum.

"Project” means the creation and delivery of the NWP20101 Certificate [1-in'water industry operations to the
satisfaction and spacifications of the Queenstand Health Environmental Health Branch.

“Report” means either the Interim Report or the Final Report (whichever-is applicable in the circumstances)
required to be submitted by SCIT to the State.

“Trust Account” means the separate account to be maintained by SCIT, if required by the State.

1.2  Interpretation

In this Memorandum:

(@) a reference to this Memorandum or other instrument inchides any variation or replacement of any of
them;

(b) a reference to a statute, ordinance, code or other law includes regulations and other instruments
under it and consolidations, amendiments, re-enactments or replacements of any of them;

- {e)  the singular includes the plural and vice versa;
(d}  the word “person” includes afirm, body corporate, an unincorporated association or an authority;

(&) a reference to a person includes a reference to the person s executors, administrators, successors,
substitutes (including persons taking by novation) and assigns;

) )] a reference to ar-accounting term is to be interpreted in accordance with approved accounting
standards under the Corporations Act 2001 and, where not inconsistent with those accounting
standards, gengcrally accepied principles and practices in Ausiralia consistently applied by an
incorporated bady-or as between incorporated bodies and over time;

{g) a reference to anything ('ncluding any amount) is a reference to the whole and each part of it and a
referenceto a group of persons is a reference to all of them collectively, to any 2 or more of them
collectively and to each of them individually;

(h)  a reference to the State or any other government department or entity (“Existing Entity”) includes a
-reference to-any department or other government entity (“New Entity”) established or constituted in
lieu of the Existing Entity, and with (as nearly as possible) the powers and responsibilities of the
Existing Entity;

(i) if an act prescribed under this Memorandum, to be done by a party on or by a given day, is done after
5.00pm on that day, the act is deemed to be done on the following day;

)] the monetary amounts stated in this Memorandum are exclusive of GST;

(k)  reference to “$" or “dollars” means Australian dollars; and
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2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

headings do not affect the Interpretation of this Memorandum.

. OBLIGATIONS OF DIP

Subiject to the terms and conditions of this Memorandum, DIP will provide SCIT with the Funds over
the Funding Pericd, to be expended by SCIT on the Project only.

The Funding to be provided by DIP consists of the following elements:

(@) Delivery of face to face training and assessment in fluoridation (NWP276a) to meet the
requirements of the Water Fluoridation Regulation to six indigenous commumtles $113,199.00;

{b)  Travel and accommodation for trainers and assessors - $28,850.00;

{¢) Travel and accommodation contingency to allow for weather etc - fp ,770,00; and

{d)  Contract and quality management by SCIT - $16,968.00

Subject to Clause 2.4 and upoen receipt of a valid tax invoice from /SCIT, DIP will provide the Funds in
accordance with the Payment Schedule as set out in Schedule 2 0f this Memcrandum.

DIP's obligation to pay ihe Funds to SCIT in accordance with this Clause 21is'subject to DIP, in its sole
discretion, being satisfied that SCIT has complied with all aspects of this Memorandum.

OBLIGATIONS OF SCIT

SCIT will create and manage the delivery of fraining to the Indigenous community water treatment plant operators
(at least 2 per community) in Torres Shire, Yarrabal1,’Aurukun, Doomadgee, Palm lsland and Cherbourg,
including:

(a)  the development of workhooks;

(b) face-to-face on the job delivery;

(c) workplace projects;

{d) anin-community reinforcement séession;
(e) face-to-face work readiness Assessment;
(

f) ensuring that course material 1s coittaxtualisad for Indigenous comrmunity learning.

SCIT acknowledges that receipt and retentio of the Funds is conditional upbn SCIT:
{a) using the Funds on the Praject(s) only;

{b) providing Interim (if applicabie) and Final Reports and other information, which is accurate and
not misleading, in accordance with Clause 5;

. {c) using its'best endeavours o meet the Performance Indicators and providing the necessary

information required pursuant to the Reports, to the satisfaction of DIP;
{d) not being in breach of any other funding arrangement with the State of Queensland; and
(&) complying with this Memorandum.

All deiails’of any disbursement of the Funding to any other project, a member of SCIT or any cther
third party, must be recorded in the accounts and/or accounting records prepared by SCIT in respect
of the Project.

If SCIT fails to comply with this clause, DIP, at its sole discretion, may suspend any one or more
payments of the Funds until such time as DIP is satisfied that SCIT has complied with each of the
provisions. [If SCIT is unable to comply with each of the provisions within 90 days from receipt of a
notice from DIP, SCIT will be deemed to be in breach of this Memorandum and DIP may elect, at its
sole discretion, to terminate this Memorandum pursuant to Clause 9.
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Memorandum of Understanding

3.5  Any equipment or materials purchased or constructed with the Funds shall vest in SCIT (“Assets").
SCIT shall keep and maintain an up to date inventory of the Assets and will assume fult responsibility
and liability for all risks associated with the Assets, irrespective of the location of the Assets.

3.6 SCIT must return to DIP within sixty (60) days of the end of the Funding Period any part of the
Funding not fully expended on the Project.

4.  OBLIGATIONS OF QH
41 QHis reéponsible for reviewing and approving the proposed training.
5. - REPORTING
5.1  SCIT must use its best endeavours to:
(a) provide accurate and not misleading information to DIP; and
(b) meet the Performance Indicators. If SCIT is unable to mest each of the Performance Indicators,
SCIT must provide satisfactory reasoris within the Reporis to DIF as to why the particular

Performance Indicator has not been achieved.

5.2  SCIT must submit Interim Reports (if applicable) to DIP on'each of the due daies for Interim Reports
listed in Schedule 1, Item 5. The content and format of the report are to be agreed by the parties.

5.3 SCIT must submit a Final Report to DIP on the due date of the Final Report, in accordance with and
containing the information required by the parties’ mutual agreement. The Final Report is to be
executed by the Chief Executive Officer or authorised officer'ci SCIT.

6.4 [f SCIT fails to submit a Report on the due date, or other'date as agreed between the Parties, SCIT
will be in breach of this Memorandum and RIP may eiect to terminate this Memorandum pursuant to
Clause 9.

5.5 If SCIT submits a Report which DIP deems to be unsatisfactory, DIP may suspend payment of the
Funds until such time as SCIT provides a safisfactory Report. DIP will provide SCIT with a written
notice within 14 days of receipt of the Report, advising SCIT of the:

{(a) additional information which) SCIT must supply to DIP in order for SCIT to deliver a satisfactory
Report to DIP ("Resubmitted Fienod") and

(b) due date by which SCiT raust provide the Resubmitted Report requested pursuant to Clause
) 5.5(a).

56 DIP will provide SCIT with a written notice within 14 days of receipt of the Resubmitted Repori,
advising SCIT that the Resubmitted Report is:

{a) satisfactory and notice of the timeframe in which the Funds will be paid; or
{b) unsatisfactory and SCIT is in breach of this Memorandum. DIP may notify SCIT, at its sole
‘ discrelion, that the State is terminating this Memorandum pursuant to Glause 8.

6. ACCOUNTS

8.1  SCIT must establish a separate Trust Account, if requwed by DIP, into which all Funds (mc!udlng any
Initial Payment) must be deposited.

6.2  SCIT agrees that all Funds which are deposited into the Trust Account must only be allocated to and
expended on the Project.

6.3 DIP acknowledges that SCIT may withdraw monies from the Trust Account for the purpose of paying
Project Expenses and any other expenditure incurred in the carrying out the Project as approved by
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6.4

Al

7.2

8.1

8.2

8.3 .

84

85

8.6

DIP from time to time. All such payments are to be recorded and reported in accordance with Clause
6.4.

SCIT will ensure that complete and accurate books of accounts and other records are kept for the
Project, which include details of:

(a) all financial and in-kind contributions, including the Funds;

{b) all monies deposited to and withdrawn ﬁ'om the Trust Account,

{c) all expenditure incurred in carrying out the Project;

(d) other expenditure associated with the operation of the Project by SCIT; and

(e} such other information as the Parties may from time to time agree should be maintained in the
books of accounts or other records of SCIT in respect of the Project.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

DIP, QH and SCIT acknowledge that any Intellectual Prnnerty created -during the Project, upon its
creation, shall vestin SCIT. .

SCIT hereby grants'to DIP and OH,'a perpetua[, royalty-free, noin-transferable, non-exclusive licence
to use, modify and develop the Intellectual Property: -

CONFIDENTIALITY AND PUBLICATION

Each Party ("Receiving Party”) agrees that it will keep secret and confidential and not disclose any
Confidential Information of the other Party (“Disclosing Party") {including in relation to the intellectual
Property) without the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party.

The obligations imposed upon a Begeiving Party by this Clause 8 will not apply to any data or
Confidential Information which:

(a) prior to the disclosure being-made, is in the public domain or in published literature or
subsequent to disclosure being made 1o the Receiving Party, becomes part of the public domain
or is published other than ag a result of an unauthorised act or failure to act by the Rece:vmg
Party;

(b) is received by the Regsiving Party from a third party without any obligation to hold it in
confidence and which has been obtained by a third party directly or indirectly from any other
party or is indepandently developed by an employee or officer of the Receiving Party owing the
obligation of confidentiality whilst having no knowledge of the Disclosing Party's Confidential
Information; or

(c) s required te be disclosed by law or for any Government accountability purposes. .

The obligations of confidentiality imposed on a Party under this Clause 8 will survive termination of
this Memdrandum until each part of the Confidential Information lawfully becomes part of the public
domiain, unlass otherwise agreed in writing. .

DIP and QH may use general detalls of SCIT and the Project to publicise the benefits {o Queensland
of DIP’s funding of this project.

Unless otherwise approved by DIP, any public announcements made and promotional material
prepared by SCIT, or any member of SCIT, must acknowledge the financial coniribution of DIP to the
Project.

DIP reserves the right to disclose to sitting Members of Parliament the general details, including
Confidential Information, of SCIT and the Project and the fact that DIP has made a f:nanc:lal
cantribution to SCIT for the Project.
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9.

9.1

9.2

8.3

94

10.

TERMINATION
If a Party defaults in the performance of its obligations under this Memorandum, the other Party may
give a notice of default requiring the default to be rectified within a reasonable period nominated in the
notice, or if no such period is nominated then, 14 days.

If the default is not remedied within the period specified in Clause 9.1, the non-defaulting party may
terminate this Memorandum immediately by written notice to the other Party.

DIP or QH may terminate this Memorandum, without cause, upon 30 days written notice to SGIT.

Termination of this Memorandum under this Clause 9 does not affect dany acofued rights or remedies
of a Party.

EFFECT OF TERMINATION OF MEMORANDUM:

10.1 In the event of termination or expiration of this Memorandum:

(a) DIP will have no further obligation to pay the Funds to SCIT;

(b) subject to Clause 10.1(c), each Party must stop using the’ Gonfidential Information of the other
Party and, at the other Parly's aption:

(i) return to the other Party;
(i) destroy and certify in writing to the other Party the destruction of; or
{iiiy  destroy and permit the other Party to witness the destruction of,

all of the other Party's Confidential information in that Party's possession or control;

(c) DIP shall be entitled fo retain one copy of the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information for the
purposes of fuffilling its portfolio responsibilities, record keeping and accountability purposes;

(d) SCIT must take all action nacessaryto minirnise further expenditure of the Funding; and

(e) DIP may in the notice of termination-or a further notice, require the Organisation to repay the
unspent amount of the Funding, or such part as is stated in such notice, within the time specified
in the notice, .

GST
The Parties agree that:

(a) words and eﬁcpressions used in this Clause 11 which are defined in the A New Tax System
(Goods arid Services Tax) Act 1999 (Cth) or, if not so defined, then which are defined in the
Trads Practices Act 1974 (Cih), have the same mearing in this Clause 11;

{b) =any consideration, inclleing the Funding, to be paid or provided for a supply made under or in
connection with this Memorandum does not include an amount on account of GST unless
specifically described in this Memorandum as being “GST inclusive”;

{(c) such information must be exchanged, as is reasonably necessary, for each of DIP and SCIT to
make an assessment of the GST liability or benefits from the New Tax System changes
{(including GST registration status and ABN); -

(dy if the whole or part of the Funding is the consideration for a taxable supply,— DIP must pay to
SCIT an additional amount equal to the GST Amount that SCIT is liable to pay to the
Commissioner of Taxation;

(e) DIPis liable to pay the GST Amount to SCIT only upon receipt of a valid tax invoice.
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11.2  If it is determined on reasonable grounds thai the amount of GST collected from DIP by SCIT under
this Clause 11 differs, for any reason, from the amount of GST paid or payable by SCIT, including by
reason of:

~(a) any amendment to the GST;
{b) the issuance of a ruling or advice by the Commissioner of Taxation; or

{c) arefundto SCIT in respect of a supply made under this Memorandum,

DIP is entitled to a refund of the appropriate consideration collected from D! and SCIT must issue an
appropriate GST adjustment notice.

12, GENERAL

12,1 Assignment

No Party will assign, novate, transfer, encumber or subcontract any or all of its rights or obligations
under this Memorandum to any other party, except with the prior written-consent of DIP.

12.2 Faorce Majeure
No Party is liable far any failure to perform or delay in performing its obligations under this
~ Memorandum if that failure or delay is due to anything bayond that Party’s reasonable control. If that
failure or delays exceed 60 days either SCIT, OIP 0y QH inay terminate this Memorandum with
immediate effect by giving notice to the other Pariy. _
12.3 Waiver
() A waiver by a Party of any rights arising frem a/oreach or non-observance by any other Party of
a term of this Memorandum will'not he taker 0 operate in any way as a waiver of any rights
arising from any subsequent continuation of that breach or non-observance, or any further or
other breach or non-observance of the samie or any other term,

(b) The failure by a Party {0 enforce at-any time any provision of this Memorandum will not be
construed as a waiver of that provisiori.

12.4 Compliance with Law

SCIT shall in carrying out the Project comply with the provisions of any relevant statutes, regulations,
by-laws and requirements of any applicable Commonwealth, State, Territory or local authority.

12.5 Applicable Law

This Memorandum is governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Queensland and the Parties submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of Queensland.

12.6 Notices
(a) - Any riotice or communication required to be given under this Memorandum must be in writing
and may be delivered, posted by ordinary mail or sent by facsimile to the Party to which such
notice is required to be given under this Memorandum.

(b) The address for service of the Parties is set out in Schedule 1, items 2, 3 and 4.

(¢) Al such notices and communications are effective and deemed to have been received in the
following circumstances:

{i) if delivered, upon delivery,

(i) if sent by mail, 2 Business Days after posting; and
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(i) if sent by facsimile transmission, upon the sender's facsimile machine producing a
transmission report that the facsimile was successfully sent io the addressee’s facsimile
number.

{d) A Party may modify its address for service, from time to time, by a written notice served on the
all other Parties.

{e) Any notice served after 5.00pm is deemed to have been served on the next Business Day in the
place to which it was sent.

12.7 Entire Memorandum
The terms of the Memorandum between the Parties are those set out in this Mermorandum and no
written or oral Memorandum, arrangement or understanding made or eniered into prior to the date of
this Memorandum may be read or incorporated into this Memorandiin.

12.8 Amendments

This Memorandum will not be changed, modified or waived oraily, but/oiky by an instrument in writing
1) signed by the duly authorised signatories of each Party.

12.8 Counterparts

This Memorandum may be signed in any number of counterpatts. Al counterpérts will be taken fo
constitute one instrument.

12.10 Severability

If any provision of this Memorandum is held to be n'legal or unenforceable the provision will be
severed from the Memorandum and the remaining provisions will govern the relatlonshtp of the parties
as if the offending provision had nevei been included. .
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EXECUTED as an Memorandum

SIGNED by THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND acting
through the Department of Education and Training
through Sunshine Coast Institute of TAFE, ABN 54

456 676 679 :
by its authorised officer

I‘lulllc-

POSition-JJ ST Q/ e TR

In tha ~nracanss ~f:

............ Tasnseadavebaiivanrnnnnanasunantan

SIGNED by THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND aciing g
through the Department of Infrastructure and )
Planning, ABN 25 166 523 889

by its authorised officer

Signe

Name

SIGNED by THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND acting ;

through the Depariment of Health Qld trading as )
Queensland Health, ABN 66 329 169 412 Signed:
by its authorised officer

Name:

In the bresenca of: :
- __m. > Witness © Position: .ESEENIINE e Tyl
- HEA—TY P RoTeT ey

............. “W’%,’%Q Date -
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SCHEDULE 1

Memorandum Details

I:?::' Defined Term Details
1 SCIT's Principal Office: 34 Lady Musgrave Drive
Mountain Creek QLD 4558
2 SCIT's Address for Service: PO Box 5252 SCMC
Nambour QLD 4560
3 DIP’s Address for Service: PO Box 15009
City East QLD 4002
4 QH's Address for Service: PO Box 2368 :
Fortitude Valley BC QLD 4006
5 Interim Report Due Date: On completion of traliting at each site (Torres Shire,
Yarrabah, Aurukun, Doomadgee, Palm Island and
Cherbourg}
: ) 6 Final Report Due Date: On completion of fraining at all sites.
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SCHEDULE 2

Payment Schedule

No. 1126000 with the Co-Provider
subject to SCIT providing DIP with
sign off from QH indicating
satisfactory delivery

. Amount GST Amount
Performance "Td'ca‘°r GST excluded (10%) GST included
Execution of this Memorandum $82,393.50 $8,239.35 $90,632.85
Program completion under Contract $82,393.50 $8,239.35 $90,632.85

DOH-DL 1.4/15-00:&k vocument 105

Page 14 of 14



s.73

From: s73 p.gld.gov.au>

Sent: 2014 2:30 PM

TO: s.73

Subject: RE: HP TRIM Document : D14/99860 : DIP-1486-10 Draft Variation 2 to MOU
between TAFE DSDIP and QH - Indigenous Fluoride Training - 11 June 2014

Thanks Heidi.

Regards,

s.73

Project Manager

Project Delivery

Major Projects Office

Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning Queenrsland Government

tel +61 7 3452 7876

mobileS"3
post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4002
visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbanes:73 @dsdip.qgldigov.au

www.dsdip.gld.gov.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email

Great state. Great opportunity.

From:S-73 mailtos-73 < /ealth.gld.gov.au ]
Sent: Thursday, 12 June 2014
T0:5.73

Subject: RE: HP TRIM Document‘: D14/99860 : DIP-1486-10 Draft Variation 2 to MOU between TAFE DSDIP and QH -
Indigenous Fluoride Training 11 June 2014

s.73
Hello

| have had to send this through our legal team as they now need to review all such docs - | have requested a quick
turn-around as | have a fecling we may be working to a date of 19 June 2014 to ensure sign off this financial year if it
has to be signed at. a-levelhigherthan the Chief Health Officer - | will let you know when | get confirmation.

s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer - Water Program Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Branch | Health
Services and Clinical Innovation Division Department of Health | Queensland Government Level 1, 15 Butterfield
Street | Herston PO Box 2368 | Fortitude Valley BC | QLD 4006 t. 07 332 89351 e.

s.73 health.gld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au

1
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From: s.73 [ mailto:& 73 @dsdip.qld.gov.au ]

Sent: Wednesday, 11 June 2014 3:18 PM

Tos.73

Cc:

Subject: HP TRIM Document : D14/99860 : DIP-1486-10 Draft Variation 2 to MOU between TAFE DSDIP and QH -
Indigenous Fluoride Training - 11 June 2014

Hello S:73

Attached is the proposed Variation Two (2) to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) of the 25 October 2010
and varied on the 6 September 2013. The proposed variation is for time only, to extend the MOU to 30 June 2015.
This will enable sufficient time for training at Aurukun to be completed. The original MOU and Variation 1 are
attached for your reference.

| would appreciate if you could review Variation 2 to the MOU document ensuring-its-accuracyand content.

If you could confirm as soon as possible your confirmation that the documeritis in order then we will distribute final
copies to you for execution, mindful that 30 June 2014 is only a few weeks away.

Regards,
s.73

Project Manager

Project Delivery

Major Projects Office

Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning Queensland Government

tel +61 7 3452 7876

mobile s-73

post PO Box 15009 City East Qld 4002

visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbane s73 W, dsdip.qld.gov.au

www.dsdip.qgld.gov.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email

Great state. Great opportunity.

Record Number: D14/9986Q
Title DIP-1485-10 Draft Variation 2 to MOU between TAFE DSDIP
and QH - IndigenousFluoride Training - 11 June 2014

3k 3k sk 3k 3k 5k 3k sk sk 3k 3k 5k 3k sk sk sk 3k 3k %k sk ek dkok 3k sk sk 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k sk 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k sk >k 3k 3k 5k 3k sk >k >k 3k 5k 3k sk >k >k 5k 3k sk sk sk 5k 5k %k %k %k %k %k %k %k k

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipient(s).
This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it and you are not the intended recipient(s), or if it is
transmitted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited. The
information contained in this email, including any attachment sent with it, may be subject to a statutory duty of
confidentiality if it relates to health service matters.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in error, you are asked to immediately
notify the sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 1800 198 175 or by return email. You should also delete this
email, and any copies, from your computer system network and destroy any hard copies produced.

2
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If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it; any
form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or publication of this email is also prohibited.

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain malicious software,
Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the consequences if any person's computer inadvertently
suffers any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is infected with a virus, other malicious computer
programme or code that may occur as a consequence of receiving this email.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the Queensland
Government.
3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k sk sk ok 3k 3k sk sk sk sk sk 3k 3k 3k sk sk sk sk sk ok 3k 3k sk sk sk sk sk 3k 3k 3k sk sk sk sk sk 3k 3k 3k 3k sk sk sk sk 3k 3k 3k sk sk sk 5k 3k 3k 3k sk sk sk sk ok 3k 3k 3k 3k sk sk sk ok ok ok %k k sk sk kk ok k
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s.73

From: s73

Sent:

To: s.73

Subject: RE: HP TRIM Document : D14/99860 : DIP-1486-10 Draft Variation 2 to MOU

between TAFE DSDIP and QH - Indigenous Fluoride Training - 11 June 2014

Good Mornings-"3

Our legal team have reviewed the draft and are happy. Please could you forward the final copy for signing as soon
as possible so that | can arrange signature before the end of the financial year.

Kind regards

Heidi Grodecki

Senior Environmental Health Officer — Water Program Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Branch | Health
Services and Clinical Innovation Division Department of Health | Queensland Government Level 1, 15 Butterfield
Street | Herston PO Box 2368 | Fortitude Valley BC | QLD 4006 t. 07 332 89351 e.

s.73 health.qld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

From: &73 mailto:s'73 dsdip.qgld.gov.au ]
Sent: Wednesday, 11 June 2014 3:18 PM

To:s- 73

Cc:

Subject: HP TRIM Document : D14/99860 : DIP-1486-10Draft Variation 2 to MOU between TAFE DSDIP and QH -
Indigenous Fluoride Training - 11 June 2014

s.73
Hello

Attached is the proposed Variation Two{2) to'the Mearnorandum of Understanding (MOU) of the 25 October 2010
and varied on the 6 September 2013. The precposed variation is for time only, to extend the MOU to 30 June 2015.
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
copies to you for execution;, mindful that 30 June 2014 is only a few weeks away.

Regards,
s.73

Project Delivery
Major Projects Office
Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning Queensland Government

tel +61 7 3452 7876
mobiles-73
post P East Qld 4002
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visit Level 8, 63 George Street, Brisbanes'73 dsdip.qgld.gov.au

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
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‘ (31/07/2014) Heidi Grodecki - Fluoridation cost-effectiveness in Queensland report Page 1

From: Michael Foley

To: Greg Jackson; Heidi Grodecki

Date: 6/17/2013 2:57 pm

Subject: Fluoridation cost-effectiveness in Queensland report

Attachments: F cost benefit report.docx

Attached is the report I sent Jeannette a few weeks ago. The bases on which previous analyses have
been conducted have changed dramatically in the past few years. The capital costs in Queensland
are much greater than forecast, but I didn't have the full data when this report was written. Also, my
gut feeling is that the assumed 40-45% reduction in caries is likely to be an overestimation,
particularly in permanent teeth. The QCOHS data should be coming out soon (Rhys will have more
info on this), and that will give a much better indication of likely reductions in’Queensland caries
levels attributable to fluoridation. On the positive side though, previous analyses of future dental
treatment needs and their costs are likely to be very conservative. They rarely consider root fillings,
crowns, bridges, dentures etc. Also, previous cost-effectiveness studies-iigve assumed iminimal
benefits of fluoridation for adults, but the recent Slade et al paper based on data fronm the National
Survey of Adult Oral Health 2004-06 shows very clearly that adults will alsg benefit from fluoridation,
even when they haven't grown up with fluoridated water or fluoride toothpaste.

The end result is that I think fluoridation will still be very cost-effective in Queensland, but that
determining an accurate figure would be extremely difficult for a whcle host of reasons.

Regards,

Michael
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A review: cost-effectiveness of adjusted water
fluoridation in Queensland

Summary: This document reviews the evidence regarding the cost-effectiveness of
adjusted water fluoridation, hereafter fluoridation, in Queensland. Three relevant
reports and studies include a 2002 Queensland Health-commissioned cost-
effectiveness analysis of fluoridation across Queensland, a 2010 study assessing the
cost-effectiveness of fluoridation in south east Queensland, and a 2012 study into
the cost-effectiveness of extending fluoridation into the relatively few remaining
sub-optimally fluoridated Australian water supplies.

The first fluoridation trials commenced in the United States in 1945, after extensive
field research confirmed that people living in areas with-relatively high levels of
natural fluoride in their water supplies had much less derital caries (tooth decay).
The early fluoridation trials were highly successful in reducing caries levels, and the
practice of community fluoridation quickly spréad around the United States and then
to other countries.

In 1953, the small Tasmanian town of Beaconsfield-became the first Australian town
to fluoridate its water supplies/ / All Australian capital cities except Brisbane
introduced fluoridation in the 1960s and 1970s. Townsville became one of the few
Queensland cities to fluoridate its ‘water  supplies in 1965, and a 1996 study
confirmed that Townsville children had 45% less caries experience than Brisbane
children. The greatest caries reductions associated with fluoridation are seen in
disadvantaged communities-arnd regional and remote areas where health services
are often more limited.

The dental heaith benefits of fluoridation have been demonstrated repeatedly, but
the flow-on finaricial benefits have attracted far less attention from researchers.
These recent Queensiand and Australian cost-effectiveness analyses conclude that
the reduction in dental caries and improved dental health attributable to
fluoridation /wiii create significant cost savings to the Queensland community,
primarily in‘reduced costs for future dental treatment.

Accordingly, for both health and financial reasons, this review strongly endorses the
widespread introduction and continuation of fluoridation in Queensland towns and

cities.

Dr Michael Foley
Director, Brisbane Dental Hospital
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A review: cost-effectiveness of adjusted
fluoridation in Queensland

Introduction: The total Australian expenditure on oral health services in 2009-10
was $7.7 billion, 6.3% of the entire health expenditure (1). Of this amount, 24%
(51.9 billion) was spent by federal, state and territory, and local governments.
Queensland currently spends around $180 million annually on’ pubiic sector oral
health services, higher in both absolute and per capita terms than-that spert by any
other Australian state. Australian Child Dental Health Surveys consistently confirm
that Queensland children have higher levels of dental caries than children in other
states. Data from the National Survey of Adult Oral Health '2004-06 further
demonstrate that adults living in non-fluoridated areas of Australia suffer
significantly poorer dental health than adults in fluoridated areas (2).

Although childhood caries levels in Australia have riow heen rising slowly for more
than a decade, they are still well below levels experienced by prior generations. This
drop in caries experience has been driven by many factors, including the widespread
adoption of fluoride toothpaste in ‘the 1970s, but it is widely recognized that
fluoridation provides a dental health benefit over and above the use of fluoride
toothpaste (3).

This report, essentially a literature review, is based on the findings of the three
fluoridation cost-effectiveness analyses conducted recently in Australia: the Jaguar
Consulting report commissicried by Queensland Health in 2002 (4), Ciketic et al 2010
(5), and Cobiac & Vos 2012 (6).. The Jaguar report considered a number of scenarios
relating to fluoridation across most of Queensland; the Ciketic study restricted its
analysis to south-east Queensland, and Cobiac & Vos is a very recently published
Australia-wide study into the cost-effectiveness of extending fluoridation into the
relatively few remaining non-fluoridated Australian water supplies. Jaguar
conducted another fluoridation cost-effectiveness study in 2003 (7) which found that
the first 25 years of fluoridation in Melbourne resulted in "...benefits to the Victorian
community’of around $1 billion, through avoided dental costs, days away from
work/schooi-and associated costs", but this analysis is not included here as it is not
relevant to Queensland. The methodology is also similar to that used in the Brisbane
study and will not provide additional useful information. The findings of the Jaguar
Queensland, Ciketic and Cobiac analyses are considered alongside more recent
research into the effectiveness of fluoridation and information gained since 2008
from the implementation of the Queensland fluoridation program.
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Dental health benefits: The 2002 Jaguar report based its caries reductions
assumptions on Slade et al (8), the 1996 comparison of caries levels in 1,649
Townsville children aged 5-12 with lifetime exposure to optimally fluoridated water
and 2,939 Brisbane children with no history of exposure to optimally fluoridated
water. Depending on the age of the child, Townsville children had from 20 to 65%
less caries experience than Brisbane children of the same age, with a mean reduction
of 45%. Ciketic relied on the same study for its assumptions. Cobiac adopted a
different approach, and assumed a 15% reduction in caries free children and
adolescents in fluoridated areas and a mean reduction in dmft/DMFT of 2.25, figures
taken from the 2000 McDonagh et al (York Review) (9) mieta-analysis. ~ These
assumptions are realistic, although a slightly lower percentage reduction is
foreseeable under the current Queensland fluoridation program. - A recent review
(10) of all fluoridation effectiveness studies published waridwide from 1990-2010
predictably shows a range of percentage caries reductions, but miean and median
reductions of around 40% for children up to the age of 15 compared with the 45%
reduction seen in Townsville children up to therage of 12, with the caries reduction
being larger in primary teeth than secondaryteeth. Jaguar, Ciketic and Cobiac may
overestimate the reduction in caries exoerience achievable under the current
program, but any difference is unlikely to be great.

To put these data in perspective,.if Tlucridation was introduced across 90% of
Queensland (a conservative upper limit) ~and the reduction in dental caries
experienced across the state due‘to fluoridation matched that seen in Townsville, we
would have expected 516,204 fewer tooth surfaces affected by caries in Queensland
children aged 5 to 12 years in 1991-92 when the data were collected. Since 1991,
the Queensland populaticn hasrisen/from 2.98 million to its current 4.64 million.
Accounting for the increased population, a decreased proportion of that population
as children, and caries reductions‘equivalent to those seen in Townsville, widespread
fluoridation in Queensland would now be expected to result in 724,466 fewer tooth
surfaces affected by denta! caries in 5 to 12 year old Queensland children.

It should aise be recoghnized that comparing the raw caries data on which these cost-
effectiveness studies are based will underestimate the true caries difference
between fluoridated and non-fluoridated areas. Survey caries data are invariably
taken without radiographs (x-rays) to reduce the possibility of bias, and without
radiographs many small interproximal (between teeth) caries are not detected and
recorded (11). The greatest caries reduction due to fluoridation is seen on smooth
tooth surfaces, many of which are interproximal. Hence, recorded differences in
caries levels between fluoridated and non-fluoridated areas will underestimate both
the true differences which exist and the caries reductions attributable to
fluoridation.
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Costs associated with fluoridation: Capital and ongoing costs of fluoridation were
assessed differently by the three groups. Jaguar and Ciketic based their costs around
Queensland on data from the Wright et al study (12) which considered the cost-
effectiveness of fluoridating both large and small communities in New Zealand, and
costs found by the 1997 Lord Mayor's Taskforce on Fluoridation (13), which
considered the fluoridation of Brisbane.

Jaguar estimated the total (capital plus ongoing) costs of fluoridating Queensland
towns with populations over 1,000 to be $85.5 million over a 30 year lifespan of
fluoridation plants, and $54.1 million based on a more conservative 15 year lifespan.
Based on Melbourne Water estimates, the Cobiac analysis assuried that fluoridation
of urban areas, including one-off costs of equipment and annual costs of operation
and maintenance, would cost 2003AS0.26 per person (the/ most cost-effective
scenario). For rural communities, Cobiac assumed a cost of fluoridation of 2003A$26
per person, based on the equivalent annual cost of fluoridation in a trial installation
in two remote Australian Indigenous communities (the least cost-effective scenario).

Claimed capital and ongoing costs of fluoridation in Queensland vary from council to
council. Not all information is available, and the final costs of the current
fluoridation program in Queensland-are stiil.to be determined, but under the current
fluoridation program, Queensland/councils consistently report significantly greater
capital, chemical, maintenance/aind staffing costs than fluoridation programs in other
states, and significantly greater cests than those predicted by Jaguar, Ciketic and
Cobiac. Authoritative expianations require conjecture. The reported urgency of the
introduction of the marndatory flucridation program and the reported reluctance of
some councils to participate-in‘the program may be relevant.

The State Government will fund capital costs associated with approved fluoridation
infrastructure until July 2014. Thereafter, no state commitment to future funding
has been made. The capital costs of fluoridation plants throughout Queensland are
usually subject to depreciation over 15 years, and this has been factored in many
councils” costings to allow for their eventual replacement costs.

Jaguar's financial scenarios consider both 15 and 30 year lifespans for fluoridation
plants. Ciketic and Cobiac both assume 15 year lifespans. The lifespan of
fluoridation plants is usually greater than 15 years (historically often >30 years), but
councils usually conservatively estimate a 15-20 year lifespan for write down
purposes. It should be acknowledged that ageing fluoridation plants demand higher
maintenance costs.
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Allowing for an inflationary increase of 1.7 since 2002 (based on Reserve Bank
compounding inflation rate data), the Jaguar 30 and 15 year costs equate to $145.4
million and $92.0 million on current day values. These costs contrast with reported
current capital costs for fluoridating the 27 south east Queensland fluoridation
schemes of $34-35 million, and $23.4 million for capital costs associated with
fluoridating most of Queensland’s major regional towns and cities. However, the
initial capital costs are only a small proportion of the costs over the lifespan of
fluoridation plants. The majority of the total costs are origoing chemical,
maintenance and staffing costs. At least $10.6 million of the capital costs already
spent as part of Queensland's recent fluoridation program are from towns and cities
which in recent months have elected to either cease or net introduce fitoridation.
These costs are unlikely to be recouped.

Because of the large increase in capital costs associated with Queensland's current
fluoridation program, the final costs for widespread fluoridatior: in Queensland are
likely to exceed those forecast by Jaguar, Ciketic.and Cobiac. But while the relative
increase in capital costs is much greater than/predicted, a relative increase in the
long term chemical, maintenance and staffing costs is less likely. Capital costs are
funded by the State Government; ongoing costs by lacal councils. The incentive for
councils to restrain ongoing chemical,-maintenance and staffing costs is likely to be
greater than the incentive to restrain capital costs,

Reductions in future dental treatment costs: Costs of dental treatment in all three
cost-effectiveness studies were based on'the Australian Dental Association's Dental
Fees Surveys. These estimates are likely to be conservative assessments of total
dental treatment costs. “For the puiposes of their analyses, Jaguar, Ciketic and

)
Cobiac assumed that all caries would be treated.

Almost all dentai caries in adults will eventually require treatment, but an argument
could be made that many cavities on primary (baby) teeth will not be restored, and
the teeth wil! fali-out before they give any problems, in which case they will not be a
cost to the Queensland.economy. That will certainly be the case with some decayed
teeth, but many untreated decayed teeth will result in abscesses, facial swelling,
visits to-doctors, dentists and pharmacists for pain killers and antibiotics, emergency
hospital admiissions, general anaesthetics and allied inconvenience. These scenarios
generate considerable costs to the community. Emergency-related expenditures are
likely to balance any "cost savings" associated with the non-treatment of caries in
primary teeth.

Jaguar estimated that each decayed, missing or filled tooth surface would be
restored with a one-surface amalgam filling, and assumed that these one-surface
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amalgam restorations would be replaced at 15 years intervals with identical
restorations.

Ciketic costed the treatment for a decayed tooth at that for an examination and a
two-surface anterior (tooth-coloured i.e. composite resin) restoration at a private
dental practice. In practice, most restorations will be on posterior teeth, and these
will receive either an amalgam or a more expensive tooth coloured restoration. The
cost of an anterior two-surface tooth coloured restoration lies between these two,
and represents a fair compromise. The Ciketic paper does not specify the
replacement interval for restorations; nor is it specified in the thesis'on which the
paper is based.

Cobiac based treatment costs for caries on a comprehensive cral examination and a
two-surface metallic (amalgam) restoration, also using data /from the Australian
Dental Association's Dental Fees Survey.

Because dental treatments in each model are/simplistic, an.argument could be made
that some of these costs may overestimate“actual dental treatment costs. Many
posterior caries will require two-surface restorations, and these will not be charged
at double the cost of a one-surface restoration. Extracted teeth will represent five or
six surfaces. An extraction will be more expensive'than a one-surface amalgam, but
not five or six times as expensive,

Simple amalgam restorations are the cheapest restorations placed. Tooth coloured
composite resin restorations are also-now commonly placed. Composite resin
restorations are usually rinore /‘expensive than amalgams, and a shorter life span is
usually reported. But, irrespective of restorative material, successive restorations
are likely to be larger, more comglex, and more expensive. Repeat dentistry is many
times more expensive than the “repeated restorations” scenario painted by the
Jaguar, Ciketic'and Cobiac arnialyses. Fillings are replaced by larger fillings, and larger
fillings are ieplaced hy more expensive crowns, root fillings, extractions, dentures,
bridges and-implants.-/Extractions will often be followed by dentures, bridges or
implants.

For these reasons, although the treatment forecasts in each of the three models are
simplistic, and in some instances will overestimate treatment costs, the lifetime
costs of dental caries in Queensland are likely to be much greater than those
forecast by Jaguar, Ciketic and Cobiac. All three studies acknowledged
methodological limitations, but chose to calculate future costs as conservatively as
possible to ensure that conclusions could be rigorously defended.
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It could also be argued that a proportion of the total dental treatment in Queensland
is provided through the public sector, where dental costs are often aligned with
Department of Veterans' Affairs fees, currently around 80% of average private
practice fees. It is significant that public sector costs usually consider neither rental
nor other commercial costs which must be factored into private practice overheads.

Some intangible costs, for example pain and distress, psychological costs of decayed
and missing teeth, days off school and the impacts on learning have also been
quantified by Ciketic and Cobiac in disability-adjusted life years (DALYs), a widely
used measure of disease burden expressed as the number of years lost due to ill-
health, disability or early death.

Jaguar, Ciketic and Cobiac reach very similar conclusions about the overall cost-
effectiveness of fluoridation. The most financially detailed of/these conclusions is
provided by Jaguar. Depending on the scenario, Jaguar estimates total cost savings
of many hundreds of millions of dollars (in 2002 dollar values) over the lifetime of
Queensland fluoridation plants, with net savings of $6.80-519.40 for every dollar
spent on fluoridation.

30 year time horizon 15 year time horizon
>1,000 >1,000 + |>5,000 >1,000 >5,000
conservative |
beriefits
Number of supplies | 122 122 43 122 43
affected
Persons affected 2.86m 2.3G 2.68m 2.86m 2.68m
PV of benefits S1.17bn| $578.5m $1.10bn $402.0m $377.5m
PV of costs $85.5m _‘%585.5 $56.6m $54.1m $36.0m
NPV $1.08bn | $493.0m $1.04bn | $347.9m | $341.5m
Benefit/costratio | 13.6:1 | 6.8:1 19.4:1 7.4:1 10.5:1

PV = present'value (2002) NPV = net present value (2002)
Jaguar concluded that that "...fluoridation is an extremely effective public health
expenditure". Ciketic estimated a cost saving of $382 million (2003 values) over 15
years if south east Queensland water supplies were fluoridated, and “a 100%
probability of achieving a health gain at a cost saving when compared with the
option of non-fluoridation”. Cobiac likewise found a "...100% probability that
extending the coverage of public water supply fluoridation to all communities of at
least 1000 people will be cost saving to the health sector". Findings and reviews
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from other countries, while limited in number and requiring cautious interpretation,
endorse these positive financial assessments (12, 14, 15).

While the current and projected costs of fluoridation reported in Queensland are
much greater than those predicted by the Jaguar, Ciketic and Cobiac analyses, the
projected cost savings in each analysis are so great that their conclusions about the
cost-effectiveness of fluoridation appear authoritative. Other benefits of
fluoridation less able to be quantified should also not be ignored: 'For example, a
search of records from the ISOH patient treatment database used’in ali Queensland
public sector dental clinics found almost 1,900 dental general’ anaesthetics
performed each year in public sector oral health services in Queensland. Thiis is likely
to be an underestimation, since unpublished 2004 researcn from Griffith University
found 2,000 annual general anaesthetics conducted on 0-to 4year/old Queensland
children for treatment of dental caries. This estimate excludes dental general
anaesthetics conducted in private hospitals, dental scheols, or private dental
surgeries. An anecdotal report from a public/private ‘paediatric dental specialist
currently employed with the Children's Oral Health Service at the Royal Children's
Hospital conservatively suggests that an additional 6,000 dental general anaesthetics
on children are performed in Queensland each year by private specialist and general
dental practitioners, with the large majority of these general anaesthetics relating to
treatment for dental caries. Around Australia, dental caries remains "...a leading
reason for admission to hospital/for -general/anaesthetic among children" (16).
Dental caries in children is a sericus and expensive problem.

The very substantial costs of these general anaesthetics has not been reflected in
any of the cost-effectiveness analyses conducted to date in Australia, nor has the
cost of the large number of visits to dentists, medical practitioners and pharmacists
for painkillers and antibiotics resuiting from dental infections been included.

Another major<paradigm-shift is relevant in assessing the cost-effectiveness of
fluoridation. / Streng recent evidence confirms that adults will also benefit from
caries reductions after/the introduction of fluoridation. Since only very limited
evidence existed in 2002 assessing the effect of fluoridation on adult dentitions,
Jaguar's-calculations only considered a reduction in dental caries up to the age of 34,
basing this upper age limit on a 1997 Grembowski study (17) demonstrating dental
health benefits from fluoridation in a cohort of 20 to 34 year old Americans. Dental
treatment costs after the age of 34 years were estimated, but these calculations
considered only the costs of replacement amalgams every 15 years, not new cavities
which arise. The Ciketic and Cobiac cost-effectiveness analyses also estimated
reductions in tooth decay conservatively, basing their calculations only on a
beneficial effect for children up to the age of 16 years. When these studies were
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published (2010 and 2012 respectively), data related to the beneficial effect of
fluoridation on adult dentitions were limited, and the 1997 Grembowski study has
not been repeated.

Campain et al in 2010 suggested that the decay reductions attributable to
fluoridation were likely to reduce with age (18), but concluded that substantial
benefits were still achievable into adulthood. The 1996 Irish study by O'Mullane et
al (19) found that fluoridation was strongly associated with a reduced proportion of
edentulous (i.e. toothless) adults in all age cohorts, larger average numbers of teeth
remaining and significantly fewer root caries. However, this study did not use the
common DMFT/DMFS (decayed, missing or filled permanent teeth or teoth surfaces)
system to record caries levels, and the study is therefore’ not directly comparable
with most other fluoridation studies.

Very few fluoridation studies have been conducted on adiilts, and the explanations
are many. Until the early 1980s it was widely held that the majority of the beneficial
effect of fluoride was a systemic effect i.e. flioride being swallowed, absorbed and
incorporated into the tooth enamel of young'children as the teeth are developing in
the jaw bones. This belief encouraged the use of flugride tablets and drops in areas
without fluoridation. Researchers now accept that a significant beneficial effect of
fluoride is achieved through its topicai-application i.e. fluoride coming into direct
contact with erupted teeth (20)./ This hasled to a widespread recognition that
optimally fluoridated water (whiich also has topical effects) should reduce tooth
decay in adults whose teeth have obviousiyalready erupted into the mouth.

Other explanations relate to age and/children's attendance at school. Conducting
quality field research is much easier on accessible children in schools than on adults
in private dental practices. Longitudinal fluoridation research is usually conducted
over many years, and children are often a captive audience, accessible through
School Dental'Services. Record keeping is more standardized, and children are less
likely to have maved around the country and been exposed to different water
sources, different dentists, and other variables.

The 20067 Austraiian Dental Association Congress in Sydney saw the formal launch of
a landmark report from the Australian Research Centre for Population Oral Health
(ARCPOH); Australia's Dental Generations: the National Survey of Adult Oral Health
2004-06 (NSAOH) (21). While much better oral health data is available for Australian
children — Australian Child Dental Health Surveys have been conducted every year or
two since the late 1980s - NSAOH was the first detailed cross-sectional study of the
oral health of adult Australians for almost twenty years. As part of this report, over
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14,000 adult Australians were interviewed, and over 5,500 received a dental
examination.

The Slade et al study Effects of Fluoridated Drinking Water on Dental Caries in
Australian Adults (2) was based on data from the NSAOH, and was published in the
highly regarded Journal of Dental Research in March 2013. For all patients examined,
two dental caries measures were taken; DMFT and DFS (the more sensitive measure
of decayed or filled tooth surfaces rather than teeth). DMFT is the traditional
measuring stick for caries experience, but M refers only to’ teeth missing i.e.
extracted, due to caries. Many adults will have missing teeth’ due to’ either
periodontal disease or trauma. It is often difficult to deterinine the reason for the
missing tooth or teeth. For this reason Slade et al also used DFSas.a more sensitive
measure for dental caries.

Measuring caries experience by tooth surfaces also gives a-higher and more realistic
weighting to extractions and multi-surface restorations cver simple restorations. All
data were matched against exposure to flugridation throughout life. The authors
analysed the original data in great detail, including a cormparison of adults born in
the pre-fluoridation generation (prior to 1960) and those from the post-fluoridation
generation (1960-90). Authors also analysed the possible confounding effects of
gender, socio-economic status, education ievel, residential history, and other dental
indicators, but found that these had minimai-etfects on the study results. Slade et al
make a pivotal contribution/to_both international and Australian fluoridation
research.

The study concludes that that Austraiian adults with a >75% lifetime exposure to
fluoridation have significantly reduced caries experience (11% reduction in DMFT for
both age cohorts, 30% reduction-in DFS in the pre-1960 cohort and 21% reduction in
DFS in the post-1960 cohort) when compared with those with a <25% lifetime
exposure to fluoridation. it is likely that these results would have been more
significant if a comparison had been made with people with 100% and 0% exposure
to fluoridation, but migration of adults between fluoridated and non-fluoridated
regions imeant that the numbers in each of these two groups were small, providing
less meaningful data. The variations in effect sizes for DMFT (an 11% reduction) and
DFS (21% and 30% reductions) show that many teeth will eventually be restored
whether in fluoridated or non-fluoridated areas, but that fluoridated areas are
associated with significantly fewer restored surfaces i.e. much simpler restorations,
and fewer extractions. These reductions in decay experience occurred in adult
Australians born in both the pre- and post-fluoridation generations, demonstrating a
significant post-eruptive effect which will benefit all residents, not only those who
have grown up drinking fluoridated water. The results of this study confirm the
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previous findings from smaller Australian and overseas studies, and should ensure
that future fluoridation cost-effectiveness analyses consider the benefits of
fluoridation for people of all ages. The decay reductions in adults attributable to
fluoridation are lower than those for children, but still significant.

Conclusion: All local cost-effectiveness analyses have concluded that fluoridation
will result in very large cost savings, primarily in saved dental treatment costs.
Fluoridation program experience in Queensland since 2008 and research published
since the Jaguar, Ciketic and Cobiac reports have altered the bases on which both
costs of fluoridation and savings attributable to fluoridation have been calculated in
the past, but it is likely that these additional data will not-weaken; and may even
strengthen, the strong financial case in favour of fluoridation.

It should also not be forgotten that while fluoridation is most-easily and cost-
effectively introduced into larger cities and the south east Queensland water grid, it
has long been recognized that people living iin regicnal, rural and remote areas
experience poorer dental health (22). This anomalv deserves redress. The potential
dental health benefits of fluoridation are greater in'smalier towns and disadvantaged
communities. Every effort should be made to ensure that as many Queenslanders as
possible benefit from this important public health measure.

This report concludes with a high/degree of certainty that widespread fluoridation in
Queensland will generate substantiai nealth’and financial benefits for the current
and future generations of Queenslanders.
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S. /5573

From:
Sent: Tuesday, 8 July 2014 8:58 AM
Subject: RE: Fluoride ministerial

Hi[$:7%3
Thanks very much. Really appreciate your advice.
Kind regards

7 >

From:5 73573 ailtosloc| 3757 delaide.edu.au]
Sent: Monday, 7 July 2014 7:38 PM

To:s. 73

Cc: s.73

Subject: RE: Fluoride ministerial

Dear[5s73 |

Sorry for a slow response.

| have been travelling a bit in the last few days. | beIiev et zone.
First, you are correct to recall a data error that led to FA hing media release claiming fluoridation delayed
tooth eruption by several years. responded tot dcknowledged that there was an error.

However, they still retain such information on their site.

? eruption, | believe there is no scientific literature
may already have that) did not report any difference

between the three areas was statistically significan{.Fhis is a compelling evidence to suggest fluoride in water
prevent dental caries and this preve is not through delaying tooth eruption as FAN claims.

Similarly, current evidence doe
health. You can cite any majo
Environmental Risks (SCHER) 2011).

t suggest effect of fluoride in water at the recommended level on overall
NHMRC 2007, US EPA 2010, European Scientific Committee on Health and

Hope this helps

Kind regards

Associate Professor[ss.73 | BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +618 8313 3070
Email:[$.783|@adelaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address:

ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide
Room 1.7, Level 1

DOH-DL 14/15-0@becoment vo s



122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confidential or legally privileged information. If you think it was sent to
you by mistake, please delete all copies and advise the sender. For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this email
is authorised by The University of Adelaide.

Think green: read on the screen

From |5 §73 | [mailto:5- 473 health.gld.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 3 July 2014 1:24 PM

To: s. /3
Cc:
Subject: FW: Fluoride ministerial

s.73

HilS 73

We have been asked to assist with responding to a letter to the Minister in r water fluoridation, in particular

the claim that fluoride delays tooth eruption.
i -- ding tooth eruption.

denCe to suggest delayed eruption in
is suggestion come from?

I have a vague memory of you telling me about a data error issue tha
you released under FOI. I thought the error resulted in an incorrect fi

In short, I am wondering whether you can advise whether there
fluoridated areas? If yes, where is this reported, and, if not, w

We certainly won't be quoting your advice, we are just int understanding the background and we don't
have access to our own fluoride guru at present.

.

Thanks
§73}

PS We are reviewing your proposed publica back to you shortly.

From: S /° 573
Sent: Thursday, 3 July 2014 1:31 P

To: s /2 s.73

Subj al

Hi[sT 75 73

S 15573 is on leavé

Can either of you assist: g not aware of any evidence to suggest delayed eruption in fluoridated area.

The Fluoride Action Network released the following a few years ago:

http://fluoridealert.org/news/fan-australia-drops-a-bombshell-on-water-fluoridation/

Cheers

S. £33

From:|s. /3 573

Sent: Thursday, 3 July 2014 1:17 PM
To:is. /3 s73

Subject: Fluoride ministerial

DOH-DL 14/15-0@becoment vo.»



Hello| Ss.73
| am doing a fluoride ministerial which includes the para below:

‘The discrepancy of carries to tooth surfaces occurs through the retardation in the eruption of adult teeth by 1-2
years in populations that are fluoridated as opposed to non-fluoridated. Do you have any idea of the overall health
ramifications this finding has in relation to all other systems and functions in a human body?’

I am not even sure these sentences make sense, however, do you have anything | can include in the response regard
the delayed eruption of adult teeth and fluoride or should | drop| S:s/z__|a line (I wasn’t sure if he had left for his
hols yet).

Thanks

S. /3
s.73

Senior Environmental Health Officer — Water Program
Health Protection Unit | Chief Health Officer Branch | Health Services and Clinical |
Department of Health | Queensland Government

Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street | Herston

PO Box 2368 | Fortitude Valley BC | QLD 4006

t. 07 332 89351

e.ls. 75573 @health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

=0
Eust-:-mers- first Ideas imto action O Unlzash |:u:-te-nti - ; / v g“!!ﬂﬁlﬂﬂd

Government

Division

Great state. Great oppertunity.

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and forthg s
and you are not the intended recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/recei éd 4

consequences if any person's computer inadvertently suffers disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is infected with a virus, other malicious computer
programme or code that may occur as a conseque f receini is email.
Unless stated otherwise, this email represents opdy the views o der and not the views of the Queensland Government.
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Queensland
Government

Enquiries to: $. 73 E
Chief Dental Officer

Health Service and Clinical
Innovation Division
Telephone: (07) 3328 9873
File Ref: DG072781

S. 73 2

Chief Executive Officer

National Health and Medical Research Council
GPO Box 1421

CANBERRA ACT 2601

Dear!s. /3 “,\'J
Thank you for your letter dated 18 December 201
NHMRC Public Statement on The Efficacy and Safet

In late 2012 the Queensland Government took on b the views of the community and amended

the Water Fluoridation Act 2008 to remove n ry requirement to fluoridate all relevant
water supplies. While the Government co advocate for the inclusion of fluoride in
drinking water, the amendments to the—Act local level decision making in relation to

whether local councils continue, cea proteed with water fluoridation.

2 /0
The proposed review of the NHMRG ‘. r,
noted however the Department of Health s

Statement on the Efficacy and Safety of Fluoridation is
ot able to financially support this project.

oy

Should you require further information, Department of Health’s contact is |S- /3 > Chief
Dental Officer, Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division, on telephone (07) 3328 9873.

Yours sincerelv

s.73

Director-General {
Queensland Health

27\ 7ot

Office Postal Phone Fax
19" Floor GPO Box 48 3234 1553 3234 1482
Queensland Health Building BRISBANE QLD 4001

DO/ 1.5-0@oocument vo.



PG O1a 77§

ODG DATE RECEVED /<) / ! //3

Previous/related

...............................................

INVITATION
PG delegated to

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

ACTION OFFICER ......cvovenineeeedianom, .

COPY PROVIDED TO

REPLY FOR DG'S v,
SIGNATURE REQUIRED

due {to BG Corro)

briefing note also requi

ACTION DIREC

NRR — (No response required -
for information only)

COMMENTS

-------------------------------------------------
....................................................................

--------------------------------------------------------------------

*Nomination of an item as *action direct’ requires the actioning
area {o determine whether a response is required. The
actloning area Is also responsible for determining who the
appropriate signaiory of the response should be.
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5 Australian Government

¥ National Health and Medical Researeh Council N l H l M l R i C

u"

X

i‘ ol glf

GFO Box 1421} Canbema AGT 2601
16 Marcus Clarke Strest, Canbermra City ACT 2600

T, 13 000 NHMRC {13 000 64672) or +61 2 6217 9000
F. +61 26217 9100
E. nhmrc@nhrarcgoviau

ABN 88601010 284
wwvainhmre.govau

S. /3 s.73

Director-General
Queensland Health
GPO Box 48
BRISBANE QLD 4011

—73
Dear® ° s73

fn 2007, after undertaking a systematic review of the literatlr e health effects of
fluoridation, the National Health and Medical Resear CINHMRC) published the
NHMRC Public Statement on The Efficacy and Safet fudridation. As with many Public
Statements and Guidelines, NHMRG periodic vi content to ensure that the
information is based on current evidence.

As you may be aware, we have consulted wi
validity of the 2007 Public Statement and-ha
drinking water remains the most effegfive a
wide exposure to the caries preven
fluoridated in the target range of 0.6MQ

of dental caries and occurrence of denta

and relevant experts to review the

ed our position that “Fluoridation of

ey equitable means of achieving community
fluoride. It is recommended that water be

g/, depending on the climate, to balance reduction
HOrosis”,

However as the evidence t
recommended updating t
studies and assess thei

ins this publication was reviewed in 2007, Council
ody of\e¥idence via a systematic review to include more recent
nce to the Australian context,

pdical Officer encouraged jurisdictions to consider contributing funds. 1
undeftaking this work, if funds can be found. Unfortunately, the
NHMRC Medical Regédrch Endowment Account, which represents the annual Budget
appropriation to NHMRC by the Australian Government, can only be used to fund research
activity and cannot be used to fund the work needed here. The State and Territory Chief Health
Officers — Members of NHMRC Coungil, stated they would discuss this with thelr departments,
given the significance of this issue for the jurisdictions in their role in ensuring quality dtinking
watler,

The Council of NHMRC discussedhis at the November 2013 meeting, where the

As such | seek your support for this new review. In order to undertake this project, NHMRC
would be seeking to obtain funding from jurisdictions to an amount approximating $200,000
and | invite you to consider a financial contribution to the expected project costs. One method

WORKING TO BUILD A HEALTHY AUSTRAUA

DOH-DL 14/15-0@dsocument no.¢




of estimating any contribution is to use the AHMAC cost-sharing formula, which for your
State/Territory would be approximately $40,000,

| look forward to your consideration in by Friday 24 January 2014 to allow my office to start
planning this project,

. Yours sincerelv

Chief Executive Officer | @
NHMRC
@ December 2013

cc!S 0 s Chief Health Office

&
N
&

! WORKING TO BUILD A HEAITHY AUSTRALIA
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| (17/07/2014)[S- €75 |- RE: QCOHS Page 1

From: SIN(EINNSYT3 @adelaide.edu.au>
To: S. /$73 __|@health.qld.gov.au
CC: 5. 73573 @health.gld.gov.au; 5 '$73  |@adelaide.edu.au
Date: 7/06/2013 5:11 pm
Subject: RE: QCOHS
Attachments: QCOHS report.docx
Hi $.78°
| will check with|S- 75573 to see how many copies ARCPOH would need.
S. 13573 are away now so | cannot check their time availability but will ask when they are back.

We will aim for that meeting. If something makes it not possible we would let you know.

We will share a draft with you when it comes together. We have a group of people working on the
report so the speed of writing may vary.

You and %.753 are named in the Chapter ‘Interpretation of findings’ (please see attached). |s73} is
heading that Chapter and it has to wait for other C rs to come together will leave it up to
s.783to let you know about preparing that Chapter.$73/ is with me on Cong q collection. | am
going to contact her for that. She is probably away as | cannot get her on heary

On another note, would you be able to provide some updated figures
Qld, please. The reason being t NHMRC is convening a meeti
fluoridation would be required.| $:789and | have been asked to go. |
S. /3 _s73 and | will meet at ARCPOH before going to be
some up-to-date information on the situation.

Many thanks and have a nice weekend.

Ss.73

Associate Professor | °s.73 BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry
The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005 \

Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +618 83133070

Email: | .73 (@adelaide.edu.au
Location/Street Address:

ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Numme

ay contain confidential or legally privileged information. If you think it
¢ delete all copies and advise the sender. For the purposes of the
ised by The University of Adelaide.

IMPORTANT: This m
was sent to you by mistake,
SPAM Act 2003, this email is au
Think green: read on the screen

From:[s. 475 | [mailto| > 73 | @health.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Friday, 7 June 2013 2:10 PM

Tols 73

CC: s.73

Subject: RE: QCOHS

Hil .73}

Just a few thoughts regarding your recent email.

We thought that perhaps 50 hard copies of the report would be good.

Also, we were wondering if it would be possible to review the report before it is finalised?

And when did you think you would be ready to present the report? and who would do this - you &
§.731? We have a statewide directors' meeting in Brisbane on 22 & 23 July that may be a good
opportunity depending on your timing.

Finally, you mentioned about us co-authoring part of the report - when were you thinking of sending

DOH-DL 14/15-0@secument no.s



| (17/07/2014)[S €33 | RE: QCOHS Page 2

this to us? We wouldn't want to hold up the final report, so if there is work we can progress now, then
perhaps we could discuss asap.
Thanks again

kind regards
s. /3

s.73

Director Oral Health Outcomes

Office the Chief Dental Officer

Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division

Department of Health

p: 07 3131 6981

mis. /3 s.73

f:

e:[S €33 |@health.qld.gov.au<mailto: S- €73 |@health.qld.gov.au>

>>>[5- 73 573 @adelaide.edu.au<mailto .73° (@adelaidele 29/05/2013 2:30 pm
>>

Hil$73] )

Hope you are well. | met $73| the other day when he was do ere~fordfluoride meeting.

The QCOHS report is movmg fast. The results show that the de @ igh quality, which is pleased

to know given everyone’s t. Several group Here are working on the report.
We have also named you,| S /5s.73 to co-author sofy ers in the report. You will be asked
to contribute to the writing.

| am thinking of printing hard copies of the report i ve-pgf copy of the report available as the
main source but will probably need some hard copie ~How many hard copies do you think
your side would need?

Thanks

%.73°

Associate Professor[ssi73 |BDS, MSGFE
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry
The University of Adelaide, Australia
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: 8313 3070 9
EmaillSs73 |@adelaide.edu@imailto| $.73° (@adelaide.edu.au>

Location/Street Address;
ARCPOH

The University of Ad
Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Stree}(Gnrx Ririe Street
ADELAIDE SA @

CRICOS Providex Ndghber 00123M
IMPORTANT: This m&ge may contain confidential or legally privileged information. If you think it
was sent to you by mistake, please delete all copies and advise the sender. For the purposes of the

SPAM Act 2003, this email is authorised by The University of Adelaide.
Think green: read on the screen

From:[S- 473 |mailto{S- 573 |@health.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 10 April 2013 11:24 AM

To:ls. 73

Cc: s.73

Subject: QCOHS

Hi| §.731

DOH-DL 14/15-0@dsocument no.s



(17/07/2014) °- 's73 - RE: QCOHS Page 3

Sorry for the delay in getting bac u after your phone call last week.

| discussed your suggestion with| 5.733|and he agreed that a presentation at the time of the release of
the final report would be worthwhile and, given that the results are likely to be consistent with
preliminary findings, there is no need to present interim results earlier.

He did suggest, however, that it might be a good idea to do a quick (15 min) presentation to the
Minister's advisor, DG and/or Deputy DG, and then do a more detailed presentation to our office and
oral health directors.

Perhaps once you have a more precise idea of when the report will be finalised we can discuss
dates/times.

Kind regards

%:7%3

Dr|S- $73

Director

Oral Health Outcomes

Office of the Chief Dental Officer
Queensland Health

rri:: S. /3573
f: 6783
e:|S 473 (@health.gld.gov.au<mailto S 673 @health.qld.

or the sole use of the intended
ivg jt and you are not the intended

view of this email is strictly prohibited.
ent sent with it, may be subject to a
matters.

g any Att
statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to =. 2

any hard copies produced.

If not an intended recipient o
on it; any form of disclosur
prohibited.

is_email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies
tion, distribution and/or publication of this email is also

Although Queenslan s all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain
malicious software, Queenslan Ith does not accept responsibility for the consequences if any
person's computer jradvertently suffers any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is

infected with a ¢r malicious computer programme or code that may occur as a consequence
of receiving thi

Unless stated otherwige, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the
Queensland Governmen

DOH-DL 14/15-0@%ocument no.10



(17/07/2014) S- 573 |- RE: QCOHS report table of contents, especially Ch 8 Interpretation

s. 73

From: s.73 (@adelaide.edu.au> -
To: S. /373 @health.qld.gov.au]S- 73 [@health.gld.gov.au;| ° " “s.73
Date: 16/07/2013 11:52 pm

Subject: RE: QCOHS report table of contents, especially Ch 8 Interpretation

Dear | 5.73°

| think the proposed points in the Chapter cover most things required.
| would be happy to take 8.1.
573

Associate Professor| Ss.73 |, BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry
The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005

Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: 8313 3070

Email: | 5.73° [@adelaide.edu.au<mailto: %.73° [@adelaide.edu.au>
Location/Street Address:

ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)

ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

- vileged information. If you think it

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confid 20
dvise the sender. For the purposes of the

was sent to you by mistake, please delete all copies
SPAM Act 2003, this email is authorised by The Univers
Think green: read on the screen

From:

Sen

To:[S. /3 .73

S. /873 [@health.gld.gov.au

Subject: QCOHS report table of contents, especially Ch 8 Interpretation

Colleagues,
The time is approaching t 8 Interpretation of the findings for the main QCOHS report. |
have attached the Table hich some dot points have been added against the
sub-sections for Ch 8. ou pleas€ add detail on what you consider should be included using dot
points. Further if you
would be great if w uld turn

5. 73 573 O

S. /3 s.73

mail around by Tuesday 16 July.

Emeritus Professor

Australian Research Centre for Population Oral Health (ARCPOH)
School of Dentistry

THE UNIVERSITY OF ADELAIDE

SOUTH AUSTRALIA 5005 AUSTRALIA

Tel: +61 8 8313 5029 or 8313 5438 Fax: +61

Email:[5. 7873 |r@adelaide.edu.au<mailtol S- /%73 @adelaide.edu.au>
Location/Street Address:

Room 1.12, Level 1

122 Frome Street

ADELAIDE SA 5000

D@ H ='D L 14/15=©@ﬂ£ocument No. 11



\ (17/07/2014)| S- 673 - RE: QCOHS report table of contents, especially Ch 8 Interpretation Page 2

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confidential or legally privileged
information. If you think it was sent to you by mistake, please delete all
copies and advise the sender. For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this
email is authorised by The University of Adelaide.

Think green: read on the screen.

@
77
&
@
A
&
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(17/07/2014) S- 673 |- RE: QCOHS report Page 1

From: S. (5 573 @adelaide
To: S. (%73 @adelaide.edu.au; °* 573 |@health.gld.gov.au
CC: S. 73573 @health.qgld.gov.au
Date: 19/07/2013 3:18 pm
Subject: RE: QCOHS report
ks|$73

%.73 |has just called me to check my travel time. Unfortunately, | have to be in Canberra for the whole
from 26th to 30th August for NHMRC Grant Review Panel.
%.73°|and | discussed and | would like to ask if the first week of September would suit.

Best regards
Ssir3

Associate Professor °'s73 BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry
The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005

Phone: +61 8 8313 3964
Fax: 8313 3070
Email:| $.73° | @adelaide.edu.au<mailto| % 73° |@adelaide.edu.au>

Location/Street Address:

ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confj
was sent to you by mistake, please delete all ¢
SPAM Act 2003, this email is authorise
Think green: read on the screen

From: S 573 |mailto[s. %3
Sent: Friday, 19 July 2013 2:43 PM
To:s. 73

Cc: s-13

Subject: QCOHS report

Hi [s.738
Good to speak with you today.

As discussed, couldyau and|s$73|please give consideration to a suitable date to visit us in Brisbane to
present the findings© QCOHS report?

At this stage, thé eek in August would work well. As | §731 mentioned, we would appreciate if
you could plari{op , gsentations - a 15-20 min ke ings presentation to senior Department
and Ministerial staff,’and a longer (1 hour?) presentation for senior oral health staff.

Thanks again for yourupdate and efforts. We look forward to reading the report.

Kind regards

$:784

S. 735_73

Health Outcomes
Office the Chief Dental Officer
Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division
Department of Health
p: 07 3328 9271
m s. /3 573
els {33 [@health.qld.gov.au<mailto|S- {3; (@health.gld.gov.au>

DOH-DL 14/15-0@%ocument no.13



(17/07/2014)| S- (%3 |- RE: QCOHS report Page 2

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it and you are not the intended
recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited.
The information contained in this email, including any attachment sent with it, may be subject to a
statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to health service matters.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in error, you are asked to

immediately notify the sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 1800 198 175 or by return email.
You should also delete this email, and any copies, from your computer system network and destroy
any hard copies produced.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or ta
on it; any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or publicatio M
prohibited.

on(s) that relies
is also

malicious software, Queensland Health does not accept respo
person's computer inadvertently suffers any disruption to servi

5
/\\Q:
&

Queensland Government.
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(17/07/2014i S 733_73 + Re: File:Qld region map 2.PNG - Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia Page 1

From: SO @adelaide.edu.au>

To: S- 673 |@health.qld.gov.au

Date: 9/08/2013 1:48 pm

Subject: Re: File:Qld region map 2.PNG - Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia
H|s.7d]

Can we have Brisbane metro, rest of SE, Townsville and Northern (rest of North). There would be only
change in the SE corner.

Please let me know

Thanks[g73]

Sent from my iPad

On 08/08/2013, at 2:25 PM,| S- /%73
S. /9973 @health.gld.gov.au<mailto s. ¢33  |@health.qld.gov.au>> wr

http://www.health.gld.gov.au/oralhealth/documents/hhs_contact_list.pdf
>>3[s. 737 573 @adelaide.edu.au<mailto| %.73°|@adelaid u,au>> 8/08/2013 2:52 pm

>>>
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/File:Qld_region_map_2.PNG

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is configentia the sole use of the intended
recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if yg @ it and you are not the intended
recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribu r review of this email is strictly prohibited.
The information contained in this email, includin t ent sent with it, may be subject to a
statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to he ice Matters.

If you are not the intended recipient(s),
immediately notify the sender by telephd
You should also delete this email, ang
any hard copies produced.

eived this email in error, you are asked to
gojlect on Australia +61 1800 198 175 or by return email.
gopies, from your computer system network and destroy

If not an intended recipient of this email, yotngust not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies
on it; any form of disclosure, ification, distribution and/or publication of this email is also
prohibited.

Although Queensland
malicious software,

akes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain
infected with a vi ﬁl gr malicious computer programme or code that may occur as a consequence

Unless stated otherv

ise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the
Queensland Governmen
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(18/07/2014) s- /$73  |RE: QCOHS Page 1

From: 5. 73 573 @adelaide.edu.au>
To: S. /973 |@health.qld.gov.au

Date: 13/08/2013 12:13 pm

Subject: RE: QCOHS

Thanks %.75°

Would able to confirm further details of the plan for our presentation in Brisbane about
QCOHS. We would like to know format of and any specific requirements of the two presentations.
Details of the audience would also be helpful.

Cheers

Ss.73

Associate Professor| °s.73 |, BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005

Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +6188313 3070

Email: | ss. 7% ([@adelaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address:

ARCPOH é
The University of Adelaide
Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confide
was sent to you by mistake, please delete all cgpies/and.advise the sender. For the purposes of the
SPAM Act 2003, this email is authorised by Tht
Think green: read on the screen

————— Original Message---
From:[s-£%3__I[mailto S- 673 b@héealtf
Sen August 2013 11:24 AM
To:|S- /9573

Subject: Re: QCOHS

Hi| $.789

Sorry for delay. Spokévith 2,72%@ happy with your proposed areas.
rds

.73

----- Or

Fro_ 5,73 <73 , | @adelaide.edu.au>

Tol S.73 @health.gld.gov.au>

Sent: 13/08/2013 11:47:12
Subject: QCOHS

Hi|s73]
Could you please let me know how you and|$.73| think about re-grouping areas.
We need to decide soon so to move on with analysis and writing.

%:7?33 e

Associate Professor | Ss.73 |, BDS, MScDent, PhD ARCPOH, School of Dentistry The University of
Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

DOH-DL 14/15-0@%kocument no.1s



(18/07/2014) 5- 's73 |- RE: QCOHS Page 2

Fax: +6188313 3070
Email: [ss72 @adelaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address:

ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confidential or legally privileged information. If you think it
was sent to you by mistake, please delete all copies and advise the sender. For the purposes of the
SPAM Act 2003, this email is authorised by The University of Adelaide.

Think green: read on the screen

e use of the intended
recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receiwefa are not the intended

recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.
Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or revie
The information contained in this email, including any attachme

is email is strictly prohibited.
ith it, may be subject to a

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have regeiye 5 lemail in error, you are asked to
immediately notify the sender by telephone colle teah 1800 198 175 or by return email.
You should also delete this email, and any copies,
any hard copies produced.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you m opy,distribute or take any action(s) that relies
on it; any form of disclosure, modification, dist and/or publication of this email is also
prohibited.

Although Queensland Health takes al

S to ensure this email does not contain
cept responsibility for the consequences if any

of receiving this email.
Unless stated otherwise, this il represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the

D@ H ='D L 14/15=©@ﬂ£ocument No. 17



| (17/07/2014) 5 's73 | RE: Qld visit Page 1

From: S. /3 573 @adelaide

To: S- /3573 @adelaide.edu.au;| S- 673  @health.gld.gov.au
Date: 12/09/2013 1:36 pm

Subject: RE: Qld visit

Thanks g.7483
Just wanting to confirm that there will still be two separate presentations as we discussed earlier.
Please let us know if there are any specific requirements for either meeting.

See you then

Ss.13

Associate Professor S's'73 BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005

Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 883133070

Email: | 5573 @adelaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH
The University of Adelaide @

Room 1.7, Level 1
122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confidenti
was sent to you by mistake, please delete all copiesa
SPAM Act 2003, this email is authorised by Thé @
Think green: read on the screen

egally privileged information. If you think it
ise the sender. For the purposes of the
of Adelaide.

From: S- 73 | [mailto]S- §73
Sen

To:[S- /3 s.73

Subject: RE: Qld visit

Dear |s. 73
We have confirmed your presen for Tuesday 24 Sep at 10am.
Sorry for the late confirmation. Hopexhis still suits.

s.73 | I've just forwarded some feedback, sorry it has come so late.
kind regards

Ss. 73

>>3{S. /3 573 4 @adelaide.edu.au<mailto: s- /%73 (@adelaide.edu.au>>
6/09/2013 5:10 pm >>>

%5.76°

Might it be possible to talk in the Tuesday am. We could then fly up the night before (Monday) and
leave late afternoon on the Tuesday after we have had a chance to debrief after the presentations.

S. 13 573
From|S- /5 s73 (@health.gld.gov.au]
Sen ber 2013 9:45 AM
5. 73
'(I;C(J:.- ° s.73

Subject: RE: Qld visit

Hi | Ss.73
Tuesday is better.

DOH-DL 14/15-0@%ocument no.1s



(17/07/2014) S- /$73 RE: QId visit

Page 2

What time of day - am or pm? either? will you fly up in morning or night before?

ks
>>>|S. /3 s.73 @adelaide.edu.au<mailto| 5- /<.73 @adelaide.edu.au>>
4/09/2013 9:59 am >>>
Ben,

Any chance we can make it the Tuesday or Wednesday, not the Thursday?

Fromis. /5 s.73 @health.gld.gov.au]
Sent: Tuesday, 3 September 2013 3:36 PM
Tofs. 73 s.73

Subject: Qld visit

Hi|s. 6¥3

Sorry fro the delay in getting organised for your visit to Brisbane.
Would Thurs 26 Sep suit? Would you travel up in the morning or stay Wed hig
Thurs, what would be earliest time to present?

And, %763 just collating feedback for ch. 8 and will send to you soo

S. /3
s.73
Director Oral Health Outcomes

Office the Chief Dental Officer
Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division

Department of Health \@

f travelled on

p: 07 3328 9271
mis. /3 s73
e

ST @health.gld.gov.au<mailto] - {73 | Ithidld.gov.au<mailto| S 673 [@health.qld.gov.
au%3cmailto{s. §¥3  [@health.qld.g °

)
Y/,

ith it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended
lost, if you receive it and you are not the intended

This email, including any attachments
recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waiv

recipient(s), or if it is transmit eceived in error.

If not an intended reciptent of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies
on it; any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or publication of this email is also
prohibited.

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain
malicious software, Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the consequences if any
person's computer inadvertently suffers any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is
infected with a virus, other malicious computer programme or code that may occur as a consequence
of receiving this email.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the
Queensland Government.
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S. /873

From: S. /3 573 adelaide.edu.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 11 February 2014 11:40 AM

To: S. /3

Cc: s.73

Subject: Proposed Research Plan for Phase 2 QCOHS

Attachments: Proposed Research Plan for Phase 2 QCOHS.docx
A

Der | = 1= 45

Please find attached a drafted plan for phase 2 QCOHS. This is for discussion during tomorrow teleconference.

Kind regards
Ss.73

Associate Professor| ° .73 BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005 72
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 88313 3070

Email:| 5 733 @adelaide.edu.au @

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

ial or legally privileged information. If you think it was sent to
e sender. For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this email

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confide
you by mistake, please delete all copjes and adviss
is authorised by The University of A ide.

Think green: read on the scre
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S. 7%.73

From: S. /5 573 adelaide.edu.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 19 February 2014 2:45 PM
To: S. 1973

Subject: RE: photos for the report

Thanks| %.78°

It is not very interesting but can be used.

Do you know if someone there keeps photos like in this site?
http://www.health.qld.gov.au/oralhealth/services/school.asp
something similar would be fine .

We will use the one you sent earlier.

cheers

Ss. 13

Associate Professor| Ss.73 | BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005 ;i
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964
Fax: +61 8 8313 3070
Email: [7331@adelaide.edu.au
Location/Street Address:

ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1 @

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confids
you by mistake, please delete all copjes and advise
is authorised by The University of A ide.

i\ql or legally privileged information. If you think it was sent to
e sender. For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this email

Think green: read on the scre

From:| S 673 |[mailt @ health.gld.gov.au]
:03 PM

Subject: RE: photos for

Hi [$.7533

Here is a dental van but it’s not a very interesting picture and also has the old Qld Govt logo. It might be alright in
amongst other photos.

No copyright issues with the other photo | sent

Cheers

< 7%3

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocument vo. 2



From:[s. 73 s.73 |delaide.edu.au ]
Sent: Wednesday, 19 February 2014 1:01 PM

To:[S 7s73 |

Subject: RE: photos for the report

Thanks

We are purchasing some photos of children brushing teeth, drinking tap water, smiling, being at school for the front
cover.

| thought that having some photos of vans, drovers, dental chairs that are more typical of Qld SDS as background
would be good too.

That photo you sent is good. We would use that. Is there any copyright on that?

Do you have any photo of dental vans, drovers with Qld Health logo or words “Qld School Dental Services” or
something similar?
We have a photo on the back of NSAOH report with a dental van. However, | am

if it is from Qld or not.

Kind regards

Associate Professor[Ss73 | BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry
The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005

Phone: +61 8 8313 3964 i
Fax: +61 8 83133070
Email: [$.783 |@adelaide.edu.au \

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may cqn onfidential or legally privileged information. If you think it was sent to

dvise the sender. For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this email

ealth.qgld.gov.au]

Se 19 Fe 2014 1:23 PM
To:is- /3 s73 |

Subject: RE: photos for the report

Hi

We’ve had a look at what photos we already have and couldn’t really find much suitable.
The attached photo isn’t too bad as it reflects a pretty typical school dental situation.
Do you have access to better photos? Perhaps just pictures of kids, etc?

Regards
EXc

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocunent vo. 2



From:|s. /3 s.73 delaide.edu.au ]
Sent: Tuesday, 18 February 2014 12:37 PM

Tois. 7373

Subject: photos for the report

Dear| §.731

| believe you are now a busy Chief Dental Officer of Qld.

We are working on designing the cover of the QCOHS report.

Just would like to ask if OCDO has photos of school dental service that you might want to have on cover of the
QCOHS report as background?

It would be nice to have some photos like that on a report related to and contributed by SDS.

Please let me know.

Thanks

§.789

Associate Professor| Ss.73 | BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 88313 3070

Email:| Sg 73 |@adelaide.edu.au '22
Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH @

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

eg privileged information. If you think it was sent to
the sender. For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this email

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confjdg
you by mistake, please delete all copies and 4
is authorised by The University of Adelaid

Think green: read on the screen

skesfeskokok sfesfeskokokskk) R SHe RN st sfeskesie stesfesteske sk stesteskeosieosk stesteokoiok skekolokosk skokolok skolokok skokok

This email, including any attachments sgat-with it, i dengjdl and for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it
and you are not the intended recipie {f 1\is transmitted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration{ d

with it, may be subject to a statutory duty/0 conﬁdenuahty if it relates to health service matters.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if Yey/Mave received this email in error, you are asked to immediately notify the sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 1800
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
programme or code that may occur as a consequence of receiving this email

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the Queensland Government.

sfesfeskokok sfesfeskokokskoskok stesfeske sk sk sfe stk skosiesteskokok siolokokokskok
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S. 733_73

From: S. 13 573 adelaide.edu.au>
Sent: Thursday, 6 March 2014 4:40 PM

To: s. 13 s.73

Subject: RE: QCOHS paper

Many thanks F§74|

That sounds great. We will include some sentences about examiner training, calibration and reliability assessment.
Looking forward to hear from you about next step.

Best regards

$:759

Associate Professor| Ss.#3 | BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 88313 3070

Email: | S5 73° [@adelaide.edu.au ; 2
Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH @

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confidemtia
you by mistake, please delete all copies an

privileged information. If you think it was sent to
ender. For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this email
is authorised by The University of Adelaid§

Think green: read on the screen

From:[s ¢33 |[mailtoiBe {73, \_ ealth.qithgov.au]
Sen //
To:|S /° .73

Subject: QCOHS paper
Hil s. 7373
| have read your draft paper and also asked| S- /3.73 to review it.

| had no specific feedback — | thought it read well however | don’t have the technical knowledge to comment on the
stats. The findings are certainly compelling.

S. 433 lalso thought the paper was good but provided the following feedback — It’s not clear in the paper whether
the many examiners were standardized, other than examining “under standardised conditions”. Did examiners’
assessments correlate well with each other, or was this not possible for practical reasons? Could this be a potential
source of bias?

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocument vo. 2



In relation to approval to submit for publication, | have been advised that | need to seek approval from my Deputy
Director-General, so | am following this up and expect a response in the next few days. I'll let you know the
outcome asap.

Kind regards
S. /3

s.73

Acting Chief Dental Officer

17 February — 18 April 2014

Director Oral Health Outcomes

Office the Chief Dental Officer

Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division

Department of Health

p: 0733289271 m: S /Ss73 e:|S-d73 |@health.qld.gov.au

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipient(g
and you are not the intended recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any
publication of this email is also prohibited.

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does
consequences if any person's computer inadvertently suffers any disruption to sq
programme or code that may occur as a consequence of receiving this email.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of th {der}d ot the views of the Queensland Government.

skesfeskokok skesfeskokokskoskok skesfeskokokskoskok sfesfeskok sk

&\%
&
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S. 733.73

From: S- 713 573 adelaide.edu.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 12 March 2014 1:56 PM
To: s. 73 s.73

Subject: RE: QCOHS paper

Many thanks| §.73{at is wonderful.
We’'ll go ahead with the paper submission.
Best regards

S731

Associate Professor] Ss.73 BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: 313 3070

Email| Ss.73 |@adelaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH
The University of Adelaide @

Room 1.7, Level 1
122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confidential egally privileged information. If you think it was sent to
you by mistake, please delete all copies and 2 et. For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this email
is authorised by The University of Adelaide

Think green: read on the screen

From:[S {33 |[mailtol8: $73 hea .gov.au]
Se /. < 04 PM

Tois- /3 5.73 Z

Subject: FW: QCOHS paper

Hi|S 73

| have received approval from my DDG for your paper to be submitted for publication, so feel free to progress this.
Sorry | haven’t provide further info regarding options for QCOHS phase 2, but it hasn’t been forgotten.

Kind regards

S. /3

s.73

Acting Chief Dental Officer

17 February — 18 April 2014

Office of the Chief Dental Officer | Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division
Department of Health | Queensland Government

15 Butterfield St Herston QLD 4006

1. 07 3328 9271

m | S. /3 573

e/S- {73 |@health.gld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au
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Great state. Great oppartunity.

From: S §73

Se 3:56 PM
To;s. /3 s.73

Subject: QCOHS paper

Hi|S- £73
| have read your draft paper and also asked | S+ /35,73 to review it.

I had no specific feedback — | thought it read well however | don’t have the techn owldgdge to comment on the
stats. The findings are certainly compelling.

S-s'73 |also thought the paper was good but provided the following feed t’s)not clear in the paper whether
the many examiners were standardized, other than examining “under sta onditions”. Did examiners’

assessments correlate well with each other, or was this not possible f¢ easons? Could this be a potential
source of bias?

outcome asap.

Kind regards
S. /3

s.73
Acting Chief Dental Officer
17 February — 18 April 2014
Director Oral Health Outcomes

Office the Chief Dental Officer
Health Service and Clinical Innovatién Division

Department of Health AN

p: 0733289271 m: ° 733.7; \%‘55?’3 @healthgld.gov.au

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
From: S- /3 573 adelaide.edu.au>
Sent: Monday, 12 May 2014 4:55 PM
To: S. /3
Cc: s.73
Subject: Proposed Research Plan for Phase 2 QCOHS
Attachments: Proposed Research Plan for Phase 2 QCOHS.docx
Dear | %.75°

After our discussion with you in Adelaide, we have drafted up a proposed research plan for the phase two of the
QCOHS project.

Please find it attached and comments will be very appreciated.
We would like to have further discussion with you on progressing this important g

Best regards

ss..7733

Associate Professor| Ss.73 BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 8 8313 3070 \@

Email: | S5.73°|@adelaide.edu.au
Location/Street Address:

ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)

ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may
you by mistake, please delete
is authorised by The Universj

idential or legally privileged information. If you think it was sent to
vise the sender. For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this email

Think green: read on the \
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S. 7?5.73

From: S. /5 573 adelaide.edu.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 10 June 2014 5:06 PM

To: . 13 s.73

Subject: RE: IADR Paper Author -- 54th Annual Scientific Meeting of the Australian & New

Zealand Division of the IADR

Many thanks, .78
Cheers

§731

Associate Professor S's.;g BDS, MScDent, PhD ARCPO H, School of Dentistry The rgity of Adelaide, Australia
5005 W

Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 883133070

Email:| S 73 |@adelaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH
The University of Adelaide @

Room 1.7, Level 1
122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confid
by mistake, please delete all copies and advjse <
authorised by The University of Adelaide.

Think green: read on the screen

agd r|V|Ieged information. If you think it was sent to you
der For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this email is

————— Original Message-----
From{s. 7873 mailto: °* {73 @health.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Tuesday, 10 June 2014 7:53 AM

To:[S /3 s.73

Subject: FW: IADR Paper Author -- 54th Annual Scientific Meeting of the Australian & New Zealand Division of the
IADR

FYI

From: ladr@confex.com [mailto:ladr@confex.com]

Sent: Tuesday, 10 June 2014 4:51 PM

To:s. /973

Subject: IADR Paper Author -- 54th Annual Scientific Meeting of the Australian & New Zealand Division of the IADR

S. /3

Dear s.73

You are now listed as an author of the following abstract, that has been received for the 54th Annual Scientific
Meeting of the Australian & New Zealand Division of the IADR to be held in Brisbane, Australia.

ID/Username: | S- {33
Password:|S- £73

DOH-DL 1.4/1.5-0@hocoment vo.s:




Title: Variations in child dental caries experience - a population-based study
Receipt of this notice does NOT:

- guarantee that the submission was necessarily complete or correct

- imply that any errors have been detected

- indicate that it has been accepted.

Accordingly, we urge you to view this abstract, and to complete or correct the submission if necessary, at:

http://iadr.confex.com/iadr/login.cgi

Fill in the boxes at the bottom of that web page with the ID and password given above, and then click the "Login"

button.
g fr ach abstract. If you
athah ong abstract, please

Each author for whom we are provided an email address will receive an email me
receive MORE THAN ONE MESSAGE like this and you did not intend to submit mo

withdraw the extra abstract(s) by retrieving it using the above instructions; this wilNetprogram officials know which

papers to review.

Thanks for using the IADR/AADR Online Abstract Submittal System.

5 % %k 5k % 5k 5k %k 5k % ok 5k % 5k % %k 5k % 5k s %k 5k %k ok 3k % 5k % ok 3k %k ok % %k 5k %k ok %k ok ok %k ok k ok k ok kkkokk
This email, including any attachments sent with it, is co

This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it a
transmitted/received in error.

Queensland Health does not a
suffers any disruption to servj

Government.

ok ok ok ok ok ok o ok ok ok ok ok 3k ok ok ok KY ok K oK ok ok sk ok ok oK oK ok 3k o ok ok oK ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok kK ok ok sk sk kR ok k ok kR kR ok ok kR kK K K
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S.73

From: SIS adelaide.edu.au>
Sent: PM

. S. /3
To: s.73
Cc:
Subject: QCOHS paper 2 for review
Attachments: QCOHS paper 2 Junel4.docx
Dear |S- /73

We have prepared another paper from QCOHS. Please find it attached for QH review.
Looking forward to hear back from you.

The first paper has been reviewed with minor revision recommended.

We will promptly proceed with revising it.
Kind regards

%783

Associate Professor| Ss.73_| BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +618 8313 3070 \@

Email:| S5.73° |@adelaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may co confidential or legally privileged information. If you think it was sent to
you by mistake, please delete all d advise the sender. For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this email
is authorised by The University

Think green: read on the sc
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S. /3

s.73
From: S 2laide.edu.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 27 May 2014 11:.02 AM
To: S. /3
CC: s.73
Subject:
Attachments: QCOHS The beginning of change FINAL 29 APRIL 2014v1 (2).pdf
Dear %73’

Please find attached the final pdf of the QCOHS report which was sent to the printer.

Are you able to confirm the date of release? As I’'m sure you are aware, this final emain under embargo
until its date of release.

Best wishes

$-73: 73

Australian Research Centre for Population Oral Health (ARCPOH)
School of Dentistry

THE UNIVERSITY OF ADELAIDE @9
SOUTH AUSTRALIA 5005 AUSTRALIA

Tel: +61 8 8313 2072 Fax: +61 8 8313 3070

Email| Sg73 _(@adelaide.edu.au

Work Days: Tues, Wed, Thurs.

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confidential or legally privilegeg
information. If you think it was sent to you by mistake, please delete/a
copies and advise the sender. For the purposes of the SPAM ActRQ03

email is authorised by The University of Adelaide.

Think green: read on the screen.
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| (18/07/2014) S €%3 |- RE: Draft QCOHS report

From: SR

To: s.73

CC:

Date: 28/11/2013 9:52 am
Subject: RE: Draft QCOHS report

Thanks very much, k.73

gards
$.75°

>>>s. /3 g73 adelaide.edu.au > 28/11/2013 9:47 am >>>

Many thanks|$73|

We will go through the report and make the changes as suggested. )
We will try to finish the report and organise printing soon. I think it can onlyN\he~el€ased next year. 1

am checking with our publisher about timing and let you know far in nce foryou to brief your
Minister. We will be in touch on this.
0 AP

We are working on the scientific publications. Will try to have it to y,
regards

2.78°

Associate Professor £s/73 | S, MScDent, PhD

ARCPOH, School of Dentistry @
The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005 \

Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 8 8313 3070
Email: | % 75°@adelaide.edu.au
Location/Street Address:

ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)

ADELAIDE SA 5000
CRICOS Provider Numb;v@lZBM

IMPORTANT: This meéég}%ztain confidential or legally privileged information. If you think it
was sent to you by mistake, ple elete all copies and advise the sender. For the purposes of the
SPAM Act 2003, # il is authorised by The University of Adelaide.

Think green: r

From 5 £33 | [mailto >~ 573 _|@health.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 28 November 2013 9:07 AM

To:|s. /3

Subject: Draft QCOHS report

is. /3
Deall ©- 573

DOH-DL 14/15-0@kocument no.=s



(18/07/2014) s- %3 |- RE: Draft QCOHS report Page 2

Thanks again for all your work putting together the draft report for QCOHS. My apologies for taking
so long to provide feedback.

On the whole we are very happy with draft report and look forward to receiving the final report in due
course.

We have just a few very minor comments you may wish to consider:

1) terminology: a couple of terms may need to be updated e.g. GUS no ownjas Child Dental

Benefit Schedule (CDBS), "reception" is known as "Prep" in Queensland.

2) "caries experience" definition: in other ARCPOH reports ence is clearly explained
in the introductory section however dmf/DMF was not clearly defined in the report (e.g. exec

association between "good" visiting patterns a ealth outcomes (e.g. lower dmf/DMF) is
not presented. Although recommendations of iours are mentioned, evidence from the
survey in relation to patient outcomes wg ¢ ngly emphasise the importance of this advice.

4) fissure sealants (p.xi): it is unclear vthy the finding that "only 22% of children had 1 or more
sealant and on average only 0.6 teeth had \a_3¢alant placed" implied that "in the children thought to
be candidates for sealants h little more than 2 teeth with a sealant placed" - this section may
need to be clarified.

In relation to the release of the final report, our office is required to seek approval from the Minister
for Health for pu e se of the report. Therefore, we will need to brief the Minister ahead of the

planned releas¢’ d ith-this in mind, when do you anticipate the final report will be completed?

Also, how are you progressing with your journal article on your analysis of fluoride exposure? I note
from the QCOHS agreement that a draft of the proposed publication should be submitted to
Queensland Health at least 3 months prior to the date the draft is to be submitted for publication.
We are then required to respond within 45 days.

Happy to discuss any of these matters further.

Kind regards

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocument vo. 26



| (18/07/2014[5- 7973 RE: Draft QCOHS report

Page 3

513

A
S s.73

Director Oral Health Outcomes
Office the Chief Dental Officer

Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division
Department of Health

p: 07 3328 9271

m: |5 P73

e:° L% @health.gld.gov.au

K 3K K K 5K 5K 5K 5K K K K K 3k 3k 3k 3k ok K K K 5K 5K 5K 5K 5K ok 5k K K 3k 3k 3k >k K 5k K K 5K 5K 5K 5K 5K 5K K K K K SRR

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is co
recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or Jest, if

G-any B ent sent with it, may be subject to a
'ce matters.
ave ¥

Kustralia +61 1800 198 175 or by return email.
You should also delete this email, and i om your computer system network and destroy

2k >k >k K >k K K K K K K K Kk ok ok k sk >k >k k >k

The information contained in this email, includi
statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to
If you are not the intended recipient(s), ori

prohibited.
Although Queensland Heal | reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain

tly suffers’any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is
infected with a virus, ious computer programme or code that may occur as a consequence

of receiving this ema

Unless stated othépwise,
Queensland Ggve
3K 3K 3K 3K 3K 3K 3K KK KK KK R *

this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the

3k 3k 3k ok ok K K 5K 5K 5K 5K 5K 5K 5K K K K 3k 3k 3k >k K K 5k K K 5K 5k 5K 5K 5k 5k K K 3k 3k >k >k 5k 5k 5k K K K K Kk ok ok ok ok k >k k k >k >k k
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S. 733_73

From: S- 673

Sent: y 2014 12:39 PM
To: S- 75573

Subject: RE: QCOHS

Great, |$73thanks very much
kind regards

Ss.78

>>>|5- /3 573 aide.edu.au> 17/01/201 4 12:35 pm >>>

Hil $759

Just spoke to| S5 73° is fine with 1.30 PM our time (1PM your time) on Wednesds

Talk to you then

2757

Associate Professor] Ss.73 , BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005

Phone: +61 8 8313 3964
Fax: +61 8 8313 3070
Email: | . 733 [@adelaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

email is authorised by The

Think green: read on th

From:5- 573 Mailto:B& 673 alth.qgld.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 16 January 2014 12:13 PM

To:s. 73573

Subject: RE: QCOHS

Great, talk to you then.
Shall I phone your number? or John's?

>>>S. /3 3 adelaide.edu.au > 16/01/2014 11:41 am >>>

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocument o, =



Many thanks [$.73°
That time is good for both of us. Looking forward to talk to you

Kind regards
%.75°

Associate Professor S-s/7  BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 88313 3070

Email:[ss 78 @adelaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confidential or legally privil¥géd
you by mistake, please delete all copies and advise the sender, e
email is authorised by The University of Adelaide.

Think green: read on the screen \

From: S- 673 mailto:F°- 73 | health.g
Sent: Thursday, 16 January 2014 12:04 P
To:s. /3
Cc:

Subject: RE: QCOHS

iefo rmation. If you think it was sent to
pueposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this

s.73

Hil 5.73°

Thanks for getting back

How about next Wedpe phorning 4t 10am QLD time (10.30am SA time)? We can phone you if you like, just let
me know the best numib

If this time doesn't suit, 753
time.

I are fairly fr ee most of Wed and Thurs if you'd like to suggest an alternative

Kind regards
S. /3

s.73

Outcomes
Office the Chief Dental Officer
Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division
Department of Health
p: 07 3328 9271
m:|s. /S¢73

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocunert vo. s



e:[S {35 | health.gld.gov.au
— T

>>>(s. 73 573 |delaide.edu.au > 14/01/2014 10:25 pm >>>

Many thanks. Happy New Year to you and your families!

| am sorry for a late response. | am not back to work yet. Will try to ease back into work next week.

It would be great to have a discussion soon. s back to Adelaide on Wednesday so he would be available on
Thursday if you have time. Otherwise, please nominate a time next week or so@ ormally in on Wed and
Thursday. | will be available most of the time apart from Thursday 30" in the morning.

The news about eave is quite unexpected. However, we will try our best t
ready for new phase. The problem is with the publisher that we have chosen. The
work. | spoke to the publisher today and will try to meet with him next week.

Hope to talk to you soon

@@

Associate Professor BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +618 83133070

Email:l Sq zg !'oDadeIaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address: @
ARCPOH
The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1
122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message m ential or legally privileged information. If you think it was sent to
you by mistake, please delet ies and ddvise the sender. For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this
email is authorised by The Adelaide.

Think green: read on the screen

From|S /573 | mailtol5- <73 | ealth.gld.gov.au ]
Sent: Friday, 10 January 2014 2:43 PM

To:|s. /3

Cc: s.73
Subject: QCOHS

Dear °° 873

Happy new year! I hope you both had a great break over Xmas and that 2014 is off to a good start. I've been
gradually getting back into the swing of things this week after 3 weeks off.

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocument o,



You may not be aware that/B734  aking extended leave from mid-Feb to late-June, so we thought it would be a
good idea to catch up with you both before then.

In particular, we would like to discuss 1) the timing of the release of the final QCOHS report (is this likely to be
ready by early Feb?) and 2) preparation for the next phase of QCOHS (could ARCPOH assist with this as part of the
current funding agreement up to 30 June this year?)

Could you please let me know your availability over the next week or two so that I can arrange a teleconference?

Kind regards
S. /3

sS.73

Director Oral Health Outcomes

Office the Chief Dental Officer

Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division
Department of Health

m S. 73573
els- 73 health.gld.gov.au

ed to immediately notify the sender by telephone collect on
y copies, from your computer system network and destroy any

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in e
Australia +61 1800 198 175 or by return email. You should also delete this email,
hard copies produced.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute any/agtion(s) that relies on it; any form of disclosure, modification,
distribution and/or publication of this email is also prohibited,

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps
responsibility for the consequences if any person's comp
virus, other malicious computer programme or code that ma

ecclk as a consequence of receiving this email.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents o e views of the sender and not the views of the Queensland Government.

7S
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S. 15573

From: S (% 44

Sent: nuary 2014 3:34 PM
To: s. 73

Cc: s.73

Subject: RE: QCOHS

Thanks| $,4400k forward to speaking with you and 275 tomorrow.

Kind regards

375 @
From: S /3 s.73 \delaide.edu.au]

Sen . 9 PM

Toz 5 /2 s.73

Cc:

Subject: RE: QCOHS

Dear all \i
| tried to list some items for our tomorrow’s discussi
1. QCOHS report:

a. Update on the report’s editing

b. Potential timeline for release: time, foxmat, procedures
2. Reporting QCOHS results
a. NSW
b. IADR

c. Scientific publications

3. Preparation for the hase:
a. Timeline
b. Proposed st esign (brief)
c. Potential sources d¥funding
d. Any new requirements

4. AOB

If you have any other items for discussion please circulate or raise during the teleconference

Thanks
S.o/73

Associate Professor . DS, MScDent, PhD

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocumertvo. 1



ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 88313 3070

Email: | $.783 @adelaide.edu.au

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

From:/S {73 |[mailto:F° €73 health.qgld.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 16 January 2014 12:04 PM
To:|s. /3

cc. s.73

Subject: RE: QCOHS \@
HI[S 73 @

Thanks for getting back to me while you're

How about next Wednesday morning at 10an time (10.30am SA time)? We can phone you if you like, just let
me know the best number.

If this time doesn't suit, €731 nd1a irly free most of Wed and Thurs if you'd like to suggest an alternative
time.

Kind regards
S. 73

s.73

Director Oral Health Qué&
Office the Chief Dental
Health Service and Clinical
Department of Health

p: 07 3328 9271

m: 8. /3573

els. t¥3 |@health.gld.gov.au

noyation Division

>>> 5 5 73 @adelaide.edu.au> 14/01/2014 10:25 pm >>>

s. 73

Dear s.73

Many thanks. Happy New Year to you and your families!

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocunert vo. s



| am sorry for a late response. | am not back to work yet. Will try to ease back into work next week.

It would be great to have a discussion soon. 8731 s back to Adelaide on Wednesday so he would be available on
Thursday if you have time. Otherwise, please nominate a time next week or so.$.733 s normally in on Wed and
Thursday. | will be available most of the time apart from Thursday 30" in the morning.

The news about| $:73°| leave is quite unexpected. However, we will try our best to get the report published and get
ready for new phase. The problem is with the publisher that we have chosen. They have significant backlog of
work. | spoke to the publisher today and will try to meet with him next week.

Hope to talk to you soon

Ss.73

Associate Professor|58.73 | S, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +618 83133070

Email:| $:75°@adelaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confidential
you by mistake, please delete all copies and advise
email is authorised by The University of Adelajde

ileged information. If you think it was sent to
For the purposes of the SPAM Act 2003, this

Think green: read on the screen

From:[s ¢73  |[mailto:F>- €73 /» R gld.gov.au]
Sent: Friday, 10 January 2014 243 PM
To:s. /3 |

cc. s.73 ~s
Subject: QCOHS

S. /3
Dear 73

Happy new year! I hope you both had a great break over Xmas and that 2014 is off to a good start. I've been
gradually getting back into the swing of things this week after 3 weeks off.

You may not be aware that %757 taking extended leave from mid-Feb to late-June, so we thought it would be a
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

DOH-DL 14/15-0@%hocumentvo. o



Kind regards
s. /3

s.73

Director Oral Health Outcomes

Office the Chief Dental Officer

Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division
Department of Health

p: 07 3328 9271

m:|S- /3573

e:/S- €73 | @health.gld.gov.au

Sk ok ok K ok ok Sk ok ok ok Sk Sk sk Sk ok sk Sk ok Sk ok ok Sk k ok Sk sk Sk ok ok Sk ke ok kK ok ok Sk ok Sk Sk ok ok ks sk k ke ok Sk ok ok Sk sk sk sk sk sk k ok ok sk ke ke k sk ok sk sk sk sk skok ok sk ok k

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost,
if you receive it and you are not the intended recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited. The infoprf)ation, cgntained in this email, including any
attachment sent with it, may be subject to a statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to health service maft¢

sender by telephone collect on

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in error, you are asked to im n
puter system network and destroy any

Australia +61 1800 198 175 or by return email. You should also delete this email, and any copies, fr
hard copies produced.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) ik L y form of disclosure, modification,
distribution and/or publication of this email is also prohibited.

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not coptai i oftware, Queensland Health does not accept
responsibility for the consequences if any person's computer inadvertently suffers any’disruptip ices, loss of information, harm or is infected with a
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S. 735.73

s. /3

From: $.73

Sent: Tuesday, 11 February 2014 1:07 PM
To: s. 73

CC: s.73

Subject: Re: QCOHS paper for QH review

Hi|s73]

Thanks for that. 9.30 SA time (9.00 Qld time) would be fine with us.
We'll phone you on J&§73° | er if that suits.

Talk to you then

$.73
Sent from my iPad

On 11 Feb 2014, at 11:18 am, I° '°

S. /3
Dear s.73

s.73 @adelaide.edu.au> wrote:
Please find attached a drafted manuscript using QCOHS baselpe v@ YOu have seen these results
when %.783| | presented in Brisbane. We have put entific publication.

As per Agreement with QH, we are to provide publicati6 fts 40 QH for review.

| tried to call you earlier but s73vas not there. be available tomorrow morning for
a teleconf.
A start at 9.30 or 10.00 AM our time would be/j
Please confirm.

| will also send a draft of proposal fg for discussion tomorrow.

Kind regards
Ss.73

Associate Professor! Ss.?§' |
ARCPOH, School of DeAi
The University of Adelafde, Aus

Phone: +61 8 8313 2964

Fax: +61 8 831 f470 !

Email: | 5733 @adelaide/eduan
N

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH
The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M

IMPORTANT: This message may contain confidential or legally privileged information. If you think
it was sent to you by mistake, please delete all copies and advise the sender. For the purposes of
the SPAM Act 2003, this email is authorised by The University of Adelaide.

Think green: read on the screen
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S. /3

s.73
From: S- 1873
Sent: 2014 1:52 PM
To: S 13 573
Subject: RE: QCOHS paper
Hilss/73

Yes | did send a copy to the CHO just for information rather than clearing as | knew she would have an interest in the
findings of the research, however | didn’t hear back from her.
Regards
s. /3
s.73

Acting Chief Dental Officer

17 February — 18 April 2014

Office of the Chief Dental Officer | Health Service and Clinical Innovation Divi
Department of Health | Queensland Government

15 Butterfield St Herston QLD 4006

t. 07 3328 9271

m.!S. 73 s.73

elS. £¥3  (@health.qgld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

Eust-:-mers- first Ideas imto action O Unleash potentia

Great state. Great oppertunity.

#ous OEmpmerpeupl& Queensland

aovernment

From: [S- 73 573 ailto:;jo!S- /873 4
Sent: Monday, 17 March 2014 11:34 AM
To:iS /$73

Subject: RE: QCOHS paper

S.73
Can | ask whether the ML QCOHS
supportive of an extension to t

Regards,
s. 73

passed on the Chief Health Officer. | am keen to build a core of people
xisting graqtor some new arrangement.

s.73

Australian Research Centre for Population Oral Health (ARCPOH)
School of Dentistry

THE UNIVERSITY OF ADELAIDE

SOUTH AUSTRALIA 5005 AUSTRALIA

Tel: +61 8 8313 5029 or 8313 5438 Fax: +61 8 8313 3070
Email[s- 7373 [@adelaide.edu.au

Location/Street Address:
Room 1.12, Level 1

122 Frome Street
ADELAIDE SA 5000

DOH-DL 1.4/1.5-0@hocoment vo.«



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

From: S /73 |mailtd:& 573 health.qgld.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 12 March 2014 1:04 PM

To:is. /3 s.73

Subject: FW: QCOHS paper

Hils. /$73
| have received approval from my DDG for your paper to be submitted for publicatig
Sorry | haven’t provide further info regarding options for QCOHS phase 2, but it hg
Kind regards

S. /3

2 feel free to progress this.
beeh/forgotten.

s.73

Acting Chief Dental Officer
17 February — 18 April 2014
Office of the Chief Dental Officer | Health Service and Clinical Iny
Department of Health | Queensland Government

15 Butterfield St Herston QLD 4006

t. 07 3328 9271

m_LS. /3 573

e.S- 673 (@health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.a O

7
)
Eustnmers- first Ideas imto action : = 4 Queensland

Government

Great state. Great oppartunity.

From: S &73

Sent: Thursday, 6 March 2014 PM
To: S /5 573

Sub

Hil S- &3

| have read your draft paper &ad also asked Midagb to review it.
| had no specific feedback — | thought it read well however | don’t have the technical knowledge to comment on the
stats. The findings are certainly compelling.

S’ b thought the paper was good but provide d the following feedback — It’s not clear in the paper whether
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

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocunert vo. 1



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

p: 0733289271 m:|S /343 e:|5 {73 | healthgld.gov.au

skesfeokokok skesfeskokokskokok stesfeskeskok skoskekokokskokokokokokokokok

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). This c¢n AltydS\not waived or lost, if you receive it
and you are not the intended recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited. The inform
with it, may be subject to a statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to health service matters.

ained in this email, including any attachment sent

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does nofsgontain ma 4 dre, Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the
consequences if any person's computer inadvertently suffers any disruption to serv ati arm or is infected with a virus, other malicious computer
programme or code that may occur as a consequence of receiving this email.

skesfeskokok sfesfeskokokskoskok
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S. 15573

From:

Sent: Friday, 11 April 2014 4:40 PM
To: B s.73 |
Subject: RE: Adelaide visit

Thanksl let you know.

Cheers
From:mailto:lt delaide.edu.au]

Sen PM
To:/s 73 s.73 |
Subject: RE: Adelaide visit

el

Thanks for confirming it.

and | have marked the time and date of your visit so we are good.

If you think you’d need more time, you could come earlier as well. | cAy(’s eeting.
The report would be ready by then.

Thanks

Associate Professo, BDS, MScDent, PhD \
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005

Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 8 8313 3070

EmailSs73 |@adelaide.edu.au
Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH \

The University of Adelaide

Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie Street)
ADELAIDE SA 5000

is authorised by The Univagsity of Adelaide.

Think green: read on the screen

From:S 73 [mailto’5" 573 | health.qld.gov.au]

Se
Tois '° 5.73 ]
Subject: Adelaide visit

HIS Gora |

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocumertvo. s



I've finalised my travel arrangements to Adelaide on 28/29 April, so if it still suits you both can we confirm a 9.30
meeting time on Tuesday 29 April at ARCPOH?

My next meeting is at 11am that day so | will probably have an hour or so. It would be good to see the final QCOHS
report if it is available by then and | will try to provide some new info regarding options for QCOHS phase 2.

Kind regards
s. /3
s.73

Acting Chief Dental Officer

17 February — 13 June 2014

Office of the Chief Dental Officer | Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division
Department of Health | Queensland Government

15 Butterfield St Herston QLD 4006

1. 07 3328 9271

m.. s. /3 s.73

e. S.- 633 _(@health.qld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

) e
STy
Eust-:-mers- first Ideas into action O Unleash potential EE}I Be courageous p f 7 Queensland

Government
Great state. Great oppartunity.

skesfeskokok skesfeskokokskokok stesfeskeskoisfestokokoskokokokokg

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use o nded recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it
and you are not the intended recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received thi ¢
198 175 or by return email. You should also delete this email, g

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute™sg ta
publication of this email is also prohibited.

g any action(s) that relies on it; any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable
consequences if any person's computer inadverte
programme or code that may occur as a conseg(l

>this email does not contain malicious software, Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the
suffers anydiSwyption to services, loss of information, harm or is infected with a virus, other malicious computer
e of receiving thig #mail.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represent$ only the views ef the sender and not the views of the Queensland Government.
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s. /3

s.73
From: S- 1973
Sent: 014 2:16 PM
To: $. 13 573
Subject: RE: QCOHS report

Great, no worries
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

m{S. /3 s73

els. {33 |@health.gld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au

Customers first Ideas into action Unleash potential
P

Great state. Great oppertunity.

Queensland

Ei le
mpowerpeop overnment

From:[s. 73573 ailto:loc! 5.73° delaide.edu.au]
Sent: Monday, 12 May 2014 12:38 PM
To: s /s73

Subject: RE: QCOHS report

Hi| 3787
We have sent you five boxes, totalling 75 copies™of the report.
Please let me know when you have received it.
Also, please let me know when the r tis released by Qld Health. It is currently under embargo here.
Cheers

SS9

Associate Professor| Ss/73 _ JBDS)

ARCPOH, School of Denifsy
The University of Adelafdé falia
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 8 8313 3070
Email: | s.783| @adelaide.edu.au

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

From: [mailto}B- 673 | health.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Monday, 12 May 2014 9:27 AM

To: s. /3

Sub report

Hi| % 73°

Great news. The reports can be sent to our office which is:

Office of the Chief Dental Officer
First Floor
15 Butterfield St

HERSTON QLD 4006 @
Thanks
Cheers @

s. 73
s.73

Department of Health | Queensland Government
15 Butterfield St Herston QLD 4006
t. 07 3328 9271

Acting Chief Dental Officer
17 February — 13 June 2014
Office of the Chief Dental Officer | Health Service and Clini novatiet! Division

m . (3
e.|° §73  (@health.qld.gov.au | www.health.

% iy
Eustnmersﬂrst Ideas imto al:tin 4 Queensland

Government

Great state. Great oppartunity.

From: 5 /%73 mailto{ld’
Sent: Friday, 9 May 2014,3; M
To:s. /3

Cc: S |

Subject: QCOHS repo

Dear $:73°

We have completed printing the QCOHS report.

Can you please let me know where we should courier the copies to?
Have a nice weekend

53,73

Associate Professor | $.733 |, BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocunent vo.s:



Fax: +61 8 8313 3070
Email: | %.733|@adelaide.eduau

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

skesfeskokok skesfeskokokskokok stesfeskeskok skoskekokokskokokokoikokokokok

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipjen
and you are not the intended recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

s). This ntiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited. i contained in this email, including any attachment sent
with it, may be subject to a statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to health service matters.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in error, you are as «- ediht¢ly notify the sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 1800
compwger €ystery

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views o

DOH-DL 14/15-0@%hocumentvo.s



S. 7§.73

From: S. 1873

Sent: Monday, 26 May 2014 4:45 PM
To: S. 135,73

Subject: RE: PDF of QCOHS report

Great, thanks|1g-743
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

m.|S. /3573

elS- 673 ([@health.gld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au

© Y
. Customers first Ideas into action Unleash potential @ 4

Great state. Great oppertunity.

From: S /3s.73 ailto:lod %.73° | delaide.edu.au]
Se 2014 4:39 PM
s.73

Cc
Subject: RE: PDF of QCOHS report

X

Queensland
4 Government

Empower people

Dear|%.78°
Please find the pdf file attached. | h dded ‘Under embargo’ to the title only. Do you think it’s enough?
Please let me know if further detaif¥ar

With thanks

2757

Associate Professor |§g<:7§ : Dent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentfs

The University of Adelaide} alia 5005

Phone: +61 8 8313 3964
Fax: +618 8313 3070
Email:| $.73°|adelaide.edu.au

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

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocunent vo.s



Think green: read on the screen

From: S ¢%3 |[mailto}5: 573 health.qgld.gov.au]
Sent: Monday, 26 May 2014 7:31 AM

To:s. /3

Cc:

Subject: PDF of QCOHS report

Importance: High

Hi Ss.‘7§3

s.73

Are you able to email me a PDF copy of the QCOHS report, preferably with “Under embargo” or something similar to
indicate it shouldn’t be circulated?

| need to provide this as part of the approval process.

Thanks
S. /3

s.73

Acting Chief Dental Officer
17 February — 13 June 2014
Office of the Chief Dental Officer | Health Service and Clinical Innovati
Department of Health | Queensland Government

15 Butterfield St Herston QLD 4006

t.0

m. S. /3 s.73

e.[s. 33 |@health.gld.gov.au | www.health.qgld.gov.au

Eust-:-mers- first Ideas imto action O

Great state. Great oppertunity.

Government

This email, including any attachments sent wi
and you are not the intended recipient(s), or y

is confidential ai r the sole use of the intended recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it
itted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclgsure
with it, may be subject to a statutory dupy

distribution or teyfew of this email is strictly prohibited. The information contained in this email, including any attachment sent
olfidentiality if it relates to health service matters.

If you are not the intended recipéen
198 175 or by return email. You sheylda

ave+eCeived this email in error, you are asked to immediately notify the sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 1800
0 delete this email, and any copies, from your computer system network and destroy any hard copies produced.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you I
publication of this email is also prohibited.

St not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it; any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or

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

skesfeskokok skesfeskokokskokok stesfeske ki sfe stk skosksteskokok solokokokskok
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S. (3473

From: S- 7573

Sent: Friday, 6 June 2014 8:06 AM

To: S. /3

Cc: s.73

Subject: Re: Presenting QCOHS results at ANZ IADR Brisbane
Hi %:7%3

No,|S 73°In't be presenting.
Will give the topic some thought and get back to you soon.
Cheers

%73

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone on the Telstra NextG network.
From: s /3573

Sent: Friday, 6 June 2014 7:59 AM

Tois 73

Subject: RE: Presenting QCOHS results at ANZ IADR Brisbane

HSZ Q

Thanks for sharing your thoughts. ‘)

| can understand that. If there was a symposium, ACRPO |d heed’ 6 contribute several speakers too. However,
if you feel a symposium would be too much then we’d go wit mal presentations.

willl §:7841s0 present or only you?

Also, do you have any topic in mind? | thinking lookin gh the report would give plenty of ideas.

Please let me know and we will go from there.

Cheers

%.73°

Associate Professor| Ss.73 |BDS, MScD hD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australi 05
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +618 8313 3070

Emaili 5s.73 |@adelaide.edu.

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

From:[S (%5 |[mailto > s @health.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 5 June 2014 10:49 PM

DOH-DL 1.4/15-0@hecoment vo.s



To: S. /3
Cc:
Subject: Re: Presenting QCOHS results at ANZ IADR Brisbane

s.73

Hi %:7%3

Thanks for your suggestion and enthusiasm however | caught up with f§vg rday and we both feel that the
symposium may be too much for QCOHS. Although the topic would be interesting and relevant for many QH
people, | couldn't be confident that we would actually get many people turning up on the day. And we are conscious
of the extra work for us and others.

So | am still keen to submit an abstract for a presentation or poster but not the symposium on this occasion.

Thanks again

$74|

Sent from my iPad

On 4 Jun 2014, at 7:15 pm, | S: /° s.73 [@adelaide.edu.au> wrote:

Dear all

| have been in contact with [Sr14.73 e Chair of the lo
Brisbane.

He told me that if we thought that QCOHS presentations wou
Health staff, then he would be able to assign a special time sl i
symposium on QCOHS. He’s thinking about 2-2.30 hour time

| would like to get your opinion on this. Of cours

a roffered papers is straightforward
but symposium would also be attractive. It wou r

ger message.

If we went ahead with a symposium,|8s/73d
increase participation at the conference.

In order to make a good symposium, we’d nee
§73{uld also be happy to deliver one. Joh$7s] onhfortunately, said no. | hope that 8781 d
change his mind. Anyone else from your side would be happy to talk?

We can have one or two more persons from ARCPOH to participate.

Do you think asking someone like|s. 7373 o chair the symposium and a panel discussion at
the end of the symposiu ould be a possibility?
Please discuss this issue

Many thanks
Ss.73

Associate ProfedsQr 53.‘733‘_.®MSCDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School i
The University of Adetaj
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964
Fax: +618 8313 3070
Email:| %.73° |(@adelaide.edu.au

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

From[mailto:-@ health.gld.gov.au]

Sent: June 2014 12:56 PM
To:/s. 73
Cc: S.73

Subject: RE: Presenting QCOHS results at ANZ IADR Brisbane

Thanks again, ill do.

cheers
>
From:|S- /3  s73 |@adelaide.edu.au] V
Sent: Tuesday, 3 June 2014 9:32 PM
To:s 73
cc: s.73
Subject: RE: Presenting QCOHS results at ANZ IADR Brisbane
Many thanks

It is great that you feel enthusiastic about that. It is very

that[§73] think so too. Jo t would be a byifliaqt

Disparities can be a good choice. We have plenty of op
It can be individual socioeconomic inequality, i alit
and many more.

| will be happy to prepare some results. The ab n o be up to 300 words.
Please keep in touch in the next few days to g for submission.
Cheers

2:75°

Associate Professor BDS, MScDent;RhB
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Aus 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 88313 3070

Email:@adelaid(/edma

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH

The University of Adeldi
Room 1.7, Level 1
122 Frome Street (
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
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ilto: S- 73 |@health.gld.gov.au \

From: | 73 |[mailto!S <

Tuesc@@y,
3 Je

2014

12:22 PM
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Cc:
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Su bJec@g:
RE:

Prentln
g QCOHS
results at
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ANZ TADR
Brisbane

Hil$73
I think that's a great idea. Definitely a good opportunity.

I'd really appreciate if you'd be willing to prepare some resulty/ ¥dhesappy to work on the abstract
with yoru guidance.

Did you have a particular topic in mind? After reading thro
day, I was reminded of the extent of data collected - we
Given the theme of the IADR meeting, oral health disp
report certainly highlighted plenty of disparities.
Happy to discuss. Thanks again f ging this t
By the way, I haven't spoken to| .73 about thi
Also, apologies for the delay in approval to rel
yesterday to discuss what approach we should
kind regards

73

(OHS report in detail the other
oice.

poft. I met with our communications team
Il keep you updated.

From: S /° 573 Dadelaide.2duau]
Sen A44PM N\
TO: S. /3 1
Cc: s
Subject: Presenting Q results NZ IADR Brisbane

s.73

Dear| °: 73s.73

ar conference of the International Association for Dental Research (IADR)
anels.733nd | thought it would be a great opportunity to air some of the

deadline for abstract submission is 10" of June. It is a bit tight but still doable.
Please let us know.
We would then prepare some results for your abstracts and presentations.

Look forward to hear from you

%733

Associate Professor | S.73 | BDS, MScDent, PhD
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry
The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005

DOH-DL 14/15-0@hocoment no.:



Phone: +61 8 8313 3964
Fax: +61 88313 3070
Email: S 73° |@adelaide.edu.au

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
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This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipien(s, onfidentiality is not waived
or lost, if you receive it and you are not the intended recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited. The infQriqfigh contajned in this email,
including any attachment sent with it, may be subject to a statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to health‘s¢ ¢ mAtylrs.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in error, you are asked to i djately ndtifyth€ sender by telephone
collect on Australia +61 1800 198 175 or by return email. You should also delete this email, and any'cdpies, frem your computer system network and
destroy any hard copies produced.
If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relte 3 any/fgrm of disclosure, modification,
distribution and/or publication of this email is also prohibited.
Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contai warC, Queensland Health does not accept
responsibility for the consequences if any person's computer inadvertently suffers any disry oss of information, harm or is infected
with a virus, other mdlicious computer programme or code that may occur as a consequenc of ye A TS email.
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S.73
From: S 573
Sent: Tuesday, 10 June 2014 8:59 AM
To: s. /3
Cc: s73 bigpond.net.a u
Subject: RE: IADR ANZ 2014

Hil $.731
Thanks so much for doing this. You guessed correctly regarding my level of preparedness.
| will submit this today.

Kind regards
S. /3

s.73
Acting Chief Dental Officer
17 February — 13 June 2014

Office of the Chief Dental Officer | Health Service and Clinical Innovation Diyigio
Department of Health | Queensland Government

15 Butterfield St Herston QLD 4006

t. 07 3328 9271

m |S. /3573

e.ls- Jﬁ %ealth.qld.qov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

@ wrs:
{ Sy
Eust-:-mers- first Ideas imto action O Unleash potenti . 5 Q Empower people ! 7 Queensland

WERT Govemment

(B Courageous

Great state. Great oppertunity.

From:|S 7373 ailto:lod %.73° |delaide.edwau]
Sent: Monday, 9 June 2014 7:01 PM
To:!s. 73 s.73
Subject: IADR ANZ 2014

NN

Hi|s7d]
| am mindful of the submission deadline, w is tomorrow. | know that you are busy and don’t have data at hand.
Therefore, | took liberty to draft sabstract as attached.
Please have a look to see if it suits. If ave already drafted up something else please let me know.

s
S. [3
s.73

Associate Professor| Ss. 73 | BDS) Dent, PhD
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

Department RecFind No: HC002719
Division/HHS OCDO
File Ref No:

Briefing Note for Approval

Deputy Director-General, Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division

Requested by: Date requested: 7 March 2014  Action required by: 14 March 2014

SUBJECT: Queensland Child Oral Health Survey publication proposal

Proposal
That the Deputy Director-General, Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division:

Approve a request from the University of Adelaide to sub earch paper for
publication which evaluates the extension of water fluorida ueensland (see

Attachment 1).
Urgency
1. Routine
Key issues
2. The Australian Research Centre for Population ARPCOH), the University of

Adelaide, has written a research paper which ai
a. Estimate the effectiveness of waterfluori reventing dental decay; and,
resuto

b. Predict changes in caries experienc f the extension of water fluoridation
in Queensland.

ing the Queensland Child Oral Health
ensland Health in collaboration with the

University of Adelaide under a fupding~agreeme )

4. Section 14.1 of the agreement 8 "i at the University must provide a draft version of the
article to Queensland Health Ng
publication.

vfitten consent prior to submitting a proposed

scientific jgurnal, for example, the Medical Journal of Australia.
brief overview of the history of water fluoridation in Australia

that of Tawwsville children.

8. The primary conctugion of the paper is that these findings support the rationale for the
extension of water fluoridation in Queensland as a population health measure.

9. The paper acknowledges that the study was supported by a research grant from the
Queensland Government, with in-kind support by the (then) Health Services Districts and
the Office of Chief Dental Officer (OCDO).

Background

10. Following the Queensland Government’s decision in 2007 to implement water fluoridation,
the (then) Premier and Minister for Health decided that the oral health benefits to
Queensland’s population should be evaluated.

11. QCOHS was proposed for this purpose and the project commenced in 2009. QCOHS
involved oral examinations and parental questionnaires for over 5,000 Queensland children
aged from 5 to 14 years.

DOH-DL 14/15-0@kocument no. o7



Page 2 of 3

Department RecFind No: HC002719
Division/HHS OCDO
File Ref No:

12. Another proposed publication from QCOHS is the study report. A draft report was submitted
to OCDO for review in November 2013 and draft findings were presented to DDG HSCI.

13. The final QCOHS report is expected from ARCPOH in the near future and OCDO will seek
approval from the Minister for public release of the report.

14. A five year follow up of QCOHS is planned to be conducted to confirm the effectiveness of
water fluoridation in preventing dental decay in Queensland children.

Consultation
15. Not applicable

Financial implications

16. There are no financial implications.
Legal implications

17. There are no legal implications.

Attachments

18. Attachment 1: Draft research paper “Baseline evaluati on of water fluoridation in
Queensland - a multilevel analysis”

Attachment 2: Funding agreement between Queensl ealth and the University of
Adelaide. @

AN
Q*
D
Q-

DOH-DL 14/15-0@%kocument no.cs
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Department RecFind No: HC002719
Division/HHS OCDO
File Ref No:

Recommendation

That the Deputy Director-General, Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division

Approve a request from the University of Adelaide to submit a research paper for
publication which evaluates the extension of water fluoridation in Queensland (see

Attachment 1).

s.73

Deputy Director-General, Health Service and
Clinical Innovation Division

11/03/2014
Deputy Director-General, Health Service and Clinical Ipreyats vision comments
(( 2/ A
~r N/ )
NN
VAN
/\w
Cleared by: (SD/D/f)
S. 13573 S. £33
Acting Chief Dental Acting Chief Dental
Officer Officer
Office of the Chief Dental Office of the ChieNQental
Officer Officer
3328 9271
7 March 2014 S. 135,73

7 March 2014

DOH-DL 14/15-0@%kocument no.es




Baseline evaluation of extension of water fluoridation in Queensland-a multilevel
analysis

Authors
S. /3
s.73

Australian Research Centre for Population Oral Health
The University of Adelaide, Australia

CORRESPONDING AUTH @
Associate Professor| °* 573
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry
The University of Adelaide

Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964
Fax: 8313 3070

Email:| Ss%3 @adelaide.edu.au

DOH-DL 14/15-0@kocument no. 7o



Abstract

Background: Water fluoridation was greatly extended in Queensland, Australia,
across 2009-11. As the effectiveness of water fluoridation is frequently contested in
public debate, a research program was commenced to inform the rationale for and the

outcome of Queensland’s water fluoridation program.

Aims: To estimate the effectiveness of water fluoridation in preventing caries and to
predict changes in caries experience as a result of the extension of fluoridation in

Queensland.

Methods: Queensland children were selected through a stratifie om sample

selection in 2009-2011. Oral epidemiological examination d individual-level

multivariable models were sequentially specifig

=

dmfs/DMES to estimate rate ratios (RR). effe

fluoridation was evaluated in the full mo ling for other factors.

Results: Data from 2,214 5-8 year-old 3,186 9—14 year-olds from 207 schools in
verage dmfs was 4.23 and DMFS 1.47. The

ghce were observed in long-term fluoridated

ontrol. In bivariate associations, factors at

that of Townswilte _children.

Conclusion: Comparison of caries experience of children at the time of the extension
of water fluoridation in Queensland supported the rationale for this population health

measure.

D@ H ='D L 14/15=©@ﬂ£ocument No. 71



Introduction

Water fluoridation was first implemented in Australia in 1953 in Beaconsfield,
Tasmania (Crisp, 1968). Although it was a decade later for the first capital cities,
Hobart and Canberra, to follow suit, water fluoridation has gone on to be the
cornerstone of public health efforts to prevent dental caries (Spencer 1984; NHMRC
2007). By the 1970s approximately 2/3rds of Australians lived in an area with water
fluoridation (Spencer 1984). That situation remained largely unchanged until the 2000
decade when New South Wales and Victoria actively pursued the extension of water

fluoridation within each state (Armfield 2006). However, it was

to mandate fluoridation in Queensland that moved Australia into

coverage by fluoridation (Queensland Government 2008).

Early decisions on the implementation of water fluorid3
international literature showing a dose-response assos#y

sectional studies (Dean et al. 1941) and benefit j reverntion of dental caries for

children in non-randomized controlled infatven efore and after studies like the
first such trial in Grand Rapids, Michigan, hich commenced in 1945 (Dean et

xperience of children in areas where

fluoridation was implemented weutdhdestease/4cross time while it would remain

comparison non- tdated areas available because most areas will already be

caries experiencejs,hypothesized to decrease until it is similar to that of already

fluoridated areas.

The requirement for evaluating the effectiveness of water fluoridation in a positive
comparison scenario are that the newly fluoridated areas begins with higher caries
experience than the already fluoridated area and that over time caries experience

decreases in the newly fluoridated areas. Queensland had only one substantial sub-

population with already existing fluoridation, the city of Townsville which was
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fluoridated in 1965 (Videroni et al. 1976). Townsville, which is 4% of the Queensland
population acts as a positive comparison at the commencement of water fluoridation
for the rest of the state and across time. Across 2009-11 an increasing proportion of
the Queensland population, including the most populous South-East areas, has been
continuously receiving fluoridated water. This situation has created an opportunity to
comprehensively evaluate the effectiveness of water fluoridation using a positive
controlled before-and-after intervention design, which is one of the most important

study designs where randomisation is not feasible or ethical.

the area-level are subject to confounding and effect modifi
identified confounders are individual-level socio-demg
factors (Diez-Roux et al. 2000; Merlo et al. 2004; Di 8). Prominent effect

modifiers include individual-level extrinsic suga 1on (Rugg-Gunn and

Hacket 1993; Marshall et al. 2003) and exposure @/ fluorides from other sources than

the water supply (Slade et al. 2006; Do an 007). Multi-level analysis has

been identified as an analysis that allow, g@sm of the area-level association of
on

water fluoridation as a population inter ’ ile at the same time investigating

the contribution of individual-} @ gtors to between area differences. Such special
tafent@ dccount for within-area correlations in individual-

level health outcomes that persist afte

analytic methods are approp

individual-level and area-level factors are

evel comparisons of caries experience at the

beginning of th idation program in Queensland and provides a basis for

So the purpose of this study was to establish the baseline comparisons of caries
experience in areas of Queensland that implemented fluoridation between 2009 and
2011 and the existing positive fluoridated comparison area of Townsville. The
specific hypothesis was that child caries experience in the long-term fluoridated
Townsville was better than the remaining areas of the state, controlling for socio-
economic status, oral health behaviours such as tooth brushing and dental visiting and

dietary risk factors. A further aim was to estimate levels of child caries experience of
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Queensland children who will reach a full lifetime in newly fluoridated areas over the

next decade and a half.
Materials and methods
Study design and sample selection

The Queensland Child Oral Health Survey (QCOHS) 2010-11 was a cross-sectional
survey of the 5-14 year old population in Queensland. To draw a representative

sample of children, a stratified 2-stage sample design was implemented.

Queensland was subdivided into 16 areas. Townsville was the o ridated area.

Other areas were defined as all regions in Queensland includin ¢ tan areas,

rural cities and rural towns that did not have water fluorid

scheduled to be fluoridated by end 2011. Schools from

that declined to participate

were replaced, where possible, by anothef-schy m within the same stratum. A

cluster of children was sampled from eg

The primg ,@ e-was dental caries experience measured as a count of decayed,
missing or filed\primary or permanent tooth surfaces (dmfs/DMFS). Dental caries
experience was cotlected through oral epidemiological examinations by 21 dental
examiners. Didactic and clinical training for the examination teams were conducted.
Frequent refresher sessions were also provided. Examinations were held in fixed or
mobile dental clinics under standardised conditions. Examinations were directly

recorded onto specially designed MS Access database.

D@ H ='D L 14/15=©@ﬂ£ocument No. 74



A parental questionnaire was used to collect socioeconomic status, oral health
behaviours and practices and use of dental services. The highest level of education
attainment of either parent was used to group children into three groups: school only;
vocational training; and tertiary education. Annual household income was collected to
group children into three groups: low (<$60,000); medium ($60,000-<$120,000) and
high ($120,000+). Use of discretionary sources of fluoride, frequency of sugary

drinks and use of dental services were also collected and included in the analysis.

Analytical plan

The sampling design had a hieratical structure that drove the anal

1). Individual children (Ievel 1) were nested within schools

type was a school-level factor and fluoridation vas assigned as an area-level

factor.

Multilevel models

Three-level multivariable multilevel m were fitted for the primary outcome
variables using multilevel soft ersion 2.28. Nonlinear estimation was

are MLwi
i ftfonal a

negative binomial because of skewngss of these count variables (Preisser et al. 2012).

used in the models with the & ssumption for dmfs/DMFS scores as

The final estimation pro re in the models was the 2" order predictive quasi-

into the mode sheck for effect size and random variations. Further, factors at
individual-, school- and area-level were sequentially entered into the models. To
answer the research questions of this study, we present estimates of the reference
model, models with the individual and school-level factors and full models with

factors at all three levels.

The fixed effects were presented as rate ratios and 95% confidence intervals (95% CI)

against the reference category of each factor. We estimated area-level residuals to

DOH-DL 14/15-0@%kocument no.7s



rank areas by level of caries experience with the Queensland averaged level of caries
experience as reference. This ranking allows for investigating geographical

differences in health (Merlo et al. 2005).
Results

There were 2,214 children aged 5-8 years and 3,186 children aged 9—14 years
included in the analysis (Table 1). Socio-demographic characteristics of the two age

groups were similarly distributed. Less than 20% had ever used a fluoride supplement,

but most began brushing their teeth with fluoridated toothpaste be 8 months of
age. Over 70% of children were reported to be now brushing the tWice daily.
The vast majority made their first dental visit between 3-5 y; old: e 11% of the
younger age group reportedly had 4 or more sugary drinks While this proportion

was over 19% in the older age group.

The average dmfs and DMFS were 4.23 and 1.47 su ac@ fhe respective age

socioeconomic status and different oral h

three levels were associated with dental

had 1 or fewer sugary drink a day. Those who lived in
{lfe had ificantly lower caries experience than their

oridated areas in the unadjusted comparisons.

school-level factors and the full model. These were parental education, household
income, age of commencement of fluoride toothpaste use and use of sugary drinks. In
the full model, children who reportedly had 4 or more sugary drinks a day had 1.60
times the count of dmfs score than those who had 1 or fewer sugary drink a day. The
school-level factor, school type, was significantly associated with caries experience in

both models. The full model showed that water fluoridation status at the area level
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was a significant factor in explaining variation in caries experience in the primary
dentition. Children in fluoridated area had 0.61 times the count of dmfs compared

with children in non-fluoridated areas.

Similar findings were observed in caries experience of the permanent dentition (Table
4). The individual-level factors associated with DMFS score were parental education,
household income, brushing frequency and use of sugary drinks. A socioeconomic
gradient in child oral health was observed with children from the low socioeconomic
group experiencing poorer oral health than those from higher socioeconomic groups.

permanent caries experience. Water fluoridation status at area-level was

The school-level factor was not statistically significant in explaiy drigtion in

Associated
with caries experience in the permanent dentition. Children fn oridated area had
significantly lower rate (0.60) of caries than that among-th non-fluoridated

areas.

The 16 areas of Queensland varied in the experi demtal caries in both primary

(Figure 2a) and permanent dentitions (Figuce 2 e yeference models showed that

children in fluoridated Townsville had signi a lower rate of caries (dmfs and
DMES) than the state average. The indy
explain that difference. The carigs
significantly below the state g
reference model. However, thexulldnodels showed that given equal fluoridation status
across all areas, the Queensland average of caries experience would be at or slightly

below the current leyel o ies experience observed in the Townsville children.

Discussion

The findingy0f+
children } z@

standing fluoridated area, Townsville. Therefore the results provide contemporary

is study document the oral health disadvantage that Queensland

non-fidoridated areas experienced in comparison to the only long

support for the decision mandate the fluoridation of water supplies across the State.

The strengths of these data are the population sampling strategy which ensured that
the findings can represent the children of the whole State, the emphasis placed on the
calibration of the examining teams and the high level of reliability of the oral health

data collected. The strength of the analysis performed is that a range of confounding
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or modifying factors at an individual- and school-level were available to use in an

appropriate multi-level analysis.

The findings of this study are in concordance with research from the early 1990s that
showed children who were continuous residents of Brisbane had considerably higher
caries experience than their counterparts in Townsville (Slade et al. 1996). Not only
did a higher percentage of Brisbane children have caries, their experience was also
more severe. These findings were supported by data from across the 1990s in
Queensland and South Australia showed that children without access to water

fluoridation developed new caries at a higher rate over a three-yg

who did have access (Spencer et al. 2008). Recently, researc
between sweetened beverage consumption and exposure t
that in four states, including Queensland, children witheu

protection against the former, causing increased caries§ eld et al. 2013).

While some limitations exist, such as self-repor reof’data on socioeconomic

and health behavioural factors and cross-§ectional"matuge/of the data, the findings
present strong evidence of effectiveness of w uoridation in preventing dental
caries in children.

This analysis predicts decreaseyin-the\caries experience of Queensland children in
previously non-fluoridated are @ e

observed in fluoridated Townsvile when controlling for variation of individual- and

school-level factors. T imination of the disadvantage in oral health of children in
previously non-flugfidated against the better oral health of children in

1992, to u'

2009). It fownd that caries experience among 5-8-year-old children in Hawkesbury

remained almost trchanged from 1993 to 2003 (2.99 to 2.79 teeth per child), but

equal to or even slightly better than those

area, which had been fluoridated in 1968 (Evans et al.

across the same period in the Blue Mountains, caries experience fell from 4.22 to 2.48
affected teeth per child. Similarly, among 8-11-year-olds, caries experience in the
Blue Mountains children fell from 2.21 to 1.73 teeth while that of the control group of
Hawkesbury children remained unchanged (1.96 and 1.92 teeth). The analysis of this

current study predicted similar falls in Queensland’s recently fluoridated areas.
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To conclude, the rationale of the recent extension of water fluoridation in Queensland
has been strongly supported by findings of this analysis. Subsequent stages of the
planned before-and-after comparative study design are planned to be conducted to
confirm the effectiveness of water fluoridation in preventing dental caries in

Queensland children.
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Table 1: Individual-, school- and area-level characteristics of the study sample of 5-8 and 9-14 year old children in

Queensland
Primary dentition Permanent dentition
Aged 5-8 years Aged 9-14 years
Individual factors
Age, n; mean (SE) 2214 6.5 (0.03) 3186 11.5 (0.10)
Sex, n; w% (SE)
Male 1107 51.2 (1.3) 1618 51.5 (1.5)
Female 1107 48.8 (1.3) 1568 48.5 (1.5)
Indigenous status, n; w% (SE)
Indigenous 135 5.2(1.0) 175 4.9 (0.8)
Non-Indigenous 2079 94.8 (1.0) 3011 95.1 (0.8)
Household income, n; w% (SE)
Low 657 33.1(2.2) 10 36.8 (1.6)
Medium 1026 45.9 (1.7) 1379 42.7 (1.3)
High 417 21.0 (1.6) 6 20.5 (1.4)
Parental education, n; w% (SE)
School only 589 26.7 (1.9 28.8 (1.4)
Vocational 449 20.8 (14 540 20.0 (1.0)
University 1111 1544 51.2 (1.8)
Brushing frequency, n; w% (SE)
<2times/day 603 / 854 27.0 (1.2)
2+ times/day 1576 34 2270 73.0 (1.2)
Use F supplements, n; w% (SE)
Ever used 475 18.0 (1.0)
Never used 2697 82.0 (1.0)
Age first used F toothpaste, n; w% (
Before or at 18 mos 1773 56.7 (1.2)
19-30 mos 793 23.9 (1.0)
After 30 mos 620 19.4 (1.1)
Age of first dental visit
First 2 years 393 20.2 (0.9) 586 20.2 (0.9)
Aged 3-5 years 1149 52.3 (1.4) 1863 52.3 (1.4)
Aged 6+ or never 649 27.5(1.5) 689 27.5 (1.5)
Sugary drinks
1398 64.0 (1.7) 1733 56.7 (1.2)
586 249 (1.2) 793 23.8 (0.9)
230 11.0 (1.2) 620 19.4 (1.1)
School type
Public 1533 66.5 (4.7) 2085 64.8 (4.2)
Independent 442 19.2 (4.4) 680 19.1 (3.4)
Catholic 239 14.4 (3.8) 420 16.0 (3.7)
Area-level factors
Fluoridation status
Fluoridated 769 5.2(0.7) 918 5.3 (0.6)
Non-fluoridated 1445 94.8 (0.7) 2268 94.7 (0.6)

W¢%: Weighted column percentage; SE: Standard error of estimates. A number of variables have missing cases.
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Table 2: Distribution of primary and permanent dentition caries experience in the Queensland child population

Primary dentition Permanent dentition
Aged 5-8 years Aged 9-14 years
Mean dmfs 95% ClI Mean DMFS 95% ClI

Total 4.23 3.73-4.74 1.47 1.29-1.66
Indigenous status

Indigenous 7.72 5.26-10.18 2.05 1.17-2.92

Non-Indigenous 4.04 3.59-4.48 1.44 1.27-1.62
Household income

Low 5.83 5.08-6.59 1.73 1.46-2.00

Medium 3.49 2.78-4.20 1.11-1.58

High 2.99 2.29-3.69 @ 0.84-1.42
Parental education

School only 6.28 5.15-7.41 2. 1.71-2.50

Vocational 3.66 2.78-4.55 9 1.04-1.53

University 3.33 .13 0.95-1.31
Brushing frequency

<2times/day 4.74 1.76 1.45-2.06

2+ times/day 3.95 1.34 1.14-1.54
Use F supplements

Ever used 3.20 1.09 0.82-1.35

Never used 4 1.55 1.35-1.76

Age first used F toothpaste

Before or at 18 mos 3. 2.72-3.85 1.25 1.07-1.43

19-30 mos 4.58 3.53-5.64 1.56 1.25-1.87

After 30 mos 7.29 5.71-8.87 2.01 1.49-2.53
Age of first dental visit

First 2 years 3.97 3.10-4.84 1.35 1.08-1.61
Aged 3-5 years 4.74 4.08-5.41 1.51 1.32-1.70
Aged 6+ or never 3.46 2.62-4.31 1.40 1.03-1.77

Sugary drinks
0-1 drinks/day 3.43 2.85-4.02 1.19 1.03-1.35
2-3 drinks/d 4.9 4.13-5.69 1.59 1.30-1.88
4+ drinks 7.32 5.56-9.09 2.38 1.73-3.03
School type
Public 4.74 4.07-5.41 1.58 1.34-1.82
Independent 3.45 2.21-4.70 1.18 0.87-1.48
Catholic 2.92 2.07-3.77 1.40 0.85-1.94
Fluoridation status
Fluoridated 2.75 2.16-3.34 0.82 0.65-0.99
Non-fluoridated 4.31 3.79-4.84 1.51 1.31-1.71

dmfs: decayed, missing or filled primary tooth surfaces
DMFS: decayed, missing or filled permanent tooth surfaces.
Mean dmfs/DMFS adjusted for multilevel structure.
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Table 3: Multilevel multivariable model for count of decayed, missing or filled primary tooth surfaces (dmfs) among
children aged 5-8 years

Reference Model with Full model
model individual and
school factors
Fixed effects RR RR Reference
95% Cl 95% Cl group
Individual level factors
Indigenous status Non-
Indigenous 1.37 (0.95-1.98) 140 (0.97-203)  'ndigenous
Household income
Low 1.62 (1.24-2.12)* 1.62 (1.24-2.11)* High
Medium 1.17 (0.92-1.47)
Parental education
School only 1.30 (1.05-1.62)" University
Vocational 1.09 (0.87-1.37)
Brushing frequency
2+times/day 0.84 (0.69-1.02) <2times/day

F supplements use

Never used .24 (0.93-1.65) Ever used
Age first used F toothpaste
0.79 (0.64-0.97)* 18-30 mos

1.29 (0.98-1.71)

Before or at 18 mos
After 30 mos

Age of first dental visit After age 6 yrs

First 2 years 1.93 (1.47-2.53)+  °rnever
Aged 3-5 years 1.79 (1.46-2.19) 1.77 (1.44-2.17)

Sugary drinks
2-3 drinks/day 1.43 (1.18-1.75)* 1.43 (1.17-1.74)* 0-1 drinks/day
4+ drinks/day .61 (1.19-2.18)* 1.60 (1.18-2.16)*

School-level factors

School type
Independent 0.68 (0.54-0.86)" 0.69 (0.55-0.86)" Public
Catholic 0.78 (0.58-1.04) 0.74 (0.56-0.99)*

Area-level fa

Fluoridated area 0.61 (0.44-0.82)* Non-F areas

Random coefficients, p (SE)
Area level 0.047 (0.028) 0.044 (0.022) 0.025 (0.017)
School level 0.125 (0.029) 0.004 (0.013) 0.004 (0.017)

Multilevel multivariable models for negative binomial distribution of count of dmfs.
*: Statistically significant estimates.

Reference model: with Age and Sex only.

Other factors in the models: Age, Sex

RR: Rate Ratio; 95% Cl: 95% confidence intervals.
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Table 4: Multilevel multivariable model for count of decayed, missing or filled permanent tooth surfaces (DMFS)
among children aged 9-14 years

Reference model Model with Full model
individual and
school factors

Fixed effects RR RR Reference
(95% Cl) (95% Cl) group
Individual level factors
Indigenous status, n; w% (SE) Non-Indigenous
Indigenous 1.23 (0.87-1.73) 1.22 (0.87-1.71)
Household income
Low 1.20 (0.95-1.52) High
Medium 1.02 (0.83-1.26)
Parental education
School only 1.33 (1.10-1.61)" University
Vocational 1.15 (0.94-1.41)
Brushing frequency
2+times/day 0.81 (0.68-0.97)* @ 68-0.97)* <2 times/day
F supplements use

Never used 1.17 (0.94 1.18 (0.95-1.47) Ever used

F application
No 0.81 (0:67~Q.97) 0.81 (0.67-0.97)*  Yes

Age first used F toothpaste
Before or at 18 mos
After 30 mos

Age of first dental visit

0.89 (0.74-1.07) 18-30 mos
1.24 (0.98-1.56)
After age 6 yrs

First 2 years 1.15 (0.89-1.49) 1.15(0.89-1.49)  °"Mnever
Aged 3-5 years 1.14 (0.93-1.39) 1.14 (0.93-1.39)

Sugary drinks
2-3 drinks/day 1.05 (0.88-1.24) 1.05 (0.88-1.24) 0-1 drinks/day
4+ drinks/day 1.27 (1.00-1.62)* 1.28 (1.00-1.63)*

School-level facto

School type
Independ 0.98 (0.77-1.24) 0.97 (0.76-1.23) Public
Catholic 0.96 (0.71-1.30) 0.95 (0.71-1.28)

Area-level factor

Fluoridation status
Fluoridated 0.60 (0.42-0.88)* Non-fluoridated

Random coefficients, p (SE)
Area level 0.020 (0.021) 0.052 (0.033) 0.024 (0.022)
School level 0.235 (0.047) 0.116 (0.043) 0.115 (0.043)

Multilevel multivariable models for negative binomial distribution of count of DMFS.
Reference model: with Age and Sex only.

Other factors in the models: Age and Sex.

RR: Rate Ratio; 95% Cl: 95% confidence interval
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Figure 2b: Rank of the 16 areas relative to Queensland average of dental caries experience in the permanent dentition predicted by models
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THIS AGREEMENT is made this day of 2010,

BETWEEN:

State of Queensland, acting through Queensland Health, of 147-163 Charlolte Street, Brisbane in the
State of Queensland ("Queenstand Health®)

AND:

The Unlversity of Adelaide c/- Austratian Research Centre for Population Ors
Dentistry, The University of Adelaide of Level 1, 122 Frome Street, Adelalde
Australia {"the University") | '

RECITALS:

A The parties Intend to collaborate in a project involvi
oral health in Queensland: . This Agreement will
surveys. Queensland Health has agreed to prov

. cross-seclional survey.

C The University agrees to acce
D The Funding is provided on

THE PARTIES AGREE A LOWS:
1 INTERP N

1.1 amyent unless the contrary intention appears, the following words and phrases

g following meanings:
means this Agreement and any schedules aftached to this Agreement.
"Budget" means the budget set out in Schedule 2,

"Gommencement Date" means the date of execution of this Agreement by the parties and If

not executed by the parties on the same date, means the later of lhé dates of execulion.

sGonfldential Information* means the information of the Discloser in whatever form that the
Discloser deslgnates as confidential, that is by its nature confidential, or which the Recipient
knows or ought fo know is confidential, and includes:
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{a) Personal Informatibn held by the Discloser,

{0)] all dental and other records the Discloser creates and keeps in relation to survey
parlicipants including Survey Data; .

(c) information acquired by the Reclplent in the course of discussions and negotiations
between the parties or between the officers, employees or contractors of the parties;

(d) all notes, calculations, memoranda, reports, documents, communlcations relating to,
and capies of, the information specified in (a) to (c) ;

(e) information comprising in or relating o any Intellsctual Property rights (whether
registered or unregistered) of the Discloser Including any trade secrets,
methodologles or know-how of the Discloser,

{n documents and information discussed or exchanged in dispt
clause 28 of this Agreemen;

but, except in the case of Personal Informalion, does not include i

(a) in the public domain as at the date of this Agreement;

(b).  thatis or becomes generally available to the publi

{c) that becomes available to the Recipient g
other than the Discloser which h :

disclose such information.

"Discloser” means;

(a)

Rese (3 a0t be applicable nor apply in this respect.

"Intellectual Pro perty".or"lP" Includes:

(a) all copyright and neighbouring rights (including moral rights), and all rights in relation
to inventions (including patents), plant varieties, registered and unregistered trade
marks, registered designs, confidential Information (including trade secretsand
know-how) and circuit layouls, computer program or a right to apply or application for
any of the foregoing and all other rights resulting from intellectual activity in the
induslrial, sclentific, literary or attistic flelds; and

(b) all developments or improvements to, additions to or alterations to the Intellectual
Property described in paragraph (a) above. ’

“Member Organisation” means research groups and units affiliated with the Universily who
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participate and collaborate with the University in the Projéct. '
"(Milestones" means the Project milestones speclfled in the orlginat Research Plan.

"Moral RIghts" means moral rights as described in Part X of the Copyright Act 1968 (Cth)
and any analogous rights arising under statute that exist, or may come to exist, anywhere In
thie world. :

"New Project Material" means any material that is created, written or otherwise brought
into existence by or on behalf of the Universlty in the course of undertaking the Project
excluding the Reports, the Survey Data and any dental records of a survey participant
which Identifies that survey participant. :

"Perlodic Financial Report" means a perlodic financial report as re ¥
clause 6.11 {i).

"Parsonal Informatlon™ means information or an opinion {in¢lydingin ation or an opinion
forming part of a database), whether true or not, and whether recerded/n a material form or
not about an individual whose identity is apparent, or cante :

information or opinion.

"Project” means the research undertaken by the Y sityNas gpecified in the
Research Pian.

ajburnal, portion of a book,

ontain Confidential Informatfon and
ily's-dnalysis of the Survey Data (including
usiralian Institute of Health and Welfare).

"Publication” means any conference pap
hroadcast, or other means of disclosure, whi

cument outlining the core study including the study design,
horation, management and costs as set out in Schedule 3.

1.2 A reference to a person jncludes a reference to corporations and other entlties recognised
by law.

1.3 The singular includes the plural and vice versa.
1.4 Words Importing one gender include all other genders.

1.5 [n this Agreement the index and the headings to the clauses have been inserled for
convenlence of reference only and are not Intended to be part of or 0 affect the meaning or
interpretation of any of the terms and conditlons of this Agreement.
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16
1.7
1.8

1.9

1.10

21

4.1

51

_ ormore of:

© {d) a document expressly incorpo y y

A reference 1o a staluts, regulation, ordinance or by-law will be desmed to extend to all
statutes, regulations, ordinances or by-laws amending, consolidation or replacing it

Where a word or phrase Is given a defined meaning, another part of speech or other
grammatical form in respect of that word or phrase has a corresponding meaning.

A reference in this Agreement fo 'dollars’ or '$' means dollars and all amounts payable
under this Agreement are payable in Australlan dollars.

Where the day on or by which any act, matter or thing is to be done under this Agreement is a
Salurday, Sunday or public holiday in Queenstand, the act, matter or thing may be done on
the next business day in Quesnsland.

A referencs to a clause or schedule is a reference to a clause or sche
Agresment and Includes any amendments macde in accordance

PRECEDENCE

Unless the conleary intention is expressed, if there is an

(@) this Agreement;

(b} a Scheduls;

() an annexure; and

erence in:

() this Agreemept;
(if) a Schedule
(i) an annex

the order of precedence betwsendhem will be the order listed above, this Agreement having
the highest level of precedence.

TERM

This Agreenient sha ence on the Commencement Date and continue for the Term.
unless' ise terminatéd in accordance with the provislons of this Agreement.

AC LEDGEMENT
Unless agreed to the contrary with Queensland Health, the University agrees and
acknowledges that the provision of Funding pursuant to this Agreement does not replace or
vary the terms of any ather funding agreements or arrangements with Giueensland Health.
PAYMENT OF FUNDS
In conslderation of the University agreeing to collaborate in the Project, Quesnsland

Health agrees to provide the Funding to the University In accordance with the Funding
Particulars and on the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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5.2

5.3

654

6.1

6.2

- 6.3

(a)
(b}

(c)
(d)

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Payment of the Funds shall be conditional upon the University complying with the
terms and condltions of this Agreement Including the obligations set out in Schedule 1
in relation to the Funding (for example outcome reporting)..

Queenstand Health may withhold or suspend any payment in whole or in part untl!
the University has complied with the terms and conditions of this Agresment.

Funds shall be pald to the Universily in accordance with the Funding Particulars. If
the account inte which the Funding is to be paid changes, the University must
provide Queensland Health with detalls of the new account o ensure the Funding

can be paid.

USE OF FUNDS & FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The University must use the Funds solely for the Project and in a ance with the
Budget and not for any other purposs.

nds)ls applied by the
ervices in accordance

The University must ensure that any Interest earned ¢
University for the purpose of the Project and the provisig
with the Agreement.

If the University receives:

Project funding from sources other than Qu and Health; or

Praject funding from Queensland He

a separate agreement from this
Agreement; :

the University must not:

transfer amounts between {fie Fuads and the other Project funding; or

use the Funds fo oses for which the other Project funding was received.

unds In an account with a recognised bank, building

ity must k&€p proper and complete books of account and adminisirative
: ng to the Funds. Those records and books of account must make It possible
entity the receipt and expenditure of the Funds.

Ve must keep all administrative records and books of account which relate
directly or indirectly to the receipt and expenditure of the Funds for a minimum of 7
years.

The University must do all things necessary to ensure that:
{a) all payments out of the Funds are correclly made and properiy authorised;
[(2)] adequate control .is maintained over the incurring of liabliities; and

>(c) there is no mrlsappro.priaticn of, or dishonest dealings with, the Funds.
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6.8

6.9

6.10

.11

6.12

6.13

6.14 -

71

7.2

7.3

The Pericdic Financial Reports must ¢o

l‘A
‘ In 3

Any unspent Funds remaining at the expiry of the Term or upon the date of termination
of this Agreement will be repayable fo Queensland Health upon demand and will be
recoverable as a debt due by Queensland Health from the University without further
proof of debt being necessary. Queensland Health reserves the right to charge the
Unlversity interest if the unspent Funds are not repaid to Queensland Health within the
timeframe specified by Queensland Health.

Unless Queensland Health has provided its prior consent In writing, the University must
not use the Funding, this Agreement or the Intellectual Property in the Reports as any
form of security for the purpose of complying with form of loan, credit payment, obligation
or other interest. .

Queensland Health is not responsible for the provision of addition meet any
expenditure In excess of the Funds. Queensland Health will not rei se the University
for any such expenditure,

The University must provide salisfactory financial reports, i ificattons‘

30 June respectively, and

The financial statements have been re d and repdrted In accordance with the
Universlty's financlal practices,

(ii) That the Funds were uged for rposes of the Project.

The University must alsg/frovide/any ather Reports relating to the Project and as
otherwise reasonably requested b sensland Health in accordance with the details,

format and times as notifled by Queensland Health from time to time inciuding progress
reports in the forl specified in Schedule 6 by 30 Seplember and 31 March in each year of

the Term.

Queenslan alth may require the Unliversily to provide more information in relation fo

the Rep

EDGEMENTS BY THE UNIVERSITY AND QUEENSLAND

ny other obligations in this Agreement, Queensland Health and the
University will provide the in kind contributions set out in the Scheduls 5 of the
Agreement.

The University acknowledges and agrees that it has examined and has understood
the contents of all documentation provided by Queensland Health to the University
prior to seeking the Funding.

The University acknowledges that there Is no obligation on the part of Queenstand Health
fo provide future funding, capital or recurrent, in respact of the Project unless Queensland
Health in its absolute discretion, determines otherwise. )
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7.4

8.1

9.1

10

The University ack'nowledges that the Funding Is the maximum amount of funds that will
be provided under the Agreement. '

MILESTONES

The University must meet the Milestones for the Project as specified in Schedule 1.

WARRANTIES

hest of its

The University warrants and represents to Queensland Health that to the
knowledge at all times during the Term, '

(a) it has and will maintain throughout Term the insurance policieg Yequired under this

Agreement,

(b) tha University will comply, and will ensure that its Me isations cor"nply,
with all applicable laws and standards in conducting the-Proj

{c}

(d)

{(e) all authorisations required in cg 1 he performance by it of this Agreement
have been obtainad or effectef 'and 4 full force and effect, and there has bean
no material default by ifin alfdrmange of any of the terms and conditions of any
of those authorisations;

)] the execulion, dek arformance by it of this Agreement does not and will not

violate;

{h) by entering into thls Agresment and complying with any of its obligations under this
Agreement the University is not and will not be in breach of any agreement or
undertaking with any other person (whether written or otherwise) or any law or
regulation of any country; and . .

] it shall obtaln at lis own cost all authorisatlons, licenses, approvals and consents necessary
to perform Its obfigatlons under this Agreement, .
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10

10.1

10.2

10.3

11

CONFIDENTIALITY AND PRIVACY

Subject to clause 10.2, the Recipient must:

(a) keep confidential and not allow, make or cause any public announcement or other
disclosure of or in relation to any Confidential Information without the prior written
consent of the Discloser, which consent may be given or withheld, or given with
conditions, in the Discloser's sole discrelion;

{b) use, copy and retain the Confidenttal Information solely for the purpose of
performance of this agreement (or as otherwise agread) and in accordance with this

clause 10;
(c) without limiting clause 10.1(a) or (b}, not:
{i) explolt any Confidential Information

(ify use any Confidential Information for its own byine rpose without the
prior written consent of the Discloser; or

on other than as

(iii) make copies in any format of the Configé
en consent of the

permitted undsr this agreement withou
Discloser;

{d) ensure that any third party to whom Confid
terms in clause 10; and

{e) on the expiry or termination of thi
destroy at the direction of the certify such destruction) all
Confldential Information of the arfy\then in the party's possession or under its

control.

(a) reasonébly necessary toxsamply with any request, instruction, direction of the
cvernment Minister for Health or any other Queensland Government

{b)

(c) requited by taw;provided that the Recipient notifies the Discloser prior to the
: distlesure required to enable the Discloser to seek a protective order or other

appropriate remedy in respect of the confidential Information;
ofphationm which Is already in the public domain or Is lawfully obtained by the party

0t sources other than under the Agreement;

(d)

(e) to any'bona fide professional adviser of the party;

nH required for the party to perform [ts obligations under this Agreement;
() as raquired by any other law; or
(h) made by the party with the prior written consent of the other party.

The University must comply with parts 2 and 3 of Chapter 2 of the Information Privacy
Act 2009 In relation to the discharge of its obligations under this Agreement as if the
Universily was Queensland Health.
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12
104 If the University collects or has access lo Personal Information in order to
undertake the Project the Universily must:

(a) ensure that the Personal Information is protected agalnst loss and against
unauthorised access, use, madification, disclosure or other misuse;

(b) not use Personal Information other than for the purpose of undertaking the Project,,
"~ unless required or authorised by law;

{c) not disclose Personal Information without the consent of Queensiand Healith, unless
required or authorised by law, )

(d) ansure that only authorised personne! have access lo Personal Information;

(e) immediately nolify Gueensland Health if the University becol @ farg\that a
disclosure of Personal Information is or may be required or aytiofised by law,

) make its officers, emplayees and subcontractors aware/of ¢ niverslty's
obligations under this clause; and

{9) comply with such other privacy and security m ensland Health

reasonable advises the Universlty in writing fr

10.5- Queensland Health may require the University '

s officers, employees
and subcontractors a deed of privacy in a for able to Queensland Health.
10.6 The University must immediately notily ns th upen becoming aware of a

breach of clause 10.3 or 10.4,

11 LIABILITY AND IND

er, its officers and employees and keep them

0ss (but not including consequential loss), claim or
damage (including, without limitatiof, reasonable costs) suffered, incurred or brought

by a third party as a result of any wrongful or negligent act or

e Project or breach of this Agreement by the indemnifying parly

11.1 Each party shall Indemni

11.2 i i en by each party pursuant to clause 14.1 shall be reduced

12

121 The Unliversify must take out and malntain with a reputable insurer public liabiiity and
professional indemnity insurance which shall be appropriate fo and sufficient to cover all
Itabilities of the University associated with the undertaking of the Profect. The parties
acknowledge that the Unlversily is a self insurer for workers cornpensation insurance and
its self Insuranca is appropriate and sufficient to cover all workers compensation liabilities
associated with the underiaking of the Project.

12.2 When reguested to do so, the University must, within 7 days from the date of the request,
supply evidence to Queenstand Health of the currency of the insurance required by clause
12.1.
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12.3 If the Universily fails to take out or maintain insurance as required by clause 12.1,

Queensland Health may effect the necessary insurance and recover the amount of the
insurance premium from the University as a debt due to Queenstand Health without further

proof of debt being necessary.

13  ACCESS

13.1 The University must allow unrestricted access by Queensland Heallh's officers and agents

to the University’s land, buildings and records to enable Queensland Health to:

(8) carry out an audit or inspection of the U-niversity's hooks and records; and

(b) otherwise ascertaln whether the University has complied with érmis jand
conditions of this Agreement (including but not limited lo examinin
of the Project and any outcomes of the Project. -

132 Queensland Health will glve at least (5) days notice to the UniveTsity hefore exercising

ble for interview.

13.3 s ge Is nacessary to enable

13.4 3
eral's statutory functions, at reasonable
e University to provide records and
-13.5 obligations of the Universlly to perform its
gtherwlse agreed hetween them.
14
14.1 iversity/wi make a disclosure by means of a Publication, the University
writing of Queensland Health, which consent may not be
unreaso d or delayad. The University shall submit to Queensland Health a
sed Publication at least three (3) months prior to the date upon
ended the draft be submitted for Publication. Queensland Health shall
arty five (45) days of receiving the request in accordance with one of the

(a) all provide its consent to the Publication;

(b) it shall provide its consent to the Publication subject to data being anonymised or
Confidential Infarmation being severed from the draft or such other amendment
which in the opinion of the University is necessary;

{c) itshall request a delay in disclosure of the Publication; or

(d) It will not consent to ihe Publlcation as it reasonably believes that such Publicatian
would harm or injure the interest that party may have in any Confidential Information.

14.2 The University agrees to comply with the decision of Queensland Health under this clause
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14.3

144

14.5

14.6

15

15.1

15.2

5.3

15.4

15.5

156

i58.7

14

Advertising campalgns and other promotlonal activities proposed by the University in
relation to the Services require the prior approval of Queensland Health.

Without [imitation to this clause, the University may not make any statement or Issue any
information, publication, decument of article for publication concerning this Agreement in
any media withoul the prior approval of Queensland Health.

Where approved, the contribution of Queensland Health must be acknowledged in any
media or promotional activities in a format as agreed by Queensland Health.

The University must ensure that Its staff and Member Organisations also comply with the
provistons of this clause 14 and that they observe and comply with the-sae obligations as
required of the University under this clause.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Intellectual Properly Rights in:

(a) all New Project Materials will, upon creatlon, v

(b)  Survey Data will, upon creation, vestin

(c) all Reports will, upon creation, vest in Q and Hlealth and the University asslgns
such rights to Queensland Health

Each party further agrees and shall & a taff and-conlractors and students in

the case of the University shall do a apd shall execute ali documents necessary

s0 that each party obtains such
encumbrance.

fght: Gri in clause 16.1 without limitation or

ty a pérpetual royally free, non-exclusive licence

Queensland Health gra 2
énorts for the purposes of the perfarmance of this

of the.pedfarmance of this Agreement and related purposes.

Each Party Yetains the Intellectual Property Rights to its Existing Project Materials and
grants to thie other Party a royalty free non-exclusive licence fo usa its Existing Project
Materials for the purposes of performing this Agreement. The University grants to
Queensland Health a perpetual, irrevocable, non-exclusive, royalty free licence to use
adapt, and reproduce its Existing Project Materlal for public health and governmental
reporting purposes (excluding commeicial purposes).

The Universily shall use its best endeavours to obtain Moral Rights consents from Its
slaff and contractors engaged in the crealion of the New Project Materials in a form as

contained in Schedule 7.
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16

16.1

16.2

16.3

17

-17.41

17.2

15

SURVEY DATA

The parties agree that the Survey Data wilf be contributed by the partles to the National
Child QOral Health Survay and related projects.

The Survey Data will be collected by the pariles during the course of the Project and the
University will:

{a) undertake quality controf;

{b) prepare the dats;

{c) manage the data

(d) undertake analysis of the data
{e) report and publish the data.

raw leansed Survey
articipate in the Project.

The Unlversity will provide Queensland Health access to-the
Data and will provide Queensland Health with the oppoftup

BREACH & CONSEQUENCES OF B

islo Agreement, and that failure is In

~ the reasonable oplnion of Queensland Heal able of being remedied, then

to remedy the failure within 14 days
e as determined at the discretion of
e/ notice is given.

{or such other extended perlod of reg
Queenstand Health) from the

If:

{(a) inthe reasonable opinten 6f Queensiand Health a breach by the Unlversity of a
provislon of this Agreeme ot capable of being remedied;

{b) the Univetsily es Insolvent or takes advantage of any insolvency laws or is
unable fo/hpay its hen dus;

alth is satisfied that any statement made in the Research Plan is
ct, false or misleading in any way which would have affected the
provide the Funding to the University; or

(e) suspend payment of any unpaid instalment of the Funds to the Univarsity {until
further notice);

() increase the frequency of financlal or performance reporting by the University;
(g) appoint a financlal controller to monitor the expenditure of the Funds;
{(h) appoint an auditor to conduct an audit or inspection; or

() terminate this Agreement.
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17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

17.8

17.8

16

If Queensland Health fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement, and that fallure is
in the reasonable oplnion of the Universily capable of being remedled, then the University
must give Queensland Health a notice to remedy the failure within 14 days (or such ofher
extended period of reasonable time as determined at the discretion of the University} from the

dafe on which the notice Is given.

If:

(a) in the reasonable opinion of the University a breach by Queensland Health of a
provision of this Agreemant is not capable of being remedied; or

(b) Queensland Health has falled to comply with a notice under clause 17.3,
then the University may immediately terminate the Agreement.

Termination of this Agreement will not affect any claim or actiopgither p ay have
against the other by reason of any antecedent breach of this figre nd will not relieve
either party of any obligation under this Agreement which is e sed/tg continue after

termination.

If this Agreement Is terminated pursuant to this clause 17 | ar party:

{(a) Queensland Health will not be required WIniversity any outstanding amount
of Funds except to the extent thgs ben legally committed for
expenditure by the Unlversily In @ with'}His Agreement before the date of

termination of this Agreement (written.gvidence will be required); '

{b} Queensland Health will be entj
" Funds which:

mitted-for expenditure by the University in accordance
with this Agreemspt b o-date,of termination of this Agreement (written

(li) Has not been expended, In
accordanc€with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

immediatelydake all available and reasonable steps to stop any further expanditure on -
the Project. : :

Queensland Health Is not liable to pay compensation for any loss of prospeclive
profits, financial loss or any loss of benefits that would have been received by the
University had thls Agreement not been terminated in accordance with clause 17 of

this Agreemaent.
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18

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

19

- 191

20

20.1

20.2

21

211

17

GST

In this clause:

"GST Amount’ means the amount of GST on a Taxable Supply calculated at the rate of
GST applicable at tha fime that the Taxable Supply is made,

"GST Law" means A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 (Cth);

"ABN, "Adjustment Event", "Adjustment Note", "GST", “Reciptent Created Adjustment
Note", "Recliplent Created Tax Invoice", "Tax [nvoice" and "Taxable Supply" have the
meanings given in the GST Law;

"RCTI" means Recipient Greated Tax Invoice; and

"RCAN means Reciplent Created Adjustment Nate.

The Funds specified in this Agreement are GST exclusive.

NOTICES

A notice, demand i
Agreeraent will béxigemed to have been duly given to or made if it Is delivered, or sent by
prepaid regist orby facsimile transmisslon addressed:

Brisbane QLD 4001
Facsimile: (07) 3006 2767

Any notice served on the University will be deemed to have been validiy served if it s sent
to the address set outin ltem 3 of the Funding Particulars.

WAIVER

A failure by a party to enforce a clause of this Agreement at any time will not constitute a
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waiver of the clause and a clause will not be deemed to be waived unless the waiver Is in
writing and signed by the walving party.

Any waiver by a party of a breach of a clause of this Agreement by the other pérty will not
constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of that clause or of any other clause.

SURVIVAL

Clauses 8, 10 to 15 (inclusive) will survive termination of this Agreement,

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains everything that parties have agreed in rela e subject

matter It deals with. No party can rely on an earlier written d ent ora ything sald or
done by or on behalf of another parly before this Agreement wa ted.
VARIATICN

This Agreement may be varled at any time by satin writing executed by both
parties.

edule to this Agreement if the
be a substitute schedule.

a

1t will be sufficient evidence of agreemen
parties execute and date a document

ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement shall nef -@ ed ovated by the University without the prior written
consent in writing of Quasnsfand

This Agreament will be governed and constructed in accordance with the laws of
Queensland and the parties submit to the jurisdigtion of the courts of Queenstand.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Unless a parly to this Agreement has complied with this clause, that party may not
commence court proceedings or arbltration concerning any dispute befween the parties
ariging from this Agreament (whether during the Term or after the termination of this
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Agreement) except where that party seeks urgent Inlerloculorf relief, in which case that
party need not comply with this clause before referring this dispute to arbitration or
commencing court proceedings concerning that dispute.

Where a dispute between the pariies has arisen from this Agreement, a parly claiming that
a dispute has arlsen must notify each other party to the dispute, specifying the nature of
the dispute (“Dispute Notice"). The parties must negotiate In the utmost good faith and
endeavour to reach agreement concerning the matter in dispute.

if the matter in dispute ls not resolved pursuant to clause 28.2 within 10 days of the date
the Dispute Notice is given, or such longer period as the parlies may agree in writing, the
parties must, within a further 10 days, or such longer period as the parties may agree in
writing, negotiate In the utmost good faith and endeavour to reach agreement on a process
for resalving the whole or part of the dispute through means other it proceedings
or arbitration and on:

(a) the procedure and timetable for any exchange of doc ts and informatlon relating
fo the dispute;

(b) procedural rules and a timetable for the conducy d mode of progeeding,

and

{c) a procadure for selection and compensa j erson who may be employed by
the parties in endeavauring fo resolve the

exchange of documents or information or

The parties acknowledgs that the purpose
Ha is clause is to altempt to settle the

the making of any offer of seftlement pu
dispute between parties.

periad Sp ee In clause 28.3 for agreement on a dispute

dh/has complied with the provisions of this clause may be
gther pariies, terminale the dispute resolution process
provided for In this clausé~afidundy then refer the dispute to arbitration or commence court
proceedings concerning the

Wharea a dispulg n referred to arbitration pursuant o clause 28.5, the arbitrator is to
tween the parties or, failing agreement by the parties within 7
he referral to arbitration, such person appolnted by the

Presiden ime being of the Queensland Law Society Incorporated. The arbitration
must be cohductethiaccordance with the Rules for the Conduct of Commercial
Arbitratiors] e of Arbilrators Australia and subject to those Rules, In

acco ith the provisions of the Gommercial Arbitration Act 1990 (Qld).

The University and any other persons engaged by the University in the performance of the
Project will ot be or be deemed to be in the service or employment of Queensland Health.

Nothing in this Agreement will evidence the relationship of any parinership or joint venture
between the parties.
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NO PROPRIETARY INTERESTS

All liabilittes incurred by the University In undertaking the Project whether utilising the funds
provided under this Agreemant or not, shall remain liabilities of the University and none of

such liabilities shall attach to Queensland Health,

Al liabilities incurrad by Queensland Health in undertaking the Project shall remain
liabllitiss of Quieensland Health and none of such liabilittes shall aitach fo the University.

EXECUTION OF SEPARATE COPIES

The parties shall execute 2 coples of this Agreement, with each p@ an original
copy. ]

DOH-DL 14/15-08%cument no. 107




EX_ECUTED as an agreement

EXECUTED by The State of Queensland /
represented by Queensland Health S 73

by the Exee&twe.Dueclor Corporate Services in the
DIOSENEEDIF T DI X St %

s.73
s.73
Deputy Director-General

Cmpnnu;, Services.. .o vuenrnn
SIphinEp34 1685

‘Name of authorised person (print)
Date: ? é '/0

EXECUTED by The Unliversity of Adelalde
by its duly appointed officer who warrants that
they have the authority to sign on its behalf in the.

. presence of: s. 73
s. /3
s.73 s.73
Witness
S. /3 LEFUCT YILE-URANVELLWA AW
s.73 . VICEPRESIDENT (RESEARGH)
Name of Witness (print) “Name of Officer (print)

""Name of authorised person (print)
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SCHEDULE 1
(i}  FUNDING PARTICULARS

1. Funded Unlversity University of Adslaide
2. Universlty Contact .13 573
Person ) : .
Professor of Social and Preventive Dentistry
3. University Address - Ausfralian Research Cenire for Populat

School of Dentistry
Level 1, 122 Frome Streat

Adelaide
SOUTH AUSTRALIA 500
4, University Telephone (08) 8303 5438 : v ( O;/

5. University FacsImile (08) 8303 3070 ( (7/ 0

6. Purpose of the Funding | The Universi straiian Research Centre for

(the Services) Poputation Oral (ARCPOH) will conduct an
i FTh ains resulting from the introduction

, Queensland.

chis/more fully described in the Research

5 the irst of three cross-sectional surveys and will

< cted bétween 2009 and 2014. Each study will be
dertdken 5 years apart from the other. '

The Surve
% survey will also constitute Qusensland Health’s contribution
i \ter National Child Oral Health Survey.

7/
7. Approved Fung EST\ $821,200
exclusive amotnt) S

8. Period of/%%nt 1 July 2009 — 30 June 2014

Funding Agreement.

9. Paymerﬁﬁ\o{ule Six monthly payments will be made upon éigning of this

~
10. Milestones Not applicable
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11. Financial Statement
Requlrements

| six monthly financtal reports — due 31 January and 31 July

as per clause 6.11.

12, Qutcome Reporfing (In
addition to the financlal
reporting requirements set
out in clause 6)

13. Queenstand Health
Contact Person

Six monthly milestone reports due on 31 January and 31
July in the format provided in Schedule 6. Reports will
include a description of the acllwty undertaken, issues
arising and outcomes achieved in the format provided in
Schedule 6 {(or as agreed between the parties).

A report In the findings from the Project relating to the first
cross-sectional survey willl be submitted within 12 months of

completion of the data collection. m
3 V

Is- 7

s.73

Manager — Community Services
Health Services Purchasing an Branch

14, Quaensland Health
Address

Queensland Health
GPO Box 48.
BRISBANE QLD 40%

15. Queensiand Health
Telephone

(07) 3006 28&@

16. Queensiand Health
Facsimile

(07) 3006 2(?7%

17, Queensland Health -
Email

hs/e$> gov au
X

\_
&
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SCHEDULE 2
BUDGET
Six 1 July 2009 | 1 July 2010 | 1 July 2011 | 1 July 2012 | 1 July 2013
monthly to 30 June |to 30 June |to30June |to30June |to30June
payment 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
July 84,500 86,200 82,100 78,900 @%agoo
January 84,500 86,200 82,100 7@> 78,900
/NS

Total U
funding $169,000 | $172,400 | $164, @77 157,800 | $157,800
per year \< )

N

These costs do not include any allowance
provided in biannual instalments’in adva

for
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SCHEDULE 3
RESEARCH PLAN

The Queensland Government has committed substantial resources to the expansion of
water fluoridation throughout the State. The evidence base for fltoridation includes findings
from studies conducted by the Australian Research Centre for Population Oral Health ,
(ARCPOH) at the Unlversity of Adelaide in collaboration with Queensland Health showing
that children in fluorldated Townsville had less dental decay than their counterparts In non-
fluoridated Brishane. The benefit of the extension of water fluoridation needs to be tested
across a wider range of areas as Queensland. Such evidence Is aiso valuable in informing
" the state and national policy. The National Health and Medical Research ncil has
recentlly recommended the fiuoridation of all water supplies in Australig amd
evidence from Queensland will be important in documenting the beneit
fluoridation in contemporary Australian Communities.

The Project being funded pursuant to this Agreement only retat he/gontribution by the
ARCPOH, specifically the consultancy for the survey whichprovide specialist expertise
for deslgn and development, examiner tralning, quality co , ‘- gnalysis and reporting.

Health is intended to

s, described in the University
siated with that survey.

for the Preliminary five-year

This Agreement and the Funding provided under it by-Que
_ cover only the Baseline Data Collection Survey (2009
Research Plan) together with the analysis and repo
Depending on timing, the Funding may also
evaluation (2014-16).

¢ five-year evaluation {2014-16) (other

The Funding is not intended to cover the fa
ar evaluation (2019-21) or the Nested
Raséarch Plan. .

than as described above), the Comprehe
validation Study as described in the

3]
rs
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SCHEDULE 4
(1) FINANCIAL REPORT CERTIFICATION
Orgld: 3060 Organlsation: University of Adelaide
5P Id: 5122 Service Provider: Australian Research Centre for Population Oral Health
Project Id;: | 51841 Project: " | Evaluation of health gains resulting from Introduction of
water fluaridation In Queensland
Please Hck the perlfod relevant to this financial report -
‘Perlod to 30 June . O ) Period to 31 December 0
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL TRANSACTION
a, . ’ o TETE 8 ks = s L AL
Total rncome To Date e Total Income To Date:
Less Total Operating Expenditure: 5 Lass Total Oheyﬁpenaftufe:/
Operating surplus/deficit: 18 One-off surplu{'{ﬁdz/ﬁ/ﬁﬁ') )
REASONS FOR SURPLUS/DEFICIT {Itlentify Operating and One- a

NN

7y
a\8)

ABN: DD_DDD_DD E_ffectlve from: e/ neeed s
GST Status: Reglstered 0 {plea Effective from: ....fueef e

_Not Registered se

L =

We, hereby cert!fy that:
1. The infermatlon contained in the attached Financlal Report reflects the financlal performance of the
project; '

2. Adequate internal edures exist in the recording, authorlsing payments, recording recelpts and

3 records has been maintained;

4. Funds have he purposes for which they were provided;

5. All terms and condItions Service Agreement have been complied with; and
6 The ungéysigned are authorised to sign on behalf of the organlsation.

Signature: )i Slanature; .
& /L —— o I

Print Full NW ( Print Full Name:

Position: % Positlon:

{President / Chalrperson ) {Treasurer / Secretary)
Date: SR S A Date: SR S S
Please return this certlflication to; Manager ~ Communilty Services Unlt

Health Services Purchasing and Logistics Branch
Queenstand Health

GPO Box 48

BRISBANE QLD 4001
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SCHEDULE 4
{11} FINANCIAL REPORT
Org id: 3060 Organlsatlon: Universlty of Adelaide
SPId: 5122 Service Provider: Australian Research Centre for Population Oral Health
ProjectId: | 51841 Project: Evaluation of health galns resulting from Introductlon of
: water fluoridation In Queensiand

Please note that this format Is a gulde only. An Income and expenditure report from an Accounting Packape
(Ez. MYOB/Qulckbooks) should be submltted where possible, but must be accompanied by the Certiflcation
page (see previous page). Please ensure that operating and one-off Income and expenditure are clearly and

separately identifled.

Anal Allocation 0 al Income to Date

Queensiand Health Operating Funds $ \5

Queensland Health One-off Funds S

Rollover surplus fram previous financlal year s

approved for one-off expenditure .

Interest earned on QH Funds I?

Other Income $

TOTAL INCOME TO DATE I 5

Actual (Cumulatle} 7

Budget items orecast Bget t at
: — Expenditure to Date
Direct Expendlture Eg: Salarles ]bﬁ\:ozg _
TaN %
TOTAL (Direct Expermfu\ \> 5 $

Indirect Expendittire Eg:}d@% Operating

/N
Qur—

TOTAL (lndlre&&l diture) $ - $
~
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURE

‘One’off Expenditure

TOTAL ONE-OFF EXPENDITURE 5

TOTAL EXPENDITURE TO DATE 5
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SCHEDULE &

SPECIAL CONDITIONS
Queensland Health in kind support

28

The studies will be managed by Office of the Chief Dental Officer, Queensland Health which

will negotiate with schools, Health Service Districts and other stakeholders. The Office of

the Chief Dental Officer, In lialson with Health Service District Oraf heaith Services, will also

provide resources for data collection and assessment of reliability, including personnel,
mobile clinical facilities, equipment and consumables for examination teams, trave! and
accommodation costs for examination teams, and costs assaclated with mailing of

questionnalres.

The Queenstand Health, Office of the Chief Dental Officer will coliaba
design and selection.

ARCPOH responsibilities

" examiner in the field. ARCPOH will provide da Gitware for racording Survey
data and a questionnalre for parental information OH will prepare and manage all
Survey data, analyse and report,,includin‘ '- paration of Publications. :
\ s the Queenstand component of the
Irdas refsearch proposals around the

he existing and possibly new NHMRC

National Child Oral Health Surve
National Child Oral Health Survgy
Project Grant applications.
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SCHEDULE 6

OUTCOME REPORT TO QUEENSLAND HEALTH

Project Title: Evaluation of the health gains resulting from the introduction of water
fluoridation in Queensland.

The outcomes achieved by the University of Adelaide under t nding agreement
are as follows: (No more than one page)
2

1. Please summarise the original objectives of the fund (as specified in

the original research proposal). m
O

>
2. Indicate the progress to date in achieying proj ilestones and deliverables (as |
specified in the original research prop%
) ~—
3. Have the timelines for th i€ ed? If yes, please provide details.

'ﬁ\
A N

4. Has the direction of tr&ject changed (from that specified in the original

research I)? If so how?

| 5. If satisfactory progress towards achieving the project milestones and ‘
deliverables has not been achieved, please explain why this has occurred and
how the issues are being addressed.
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SCHEDULE 7
| CONSENT (MORAL RIGHTS) -

To the extent that | am author of the works described as neéw project materials created
pursuant {o a contract between State of Queensland (acting through the Queensland
Health) and The University of Adelaide c/~Australian Research Centre for Population Oral
Health, School of Dentistry ("the Work") and any moral rights in that Work vest in me, | glve
the following consent, in relation to the Work, to the State of Queensland acting through

Queensland Health ("the Department"):

(a) | agrée that [ may not be attributed as author of the Work; and
{b) | agres that the Department may undertake the following

(i) the alteration, amendment, deletion or madification of {

(i) any dealing with, or changes to, the Work,

which might otherwise constitute an infringement o

(Individual author's name) %ﬁ ess's name and address)

&

{Individual author's sign u?s\ (Wilngss's signature)

Date:
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SCHEDULE 8

i) RECIPIENT CREATED TAX INVOICE (RCT|) AGREEMENT

University Name: TF)C LININCy S ‘h./] : O—F Ad C{O; C{C
University ABN: 61-2449-878-137
University GST Status: GST registered: If Yes, please

O No  [Yes Effective from:// 7/ égnggi&%}gw
SPID: 5122 VU

This is an agreement between Queensland Health (QH) and the Uni
above) to enable QH to issue an RCTI in respect of the Fundln

\rg@e name appears
S8 hich thls RCTI

asvilascribed in Schedule 1

Agreement forms the Schedule (8) and particularly in respect o
made to QH by the University.

University Queé{\u@ ith

: on behalf of Queensland Health; | hereb
|, hereby, cerlify that i 4

1. the University s reglstered for GST, and < Quensiand Healih Is registered for GST
urposes and [ts ABN is 66 329 169 412;
ueensland Health agrees to be hound by the
terms and conditions of the RCTI Agreement

nitlinad An nana 2

2. the University agrees to be hound by the
terms and conditions of the RCTi Agreement
outlined on page 2.

s. /3
s. /3 T
.73 .73 E—

Signature
Print {ull name: . Print full name:

S. /3 S. 73

s.73
— - : s.73
H)

Positton

(Secretary and Registrar) S ADirector, Mwlces

Purchasing) tcses sTic®-

Date; / 16110 Date:: {1 7 6!90fo

Posltion
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(f) RECIPIENT CREATED TAX INVOICE (RCT1) AGREEMENT

1.

Queensland Health will lssue RCTIs in respect of all Taxable Supplies made by the University to
Queensiand Health in return for the Funding from Queensland Health, and provide a copy lo the

University within twenty-elght (28) days. .
Tha Univarsily must remit the GST amount(s) to the Australian Taxation Office as required by the
GST Law.

Queensland Health will Issue Reciplent Created Adjustment Notes (RCAN) in respect of any

Adjustment Events that occur under this RCT! Agreement, and provide a copy to the Univarsity
(within twenty-eight (28) days after one has been raquasted or when Queensland Heaith

becomes aware of the adjustment event).
The University agrees not to Issue Tax Invoices or Adjustment Notes in respect of these same.
Taxable Supplies (if this were to occur, the University's Tax Invoice or Adjustrent Note is not

considered valid and the RCTI and/or RCAN takes precedence).

The University will notify Queensland Health immediately if it ceases to ba'vég gd for GST
purposes, becomes aware of any reason for which its registration 2 2 i
ceases to salisfy any of the RCTI requirements stated In the GST

The University acknowledges that |t cannat enter into an Agreem
Health to Issue a RCTI Agreement if It Is not registered for GST,-&
registered.

The University will notify Quesensland Health in writing if it
issue the RCTI and the cancellation of this Agreement

g Quesnsland
equired fo be

any reason for which its registration may bg
requirements stated In the GST Law.

c. arefund of GST
Agreement;
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SCHEDULE 9

BANKING DETAILS
EFT APPLICATION FORM ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT OF FUNDS

SECTION A —YOUR FINANCIAL INSTITUTION ACCOUNT DETAILS
I/We hereby agree that the/all payment/s is/are to be made to
University of Adelalde

hy the way of direct deposlt to the following account:

Name of Approved Financial Institution: BO\riK SA

Institutfon/State/Branch Number: [6 characters only)

Account number; ) - =

Account name:

S. 73
Signature | <73
Name {please print): . — e _
Position: C F.0 .
Contact phone number; 2 [C ‘l o ’06 % %0?) S % OS

SECTION B ~ CERTIFICATION BY YOUR

{University must ensure Sectfon B Is campleted by their relevant Financial Institution e.g. Bank, Building

Socfety etc)
The above account detalls have been verlfied and are correct:
~. Name of Institution: BBMK SA ?E,,’L*L,? L%%‘ﬂ?;ﬁﬂ'@ula

Iy 5. 73 - ABN 2 055 513 070

Stgnature: . é
- 573 31 MAY 2010 .

Name {please print): 7 — - T

Position: Sernat Bcorn Gxeantve | Majorclient Group| |

Date: ' 21 Mg:} 2010 BANK STAMP

SECTION C—FOR FORWARDING OF REMITTANCE ADVICE DETAILS

Address: ' [_7! HS 6(Ch‘((:” 61', AOI@'Ul'OfC SOY S{m
Fax number: O‘B 30 A 41’35 |

DOH-DL 14/15-08%cument ro. 120




(18/07/2014) °* 's73 |- RE: QCOHS

From: RE s.73 (@adelaide.edu.au>
To: ; %73 (@health.gld.gov.au

Date: 11/07/2013 2:24 pm

Subject: RE: QCOHS

Ss.73

We are making good progress on the QCOHS report & an accompanying scientific paper on the
effectiveness of water fluoridation. We need to firm up the timelines though to passing these
documents on to you as drafts as outlined in our research grant agreement. Further we need to
discuss the presentation of the key findings to people with Qld Health. The date you mentioned in your
email of 23 July is a couple of weeks too early for us. Might it be possible to set a date somewhere
around the second or third week of August? Who would we be providing the drafts to? And who would
we be presenting to? For how long? To what depth? etc.

| tried to call you but didn’t get through. Can you call me to discuss (h) 08-8357 1559 or ( S. £33

3.777%_

s .73
$. 13 573
Emeritus Professor
Australian Research Centre for Population Oral Health (ARCPQ
School of Dentistry (
THE UNIVERSITY OF ADELAIDE
SOUTH AUSTRALIA 5005 AUSTRALIA
Tel: +61 8 8313 5029 or 8313 5438 Fax: +61 /
Emailis 7%.73 @adelaide.edu.au<mailtd 5+ /5.7 adeldide.edu.au>
Location/Street Address:
Room 1.12, Level 1

122 Frome Street
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Number 00123M m

IMPORTANT: This message may ¢
information. If you think it was sent
copies and advise the sender. For the p
email is authorised by The Unjversity of A

jl or legally privileged
mistake, please delete all
es of the SPAM Act 2003, this

Think green: read on the screen:

From:[5 ¢33 |[mailto:| > 573  @ha4lth.qld.gov.au]
Se 73

1S.
g‘(’:'_ s.73

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
ss.73 |We have a statewide directors' meeting in Brisbane on 22 & 23 July that may be a good
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

S5’
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(18/07/2014|° "s73  |RE: QCOHS Page 2

S. /3 s.73

Director Oral Health Outcomes

Office the Chief Dental Officer

Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division

Department of Health

p: 07 3131 6981

mis. 73 s73

f: 783

e:/S &¥3 (@health.qld.gov.au<mailto S- 673  [@health.qld.gov.au>

>>>/S. /3 573 @adelaide.edu.au<mailto Ss 73 (@adelaide.edu.au>> 29/05/2013 2:30 pm
>>

Hi 5.73] 5

Hope you are well. | mef 875 the other day when he was down here for a
The QCOHS report is moving fast. The results show that the data are g
to know given everyone’s enormous effort. Several groups of people

ighhQurati which is pleased
working on the report.

We have also named you,|S. /35,73 to co-author some chapters(in ort. You will be asked
to contribute to the writing.
I am thinking of printing hard copies of the report. We will have y € report available as the
main source but will probably need some hard copies as well. How, rd copies do you think
your side would need?

s
Ss.13

Associate Professo Ss/73 BDS, MScDent, Ph
ARCPOH, School of Dentistry

The University of Adelaide, Australia 5005
Phone: +61 8 8313 3964

Fax: +61 883133070

Email: Ss.73 |@adelaide.edu.au<mailto} s 73 (@adelaids

.edu.au>

Location/Street Address:
ARCPOH

The University of Adelaide
Room 1.7, Level 1

122 Frome Street (Cnr Pirie
ADELAIDE SA 5000

CRICOS Provider Nu ﬁ\ 123M

IMPORTANT: This m\e/ssage}%mtain confidential or legally privileged information. If you think it
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
From:|° 573 |mailto[S &3 (@health.qgld.gov.au]
Se AM
To S. /3

73

Cc °
Subject: QCOHS
Hil 873}
Sorry for the delay in getting bac u after your phone call last week.
| discussed your suggestion with | §.743and he agreed that a presentation at the time of the release of
the final report would be worthwh d, given that the results are likely to be consistent with

preliminary findings, there is no need to present interim results earlier.
He did suggest, however, that it might be a good idea to do a quick (15 min) presentation to the
Minister's advisor, DG and/or Deputy DG, and then do a more detailed presentation to our office and
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(18/07/2014)

o 1o

s.73 RE: QCOHS Page 3

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

e:|S %73 (@health.qld.gov.au<mailto] S 673  @health.qgld.gov.au>

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for e use of the intended
recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it ou/gfe not the intended
recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or revie i$ emalil is strictly prohibited.

The information contained in this email, including any atta t ith it, may be subject to a
statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to health servi rs.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you rec email in error, you are asked to
immediately notify the sender by telephone collect o tralia+61 1800 198 175 or by return email.

You should also delete this email, and any copie
any hard copies produced.

computer system network and destroy

If not an intended recipient of this email,you
on it; any form of disclosure, modifica
prohibited.

Naleopy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies
and/or publication of this email is also

Although Queensland Health takes all reasenable steps to ensure this email does not contain
malicious software, Queensland Health does hot accept responsibility for the consequences if any
person's computer inadverte uffers any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is
infected with a virus, other computer programme or code that may occur as a consequence
of receiving this email.

Unless stated otherwi&g, th

Queensland Gov?ne\nt.
)

il represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the
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(18/07/2014) | 573 | RE: QCOHS report Page 1

From: L s.73 elaide.edu.au>
To: s573 1@adelaide.edu.au; | 5 573 [@health.gld.gov.au
CC: S. (3573 (@health.qgld.gov.au

Date: 19/07/2013 4:25 pm

Subject: RE: QCOHS report

S 13 513

I checked with| > /73 _|re his commitments in late August. Unfortunately the last week in August is the
week when he is commited to attend an NHMRC Grant Review Panel in Canberra. The options sem to
be the first week in September, Wed 5 or Thurs 6 September, or second to last week in August, Thurs
22 or Frid 23 August. However | prefer the September option.

s. /3 s.73

From: > '° 73 @health.gld.gov.au]
Sent: Friday, 19 July 2013 2:43 PM

Tds. 73

Ca s.73

Subject: QCOHS report

H| 572

Good to speak with you today.
As discussed, could you and Loc please give consideration to
present the findings of the QCOHS report?

At this stage, the last week in August would work well.
you could plan to provide 2 presentations - a 15-2Q min

date to visit us in Brisbane to

ntioned, we would appreciate if
presentation to senior Department

and Ministerial staff, and a longer (1 hour?) pres ion oral health staff.
Thanks again for your update and efforts. We look d to reading the report.
S. /73
s.73

Director Oral Health Outcomes
Office the Chief Dental Officer
Health Service and Clinical Innovation
Department of Health

p: 07 3328 9271

m:s. /73 s.73

els. &3 (@health.ql v.au<mali o~ls' {73 @health.gld.gov.au>

f\4

This email, inclugingany\attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s). Thj @-.- iality is not waived or lost, if you receive it and you are not the intended

recipient(s), oK itted/received in error.

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

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies

on it; any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or publication of this email is also
prohibited.
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(18/07/2014) s73 - RE: QCOHS report

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
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